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PROSPECTUS

110,000,000 Shares

"CHIMERA

INVESTMENT CORPORATICH

Common Stock

Chimera Investment Corporation is a Maryland corporatiahitivests in residential mortgage-backed securities,
residential mortgage loans, real estate-related securities aodsvather asset classes. We are externally managed and dnvised
Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company, which we refeagd-IDAC or our Manager, an investment adviser registeithdthe
Securities and Exchange Commission. FIDAC is a whaoliped subsidiary of Annaly Capital Management, Inc.ictvle refer to
as Annaly, a New York Stock Exchange-listed real estate timesd trust.

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exgeainder the symbol “CIM”. The closing price on the New
York Stock Exchange on October 23, 2008 was $2.7Gzme.

Immediately after this offering, we will sell to Annalyt,681,415 shares of our common stock in a privateioffet the
same price per share as the price per share of this puliglilmgf Upon completion of this offering and the privaftfering
immediately after this offering, Annaly will own approxitaly 9.6% of our outstanding common stock (which peagmexcludes
shares to be sold pursuant to the exercise of the uritegsioverallotment option and unvested shares of otnict=si common
stock granted to our executive officers and employees dflanager or its affiliates).

We have elected and intend to qualify to be taxed as a rea gstastment trust, or REIT, for federal income tax pseg
commencing with our taxable year ending on December 31, d@0dssist us in qualifying as a REIT, ownership afaammon
stock by any person is generally limited to 9.8% in gaduin number of shares, whichever is more restrictiffany class or series
the outstanding shares of our capital stock. In additioncharter contains various other restrictions on theeoship and transfer of
our common stock, see “Description of Capital Stock—Regtriston Ownership and Transfer.”

Investing in our common stock involves risks. SeeRisk Factors” beginning on page 18 of this
prospectus.

Per Share Total
Public offering price $2.2t $247,500,00
Underwriting discount $.0787 $8,657,00!
Proceeds, before expenses, to us $2.171: $238,843,00

The underwriters may also purchase up to an additiona0@®00 shares at the public offering price, lesautigerwriting
discount, within 30 days from the date of this prosgpetd cover overallotments, if any.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any statgties commission has approved or disapproved of
securities or determined if this prospectus is truthfldaomplete. Any representation to the contrary is a crimirfaheé.

The shares will be ready for delivery on or about Oct@9e2008.

Merrill Lynch & Co. Credit Suisse Deutsche Bank Securitie




Citi J.P. Morgan UBS Investment Banlk
JMP Securities Keefe, Bruyette & Woods

The date of this prospectus is October 24, 2008.
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provide you with different information. This prospectus may only be used where it is legal to sell the securities, and this prospectus is

not an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offetto buy shares in any state or jurisdiction where aroffer or sale of shares would be

unlawful. The information in this prospectus and aty free writing prospectus prepared by us may be acrate only as of their respective

dates.



PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights some of the mi@tion in this prospectus. It is not complete andsinot contain all of the information that
you should consider before investing in our comstook. You should read carefully the more detaidormation set forth under “Risk
Factors” and the other information included in thpsospectus. Except where the context suggestsaisiee the terms “Chimera,”
“company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Chimera Investment Corporation; “our Manager” and “FIDAC" redr to Fixed Income
Discount Advisory Company, our external managed &wnnaly” refers to Annaly Capital Management, Inthe parent company of
FIDAC. Unless indicated otherwise, the informatinrhis prospectus assumes (i) the common stobk &old in this offering is to be sold at
$2.25 per share, (ii) the private offering to Aryal 11,681,415 shares of our common stock whith éecur immediately after this
offering, and (iii) no exercise by the underwriteifgheir overallotment option to purchase or plageto an additional 16,500,000 shares of
our common stock.

Our Company

We are a specialty finance company tmasts in residential mortgage-backed securitieBRMBS, residential mortgage loans, real
estate-related securities and various other akssdas. We have elected and intend to qualify taked as a real estate investment trust, or
REIT, for federal income tax purposes commencint wur taxable year ending on December 31, 200¥¢elfualify for taxation as a
REIT, we generally will not be subject to federsdame tax on our taxable income that is distribtitedur stockholders. We commenced
operations in November 2007.

We are externally managed by Fixed Inc@iseount Advisory Company, which we refer to as Blanager or FIDAC. Our Manager
is an investment advisor registered with the Séegrand Exchange Commission, or SEC. Additionally, Manager is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Annaly, a New York Stock ExchangeedsREIT, which has a long track record of managiwvgstments in U.S. government
agency mortgage-backed securities. Immediately #fig offering, we will sell to Annaly 11,681,45Rares of common stock in a private
offering at the same price per share as the pecslpare of this public offering. Upon completidrttos offering and the private offering
immediately after this offering, Annaly will own ppximately 9.6% of our outstanding common stockifl percentage excludes shares to
be sold pursuant to the exercise of the undenstitarerallotment option and unvested shares ofestricted common stock granted to our
executive officers and employees of our Managétsaffiliates).

Our objective is to provide attractivekradjusted returns to our investors over the l@mgy, primarily through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. We intemechieve this objective by investing in a bratass of financial assets to construct an
investment portfolio that is designed to achievteative risk-adjusted returns and that is strueduo comply with the various federal
income tax requirements for REIT status and to mairour exemption from registration under the tagent Company Act of 1940, or
1940 Act.

We recognize that investing in our taegedsset classes is highly competitive, and thal@nager competes with many other
investment managers for profitable investment opymities in these areas. Annaly and our Managee lcise relationships with a diverse
group of financial intermediaries, ranging fromrpairy dealers, major investment banks and brokdiags to leading mortgage originators,
specialty investment dealers and financial sponsoraddition, we have benefited and expect toioomltto benefit from our Manager’s
analytical and portfolio management expertise astiiology. We believe that the combined and comgieary strengths of Annaly and
our Manager give us a competitive advantage ovel Riith a similar focus to ours.

Our Manager

We are externally managed and advisedIDAC pursuant to a management agreement. All ofofficers are employees of our
Manager or its affiliates. Our Manager is a fixadéme investment management company specializingaimaging investments in U.S.
government agency residential mortgage-backed iesyior Agency RMBS, which are mortgage passttglocertificates, collateralized
mortgage obligations, or CMOs, and other mortgaaekbd securities representing interests in or abibgs backed by pools of mortgage
loans issued or guaranteed by the Federal NatMoejage Association, or Fannie Mae, the Federahélboan Mortgage Corporation, or
Freddie Mac, and the Government National Mortgagsogiation, or Ginnie Mae. Our Manager also hag®ge&pce in managing
investments in non-Agency RMBS and collateralizetitbbligations, or CDOs; real estate-related seesirand managing credit and
interest rate-sensitive investment strategies.Mamager commenced active investment managemendtapes in 1994. At June 30, 2008,
our Manager was the adviser or




sub-adviser for funds with approximately $2.7 bitliin net assets and $11.8 billion in gross asaatswhich consisted predominantly of
Agency RMBS.

Our Manager is responsible for adminietgpur business activities and day-to-day openati®Ve have no employees other than o
officers. Pursuant to the terms of the managenmgneteanent, our Manager provides us with our managetaam, including our officers,
along with appropriate support personnel. Our Manégat all times subject to the supervision amgrsight of our board of directors and
has only such functions and authority as we detetgait.

Our Manager has well-respected and astad portfolio management resources for each ofargeted asset classes and a
sophisticated infrastructure supporting those reesrs) including investment professionals focusingesidential mortgage loans, Agency
and non-Agency RMBS and other asset-backed sexzurfidditionally, we have benefited and expectaitinue to benefit from our
Manager’s finance and administration functions,chiaddress legal, compliance, investor relatiomsagerational matters, including
portfolio management, trade allocation and exeaysecurities valuation, risk management and in&tion technologies in connection wit
the performance of its duties.

We do not pay any of our officers anytcasmpensation. Rather, we pay our Manager a basagement fee pursuant to the termg of

the management agreement.
Annaly Capital Management, Inc.

Annaly, which at June 30, 2008 owned amashaged a portfolio of approximately $58.7 billipnimarily in Agency RMBS,
commenced its operations on February 18, 1997wamd public on October 20, 1997. Annaly tradestenNew York Stock Exchange
under the symbol “NLY”. Annaly manages assets dmalfeof institutional and individual investors wdwide directly through Annaly and
through the funds managed by FIDAC.

Annaly is primarily engaged in the busimef investing, on a leveraged basis, in AgencyBBMAnnaly also invests in Federal Hon
Loan Bank, Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae debentunesal’s principal business objective is to generseincome for distribution to
investors from the spread between the interesniecon its securities and the cost of borrowingnrarice their acquisition and from
dividends it receives from FIDAC.

Our Investment Strategy

Our objective is to provide attractivekrdadjusted returns to our investors over the lemgy, primarily through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. We intemdchieve this objective by investing in a divéed investment portfolio of RMBS,
residential mortgage loans, real estate-relatedriies and various other asset classes, subjeoatotaining our REIT status and exempti
from registration under the 1940 Act. The RMBS eadmcked securities, or ABS, commercial mortgaaekéd securities, or CMBS, and
CDOs we purchase may include investment-grade andnvestment grade classes, including the BB-rdBeated and non-rated classes

We rely on our Manager’s expertise imitifging assets within our target asset classes.Manager makes investment decisions
based on various factors, including expected casd,yrelative value, risk-adjusted returns, cutremd projected credit fundamentals,
current and projected macroeconomic consideratimirsent and projected supply and demand, creditnaarket risk concentration limits,
liquidity, cost of financing and financing availdityi, as well as maintaining our REIT qualificatiamd our exemption from registration
under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investmeaitocation strategy as market conditions changeetk to maximize the returns from our
investment portfolio. We believe this strategy, taémed with our Manager's experience, will enabléaipay dividends and achieve capitd
appreciation throughout changing interest rateaadit cycles and provide attractive long-term mesuto investors.

Our targeted asset classes and the pahicivestments we have made and expect to magacin are as follows:

N




Asset Class Principal Investments

Residential Mortga¢-Backed Securities, or RME * Non-Agency RMBS, including investme-grade and nc-investmen
grade classes, including the -rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe!

« Agency RMBS.

Residential Mortgage Loal « Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loanscthreform to the
underwriting guidelines of Fannie Mae and FreddecMwvhich we
refer to as Agency Guidelines; and jumbo prime gege loans, which
are mortgage loans that conform to the Agency Ginigle except as to
loan size

« Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans thay have been
originated using documentation standards thatem®dtringent than t
documentation standards applied by certain othgtrlfen mortgage
loan purchase programs, such as the Agency Guaselbut have one
or more compensating factors such as a borrowéravittrong credit ¢
mortgage history or significant asse

Other Asse-Backed Securities, or AB » Commercial mortga¢-backed securities, or CMB
» Debt and equity tranches of collateralized debigaitions, or CDOs

¢ Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investrgeade and
non-investment grade classes, including the BBdraéBerated and non-
rated classe:

Since we commenced operations in Nover2B8r, we have focused our investment activitieaa@quiring non-Agency RMBS
and on purchasing residential mortgage loans #na been originated by select high-quality originsitincluding the retail lending
operations of leading commercial banks. This isdntrast to Annaly’s strategy which concentrate®\gancy RMBS. Our investment
portfolio at June 30, 2008 was weighted toward Agency RMBS. After the consummation of this offgrinve expect that over the
near term our investment portfolio will continuelte weighted toward RMBS, subject to maintainingREIT qualification and our
1940 Act exemption. In addition, we have engageahith anticipate continuing to engage in transastieith residential mortgage
lending operations of leading commercial banks@hér high-quality originators in which we identdynd re-underwrite residential
mortgage loans owned by such entities, and raltagr purchasing and securitizing such residentiatgage loans ourselves, we and
the originator would structure the securitization ave would purchase the resulting mezzanine abdrdinate non-Agency RMBS.
We may also engage in similar transactions withhAgancy RMBS in which we would acquire AAA-ratedmégency RMBS and
immediately re-securitize those securities. We waadll the resulting AAA-rated super senior RMBS agtain the AAA-rated
mezzanine RMBS. Our investment decisions, howevidrdepend on prevailing market conditions andlwilange over time. As a
result, we cannot predict the percentage of owgtaghat will be invested in each asset class @tlen we will invest in other classes
of investments. We may change our investment slyeded policies without a vote of our stockholders.

We have elected and intend to qualifpeédaxed as a REIT commencing with our taxable gading December 31, 2007 and to
operate our business so as to be exempt from ratigst under the 1940 Act, and therefore we wilkéguired to invest a substantial
majority of our assets in loans secured by mortgagereal

estate and real estate-related assets. Subjectitdaiming our REIT qualification and our 1940 Asstemption, we do not have any
limitations on the amounts we may invest in anpuf targeted asset classes.

Our Investment Portfolio
As of June 30, 2008, our investment ptidfconsisted of the following (dollars in thousisi:

Estimated Fair Percent of Total Weighted Average
Amortized Cost Value Portfolio(1) Coupon(1)




RMBS $ 1,221,56 $ 1,116,58 59.4% 6.27%
Residential Mortgage Loans( $ 150,62¢ $ 150,08 8.C% 5.71%
Securitized Loan $ 614,27¢ $ 613,58 32.6% 5.9€%

Total $ 1,986,47. $ 1,880,244 100.(%
1) Based on estimated fair value.
(2) On April 24, 2008, we sponsored a $818illion securitization, which was structuredaal®ng-term financing transaction.

See “—Recent Developments.” Securitizations stmaectas financings will result in the outstandinmeipal balance of the securitized
mortgage loans remaining on our books as an asddha outstanding principal balance of the natssdd by the trust will be
recorded on our books as a liability. On July ZB)& we sponsored a $151.2 million securitizatinich was structured as a sale.
Securitizations structured as sales will resuthmfair value of any notes and equity we retamaiming on our books as an asset.

Our Financing and Hedging Strategy

We use leverage to increase potentiakmstto our stockholders. We generate income gailyi from the spread between yields
on our investments and our cost of borrowing arafjhmy activities. Subject to our maintaining oualification as a REIT, we have
used and expect to continue to use a number ofsstio finance our investments, including repureteggeements, warehouse
facilities, securitizations, commercial paper a@dhrt financing CDOs. We are not required to maingain specific debt-to-equity ratio
as we believe the appropriate leverage for théqudet assets we are financing depends on thetayadlity and risk of those assets.
Our leverage ratio has fluctuated and we expdotdbntinue to fluctuate from time to time basedmpamong other things, our assets,
market conditions and conditions and availabilit§isancings. As of September 30, 2008, we hadtanting indebtedness of
approximately $1.119 billion, which consists ofaatse leverage of approximately $620.0 million and-recourse securitized
financing of approximately $499.0 million.

We have utilized and, subject to maintejrour qualification as a REIT, may from time tme utilize derivative financial
instruments, including, among others, interest sataps, interest rate caps, and interest ratesfimonedge all or a portion of the
interest rate risk associated with the financinguf portfolio. Specifically, we have and expecttmtinue to seek to hedge our
exposure to potential interest rate mismatchesdmtvthe interest we earn on our investments anbd@uowing costs caused by
fluctuations in short-term interest rates. In atilg leverage and interest rate hedges, our obgsctire to improve risk-adjusted returns
and, where possible, to lock in, on a long-termdyasspread between the yield on our assets ancbt of our financing.

The table below summarizes our financiagef June 30, 2008 (dollars in thousands):

Estimated Fair

Outstanding Weighted Average Weighted Average Value of
Borrowings Borrowing Rate Remaining Maturity Collateral
Repurchase Agreemen
RMBS $ 909,08¢ 4.85% 23 day: $ 961,400()
Mortgage Loans(2 — — — —
Securitizations(3 $ 504,39 5.9% 30 year —
Q) Based on an estimate of fair value.
(2) We entered into two master repurclzgeements pursuant to which we financed mortgaayesl One agreement was a $500

million lending facility of which $200 million wasn an uncommitted basis. This agreement was sobgtinlterminate on January 16,
2009. The second agreement was a $350 million ctteuiriending facility. This agreement was scheduted

terminate on January 29, 2010. As of June 30, 20@8December 31, 2007, we did not have any amduamiswed against these




facilities. On July 29, 2008, we terminated bothlase repurchase facilities.

3) On April 24, 2008, we sponsored a $818illion securitization, which was structuredaalong-term financing transaction.
See “—Recent Developments.” Securitizations stmaectas financings will result in the outstandingpgipal balance of the securitized
mortgage loans remaining on our books as an asdeha outstanding principal balance of the nagesed by the trust will be
recorded on our books as a liability. On July ZH)& we sponsored a $151.2 million securitizatiohich was structured as a sale.
Securitizations structured as sales will resuthimfair value of any notes and equity we retamaiming on our books as an asset.

The table below summarizes our interatst swaps outstanding at June 30, 2008 (dolldtsusands):

Weighted Average Pay Weighted Average Net Estimated Fair
Notional Amount Rate Receive Rate Value/Carrying Value
$1,008,91¢ 4.1(% 2.4&% ($ 10,06Y

All of our repurchase agreements andésterate swap agreements are subject to bilateagdin calls in the event that the
collateral securing our obligations under thosdifes exceeds or does not meet our collaterdbratequirements. We analyze the
sufficiency of our collateralization daily, and @sJune 30, 2008, on a net basis, the fair valueetollateral, including restricted
cash, securing our obligations under repurchasseagents and interest rate swaps, exceeded the tofauth obligations by
approximately $71.8 million. During the six mon#rsded June 30, 2008, due to the deteriorationeimtarket value of our assets, we
received and met margin calls under our repurchgseements, which resulted in our obtaining additidunding from third parties,
including from Annaly (see “Certain RelationshipgieRelated Transactions”), and taking other stepsdrease our liquidity.
Additionally, the disruptions during the six mon#rsded June 30, 2008 resulted in us not beingrmptance with the net income
covenant in one of our whole loan repurchase agee&rand the liquidity covenants in our other wHodn repurchase agreement at a
time during which we had no amounts outstandingeutitbse facilities. We amended these covenantsparduly 29, 2008, we
terminated both those facilities to avoid payingfusage fees. Should we receive additional margis,ave may not be able to
amend the restrictive covenants or obtain othedifun If we were unable to post additional collatewe would have to sell the assets
at a time when we might not otherwise choose tealand such sales may be at a loss. A reductioreifit available may reduce our
earnings and, in turn, cash available to us faritistion to stockholders.

In March 2008, we entered into a RMBSurepase agreement with Annaly. This agreement getaistomary representations,
warranties and covenants contained in such agrasmsof June 30, 2008, we had $50.0 million @urtding under this agreement
with a weighted average borrowing rate of 3.96%0ASeptember 30, 2008, we had approximately $620ldn outstanding under
this agreement, which constitutes approximately ®6%ur total financing. As of October 13, 2008 teighted average borrowing
rate on amounts outstanding under this agreemenB8vw&%. Our RMBS repurchase agreement with Anisaiglled daily at market
rates, bears interest at LIBOR plus 150 basis ppartd is secured by the RMBS pledged under theeaggnt. We do not expect to
increase significantly the amount of securitiesigkd to Annaly or significantly increase or deceetie funds we borrow from Annaly
as a result of this offering.

In March 2008, we entered into a recd®siBales agreement with Annaly. This agreementighed for the sale of
approximately $127 million of receivables by usMianaly of the proceeds that we were due to recefnder a mortgage loan purchase
and sale agreement with a third party. Annaly paic discounted amount of such receivables due therthird party equal to less
than one percent of such receivables due fromhting party in exchange for us receiving the purehasce under the receivables sales
agreement in immediately available funds from Agn@he agreement contained representations, wésaad covenants by both
parties. As of March 31, 2008, each party had peréadl their outstanding obligations under the ageenthe third party purchaser
under the mortgage loan purchase and sale agredimempiaid the purchase price under the mortgagedoechase and sale
agreement, and we have remitted such amounts talAparsuant to the receivables sales agreemenhadde not entered into any
similar arrangement with Annaly subsequent to M&th2008.

Our Competitive Advantages

We believe that our competitive advansaigelude the following:




Investment Strategy Designed to Perform in a Vayieff Interest Rate and Credit Environments

We seek to manage our investment stratefglance both interest rate risk and credit Nk believe this strategy is designed
to generate attractive, risk-adjusted returnsvaréety of market conditions because operating tmms in which either of these risks
are increased, or decreased, may occur at diffegnts in the economic cycle. For example, theay tve periods when interest-rate
sensitive strategies outperform credit-sensitivatsgies whereby we would receive increased inoovee our cost of financing, in
which case our portfolio’s increased exposure i®rikk would be beneficial. There may be otheiqus when credit-sensitive
strategies outperform interest-rate sensitiveegias. Although we face interest rate risk anditregk, we believe that with
appropriate hedging strategies, as well as ouityahil evaluate the quality of targeted asset itmesit opportunities, we can reduce
these risks and provide attractive risk-adjustégrns.

Credit-Oriented Investment Approach

We seek to minimize principal loss whitlaximizing risk-adjusted returns through our Manmageredit-based investment
approach, which is based on rigorous quantitaticequalitative analysis.

Experienced Investment Advisor

Our Manager has a long history of strpagormance across a broad range of fixed-incorseta.sOur Manager's most senior
investment professionals have a long history oégtwg in a variety of mortgage and real estatated| securities and structuring and
marketing CDOs. Our Manager is also acting asdigting agent for a number of CDOs, and has conneetidvantages as a result of
its knowledge regarding the pipeline, values, syppld market participants for liquidations of CDi&ause of its involvement in
these liquidations. Investments are overseen byastment Committee of our Manager’s professigraiasisting of Michael A.J.
Farrell, Wellington J. Denahan-Norris, James Ptdsaue, Kristopher Konrad, Rose-Marie Lyght, Rorkddel, Jeremy Diamond,
Eric Szabo and Matthew Lambiase.

Access to Annaly’s and Our Manager’s Relationships

Annaly and our Manager have developed-@nm relationships with a number of commerciaiksaand other financial
intermediaries. We believe these relationshipsigeus with a range of high-quality investment appoities.

Access to Our Manager’s Systems and Infrastructure

Our Manager has created a proprietartffgmr management system, which we believe provigesiith a competitive
advantage. Our Manager’s personnel have createthprehensive finance and administrative infrastmgtan important component
of a complex investment vehicle such as a REITaddition, most of our Manager’s personnel are Alsoaly’s personnel; therefore,
they have had extensive experience managing Anndligh is a REIT.

Alignment of Interests between Annaly, Our Managand Our Investors

Immediately after this offering, we wéktll to Annaly 11,681,415 shares of our commonksto@ private offering at the same
price per share as the price per share of thisgaoffering. Upon completion of this offering artetprivate offering immediately after
this offering, Annaly will own approximately 9.6% our outstanding common stock (which percentagduebes shares to be sold
pursuant to the exercise of the underwriters’ di@raent option and unvested shares of our restilicommon stock granted to our
executive officers and employees of our Managétsaffiliates).

We believe that Annaly’s investment atignur Manager’s interests with our interests.
Summary Risk Factors

An investment in shares of our commorelsiavolves various risks. You should consider @ddhg the risks discussed below and
under “Risk Factors” before purchasing our commiogls

. Difficult conditions in the financial markets antteteconomy generally, have caused us and may certtincause us
market losses related to our holdings, and we d@xwect these conditions to improve in the netauréu




A significant portion of our financing is from Anlyawhich is a significant shareholder of ours avtdch owns our Manage
The lack of liquidity in our investments may adwdysaffect our business, including our ability ®lwe and sell our asse

There can be no assurance that the actions of .Begdvernment, Federal Reserve and other govetaireerd regulatory
bodies for the purpose of stabilizing the finanamrkets, or market response to those actionsaefilieve the intended
effect, our business may not benefit from thesmastand further government or market developmeoitd adversely
impact us

We are dependent on our Manager and its key peeséomour success and such personnel may leaventipboyment of ou
Manager or otherwise become no longer availablest

There are various conflicts of interest in our tielaship with our Manager and Annaly, which cougult in decisions that
are not in your best interests, including thosatee by our financing arrangements with Annaly bypdur Manager’s
compensation whereby it is entitled to receive selrmaanagement fee, which is not tied to the pedana of our portfolio,
and that several of our executive officers anddirgctors are also employees of Annaly which maylteén conflicts
between their duties to us and to Anni

The management agreement with our Manager waseggitiated on an arm’s-length basis and may nosbavarable to us
as if it had been negotiated with an unaffiliated party and may be difficult and costly to tenate.

Our board of directors has approved very broadsitment guidelines for our Manager and will not awereach investme
decision made by our Manager. We may change oestment strategy, asset allocation or financingplaithout
stockholder consent, which may result in riskiereistments

Failure to procure adequate capital and fundinfpoarable terms, or at all, would adversely affeat results and may, in
turn, negatively affect the market price of shaesur common stock and our ability to distributeidends to our
stockholders

We have limited operating history and may not ofgesaiccessfully. We operate in a highly competitherket for investme
opportunities. Our financial condition and reswt®peration will depend on our ability to manageufe growth effectively

Loss of our 1940 Act exemption would adversely etffes and negatively affect our stock price andadility to distribute
dividends to our stockholders and could resulhatermination of the management agreement withiMaurrager. In additior
the assets we may acquire are limited by the piaésof the 1940 Act and the rules and regulatfmesnulgated thereunder
which may, in some cases, preclude us from purdhi@gnost economically beneficial investment akiues.

We may use leverage to fund the acquisition ofamsets, which may adversely affect our return grirestments and may
reduce cash available for distribution to our stadilers.

An increase in our borrowing costs relative toitiierest we receive on our assets may adversedgtasiir profitability, anc
thus our cash available for distribution to ourcktmlders.

Increases in interest rates could negatively affexztvalue of our investments, which could resuitéduced earnings or los!
and negatively affect the cash available for disitibn to our stockholder

Our hedging transactions may not completely insulstfrom interest rate risk. Hedging against aderate exposure may
adversely affect our earnings, which could redugecash available for distribution to our stockleskl

Prepayment rates could negatively affect the vafurur residential mortgage loans and our RMBS chitiould result in
reduced earnings or losses and negatively affeatdlsh available for distribution to our stockhodd

Our investments in subordinated RMBS are geneialtiie“first loss” position and our investments in the mezzanine R
are generally in th“second los” position and therefore subject to loss

The mortgage loans we invest in and the mortgagieslanderlying the mortgage and a-backed securities we invest in i
subject to delinquency, foreclosure and loss, whimlid result in losses to us. We may be requinagpurchase mortgage
loans or indemnify investors if we breach represgons and warranties, which could harm our easi

Failure to qualify as a REIT would subject us tddeal income tax, which would reduce the cash afghalfor distribution tc
our stockholders

The REIT qualification rules impose limitations thre types of investments and hedging, financind,@&her activities which
we may undertake, and these limitations may, inesoases, preclude us from pursuing the most ecaatignbeneficial




investment, hedging, financing and other alterreeti

. Continued adverse developments in the residentislgage market could make it difficult for us tortmw money to acquire
investments on a leveraged basis, which could adlyeaffect our profitability

. Interest rate mismatches between our investmewnt®anborrowings used to fund our purchases oftlassets may reduce
our income during periods of changing interestsi:

Our Structure

We were formed by Annaly as a Marylantpooation on June 1, 2007. The following chart sk@wr structure after giving effect to
this offering and the private offering to Annalyrimadiately after this offering (excluding sharedéosold pursuant to the exercise of the
underwriters’ overallotment option and unvestedesaf our restricted common stock granted to aacetive officers and employees of
our Manager or its affiliates):

Anmaly Capatal
Management, Inc. Management Investors
9.6%
o 90.1%
Management :
FIDAC Agreemiant Chumera Investment
(Our Manager) = Corporation

* Less than 1%

(1) Includes shares of restricted common stock appragagtants under our equity incentive plan to oecative officers and other
employees of our Manager or its affiliates, whiavé vested as of October 23, 2008 and to our imakgre directors, which fully
vested on January 2, 20(

Our Relationship with Our Manager

We are externally managed and advisedubyManager. We benefit from the personnel, infradtire, relationships, and experience
of our Manager to enhance the growth of our businBach of our officers is also an employee ofManager or its affiliates. We have ng
employees other than our officers. Our Managepisobligated to dedicate certain of its employeadusively to us, nor is it or its

employees obligated to dedicate any specific poribits time to our business. We expect, howethat Christian J. Woschenko, our Head

of

Investments and our Manager’s Executive Vice Peggichnd William B. Dyer, our Head of Underwritingd our Manager's Executive
Vice President, will continue to devote a substmtortion of their time to our business.

We have entered into a management agreemith our Manager with an initial term ending Becember 31, 2010, with automatic,
one-year renewals at the end of each calendarfgé@awing the initial term, subject to terminatiday us, in connection with the annual
reviews of our Manager’s performance and managefeestby the vote of two-thirds of the independ#rectors or a majority of our

stockholders. Under the management agreement, anader implements our business strategy and pesfoentain services for us, subje¢

to oversight by our board of directors. Our Mandgeaesponsible for, among other things, perfornat@f our day-to-day functions;
determining investment criteria in conjunction withr board of directors; sourcing, analyzing andceing investments; asset sales and
financings; and performing asset management duties.

Our independent directors review our Mpas performance annually, and following the aditerm, the management agreement
may be terminated annually by us without cause uperaffirmative vote of at least two-thirds of andependent directors, or by a vote o
the holders of at least a majority of the outstagdihares of our common stock (other than shaldslgeAnnaly or its affiliates), based

upon: (i) our Manager’s unsatisfactory performatize is materially detrimental to us, or (ii) owtdrmination that the management fees

—



payable to our Manager are not fair, subject toManager’s right to prevent termination based ofaiurfiees by accepting a reduction of
management fees agreed to by at least two-thirdsioindependent directors. We will provide our Mgar with 180-days’ prior notice of
such termination. Upon termination without cause wi¥ll pay our Manager a substantial termination f/e may also terminate the
management agreement with 30 days’ prior noticenfoorr board of directors, without payment of a tieation fee, for cause or upon a
change of control of Annaly or our Manager, eacleftned in the management agreement. Our Managgit@nminate the management
agreement if we become required to register agwastment company under the 1940 Act, with suahitetion deemed to occur
immediately before such event, in which case weldvaot be required to pay a termination fee. Ounitger may also decline to renew the
management agreement by providing us with 180-dagitfen notice, in which case we would not be lieggito pay a termination fee.

The following table summarizes the feed expense reimbursements and other amounts thatl\wey to our Manager:

Type Description Payment

Base management fe 1.50% per annum, calculated quarterly, of our dtotder¢ equity. For Quarterly in casr
purposes of calculating the base management festackholders’
equity means the sum of the net proceeds fromssuances of our
equity securities since inception (allocated omarpta daily basis for
such issuances during the fiscal quarter of ani gsuance), plus our
retained earnings at the end of such quarter (wittaking into account
any non-cash equity compensation expense incunredrrent or prior
periods), less any amount that we pay for repuesha$ our common
stock, and less any unrealized gains, losses er @dms that do not
affect realized net income (regardless of whethehstems are included
in other comprehensive income or loss, or in nebime). This amount
will be adjusted to exclude one-time events purst@nhanges in
accounting principles generally accepted in thetédhStates, or GAAP,
and certain non-cash charges after discussionskataur Manager and
our independent directors and approved by a mgjofibur independent
directors. The base management fee will be redumnedot below zero,
by our proportionate share of any CDO base manageiaes FIDAC
receives in connection with the CDOs in which weeist, based on the
percentage of equity we hold in such CD

Expense reimbursemel Reimbursement of expenses related to Chimera iedloy our Manage  Quatrterly in cast
including legal, accounting, due diligence and pdevices, but
excluding the salaries and other compensation oManager’s
employees

Termination fee: Termination fee equal to three times the averagearbase managem:  Upon termination of the
fee earned by our Manager during the priom2dnth period prior to su¢  management agreement by
termination, calculated as of the end of the mesémntly completed fisc  us without cause or by our
quarter. Manager if we materially
breach the management
agreement

From November 21, 2007, the date we conue@ operations, through December 31, 2007, ouralglanearned base management
fees of approximately $1.2 million, no incentive$eand expense reimbursements of approximatel§ tislisand. At June 30, 2008,
quarterly base management fees in the amount afrilion were accrued and payable to our Managerre incentive fees had accrued
Currently, our Manager has waived its right to iegus to pay our pro rata portion of rent, telephautilities, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhegibases of our Manager and its affiliates requiceaur operations. In October 2008,
we and FIDAC amended our management agreementlticee¢he base management fee from 1.75% per arm@rd@% per annum of our
stockholders’ equity and eliminate the incentivesf@reviously provided for in the management agesgm

Conflicts of Interest

We are dependent on our Manager for ayrtd-day management and do not have any indepenffexers or employees. Our
officers, and our non-independent directors, atsgesas employees of our Manager and its affiliaddes management agreement with ouf
Manager was negotiated between related partiegsaterms, including fees payable, may not be asrible to us as if it had been
negotiated at arm’s length with an unaffiliateddhparty. In addition, the ability of our Managerdaits officers and employees to engage|in
other business activities may reduce the time ocandder and its officers and employees spend mapagin




Our Manager has discretionary investnaemiority over a number of different funds and arts. Our Manager may manage funds
and accounts that may compete with us for investmgportunities. In addition, to the extent we seelvest in Agency RMBS, we may
compete for investment opportunities with Annalys@ to the extent our Manager manages investneithes (other than CDOs) that
meet our investment objectives, our Manager willdhan incentive to invest our funds in such investhvehicles because of the possibility
of generating an additional, incremental managerf@ntOur Manager may also invest in CDOs managetithat could result in conflicts
with us, particularly if we invest in a portion thfe equity securities and there is a deterioratforalue of such CDO before closing we
could suffer an immediate loss equal to the deere@athe market value of the underlying investménir Manager has an investment
allocation policy in place so that we may sharetafply with other client accounts of our Managed &mnnaly in all investment
opportunities, particularly those involving an dssih limited supply, that may be suitable for @acount and such other accounts. Our
Manager’s policy also includes other controls destyto monitor and prevent any particular accoutrmaly from receiving favorable
treatment over any other fund or account. Thisstwent policy may be amended by our Manager atiarg/without our consent. To the
extent FIDAC’s, Annaly’s, or our business evolvesuch a way as to give rise to conflicts not quityeaddressed by our Manager’s
investment allocation policy, our Manager may n&eckfine its policy to handle any such situatiohs.avoid any actual or perceived
conflicts of interest with our Manager, an investiini@ any security structured or managed by our &g@n will be approved by a majority
of our independent directors.

It is difficult and costly to terminatee management agreement without cause. We mayemiynate the management agreement
without cause after the initial term in connectigith the annual review of our Manager’s
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performance and the management fees and only éthpproval of two-thirds of our independent divestor a majority of our
stockholders (other than those shares held by Arorats affiliates), and upon the payment of astabtial termination fee. These
conditions may adversely affect our ability to térate our Manager without cause. For more inforamgtplease see “Business—
Conflicts of Interest” and “Our Manager and the Mgement Agreement—Management Agreement.” In additi@ have entered into
a repurchase agreement with Annaly, our Managerrsm, to finance our RMBS. This financing arrangatrmay make us less likely
to terminate our Manager. It could also give riséutrther conflicts because Annaly is a creditopofs. As one of our creditors,
Annaly’s interests may diverge from the interedtewr stockholders.

We have agreed to pay our Manager a tmasegement fee that is not tied to our performafie.base management fee may
not sufficiently incentivize our Manager to generattractive risk-adjusted returns for us.

Distribution Policy

To satisfy the requirements to qualif\@aREIT and generally not be subject to federadime and excise tax, we intend to make
regular quarterly distributions of all or substaiisi all of our REIT taxable income to holders afr@ommon stock out of assets legally
available therefor. On December 20, 2007, our boadirectors declared a quarterly distributior8600 thousand, or $0.025 per share|
of our common stock. This dividend was paid on dap@5, 2008 to stockholders of record on Decer8tte2007. On March 19,
2008, our board of directors declared a quartedgridution of $9.8 million, or $0.26 per shareafr common stock. This dividend
was paid on April 30, 2008 to stockholders of relcon March 31, 2008. On June 2, 2008, our boadirettors declared a quarterly
distribution of $6.0 million, or $0.16 per shareaafr common stock. This dividend was paid on JdlyZD08 to stockholders of record
on June 12, 2008. Our GAAP net loss for the six tm®ended June 30, 2008 was $21.0 million and oue Earnings were $17.0
million.

Federal income tax law requires that &TREstribute with respect to each year at lea8638 its REIT taxable income,
determined without regard to the deduction fordkvids paid and excluding any net capital gainutfaash available for distribution
is less than 90% of our REIT taxable income, wdd:te required to sell assets or borrow funds teeneash distributions or we may
make a portion of the required distribution in tbem of a taxable stock distribution or distributiof debt securities. To the extent we
distribute less than 90% of our REIT taxable incom2007, we will rectify this shortfall throughrtiwback dividends. We anticipate
that our distributions generally will be taxablecadinary income to you, although a portion of th&tributions may be designated by
us as qualified dividend income or capital gaimay constitute a return of capital.

Operating and Regulatory Structure
REIT Qualification

We have elected and intend to qualifpedreated as a REIT under Sections 856 througtoB8® Internal Revenue Code
commencing with our taxable year ending on Decer3ligP007. Our qualification as a REIT depends upamability to meet on a




continuing basis, through actual investment andaipeg results, various complex requirements utigednternal Revenue Code
relating to, among other things, the sources ofgpass income, the composition and values of osetasour distribution levels and
the diversity of ownership of our shares. We bdithat we have been organized in conformity withréquirements for qualification
and taxation as a REIT under the Internal ReveradeCand that our manner of operation enables metd the requirements for
gualification and taxation as a REIT.

As a REIT, we generally will not be sutijeo federal income tax on our REIT taxable incomeedistribute to our stockholders.
If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable yeard do not qualify for certain statutory reliebpisions, we will be subject to federal
income tax at regular corporate rates and may édyaied from qualifying as a REIT for the subsedqdienr taxable years following
the year during which we lost our REIT qualificatideven if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, weynise subject to some federal,
state and local taxes on our income or property.

1940 Act Exemption

We operate our business so that we ampkfrom registration under the 1940 Act, as adstened by the Securities and
Exchange Commission and its Division of Investmdahagement. We intend to rely on the exemption fregistration provided by
Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the 1940 Act, a provisionidasd for companies that do not issue redeemableities and are primarily
engaged in the business of purchasing or otherggairing mortgages and other liens on and inteliesteal estate.

11

To qualify for the exemption, we makeeéstments so that at least 55% of the assets wecomsist of qualifying mortgages and
other liens on and interests in real estate, warethcollectively referred to as “qualifying reatae assets,” and so that at least 80% of
the assets we own consist of real estate-relastsaéncluding our qualifying real estate ass&&).do not intend to issue redeemable
securities.

Based on no-action letters issued byStiadf of the Securities and Exchange Commissionghagsify our investment in
residential mortgage loans as qualifying real esiasets, as long as the loans are “fully securgdh interest in real estate. That is, if
the loan-to-value ratio of the loan is equal tdesis than 100%, then we consider the mortgagedagralifying real estate asset. We
do not consider loans with loan-to-value ratiogxeess of 100% to be qualifying real estate assetbe 55% test, but only real
estate-related assets for the 80% test.

We also consider RMBS such as certife@&sued or guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie M&inmie Mae that represent the
entire beneficial interest in the underlying pobhmrtgage loans, or Agency Whole Pool Certificatedhe qualifying real estate
assets. By contrast, an agency certificate thaesemts less than the entire beneficial interetérunderlying mortgage loans is not
considered to be a qualifying real estate assgidgroses of the 55% test, but constitutes a tateerelated asset for purposes of the
80% test.

We treat our ownership interest in padlgrhole loan RMBS, in cases in which we acquire eéhtire beneficial interest in a
particular pool, as qualifying real estate assatet on no-action positions of the Staff of theuBiges and Exchange Commission.
We generally do not expect our investments in CMIB8 other RMBS investments to constitute qualifyiegl estate assets for the
55% test, unless such treatment is consistentguitttance of the Staff of the Securities and Excha@gmmission. Instead, these
investments generally will be classified as retdtesrelated assets for purposes of the 80% testdd\hot expect that our investments
in CDOs or other ABS will constitute qualifying tesstate assets. We may, however, treat our egudéyests in a CDO issuer that we
determine is a “majority owned subsidiary” and tisaexempt from 1940 Act registration under Sec8¢c)(5)(C) of the 1940 Act as
qualifying real estate assets, real estate-rekedts, and miscellaneous assets in the same fwopas the assets in such CDO are
qualifying real estate assets, real estate-reldedts and miscellaneous assets. We may in ttre flitmwever, modify our treatment of
such CDO equity to conform to guidelines providgdhe Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commisstee “Business—
Operating and Regulatory Structure—1940 Act Exeamgtfor further information concerning our reliange the Section 3(c)(5)(C)
exemption from 1940 Act registration.

Restrictions on Ownership of Our Common Stock

To assist us in complying with the lintiteds on the concentration of ownership of REITresdamposed by the Internal Revenue
Code, our charter generally prohibits any stockéofcom beneficially or constructively owning, bpgying certain attribution rules
under the Internal Revenue Code, more than 9.8%lire or in number of shares, whichever is morg&iotise, of any class or series
of our capital stock. Our board of directors mayit$ sole discretion, waive the 9.8% ownershigtliwith respect to a particular




stockholder if it is presented with evidence satitbry to it that such ownership will not then wtthe future jeopardize our
qualification as a REIT. We have granted such aigrab Legg Mason Opportunity Trust, ValueAct CapMaster Fund Ill, L.P., and
to Annaly. The ownership limits for Legg Mason Oppaity Trust, ValueAct Capital Master Fund III,R., and Annaly have been set
at 15%, 12%, and 12%, respectively. Our charter ptshibits any person from, among other things:

. beneficially or constructively owning shares of eapital stock that would result in our being “@tsheld” under
Section 856(h) of the Internal Revenue Code orratise cause us to fail to qualify as a REIT; i

. transferring shares of our capital stock if suemsfer would result in our capital stock being odvbg fewer than 100
persons

Our charter provides that any ownershipwported transfer of our capital stock in viaatof the foregoing restrictions will
result in the shares owned or transferred in simlation being automatically transferred to a ctadaiie trust for the benefit of a
charitable beneficiary, and the purported owndramsferee acquiring no rights in such sharestiduasfer to a charitable trust would
be ineffective for any reason to prevent a violatid the restriction, the transfer that would heesulted in such violation will be void
ab initio .
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Recent Developments

On July 25, 2008, we sponsored a $151llbmsecuritization whereby we securitized ouerthcurrent inventory of mortgage
loans. In this transaction, we retained all ofgkeurities issued by the securitization trust idiclg approximately $8.8 million in
subordinated bonds and $142.4 million of AAA-rafieéd and floating rate senior bonds. This transactvill be accounted for as a
sale. On August 28, 2008, we sold approximately.$#illion of the AAA-rated fixed and floating rab®nds related to the July 25,
2008 securitization to third-party investors analimed a loss of $11.5 million. On July 29, 200& terminated both of our mortgage
loan repurchase facilities.

On September 9, 2008, our board of dirsadeclared a quarterly distribution of $6.2 roitlj or $0.16 per share of our common
stock. This dividend will be paid on October 310800 stockholders of record on September 18, 2BQBhasers in this offering will
not participate in this quarterly distribution. Wave not yet completed our 2008 third quarter forstatements. When completed,
our Core Earnings per share could be different foamdividends per share.

In October 2008, we and FIDAC amendedmanagement agreement to reduce the base manademém 1.75% per
annum to 1.50% per annum of our stockholders’ gqitd eliminate the incentive fees previously pded for in the management
agreement.

On October 14, 2008, we announced thahgduhe third quarter of 2008, we sold assets witiarrying value of $432.5 million
in AAA-rated non-Agency RMBS for a loss of apprositaly $113 million, which includes a realized lo§$11.5 million related to
the August 28, 2008 transaction described abowkterminated $983.4 million in notional interesierawaps for a loss of
approximately $10.5 million, which together resdlie a net realized loss of approximately $123.Bioni.

Our book value per share as of Septerd®e2008 is currently estimated to be approxima$élyl5 per share. We currently
estimate that as of September 30, 2008, approxiyndb86 of our assets were jumbo prime mortgagedaard 55% of our assets were
AAA-rated RMBS. We have not yet completed our ficiahreports for the quarter ended September 308 20nce completed our
book value per share may be different from thevested book value of $6.15. As discussed in “Manageis Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” the FASB has recently issued a staff pasitlarifying the application of
FASB Statement No. 15Fair Value Measurementswvhich is effective for the quarter ended Septen@fie 2008. We are evaluating
the position adopted by the FASB relating to tisedl quarter ended September 30, 2008. The positiopted by the FASB could
affect the value of our RMBS as reflected in onaficial statements and could result in our bookesgker share being different from
the estimate provided in this prospectus.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents selectedricial data as of and for the period indicated.daiéved the selected financial data for
the period from November 21, 2007 (commencemenpefations) through December 31, 2007 from ourteddinancial statements
included elsewhere in this prospectus. We deritieddita for the six months ended June 30, 2008 duomuinaudited financial
statements included elsewhere in this prospectus s€lected financial data should be read in catijum with the more detailed
information contained in the Financial Statemeni$ ldotes thereto and “Management’s Discussion amalysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” included elsese in this prospectus.

As of June 30, As of December 31
2008 2007

(dollars in thousands, except per share dat:

Statement of Financial Condition Highlights

Mortgage-backed securitie $ 1,116,58! $ 1,124,229
Loans held for investme! $ 150,08 $ 162,37:
Securitized loan $ 613,58( —
Total asset $ 1,971,15 $ 1,565,63!
Repurchase agreemel $ 909,08t $ 270,58:
Securitized dek $ 504,39’ —
Total liabilities $ 1,583,47 $ 1,026,74
Stockholder’ equity $ 387,67¢ $ 538,88¢




Book value per shai
Number of shares outstandi

Statement of Operations Highlights
Net interest incom

Net loss

Earnings per share, or EPS (ba:
EPS (diluted

Weighted average shar- basic
Weighted average shar- diluted
Taxable income per share |
Dividend declared per share |

Other Data

Average total asse
Average investment securiti
Average borrowing
Average stockholde’ equity

Annualized yield on average interest earning as
Annualized cost of funds on average interest bgdiatbilities

Annualized interest rate spre

Annualized net interest margin (net interest inctawnerage interest earning ass:
Annualized G&A and management fee expense as pagenf average tot

assets

Annualized G&A and management fee expense as pagenf average equi
Return on average interest earning as

Return on average equi

9.94
38,999,85!

For the six

months ended
June 30, 2008

14.2¢
37,705,56

For the period
November 21, 2007 to
December 31, 2007

($
($

&8 +H

$H B H P

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

24,00¢

21,039

0.54)

0.54)
38,995,09
38,995,09
0.41(
0.42(

1,839,22
1,736,93.
1,387,36:
403,49!
6.38%
4.91%
1.47%
2.71%

0.8%%

4.05%
(2.429%)
(10.4%)

(1) See reconciliation below of non-GAAP finanaiaasurements to GAAP financial measurements.

(2) For the applicable period.

$
s
$
$

&8 +H

&$H B H P

3,077

2,906)

0.0¢)

0.0¢)
37,401,73
37,401,73
0.03(
0.02¢

1,044,35!
399,73t
270,58
530,98

7.02%
5.08%
1.94%
6.85%

1.55%
3.05%
(6.47%)
(4.87%)
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Reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measurementsd GAAP financial measurements

As a REIT, we are required to distribite@ur shareholders substantially all of our RE{Xable income in the form of
dividends. Accordingly, we believe taxable inconae phare is a meaningful financial measuremennf@stors and management in
assessing our performance. A reconciliation of Rtakable income per share to GAAP EPS (basic)ialo

Reconciliation of REIT Taxable Income Per Share @AAP EPS

For the six For the period
months ended November 21, 2007 to
June 30, 2008 December 31, 2007
GAAP EPS $ (0.59 ($ 0.0¢
Unrealized loss on interest rate sw $ 0.1¢ $ 0.11
Realized loss on sales of investme $ 0.8C —
REIT taxable income per she $ 0.41 $ 0.0z
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Common stock offered by 1

Common stock to be outstandi
after this offering

Use of proceed

Our distribution policy

THE OFFERING

110,000,000 shares (plus up to an additional 1608@0shares of our comm:
stock that we may issue and sell upon the exeddidee underwriters’
overallotment option)

160,670,098 shares, based upon 38,988,683 shatemafon stock outstanding as
of October 23, 2008. Does not include up to antaatdil 16,500,000 shares of our
common stock that we may issue and sell upon thecese of the underwriters’
overallotment option. Includes 1,227,400 sharesunfrestricted common stock
granted pursuant to our equity incentive plan tiete unvested as of June 30,
2008. Includes 11,681,415 shares to be sold to nimemediately after this
offering.

We intend to invest the net proceeds of this dfifgprimarily in no-Agency
RMBS, Agency RMBS, prime and Alt-A mortgage loa@8/BS, CDOs, and other
consumer or nhon-consumer ABS. Since we commencetipns in November
2007, we have focused our investment activitiea@quiring non-Agency RMBS
and on purchasing residential mortgage loans tat been originated by select
high-quality originators, including the retail lénd operations of leading
commercial banks. Our investment portfolio at JB8e2008 was weighted toward
non-Agency RMBS. After the consummation of thiseoifig, we expect that over
the near term our investment portfolio will continto be weighted toward RMBS,
subject to maintaining our REIT qualification anat 4940 Act exemption. Until
appropriate investments can be identified, our Ma@nanay invest these funds in
interest-bearing short-term investments, includimeney market accounts, which
are consistent with our intention to qualify asEIR These investments are
expected to provide a lower net return than we ho@ehieve from investments in
our intended use of proceeds of this offering. “Use of Proceed”

Federal income tax law requires that a REIT distetannually at least 90% of its
REIT taxable income, determined without regarchideduction for dividends
paid and excluding net capital gain. For more imfation, please see “Certain
Federal Income Tax Consideratic”

In connection with the REIT requirements, we intémdnake regular quarterly
distributions of all or substantially all of our REtaxable income to holders of our
common stock out of assets legally available ttoerefny future distributions we
make will be at the discretion of our board of dices and will depend upon,
among other things, our actual results of operatidhese results and our ability to
pay distributions will be affected by various fastoincluding the net interest and
other income from our portfolio, our operating expes and any oth
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NYSE symbol

Ownership and transfer restrictions

Risk factors

expenditures. For more information, please”Distribution Policy”

We cannot assure you that we will make any distigms to our stockholders in the
future.

“CIM”

To assist us in complying with limitations on trencentration of ownership of a
REIT imposed by the Internal Revenue Code, ourtehgenerally prohibits,
among other prohibitions, any stockholder from tieradly or constructively
owning more than 9.8% in value or in number of seawhichever is more
restrictive, of any class or series of the outstagmghares of our capital stock. We
have granted such a waiver to Legg Mason Oppoytdmiist, ValueAct Capital
Master Fund Ill, L.P. and to Annaly. The ownerslmpits for Legg Mason
Opportunity Trust, ValueAct Capital Master Fund LIP., and Annaly have been
set at 15%, 12%, and 12%, respectively. See “Detsoni of Capital Stock—
Restrictions on Ownership and Trang”

Investing in our common stock involves a high degrérisk. You should carefully
read and consider the information set forth unéisk Factors” and all other
information in this prospectus before investingur common stock

Unless otherwise indicated, that numbdeshares of common stock does not include the D60BD shares of our common stock
that may be issued if the underwri’ overallotment option is exercised in fu

Our Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are lazhat 1211 Avenue of Americas, Suite 2902, New Ybidw York 10036. Our telephol
number is 1-866-315-9930. Our website is http://wehimerareit.com The contents of our website are not a part af phdospectus.
We have included our website address only as aiwatextual reference and do not intend it t@abeactive link to our websit
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RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involvédgh degree of risk. You should carefully consither following risk factors and all other
information contained in this prospectus beforeghasing our common stock. The risks and uncertsrdiescribed below are not the only ¢
facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties tha are unaware of, or that we currently deem immigtealso may become important factc
that affect us.

If any of the following risks occur, dusiness, financial condition or results of opesas could be materially and adversely affected. In
that case, the trading price of our common stoakddecline, and you may lose some or all of youestment.

Risks Associated With Recent Adverse Ddgpments in the Mortgage Finance and Credit Markets

Difficult conditions in the financial markets and the economy generally, have caused us and may coniinto cause us market losses
related to our holdings, and we do not expect thes®nditions to improve in the near future.

Our results of operations are materiaffected by conditions in the mortgage market fitln@ncial markets and the economy generally.
Recently, concerns over inflation, energy costepgétical issues, the availability and cost ofditethe mortgage market and a declining real
estate market have contributed to increased vityagihd diminished expectations for the economy asagkets going forward. The mortgage
market, including the market for prime and Altoans, has been severely affected by changdeifending landscape and there is no assu
that these conditions have stabilized or that thiflynot worsen. The severity of the liquidity litation was largely unanticipated by the
markets. For now (and for the foreseeable fut@edess to mortgages has been substantially limide the limitation on financing was
initially in the sub-prime mortgage market, theulidjty issues have now also affected prime andAAtten-Agency lending, with mortgage ra
remaining much higher than previously availablesicent periods and many product types being seveuvetailed. This has an impact on new
demand for homes, which will compress the home oghip rates and weigh heavily on future home ppiedormance. There is a strong
correlation between home price growth rates andgage loan delinquencies. The market deteriordtamscaused us to expect increased Ic
related to our holdings and to sell assets ats los

Although as of and for the quarter endede 30, 2008, we had no impairments on RMBS olevimortgage loans, during the third
quarter of 2008, we sold assets with a carryingevalf $432.5 million in AAA-rated non-Agency RMBB8rfa loss of approximately $113
million and terminated $983.4 million in notionatérest rate swaps for a loss of approximately%llion, which together resulted in a net
realized loss of approximately $123.5 million. Frent declines in the market values of our investserday adversely affect periodic reported
results and credit availability, which may redueenéngs and, in turn, cash available for distribntio our stockholders.

A substantial portion of our assets dassified for accounting purposes as “availablegfale” and carried at fair value. Changes in the
market values of those assets are directly chasgetkedited to other comprehensive income. As alties decline in values may reduce the
book value of our assets. Moreover, if the dedinealue of an available-for-sale security is otti&m temporary, such decline will reduce
earnings.

All of our repurchase agreements and-ésterate swap agreements are subject to bilatexedin calls in the event that the collateral
securing our obligations under those facilitiesemds or does not meet our collateralization remergs. We analyze the sufficiency of our
collateralization daily, and as of June 30, 2008amet basis, the fair value of the collateralluding restricted cash, securing our obligations
under repurchase agreements and interest rate sexageded the amount of such obligations by apmpe@bely $71.8 million. During the six
months ended June 30, 2008, due to the deteriaratithe market value of our assets, we receiveldnaget margin calls under our repurchase
agreements, which resulted in our obtaining additidunding from third parties, including from Arggsee “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions”), and taking other stepadeease our liquidity. Additionally, the disrupt®during the six months ended June 30, 2008
resulted in us not being in compliance with theinebme covenant in one of our whole loan repurelageements and the liquidity covenants
in our other whole loan repurchase agreementiateduring which we had no amounts outstanding utidese facilities. We amended these
covenants, and on July 29, 2008, we terminatecktfanglities to avoid paying non-usage fees. Shawddeceive additional margin calls, we
may not be able to amend the restrictive covenamdbtain other funding. If we were unable to padditional collateral, we would have to sell
the assets at a time when we might not otherwisessto do so and such sales may be at a lossluitien in credit available may reduce our
earnings and, in turn, cash available to us fdritistion to stockholders.
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Dramatic declines in the housing markétt falling home prices and increasing foreclosured unemployment, have resulted in
significant asset write-downs by financial instibumis, which have caused many financial institutitmseek additional capital, to merge with
other institutions and, in some cases, to faihddition, we rely on the availability of financihg acquire residential mortgage loans, real estate
related securities and real estate loans on adgeedrbasis. Institutions from which we will seelotain financing may have owned or finan
residential mortgage loans, real estate-relatedrities and real estate loans, which have decline@lue and caused them to suffer losses as a
result of the recent downturn in the residentiattgege market. Many lenders and institutional itmeshave reduced and, in some cases,
ceased to provide funding to borrowers, includittieo financial institutions. If these conditionggist, these institutions may become insol\
or tighten their lending standards, which could enéknore difficult for us to obtain financing oavforable terms or at all. Our profitability rr
be adversely affected if we are unable to obtagt-effective financing for our investments.

A significant portion of our financing is from Annaly which is a significant shareholder of ours and Wwich owns our Manager.

Our ability to fund our investments olegeraged basis depends to a large extent upoability to secure warehouse, repurchase, cr
and/or commercial paper financing on acceptabhageilhe current dislocation in the non-Agency magegsector has made it difficult for us
to obtain short-term financing on favorable teris.a result, we have completed loan securitizatiomsder to obtain long-term financing and
terminated our un-utilized whole loan repurchaseagents in order to avoid paying non-usage fedsruhose agreements. In addition, we
have entered into a RMBS repurchase agreementAsitialy. This agreement contains customary repraiens, warranties and covenants
contained in such agreements. As of June 30, 2008ad $50.0 million outstanding under this repasghagreement. As of September 30,
2008, we had approximately $620.0 million outstagdinder this agreement, which constitutes appratéiy 56% of our total financing. As
October 13, 2008, the weighted average borrowitggaa amounts outstanding under this agreemenBw&%. Our RMBS repurchase
agreement with Annaly is rolled daily at markeegmtbears interest at LIBOR plus 150 basis poamtg,is secured by the RMBS pledged under
the agreement. We do not expect to increase signifly the amount of securities pledged to Annalgignificantly increase or decrease the
funds we borrow from Annaly as a result of thiseoiiig. We cannot assure you that Annaly will comirto provide us with such financing. If
Annaly does not provide us with financing, we caressure you that we will be able to replace suwmting, and if we are not able to replace
this financing, we could be forced to sell our &ss¢ an inopportune time when prices are depressed

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advergly affect our business, including our ability to alue and sell our assets.

We have invested and may continue toshiresecurities or other instruments that areligatd. Moreover, turbulent market conditions,
such as those currently in effect, could signiftbaand negatively impact the liquidity of our assdt may be difficult or impossible to obtain
third party pricing on the investments we purch#éiiquid investments typically experience gregpeice volatility, as a ready market does not
exist, and can be more difficult to value. In agidit validating third party pricing for illiquid Westments may be more subjective than more
liquid investments. The illiquidity of our investmis may make it difficult for us to sell such intreents if the need or desire arises. In addi
if we are required to liquidate all or a portionaefr portfolio quickly, we may realize significaytless than the value at which we have
previously recorded our investments. As a result,ability to vary our portfolio in response to dggs in economic and other conditions may
be relatively limited, which could adversely affectr results of operations and financial condition.

There can be no assurance that the actions of the&l government, Federal Reserve and other governm@hand regulatory bodies for
the purpose of stabilizing the financial markets, pmarket response to those actions, will achieve ¢hintended effect, our business may
not benefit from these actions and further governmet or market developments could adversely impact us

In response to the financial issues ifigahe banking system and financial markets asidggconcern threats to investment banks and
other financial institutions, the Emergency Econo®iabilization Act of 2008, or EESA, was recemthacted. The EESA provides the U.S.
Secretary of the Treasury with the authority t@bksh a Troubled Asset Relief Program, or TARPuechase from financial institutions up to
$700 billion of residential or commercial mortgagesl any securities, obligations, or other instmim¢hat are based on or related to such
mortgages, that in each case was originated oedssn or before March 14, 2008, as well as anyrdthancial instrument that the U.S.
Secretary of the Treasury, after consultation with Chairman of the Board of Governors of the Faldeeserve System, determines the
purchase of which is necessary to promote finamoaket stability,
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upon transmittal of such determination, in writitg the appropriate committees of the U.S. CongrEss EESA also provides for a program
that would allow companies to insure their troutdesdets.

There can be no assurance that the EEBAave a beneficial impact on the financial maskéncluding current extreme levels of
volatility. To the extent the market does not respéavorably to the TARP or the TARP does not fiorcas intended, our business may not
receive the anticipated positive impact from thgidkation. In addition, the U.S. Government, FetiBeserve and other governmental and
regulatory bodies have taken or are consideringgather actions to address the financial cridis. cannot predict whether or when such
actions may occur or what impact, if any, suchamsticould have on our business, results of op&stad financial condition.

Risks Associated With Our Management and Relationsh With Our Manager
We are dependent on our Manager and its key persomhfor our success.

We have no separate offices and are ceteiplreliant on our Manager. We have no employlesr than our officers. Our officers are
also employees of our Manager or its affiliatesiclvthas significant discretion as to the implemgaoteof our investment and operating
policies and strategies. Accordingly, we dependhendiligence, skill and network of business cotgad the senior management of our
Manager. Our Manager’'s employees evaluate, negpsfitcture, close and monitor our investmentseffore, our success will depend on our
Manager’s senior managerintinued service. The departure of any of thesananagers of our Manager could have a materisdrad effec
on our performance. In addition, we can offer reuaance that our Manager will remain our investrmeabhager or that we will continue to
have access to our Manager’'s senior managers. @agement agreement with our Manager only extentlsDecember 31, 2010. If the
management agreement is terminated and no surtgliBecement is found to manage us, we may not leet@alexecute our business plan.
Moreover, our Manager is not obligated to dedicateain of its employees exclusively to us not @bligated to dedicate any specific portion
of its time to our business, and none of our Mariageanployees are contractually dedicated to ugupndr management agreement with our
Manager. The only employees of our Manager wh@érearily dedicated to our operations are ChrisflaWoschenko, our Head of
Investments, and William B. Dyer, our Head of Urvdeting.

There are conflicts of interest in our relationshipwith our Manager and Annaly, which could result indecisions that are not in your bes
interests.

We are subject to potential conflictsraérest arising out of our relationship with Anpahd our Manager. An Annaly executive officer
is our Manager's sole director, two of Annaly’s dayges are our directors, and several of Annalgipleyees are officers of our Manager and
us. Specifically, each of our officers also seragsan employee of our Manager or its affiliatesaAesult, our Manager and our officers may
have conflicts between their duties to us and tthefies to, and interests in, Annaly or our Managéere may also be conflicts in allocating
investments which are suitable both for us and Anas well as other FIDAC managed funds. Annaly roampete with us with respect to
certain investments which we may want to acquine, @ a result we may either not be presentedthétlopportunity or have to compete with
Annaly to acquire these investments. Our Manageroam officers may choose to allocate favorablegtiments to Annaly instead of to us. -
ability of our Manager and its officers and empley¢o engage in other business activities may e=thetime our Manager spends managing
us. Further, during turbulent conditions in the tgage industry, distress in the credit marketstbeiotimes when we will need focused support
and assistance from our Manager, other entitie/foch our Manager also acts as an investment neauveit] likewise require greater focus
and attention, placing our Manager’s resourcesgh demand. In such situations, we may not rectigenecessary support and assistance we
require or would otherwise receive if we were intly managed or if our Manager did not act as aagar for other entities. There is no
assurance that the allocation policy that addresse® of the conflicts relating to our investmemtlich is described under “Business—
Conflicts of Interest,” will be adequate to addralof the conflicts that may arise. In additiove have entered into a repurchase agreement
with Annaly, our Manager’s parent, to finance oM BS. This financing arrangement may make us lésdylito terminate our Manager. It
could also give rise to further conflicts becausmaly may be a creditor of ours. As one of our itoes, Annaly’s interests may diverge from
the interests of our stockholders.

We pay our Manager substantial managefeestregardless of the performance of our poaf@iur Manages entitlement to substant
nonperformance-based compensation might reduagcistive to devote its time and effort to seekiimgestments that provide attractive risk-
adjusted returns for our portfolio. This in turrutebhurt both our ability to make distributionsdar stockholders and the market price of our
common stock. As
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of June 30, 2008, Annaly owned approximately 9.6%uv outstanding shares of common stock (excludimgested shares of restricted stock
granted to our executive officers and employeesuofManager or its affiliates), which entitles th&mreceive quarterly distributions based on
financial performance. In evaluating investmentd ather management strategies, this may lead onalyx to place emphasis on the
maximization of revenues at the expense of otharia, such as preservation of capital. Investmerith higher yield potential are generally
riskier or more speculative. This could resultriareased risk to the value of our invested pordfdlinnaly may sell the shares in us purchased
concurrently with our initial public offering at gnime after the earlier of (i) November 15, 20%(ig the termination of the management
agreement. Annaly may sell the shares in us puechimsmediately after this offering at any time aftee earlier of (i) the date which is three
years following the date of this prospectus ort(ig termination of the management agreement. @extent Annaly sells some of its shares
interests may be less aligned with our interests.

The management agreement with our Manager was notegotiated on an arm’s-length basis and may not besdavorable to us as if it
had been negotiated with an unaffiliated third pary and may be costly and difficult to terminate.

Our president, chief financial officegdd of investments, treasurer, controller, segretad head of underwriting also serve as
employees of our Manager or its affiliates. In éiddi, certain of our directors are employees of danager or its affiliates. Our management
agreement with our Manager was negotiated betwalated parties, and its terms, including fees pleyabay not be as favorable to us as if it
had been negotiated with an unaffiliated third yparermination of the management agreement withMamager without cause is difficult and
costly. Our independent directors review our Manageerformance and the management fees annualllyfalowing the initial term, the
management agreement may be terminated annuallg thout cause upon the affirmative vote of astdwo-thirds of our independent
directors, or by a vote of the holders of at leastajority of the outstanding shares of our comistock (other than those shares held by An
or its affiliates), based upon: (i) our Managenmsatisfactory performance that is materially de¢rimal to us, or (ii) a determination that the
management fees payable to our Manager are npstdiject to our Manager’s right to prevent terrtiovabased on unfair fees by accepting a
reduction of management fees agreed to by atteasthirds of our independent directors. We mustvjate our Manager with 180-days’ prior
notice of any such termination. Additionally, upsuch termination, the management agreement prothdésve will pay our Manager a
termination fee equal to three times the averagearbase management fee earned by our Managegdte prior 24-month period before
such termination, calculated as of the end of thstmecently completed fiscal quarter. These piorgsmay adversely affect our ability to
terminate our Manager without cause. Our Managenlig contractually committed to serve us until Beder 31, 2010. Thereafter, the
management agreement is renewable on an annusg] begiever, our Manager may terminate the manageageeement annually upon 180-
days’prior notice. If the management agreement is teatethand no suitable replacement is found to mansgee may not be able to exec
our business plan.

Our board of directors has approved very broad invetment guidelines for our Manager and will not appove each investment decision
made by our Manager.

Our Manager is authorized to follow verpad investment guidelines. Our board of direcp@nsodically reviews our investment
guidelines and our investment portfolio, but doet and is not required to, review all of our pregd investments or any type or category of
investment, except that an investment in a secstityctured or managed by our Manager must be apgroy a majority of our independent
directors. In addition, in conducting periodic r@wi, our board of directors relies primarily oroimhation provided to them by our Manager.
Furthermore, our Manager uses complex strategiestransactions entered into by our Manager magiffieult or impossible to unwind by
the time they are reviewed by our board of direct@ur Manager has great latitude within the biiogdstment guidelines in determining the
types of assets it may decide are proper invessrfenus, which could result in investment retuttmest are substantially below expectations or
that result in losses, which would materially adeersely affect our business operations and redtutsher, decisions made and investments
entered into by our Manager may not be in your estests.

We may change our investment strategy, asset alldaan, or financing plans without stockholder conseh which may result in riskier
investments.

We may change our investment strategetaalocation, or financing plans at any time withthe consent of our stockholders, which
could result in our making investments that aréedént from, and possibly riskier than, the investits described in this prospectus. A change
in our investment strategy or financing plans
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may increase our exposure to interest rate andiiefsk and real estate market fluctuations. Femtore, a change in our asset allocation ¢
result in our making investments in asset categatifferent from those described in this prospectirese changes could adversely affect the
market price of our common stock and our abilityrtake distributions to you.

While investments in investment vehiatesnaged by our Manager require approval by a ntgjofiour independent directors, our
Manager has an incentive to invest our funds iestwment vehicles managed by our Manager becauke pbssibility of generating an
additional incremental management fee, which mdyce other investment opportunities available tdrugddition, we cannot assure you that
investments in investment vehicles managed by camader will prove beneficial to us.

We may invest in CDOs managed by our Manager, inclling the purchase or sale of all or a portion of te equity of such CDOs, which
may result in an immediate loss in book value andrpsent a conflict of interest between us and our Meager.

We may invest in securities of CDOs mablgy our Manager. If all of the securities of a@Banaged by our Manager were not fully
placed as a result of our not investing, our Manageld experience losses due to changes in the\adlthe underlying investments
accumulated in anticipation of the launch of suolestment vehicle. The accumulated investmentdb@ transaction are generally sold at
the price at which they were purchased and nopteeailing market price at closing. Accordingly,ttee extent we invest in a portion of the
equity securities for which there has been a dmtation of value since the securities were purathase would experience an immediate loss
equal to the decrease in the market value of tdenlying investment. As a result, the interestewf Manager in our investing in such a CDO
may conflict with our interests and your interests.

Our investment focus is different from those of otkr entities that are or have been managed by our Meager.

Our investment focus is different fronogke of other entities that are or have been managedr Manager. In particular, entities
managed by our Manager have not purchased wholyay® loans or structured whole loan securitizatiom addition, our Manager has
limited experience in managing CDOs and investinGDOs, non-Agency RMBS, CMBS and other ABS whighmay pursue as part of our
investment strategy. Accordingly, our Manager'ddrisal returns are not indicative of its performarior our investment strategy and we can
offer no assurance that our Manager will repli¢ghtehistorical performance of the Manager's invesitprofessionals in their previous
endeavors. Our investment returns could be subisigiower than the returns achieved by our Mamagi@vestment professionals’ previous
endeavors.

We compete with investment vehicles of our Managdor access to our Manager’s resources and investmeopportunities.

Our Manager provides investment and fongradvice to a number of investment vehicles sorde of our Manager’s personnel are also
employees of Annaly and in that capacity are ingdlin Annaly’s investment process. Accordingly, seenpete with our Manager’s other
investment vehicles and with Annaly for our Manageesources. Our Manager may sponsor and manbgeiavestment vehicles with an
investment focus that overlaps with ours, whichldaasult in us competing for access to the besdfiat our relationship with our Manager
provides to us.

Risks Related To Our Business

We have a limited operating history and may not cotinue to operate successfully or generate sufficienevenue to make or sustain
distributions to you.

We were organized in June 2007 and comaetkoperations in November 2007 and have a linuipegtating history. We cannot assure
you that we will be able to continue to operate lousiness successfully or implement our operatoligies and strategies described in !
prospectus. The results of our operations dependany factors, including the availability of opparities for the acquisition of assets, the
valuation of our assets, the level and volatilitynerest rates, readily accessible short and-tengy financing and the terms of the financing,
conditions in the financial markets and economieditions.
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Failure to procure adequate capital and funding orfavorable terms, or at all, would adversely affecobur results and may, in turn,
negatively affect the market price of shares of oucommon stock and our ability to distribute dividerds to you.

The capital and credit markets have leegreriencing extreme volatility and disruption foore than 12 months. In recent weeks, the
volatility and disruption have reached unprecedilggels. In some cases, the markets have exeotgdvwdard pressure on stock prices and
credit capacity for certain issuers. We depend uperavailability of adequate funding and capitaldur operations. We intend to finance our
assets over the long-term through a variety of meiacluding repurchase agreements, credit fagslitsecuritizations, commercial paper and
CDOs. Our access to capital depends upon a nunfifectors over which we have little or no contiiakluding:

. general market condition

. the marke’'s perception of our growth potenti

. our current and potential future earnings and cistnibutions;
. the market price of the shares of our capital staokl

. the marke’'s view of the quality of our asse

The current weakness in the broader magegnarkets could adversely affect one or moraiopotential lenders or any of our lenders
and could cause one or more of our potential lendeany of our lenders to be unwilling or unatolgtovide us with financing or require us to
post additional collateral. In general, this coptilentially increase our financing costs and redugdiquidity or require us to sell assets at an
inopportune time or price.

We have used and expect to use a nunilsaueces to finance our investments, includingirepase agreements, warehouse facilities,
securitizations, asset-backed commercial papeteand CDOs. Current market conditions have affetthedcost and availability of financing
from each of these sources — and their individuaVvigders — to different degrees; some sources gdlgeare unavailable, some are available
but at a high cost, and some are largely unaffeétedexample, in the repurchase agreement mar&apwers have been affected differently
depending on the type of security they are finagiciion-Agency RMBS have been harder to financeedding on the type of assets
collateralizing the RMBS. The amount, term and rimargquirements associated with these types ohimgs have been negatively impacted.

Currently, warehouse facilities to finanghole loan prime residential mortgages are gdperaailable from major banks, but at
significantly higher cost and greater margin reguients than previously offered. Many major banlks dffer warehouse facilities have also
reduced the amount of capital available to newae$rand consequently the size of those facilitfeesed now are smaller than those
previously available.

It is currently a challenging market éorh finance whole loans through securitization@mnds issued by a CDO structure. The highly
rated senior bonds in these securitizations and 8@@@tures currently have liquidity, but at mucller spreads than issues priced earlier this
year. The junior subordinate tranches of theseststras currently have few buyers and current masketlitions have forced issuers to ref
these lower rated bonds rather than sell them.

Certain issuers of asset-backed commigrajzer, or ABCP, have been unable to place (¢ tfegir securities, which has resulted, in
some instances, in forced sales of mortgage-basteudrities, or MBS, and other securities whichfaher negatively impacted the market
value of these assets. These market conditionuideand likely to change over time.

As a result, the execution of our investinstrategy may be dictated by the cost and aikiaof financing from these different sources.

In addition, the impairment of other firtéal institutions could negatively affect us. Heor more major market participants fails or
otherwise experience a major liquidity crisis, aswhe case for Bear Stearns & Co. in March 2008 L&hman Brothers Holdings Inc. in
September 2008, it could adversely affect the mabikty of all fixed income securities and thisubd negatively impact the value of the
securities we acquire, thus reducing our net baile:

23




Furthermore, if any of our potential lenslor any of our lenders are unwilling or unabl@itovide us with financing, we could be forced
to sell our securities or residential mortgage soanan inopportune time when prices are depressed:xample, for the quarter ended March
31, 2008, we sold assets with a carrying value3®4$2 million for an aggregate loss of $32.8 milli®vhile we did not sell any assets during
the quarter ended June 30, 2008, for the thirdtguaf 2008, we sold assets with a carrying vafu®482.5 million in AAA-rated non-Agency
RMBS for a loss of approximately $113 million ardrhinated $983.4 million in notional interest rateaps for a loss of approximately $10.5
million, which together resulted in a net realizesis of approximately $123.5 million.

Our business, results of operations amahtial condition may be materially adversely efifel by recent disruptions in the financial
markets. We cannot assure you, under such extreritions, that these markets will remain an effitisource of long-term financing for our
assets. If our strategy is not viable, we will h&wéind alternative forms of financing for our ats which may not be available. Further, as a
REIT, we are required to distribute annually aste20% of our REIT taxable income, determined withregard to the deduction for dividends
paid and excluding net capital gain, to you andtlaeeefore not able to retain significant amouritswr earnings for new investments. We
cannot assure you that any, or sufficient, fundingapital will be available to us in the future tenms that are acceptable to us. If we cannot
obtain sufficient funding on acceptable terms, ¢hmeay be a negative impact on the market pricasloEommon stock and our ability to make
distributions to you. Moreover, our ability to gravill be dependent on our ability to procure addifil funding. To the extent we are not able
to raise additional funds through the issuancedditeonal equity or borrowings, our growth will lsenstrained.

We operate in a highly competitive market for inveiment opportunities and more established competita may be able to compete mor
effectively for investment opportunities than we ca.

A number of entities compete with us takethe types of investments that we plan to maleecompete with other REITs, public and
private funds, commercial and investment bankscamdmercial finance companies. Many of our competitoe substantially larger and have
considerably greater financial, technical and mimigeresources than we do. Several other REITs heaently raised, or are expected to raise,
significant amounts of capital, and may have inwestt objectives that overlap with ours, which mesate competition for investment
opportunities. Some competitors may have a lowst eébfunds and access to funding sources that@travailable to us. In addition, some of
our competitors may have higher risk tolerancedifferent risk assessments, which could allow thermonsider a wider variety of investme
and establish more favorable relationships tharame We cannot assure you that the competitivespres we face will not have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condisiod results of operations. Also, as a result isfecbmpetition, we may not be able to take
advantage of attractive investment opportunitiemftime to time, and we can offer no assurancevileawill be able to identify and make
investments that are consistent with our investroéjgctives.

Loss of our 1940 Act exemption would adversely afté us and negatively affect the market price of shas of our common stock and our
ability to distribute dividends and could result in the termination of the management agreement withwr Manager.

We operate our company so that we willoerequired to register as an investment compadgr the 1940 Act because we are
“primarily engaged in the business of purchasingtberwise acquiring mortgages and other liensrmhiaterests in real estate.” Specifically,
our investment strategy is to invest at least 55%uo assets in mortgage loans, RMBS that reprabergntire ownership in a pool of mortg:
loans and other qualifying interests in real esaag approximately an additional 25% of our assetdher types of mortgages, RMBS,
securities of REITs and other real estate-relagséta. As a result, we are limited in our abilityntake certain investments. If we fail to qualify
for this exemption in the future, we could be regdito restructure our activities in a manner trait a time when we would not otherwise
choose to do so, which could negatively affectvllee of shares of our common stock, the sustdibabf our business model, and our ability
to make distributions. For example, if the markae of our investments in securities were to iaseeby an amount that resulted in less than
55% of our assets being invested in mortgage loaRMBS that represent the entire ownership in@ pbmortgage loans or less than 80% of
our assets being invested in real estate-relattsasve might have to sell securities to quabiyeixemption under the 1940 Act. The sale
could occur during adverse market conditions, aaccauld be forced to accept a price below that wkie believe is acceptable. In addition,
there can be no assurance that the laws and regqnda@foverning REITS, including regulations issbgdhe Division of Investment
Management of the SEC, providing more specificifierent guidance regarding the treatment of assetgualifying real estate assets or real
estate-related assets, will not change in a mathaeadversely affects our
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operations. A loss of our 1940 Act exemption waalldw our Manager to terminate the management aggaewith us, which would
materially adversely affect our business and opmrst

Rapid changes in the values of our RMBS, residentianortgage loans, and other real estate-related istments may make it more
difficult for us to maintain our qualification as a REIT or our exemption from the 1940 Act.

If the market value or income potentiibar RMBS, residential mortgage loans, and otkat estate-related investments declines as a
result of increased interest rates, prepaymens atether factors, we may need to increase oliestate investments and income or liquidate
our non-qualifying assets to maintain our REIT dfication or our exemption from the 1940 Act. ltldecline in real estate asset values or
income occurs quickly, this may be especially difft to accomplish. This difficulty may be exacadzhby the illiquid nature of any non-real
estate assets we may own. We may have to maketimsesdecisions that we otherwise would not maleeabthe REIT and 1940 Act
considerations.

We may leverage our investments, which may adverse&ffect our return on our investments and may redae cash available for
distribution to you.

We may leverage our investments througsindwvings, generally through the use of repurclzgeements, warehouse facilities, credit
facilities, securitizations, commercial paper afads. We are not required to maintain any speciiotdo-equity ratio. The amount of levere
we may use will vary depending on our ability tdab credit facilities, the lenders’ and rating ages’ estimates of the stability of the
investments’ cash flow, and our assessment offipeogriate amount of leverage for the particul@etswe are funding. As of September 30,
2008, we had outstanding indebtedness of approzigndii.119 billion, which consists of recourse lage of approximately $620.0 million
and non-recourse securitized financing of approsetya$499.0 million. We are required to maintaimmum average cash balances in
connection with borrowings under our credit famkt Our return on our investments and cash avaifab distribution to you may be reduced
to the extent that changes in market conditionsgmeus from leveraging our investments, requireoudecrease our rate of leverage, or
increase the amount of collateral we post or irsehe cost of our financing relative to the incdhed can be derived from the assets acqu
Our debt service payments will reduce cash flowilakke for distributions to you, which could advelssaffect the price of our common stock.
We may not be able to meet our debt service oliigat and, to the extent that we cannot, we riskdiss of some or all of our assets to
foreclosure or sale to satisfy the obligations. Mierage certain of our assets through repurchgreements. A decrease in the value of these
assets may lead to margin calls which we will hiaveatisfy. We may not have the funds availablgstiisfy any such margin calls and we may
be forced to sell assets at significantly depregsiegs due to market conditions or otherwise. édtesfaction of such margin calls may reduce
cash flow available for distribution to you. Anydrection in distributions to you or sales of assetmopportune times or at a loss may causi
value of our common stock to decline, in some cgsesipitously.

We may depend on warehouse and repurchase faciliiecredit facilities and commercial paper to execetour business plan, and our
inability to access funding could have a material dverse effect on our results of operations, finanal condition and business.

Our ability to fund our investments magpdnd upon our ability to secure warehouse, repsestcredit, and commercial paper financing
on acceptable terms. Pending the securitizatianpafol of mortgage loans, if any, we may fund tbguésition of mortgage loans through
borrowings from warehouse, repurchase, and cradilitftes and commercial paper. We can provide sgueance that we will be successful in
establishing sufficient warehouse, repurchase cagdit facilities and issuing commercial paperatidition, because warehouse, repurchase,
and credit facilities and commercial paper are tstesm commitments of capital, the lenders may oesito market conditions, which may
favor an alternative investment strategy for theraking it more difficult for us to secure continu@thncing. During certain periods of the
credit cycle such as has been in effect recerydérs may curtail their willingness to provideaficing. If we are not able to renew our then
existing warehouse, repurchase, and credit fasligind issue commercial paper or arrange for nemding on terms acceptable to us, or if we
default on our covenants or are otherwise unabéetess funds under any of these facilities, wehaive to curtail our asset acquisition
activities.

It is possible that the lenders that pfews with financing could experience changesadirtability to advance funds to us, independent
of our performance or the performance of our inwestts, including our mortgage loans. In additibthé regulatory capital requirements
imposed on our lenders change, they may be reqtdred
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increase significantly the cost of the warehousdifi@s that they provide to us. Our lenders atsay revise their eligibility requirements for 1
types of residential mortgage loans they are vgltim finance or the terms of such financings, basgdamong other factors, the regulatory
environment and their management of perceived pakjcularly with respect to assignee liabilityn&ncing of equity-based lending, for
example, may become more difficult in the futurear®bver, the amount of financing we will receivelanour warehouse and repurchase
facilities will be directly related to the lendersluation of the assets that secure the outstgrzbrrowings. Typically warehouse, repurchase,
and credit facilities grant the respective lendher absolute right to reevaluate the market valubefissets that secure outstanding borrowings
at any time. If a lender determines in its solemigon that the value of the assets has decretdeh the right to initiate a margin call. A
margin call would require us to transfer additioaséets to such lender without any advance of ftnods the lender for such transfer or to
repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings. Aogh margin call could have a material adversecetfe our results of operations, financial
condition, business, liquidity and ability to madkstributions to you, and could cause the valueuwsfcommon stock to decline. We may be
forced to sell assets at significantly depressakprto meet such margin calls and to maintain aalediquidity, which could cause us to incur
losses. Moreover, to the extent we are forced lt@ssets at such time, given market conditionsmvag be forced to sell assets at the same
as others facing similar pressures to sell singitmets, which could greatly exacerbate a difficutket environment and which could result in
our incurring significantly greater losses on calesof such assets. In an extreme case of markessiua market may not even be present for
certain of our assets at any price.

The current dislocation and weaknessénroader mortgage markets could adversely abfeetor more of our potential lenders and
could cause one or more of our potential lendeksetanwilling or unable to provide us with finangirThis could potentially increase our
financing costs and reduce our liquidity. If onentore major market participants fails or otherwegperiences a major liquidity crisis, as was
the case for Bear Stearns & Co. in March 2008 afthian Brothers Holdings Inc. in September 200&utd negatively impact the
marketability of all fixed income securities, indlng Agency and non-Agency RMBS, residential magigyiboans and real estate related
securities, and this could negatively impact thieeaf the securities we acquire, thus reducingnaitbook value. Furthermore, if any of our
potential lenders or any of our lenders, includémmaly, are unwilling or unable to provide us wiihancing, we could be forced to sell our
assets at an inopportune time when prices are skute

Since June 30, 2008, there have beerdsed market concerns about Freddie Mac and Fistagss ability to withstand future credit
losses associated with securities held in theiestment portfolios, and on which they provide goteas, without the direct support of the
federal government. Recently, the government pasetHousing and Economic Recovery Act of 200&nkie Mae and Freddie Mac have
recently been placed into the conservatorship@®fgderal Housing Finance Agency, or FHFA, thalefal regulator, pursuant to its powers
under The Federal Housing Finance Regulatory Refaetrof 2008, a part of the Housing and Economicd¥ery Act of 2008. As the
conservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, the FE&i#rols and directs the operations of Fannie MakFreddie Mac and may (1) take
over the assets of and operate Fannie Mae andiEBrtdd with all the powers of the shareholders,dinectors, and the officers of Fannie Mae
and Freddie Mac and conduct all business of Faaie and Freddie Mac; (2) collect all obligationslamoney due to Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac; (3) perform all functions of Fannie Mae anedktie Mac which are consistent with the conseriaeppointment; (4) preserve and
conserve the assets and property of Fannie Ma& udlie Mac; and (5) contract for assistance ffillioy any function, activity, action or
duty of the conservator.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conséovaf Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, (i) the U.S. &apent of Treasury and FHFA have
entered into preferred stock purchase agreemetwgér the U.S. Department of Treasury and Fannie &a Freddie Mac pursuant to which
the U.S. Department of Treasury will ensure thaheaf Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac maintains a pesitet worth; (ii) the U.S. Department
of Treasury has established a new secured lendattt ¢acility which will be available to Fannie MaFreddie Mac, and the Federal Home
Loan Banks, which is intended to serve as a lidgyidackstop, which will be available until DecemB@&09; and (iii) the U.S. Department of
Treasury has initiated a temporary program to pasefRMBS issued by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.nGheshighly fluid and evolving
nature of these events, it is unclear how our lassiwill be impacted. Based upon the further agtind the U.S. government or market
response to developments at Fannie Mae or Freddee dur business could be adversely impacted.
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Continued adverse developments in the residential antgage market could make it difficult for us to barow money to acquire
investments on a leveraged basis, which could adweely affect our profitability.

We may rely on the availability of finang to acquire residential mortgage loans, realtestelated securities and real estate loans on a
leveraged basis. Institutions from which we maykdeeobtain financing may have owned or financeddential mortgage loans, real estate-
related securities and real estate loans which Haekned in value and caused them to suffer loasesresult of the recent downturn in the
residential mortgage market. If these conditionsige these institutions may become insolventgiitén their lending standards, which could
make it more difficult for us to obtain financing éavorable terms or at all. Our profitability mbg adversely affected if we were unable to
obtain cost-effective financing for our investments

Certain of our financing facilities contain covenans that restrict our operations and may inhibit our ability to grow our business and
increase revenues.

Certain of our financing facilities coimaxtensive restrictions, covenants, and reprasens and warranties that, among other things,
require us to satisfy specified financial, assetligg loan eligibility and loan performance tedfswe fail to meet or satisfy any of these
covenants or representations and warranties, wédvibeuin default under these agreements and odetsrcould elect to declare all amounts
outstanding under the agreements to be immedidtedyand payable, enforce their respective inteeggigst collateral pledged under such
agreements and restrict our ability to make additidoorrowings. Our financing agreements may cantedss-default provisions, so that if a
default occurs under any one agreement, the lenghelasr our other agreements could also declaréaalltleThe covenants and restrictions we
expect in our financing facilities may restrict @bility to, among other things:

. incur or guarantee additional de

. make certain investments or acquisitic

. make distributions on or repurchase or redeem alagibck;
. engage in mergers or consolidatio

. finance mortgage loans with certain attribu

. reduce liquidity below certain level

. grant liens:

. incur operating losses for more than a specifigtbfe

. enter into transactions with affiliates; a

. hold mortgage loans for longer than establishee periods

These restrictions may interfere with ability to obtain financing, including the finamg needed to qualify as a REIT, or to engage in
other business activities, which may significamtéyrm our business, financial condition, liquiditydaresults of operations. A default and
resulting repayment acceleration could significantiduce our liquidity, which could require us &l ®ur assets to repay amounts due and
outstanding. This could also significantly harm business, financial condition, results of operaticand our ability to make distributions,
which could cause the value of our common stodadetdine. A default will also significantly limit edfinancing alternatives such that we will
be unable to pursue our leverage strategy, whialdamurtail our investment returns.

The repurchase agreements, warehouse facilities,eatit facilities and commercial paper that we use téinance our investments may
require us to provide additional collateral and mayrestrict us from leveraging our assets as fully adesired.

We use repurchase agreements, warehaaitiéids, credit facilities and commercial papeffihance our investments. We currently have
uncommitted repurchase agreements with 12 countepaincluding Annaly, for financing our RMBS. ©repurchase agreements are
uncommitted and a counterparty may refuse to advamuds under the agreements to us. If the magdaevwof the loans or securities pledged
or sold by us to a funding source decline in value may be required by the lending institution toyide additional collateral or pay down a
portion of the funds advanced, but we may not hhedunds available to do so. Posting additiondateral will reduce our liquidity and limit
our ability to leverage our assets, which couldeasely affect our business. In the event we
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do not have sufficient liquidity to meet such raquients, lending institutions can accelerate regeyrof our indebtedness, increase our
borrowing rates, liquidate our collateral or terat@our ability to borrow. Such a situation woukely result in a rapid deterioration of our
financial condition and possibly necessitate adijlfor protection under the U.S. Bankruptcy Codethier, financial institutions may require us
to maintain a certain amount of cash that is ne¢sied or to set aside non-levered assets suffitienaintain a specified liquidity position
which would allow us to satisfy our collateral gations. As a result, we may not be able to leverag assets as fully as we would choose,
which could reduce our return on equity. If we an@ble to meet these collateral obligations, thsrjescribed above, our financial condition
could deteriorate rapidly.

If the counterparty to our repurchase transactionsdefaults on its obligation to resell the underlyingsecurity back to us at the end of the
transaction term, or if the value of the underlyingsecurity has declined as of the end of that termrdf we default on our obligations
under the repurchase agreement, we will lose mon@n our repurchase transactions.

When we engage in a repurchase transgaoti® generally sell securities to the transactiounterparty and receive cash from the
counterparty. The counterparty is obligated toltéke securities back to us at the end of the tefithe transaction, which is typically 30 to 90
days. Because the cash we receive from the coamtgnwhen we initially sell the securities to thmuaterparty is less than the value of those
securities (this difference is referred to as taiedut), if the counterparty defaults on its obtiga to resell the securities back to us we would
incur a loss on the transaction equal to the amoliite haircut (assuming there was no changedvéitue of the securities).

We would also lose money on a repurclrasesaction if the value of the underlying secasithas declined as of the end of the transe
term, as we would have to repurchase the secufitigheir initial value but would receive secuggtiworth less than that amount. Any losse
incur on our repurchase transactions could adweesdct our earnings, and thus our cash availfldistribution to you. If we default on one
of our obligations under a repurchase transacti@counterparty can terminate the transactionceade entering into any other repurchase
transactions with us. In that case, we would likeded to establish a replacement repurchase yawilih another repurchase dealer in order to
continue to leverage our portfolio and carry out iowestment strategy. There is no assurance wédWmmiable to establish a suitable
replacement facility.

Our rights under our repurchase agreements are sulgct to the effects of the bankruptcy laws in the @nt of the bankruptcy or
insolvency of us or our lenders under the repurchasagreements.

In the event of our insolvency or bankoyp certain repurchase agreements may qualifggecial treatment under the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code, the effect of which, among other things, widag to allow the lender under the applicable relpase agreement to avoid the automatic
stay provisions of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code anfibteclose on the collateral agreement without ddiayhe event of the insolvency or
bankruptcy of a lender during the term of a repasehagreement, the lender may be permitted, upgdicable insolvency laws, to repudiate
the contract, and our claim against the lended&nages may be treated simply as an unsecuredocrédiaddition, if the lender is a broker
dealer subject to the Securities Investor Protactiot of 1970, or an insured depository institutgabject to the Federal Deposit Insurance Act,
our ability to exercise our rights to recover oecwrities under a repurchase agreement or to bpemsated for any damages resulting from
lender’s insolvency may be further limited by thasatutes. These claims would be subject to sigmiti delay and, if and when received, may
be substantially less than the damages we actinally.

An increase in our borrowing costs relative to thénterest we receive on our assets may adversely edf our profitability, and thus our
cash available for distribution to you.

As our repurchase agreements and otleet-sdrm borrowings mature, we will be requiredheitto enter into new borrowings or to sell
certain of our investments. An increase in shamataterest rates at the time that we seek to éntemew borrowings would reduce the spread
between our returns on our assets and the costrdfasrowings. This would adversely affect our rauon our assets that are subject to
prepayment risk, including our mortgage-backed stes, which might reduce earnings and, in tuastcavailable for distribution to you.

If we issue senior securities we will be exposed aalditional risks.

If we decide to issue senior securitiethe future, it is likely that they will be govesth by an indenture or other instrument containing
covenants restricting our operating flexibility. ditionally, any convertible or exchangeable se@sithat we issue in the future may have
rights, preferences and privileges more favoratwe t
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those of our common stock and may result in ditutmowners of our common stock. We and, indiregtbu, will bear the cost of issuing and
servicing such securities.

Our securitizations expose us to additional risks.

On April 24, 2008, we sponsored a $618illion securitization as a long-term financingrisaction whereby we securitized our then-
current inventory of mortgage loans. We generatlyeet to continue to structure these transactiorthat they are treated as financing
transactions, and not as sales, for federal indemeurposes, although we may structure some sizgations as sales. On July 25, 2008, we
sponsored a $151.2 million securitization as a. $aleur typical securitization structure, we woglthvey a pool of assets to a special purpose
vehicle, the issuing entity, and the issuing entituld issue one or more classes of non-recoursss porsuant to the terms of an indenture.
The notes would be secured by the pool of asseexdhange for the transfer of assets to the igsenity, we would receive the cash proceeds
of the sale of non-recourse notes and a 100% Btteréhe equity of the issuing entity. The seczation of our portfolio investments might
magnify our exposure to losses on those portfoi@stments because any equity interest we retaheirssuing entity would be subordinate to
the notes issued to investors and we would, thexefdbsorb all of the losses sustained with regpeatsecuritized pool of assets before the
owners of the notes experience any losses. Moreaxecannot be assured that we will be able toicoatto access the securitization market,
or be able to do so at favorable rates. The inghidi securitize our portfolio could hurt our parftance and our ability to grow our business.

The use of CDO financings with over-collateralizatn requirements may have a negative impact on ouiash flow.

We expect that the terms of CDOs we npensor will generally provide that the principal@mt of assets must exceed the principal
balance of the related bonds by a certain amooniymnly referred to as “over-collateralization.” \Weticipate that the CDO terms will
provide that, if certain delinquencies or losseseexl the specified levels based on the analysikebgating agencies (or any financial guaranty
insurer) of the characteristics of the assets tldizing the bonds, the required level of oveltateralization may be increased or may be
prevented from decreasing as would otherwise bmifted if losses or delinquencies did not exceeddéhevels. Other tests (based on
delinquency levels or other criteria) may restoat ability to receive net income from assets ¢ettaizing the obligations. We cannot assure
you that the performance tests will be satisfiacadvance of completing negotiations with the gatigencies or other key transaction partie
our future CDO financings, we cannot assure yothefactual terms of the CDO delinquency tests,-cedlateralization terms, cash flow
release mechanisms or other significant factorardigg the calculation of net income to us. Givecent volatility in the CDO market, rating
agencies may depart from historic practices for dib@ncings, making them more costly for us. Falto obtain favorable terms with regard
to these matters may materially and adversely effecavailability of net income to us. If our assfail to perform as anticipated, our over-
collateralization or other credit enhancement espassociated with our CDO financings will increase

Hedging against interest rate exposure may adversehffect our earnings, which could reduce our cashvailable for distribution to you.

Subject to maintaining our qualificatias a REIT, we may utilize various hedging strateteseek to reduce our exposure to losses
adverse changes in interest rates. Our hedgingtsiatiay vary in scope based on the level and uijabf interest rates, the type of assets f
and other changing market conditions. Interesthatiging may fail to protect or could adverselyeaffus because, among other things:

. interest rate hedging can be expensive, partigutarting periods of rising and volatile interesiesg
. available interest rate hedges may not correspoadtly with the interest rate risk for which proten is sought
. the duration of the hedge may not match the duraifdhe related liability

. the amount of income that a REIT may earn from redgansactions (other than through taxable RElGsgliaries, or TRSS) 1
offset interest rate losses is limited by fedesalprovisions governing REIT

. the credit quality of the party owing money on Heglge may be downgraded to such an extent thapdirs our ability to sell or
assign our side of the hedging transaction;
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. the party owing money in the hedging transactioy gefault on its obligation to pa

Our hedging transactions, which are idézhto limit losses, may actually limit gains andrease our exposure to losses. For exampl
suffered unrealized losses from hedges in the guarntded June 30, 2008. As a result, our hedgitigitganay adversely affect our earnings,
which could reduce our cash available for distidiuto you. In addition, hedging instruments inwhisk since they often are not traded on
regulated exchanges, guaranteed by an exchangeaearing house, or regulated by any U.S. onidorgovernmental authorities.
Consequently, there are no requirements with rédpeecord keeping, financial responsibility ogsegation of customer funds and positions.
Furthermore, the enforceability of agreements ugitey derivative transactions may depend on conmgiawith applicable statutory and
commodity and other regulatory requirements andedding on the identity of the counterparty, a@ie international requirements. The
business failure of a hedging counterparty with mhee enter into a hedging transaction will moseglykresult in its default. Default by a party
with whom we enter into a hedging transaction mesplt in the loss of unrealized profits and forsgaicover our commitments, if any, at the
then current market price. Although generally w# seek to reserve the right to terminate our hedgiositions, it may not always be possible
to dispose of or close out a hedging position wititbe consent of the hedging counterparty, andnag not be able to enter into an offsetting
contract in order to cover our risk. We cannot esgou that a liquid secondary market will exist iedging instruments purchased or sold,
we may be required to maintain a position untilreige or expiration, which could result in losses.

Our hedging strategies may not be successful in ngating the risks associated with interest rates.

Subject to complying with REIT tax rearments, we have employed and intend to contingentgloy techniques that limit, or “hedge,”
the adverse effects of rising interest rates onshort-term repurchase agreements. In generaheaiging strategy depends on our view of our
entire portfolio, consisting of assets, liabiliti@sd derivative instruments, in light of prevailingirket conditions. We could misjudge the
condition of our investment portfolio or the market

Our hedging activity will vary in scopaded on the level and volatility of interest reded principal repayments, the type of securities
held and other changing market conditions. Ouradtadging decisions will be determined in lightlod facts and circumstances existing at
the time and may differ from our currently antidigéh hedging strategy. These techniques may in@utiring into interest rate caps, collars,
floors, forward contracts, futures or swap agregmeite may conduct certain hedging transactiorsutfin a TRS, which will be subject to
federal, state and, if applicable, local income tax

There are no perfect hedging strategied,interest rate hedging may fail to protect omftoss. Alternatively, we may fail to properly
assess a risk to our investment portfolio or méytdarecognize a risk entirely, leaving us exposetbsses without the benefit of any offsetting
hedging activities. The derivative financial instrents we select may not have the effect of redusurgnterest rate risk. The nature and tin
of hedging transactions may influence the effecigs of these strategies. Poorly designed strategienproperly executed transactions could
actually increase our risk and losses. In additi@uging activities could result in losses if temt against which we hedge does not occur
example, interest rate hedging could fail to protecor adversely affect us because, among otivegsth

. available interest rate hedging may not correspbresttly with the interest rate risk for which peotion is sought
. the duration of the hedge may not match the duraifdhe related liability

. as explained in further detail in the risk factmmediately below, the party owing money in the hedgransaction may defat
on its obligation to pay

. the credit quality of the party owing money on teglge may be downgraded to such an extent thrapdirs our ability to sell ¢
assign our side of the hedging transaction;

. the value of derivatives used for hedging may hasted from time to time in accordance with accontules to reflect chang
in fair value. Downward adjustments,“mark-to-market losse” would reduce our stockhold’ equity.

Whether the derivatives we acquire acghieedge accounting treatment under the Financiebéating Standards Board, or FASB,
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, A88ounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities, or SFAS 133, or not,
hedging generally involves costs and risks. Ouigiveyl
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strategies may adversely affect us because hedgingties involve costs that we will incur regaegs of the effectiveness of the hedging
activity. Those costs may be higher in periods afkat volatility, both because the counterpartiesur derivative agreements may demand a
higher payment for taking risks, and because regeadjustments of our hedges during periods ofésteate changes also may increase costs.
Especially if our hedging strategies are not effectwe could incur significant hedging-relatedtsosithout any corresponding economic
benefits.

We have elected not to qualify for hedge accountingeatment.

We record derivative and hedge transastio accordance with SFAS 133. We have electedonguaalify for hedge accounting
treatment. As a result, our operating results méfesbecause losses on the derivatives that wer @b may not be offset by a change in the
fair value of the related hedged transaction.

Declines in the market values of our investments nyaadversely affect periodic reported results and adit availability, which may
reduce earnings and, in turn, cash available for ditribution to you.

A substantial portion of our assets dassified for accounting purposes as “availablesi@e” and carried at fair value. Changes in the
market values of those assets will be directly gbdror credited to other comprehensive incomedtition, a decline in values will reduce the
book value of our assets. A decline in the markdtier of our assets may adversely affect us, péatigun instances where we have borrowed
money based on the market value of those assé¢t® tharket value of those assets declines, tlteetemay require us to post additional
collateral to support the loan. If we were unabl@ast the additional collateral, we would haveet the assets at a time when we might not
otherwise choose to do so and such sales mayamss. A reduction in credit available may redageearnings and, in turn, cash available
distribution to you.

We are highly dependent on information systems anthird parties, and systems failures could significatly disrupt our business, which
may, in turn, negatively affect the market price ofour common stock and our ability to pay dividendgo you.

Our business is highly dependent on conications and information systems. Any failuremerruption of our systems could cause
delays or other problems in our securities tradiativities, including mortgage-backed securitiesling activities, which could have a material
adverse effect on our operating results and neggtaffect the market price of our common stock andability to pay dividends to you.

We are required to obtain various state licenses iarder to purchase mortgage loans in the secondamarket and there is no assurance
we will be able to obtain or maintain those license

While we are not required to obtain lises to purchase mortgage-backed securities, weguéed to obtain various state licenses to
purchase mortgage loans in the secondary markehaWe applied for these licenses and expect thisgss could take several months. The
no assurance that we will obtain all of the licendeat we desire or that we will not experiencaigicant delays in seeking these licenses.
Furthermore, we will be subject to various inforioatand other requirements to maintain these lieenand there is no assurance that we will
satisfy those requirements. Our failure to obtaimaintain licenses will restrict our investmentiops and could harm our business.

We may be subiject to liability for potential violations of predatory lending laws, which could adverdg impact our results of operations,
financial condition and business.

Various federal, state and local lawsehbgen enacted that are designed to discouragatpredending practices. The federal Home
Ownership and Equity Protection Act of 1994, or HE¥ prohibits inclusion of certain provisions irsigential mortgage loans that have
mortgage rates or origination costs in excess @fqribed levels and requires that borrowers bengieetain disclosures prior to origination.
Some states have enacted, or may enact, similardasggulations, which in some cases impose restristaond requirements greater than tf
in HOEPA. In addition, under the anti-predatoryding laws of some states, the origination of cartasidential mortgage loans, including
loans that are not classified as “high cost” loander applicable law, must satisfy a net tangileledfits test with respect to the related
borrower. This test may be highly subjective androfo interpretation. As a result, a court may rheitee that a residential mortgage loan, for
example, does not meet the test even if the retaigthator reasonably believed that the test vetisfeed. Failure of residential mortgage loan
originators or servicers to comply with these latosthe extent any of their residential mortgagenkbecome part of our mortgaged-related
assets, could subject us, as an assignee or pardbabe related residential mortgage loans, toetary penalties and could result in the
borrowers rescinding the affected residential magégloans.
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Lawsuits have been brought in various states makleigs against assignees or purchasers of higHaarss for violations of state law. Nam
defendants in these cases have included numeroticigents within the secondary mortgage markethdfloans are found to have been
originated in violation of predatory or abusivedéry laws, we could incur losses, which could adesrimpact our results of operations,
financial condition and business.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or wamay affect the market for our common stock, the idustry in which we conduct our
operations and our profitability.

Terrorist attacks may harm our resultemdrations and your investment. We cannot assawuehat there will not be further terrorist
attacks against the United States or U.S. busiseS$éese attacks or armed conflicts may directlyaiot the property underlying our asset-
based securities or the securities markets in geérlaysses resulting from these types of eventsiaiesurable. More generally, any of these
events could cause consumer confidence and spetadderrease or result in increased volatilityhie United States and worldwide financial
markets and economies. Adverse economic conditionkl harm the value of the property underlying asset-backed securities or the
securities markets in general which could harmaparating results and revenues and may resuleindhatility of the value of our securities.

We are subject to the requirements of the Sarbane®xley Act of 2002.

As we are a public company, our managemserequired to deliver a report that assessesffieetiveness of our internal controls over
financial reporting, pursuant to Section 302 of #zbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or Sarbanes-Oxley 8ettion 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
requires an independent registered public accogfitim to deliver an attestation report on managarseassessment of, and the operating
effectiveness of our internal controls over finahceporting in conjunction with their opinion onrcaudited financial statements beginning
with the year ending December 31, 2008. Substantak on our part is required to implement appraggriprocesses, document the system of
internal control over key processes, assess thsigd, remediate any deficiencies identified astitteeir operation. This process is both costly
and challenging. We cannot give any assurancesrtatarial weaknesses will not be identified in filiare in connection with our compliance
with the provisions of Sections 302 and 404 of$lagbane®©xley Act. The existence of any material weaknesscdbed above would preclu
a conclusion by management and our independentoasidivat we maintained effective internal contreér financial reporting. Our
management may be required to devote significar# ind expense to remediate any material weaknttgdasay be discovered and may not
be able to remediate all material weaknessesimedyt manner. The existence of any material weade®s our internal control over financial
reporting could also result in errors in our finehstatements that could require us to restatdinancial statements, cause us to fail to meet
our reporting obligations and cause investors $e kwonfidence in our reported financial informatiath of which could lead to a decline in the
trading price of our common stock.

The increasing number of proposed federal, state @hlocal laws may increase our risk of liability wit respect to certain mortgage loans
and could increase our cost of doing business.

The United States Congress and variaite sind local legislatures are considering leg@siatvhich, among other provisions, would
permit limited assignee liability for certain vitilans in the mortgage loan origination process.oAfenot predict whether or in what form
Congress or the various state and local legislatomay enact legislation affecting our business.af¢eevaluating the potential impact of these
initiatives, if enacted, on our practices and rissof operations. As a result of these and othigafives, we are unable to predict whether
federal, state or local authorities will requireaniges in our practices in the future. These charfgesgjuired, could adversely affect our
profitability, particularly if we make such changasesponse to new or amended laws, regulationsdinances in any state where we acquire
a significant portion of our mortgage loans, asuth changes result in us being held responsiblenfp violations in the mortgage loan
origination process.

Changes in accounting treatment may adversely affeour profitability and impact our financial result s.

In February 2008, the FASB issued finsilgnce regarding the accounting and financiakstaht presentation for transactions which
involve the acquisition of residential mortgagenisareal estate-related securities and real dstts from a counterparty and the subsequent
financing of these residential mortgage loans, estdte-related securities and real estate loaosgh repurchase agreements with the same
counterparty. We are evaluating our position basethe final guidance issued by the FASB. If wendbmeet the criteria under the final
guidance to account for the transactions on a grasss, our accounting treatment would not affeetéconomics of these transactions, but
would affect how these transactions are reportexiirfinancial statements. If we are not able tmply with the criteria under this final
guidance for same party transactions we would be
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precluded from presenting residential mortgagedpeenl estate-related securities and real estates land the related financings, as well as the
related interest income and interest expense,gynss basis in our financial statements. Insteadywauld be required to account for the
purchase commitment and related repurchase agré¢emamet basis and record a forward commitmeptitohase residential mortgage lo¢
real estate-related securities and real estate lasia derivative instrument. Such forward commiterould be recorded at fair value with
subsequent changes in fair value recognized inreggnAdditionally, we would record the cash pantmf our investment in residential
mortgage loans, real estate-related securitiesealdstate loans as a mortgage-related receifraofiethe counterparty on our balance sheet.
Although we would not expect this change in presm to have a material impact on our net incoitnsguld have an adverse impact on our
operations. It could have an impact on our abttitynclude certain residential mortgage loans, estdte-related securities and real estate loans
purchased and simultaneously financed from the sameterparty as qualifying real estate interestgeal estate-related assets used to qualify
under the exemption from registration as an investraompany under the 1940 Act. It could also limit investment opportunities as we may
need to limit our purchases of residential mortgages, real estate-related securities and realeektans that are simultaneously financed with
the same counterparty.

The FASB has recently issued a stafftpostlarifying the application of FASB Statemerm.NL57,Fair Value Measurementswhich is
effective for the quarter ended September 30, 2008are evaluating the position adopted by the FAS#&ing to the fiscal quarter ended
September 30, 2008. The position adopted by theB-éduild affect the value of our RMBS as reflectedir financial statements and could
result in our book value per share being diffefesrn the estimate provided in this prospectus.

Risks Related To Our Investments

We might not be able to purchase residential mortgge loans, mortgage-backed securities and other instenents that meet our
investment criteria or at favorable spreads over ouborrowing costs.

Our net income depends on our abilitaequire residential mortgage loans, mortgage-baskedrities and other investments at
favorable spreads over our borrowing costs witleoqseriencing credit losses and losses in value.ilfestments are selected by our Manager,
and you will not have input into such investmentigiens. Until appropriate investments can be ified our Manager may invest the net
proceeds of this offering and the sale of shardsmtmaly immediately after this offering in interdstaring short-term investments, including
money market accounts that are consistent withrention to qualify as a REIT. These investmemésexpected to provide a lower net return
than we hope to achieve from investments in owmnidéd use of proceeds of this offering. Our Managends to conduct due diligence with
respect to each investment and suitable investoppdrtunities may not be immediately available. fiEif@pportunities are available, there «
be no assurance, however, that our Manager's digenite processes will uncover all relevant factthat any investment will be successful.

We may allocate the net proceeds from this offerintp investments with which you may not agree.

We will have significant flexibility imivesting the net proceeds of this offering. You bl unable to evaluate the manner in which the
net proceeds of this offering will be invested lve Economic merit of our expected investments as@, result, we may use the net proceeds
from this offering to invest in investments with ieh you may not agree. The failure of our managerteapply these proceeds effectively or
find investments that meet our investment criteriaufficient time or on acceptable terms coulduteim unfavorable returns, could cause a
material adverse effect on you, and could causgdhes of our common stock to decline.

We may not realize income or gains from our investents.

We invest to generate both current incame: capital appreciation. The investments we invesiay, however, not appreciate in value
and, in fact, may decline in value, and the debuigges we invest in may default on interest dngipal payments. Accordingly, we may not
able to realize income or gains from our investraeAny gains that we do realize may not be sufficte offset any other losses we experie
Any income that we realize may not be sufficienbtiset our expenses.

Our investments may be concentrated and will be syéct to risk of default.

While we intend to diversify our portfolof investments in the manner described in thisjpectus, we are not required to observe
specific diversification criteria. To the extenattour portfolio is concentrated in any one geolgiapegion or type of security, downturns
relating generally to such region or type of sdguray result in
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defaults on a number of our investments within@rtstime period, which may reduce our net income #e value of our shares and
accordingly may reduce our ability to pay dividetalyou.

Our investments in subordinated RMBS are generallyn the “first loss” position and our investments inthe mezzanine RMBS are
generally in the “second loss” position and therefie subject to losses.

In general, losses on a mortgage loaludied in a securitization will be borne first byetaquity holder of the issuing trust, and then by
the “first loss” subordinated security holder ahdrt by the “second loss” mezzanine holder. In treneof default and the exhaustion of any
classes of securities junior to those in which meest and there is any further loss, we will noabe to recover all of our investment in the
securities we purchase. In addition, if the undedymortgage portfolio has been overvalued by ttgrmator, or if the values subsequently
decline and, as a result, less collateral is abiElto satisfy interest and principal payments diughe related RMBS, the securities in which we
invest may effectively become the “first loss” gasi behind the more senior securities, which megult in significant losses to us. The prices
of lower credit quality securities are generallgdeensitive to interest rate changes than motgyhigted investments, but more sensitive to
adverse economic downturns or individual issueettgyments. A projection of an economic downturm,eample, could cause a decline in
the price of lower credit quality securities bea@tlse ability of obligors of mortgages underlyinjIBS to make principal and interest
payments may be impaired. In such event, existinditsupport in the securitization structure mayirsufficient to protect us against loss of
our principal on these securities.

Increases in interest rates could negatively affe¢he value of our investments, which could resulinireduced earnings or losses and
negatively affect the cash available for distributbn to you.

We have invested and will continue toesivin real estate-related assets by acquiring RM&S$dential mortgage loans, CMBS and
CDOs backed by real estate-related assets. Umiemnzal yield curve, an investment in these assétslgcline in value if long-term interest
rates increase. Declines in market value may utdipaeduce earnings or result in losses to usclviiay negatively affect cash available for
distribution to you. A significant risk associat@ith these investments is the risk that both logigatand short-term interest rates will increase
significantly. If long-term rates were to increasgnificantly, the market value of these investrsembuld decline, and the duration and
weighted average life of the investments wouldéase. We could realize a loss if these assetsseleAt the same time, an increase in short-
term interest rates would increase the amounttefésst owed on the repurchase agreements or athustable rate financings we may enter
into to finance the purchase of these assets. Madtees of our investments may decline without gaegeral increase in interest rates for a
number of reasons, such as increases in defaudtgases in voluntary prepayments for those investsrthat are subject to prepayment risk
and widening of credit spreads.

In a period of rising interest rates, our interestexpense could increase while the interest we earn our fixed-rate assets would not
change, which would adversely affect our profitabity.

Our operating results will depend in Egart on the differences between the income fromassets, net of credit losses and financing
costs. We anticipate that, in most cases, the iedoom such assets will respond more slowly torggerate fluctuations than the cost of our
borrowings. Consequently, changes in interest ra@sicularly short-term interest rates, may digantly influence our net income. Increases
in these rates will tend to decrease our net incantemarket value of our assets. Interest ratéufdions resulting in our interest expense
exceeding our interest income would result in ofyegdosses for us and may limit or eliminate obiligy to make distributions to you.

Interest rate mismatches between our investments drour borrowings used to fund our purchases of thesassets may reduce our
income during periods of changing interest rates.

We intend to fund some of our acquisiof residential mortgage loans, real estate-relsg¢eurities and real estate loans with
borrowings that have interest rates based on iedioe repricing terms with shorter maturities ttteninterest rate indices and repricing terms
of our adjustable-rate assets. Accordingly, if shem interest rates increase, this may harm oofitgbility.

Some of the residential mortgage loaeal, estate-related securities and real estate Wwarequire are and will be fixed-rate securities.
This means that their interest rates will not vawgr time based upon changes in a short-term sttesie index. Therefore, the interest rate
indices and repricing terms of the assets thategeiiee and their funding sources will create amri@st rate mismatch between our assets and
liabilities. During periods of
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changing interest rates, these mismatches coulgesour net income, dividend yield and the markiegpof our stock.

Accordingly, in a period of rising intsteaates, we could experience a decrease in n@nieo©r a net loss because the interest rates «
borrowings adjust whereas the interest rates orfixed-rate assets remain unchanged.

Interest rate caps on our adjustable rate RMBS maydversely affect our profitability.

Adjustable-rate RMBS are typically sulbjecperiodic and lifetime interest rate caps. &did interest rate caps limit the amount an
interest rate can increase during any given petidétime interest rate caps limit the amount aeiast rate can increase over the life of the
security. Our borrowings typically will not be sebj to similar restrictions. Accordingly, in a petiof rapidly increasing interest rates, the
interest rates paid on our borrowings could inaeaghout limitation while caps could limit the arest rates on our adjustable-rate RMBS.
This problem is magnified for hybrid adjustableerand adjustable-rate RMBS that are not fully irdexFurther, some hybrid adjustable-rate
and adjustable-rate RMBS may be subject to peripayenent caps that result in a portion of the ggebeing deferred and added to the
principal outstanding. As a result, we may recédas cash income on hybrid adjustable-rate andstatjle-rate RMBS than we need to pay
interest on our related borrowings. These factortdccreduce our net interest income and cause sisfter a loss.

A significant portion of our portfolio investments will be recorded at fair value, as determined in acordance with our pricing policy as
approved by our board of directors and, as a resujtthere will be uncertainty as to the value of thesinvestments.

A significant portion of our portfolio dfivestments is in the form of securities thatrasepublicly traded. The fair value of securitiesl
other investments that are not publicly traded matybe readily determinable. It may be difficultimpossible to obtain third party pricing on
the investments we purchase. We value these ineassnquarterly at fair value, as determined in edaace with our pricing policy as
approved by our board of directors. Because sultlatians are inherently uncertain, may fluctuaterashort periods of time and may be based
on estimates, our determinations of fair value wmhiffer materially from the values that would haveeh used if a ready market for these
securities existed. The value of our common staakdtbe adversely affected if our determinatiorgarding the fair value of these investme
were materially higher than the values that wendtely realize upon their disposal.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a recession or detlg real estate values could impair our investmesstand harm our operating
results.

Many of our investments are susceptibledonomic slowdowns or recessions, which could tedinancial losses in our investments
a decrease in revenues, net income and assets/dgaifée economic conditions also could increasefanling costs, limit our access to the
capital markets, result in a decision by lendetsta@xtend credit to us, or force us to sell asaétn inopportune time and for a loss. These
events could prevent us from increasing investmandshave an adverse effect on our operating gesult

Changes in prepayment rates could negatively affethe value of our investment portfolio, which couldresult in reduced earnings or
losses and negatively affect the cash available fdistribution to you.

There are seldom any restrictions ondwers’ abilities to prepay their residential moggdoans. Homeowners tend to prepay mortgage
loans faster when interest rates decline. Consdiguemners of the loans have to reinvest the maeegived from the prepayments at the
lower prevailing interest rates. Conversely, homees tend not to prepay mortgage loans when irtteagess increase. Consequently, owners
of the loans are unable to reinvest money that wvbalve otherwise been received from prepaymentediigher prevailing interest rates. This
volatility in prepayment rates may affect our apitio maintain targeted amounts of leverage onpautfolio of residential mortgage loans,
RMBS, and CDOs backed by real estate-related aasdtmay result in reduced earnings or lossesd@nd negatively affect the cash
available for distribution to you.

To the extent our investments are purethag a premium, faster than expected prepaymesidt in a faster than expected amortization
of the premium paid, which would adversely affeat earnings. Conversely, if these investments warehased at a discount, faster than
expected prepayments accelerate our recognitiamcofme.
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A decrease in prepayment rates may adversely affeotr profitability.

When borrowers prepay their mortgage $aatrslower than expected rates, prepayments areléited residential mortgage loans, real
estate-related securities and real estate loandmalower than expected. These slower than exppeetgments may adversely affect our
profitability.

We may purchase residential mortgagedpagal estate-related securities and real estates lthat have a lower interest rate than the ther
prevailing market interest rate. In exchange fis tbwer interest rate, we may pay a discount tovaiue to acquire the investment. In
accordance with accounting rules, we will accrbie discount over the expected term of the investrhased on our prepayment assumptions.
If the investment is prepaid at a slower than etqukbcate, however, we must accrete the remainimngopoof the discount at a slower than
expected rate. This will extend the expected Iffthe portfolio and result in a lower than expecyézld on investment purchased at a discount
to par.

The mortgage loans we invest in and the mortgagedas underlying the mortgage and asset-backed sectigis we invest in are subject to
delinquency, foreclosure and loss, which could refiun losses to us.

Residential mortgage loans are typicsdigured by single-family residential property arelsubject to risks of delinquency and
foreclosure and risks of loss. The ability of arberer to repay a loan secured by a residentialgntgps dependent upon the income or asst
the borrower. A number of factors, including a gaheconomic downturn, acts of God, terrorism, abgnrest and civil disturbances, may
impair borrowers’ abilities to repay their loans.dddition, we invest in non-Agency RMBS, which bezked by residential real property but,
in contrast to Agency RMBS, their principal anckirgst is not guaranteed by federally charterediemtuch as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
and, in the case of Ginnie Mae, the U.S. governnidm U.S. Department of Treasury and FHFA have atgered into preferred stock
purchase agreements between the U.S. Departm&mneadury and Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac pursuamhitch the U.S. Department of
Treasury will ensure that each of Fannie Mae amrdidie Mac maintains a positive net worth. Adsatked securities are bonds or notes ba
by loans or other financial assets. The ability dforrower to repay these loans or other finarasakts is dependent upon the income or assets
of these borrowers. Commercial mortgage loanseagered by multifamily or commercial property and aubject to risks of delinquency and
foreclosure, and risks of loss that are greatar #imilar risks associated with loans made on #doaisty of single-family residential property.
The ability of a borrower to repay a loan securg@it income-producing property typically is depamtdaimarily upon the successful
operation of such property rather than upon thsterce of independent income or assets of the Werrdf the net operating income of the
property is reduced, the borrower’s ability to ngfize loan may be impaired. Net operating incomaroincome producing property can be
affected by, among other things, tenant mix, sie&oésenant businesses, property management desjgooperty location and condition,
competition from comparable types of propertiegnges in laws that increase operating expensendrrints that may be charged, any nee
address environmental contamination at the prop#réyoccurrence of any uninsured casualty at thpesty, changes in national, regional or
local economic conditions or specific industry segis, declines in regional or local real estatees| declines in regional or local rental or
occupancy rates, increases in interest ratesestate tax rates and other operating expenseggehamgovernmental rules, regulations and
fiscal policies, including environmental legislatijacts of God, terrorism, social unrest and disturbances. In the event of any default under
a mortgage loan held directly by us, we will beaisk of loss of principal to the extent of anyidefncy between the value of the collateral and
the principal and accrued interest of the mortdage, which could have a material adverse effeatwmncash flow from operations. In the
event of the bankruptcy of a mortgage loan borrower mortgage loan to such borrower will be deetodae secured only to the extent of the
value of the underlying collateral at the time ahkruptcy (as determined by the bankruptcy coart), the lien securing the mortgage loan will
be subject to the avoidance powers of the bankyuptistee or debtor-in-possession to the extenliehes unenforceable under state law.
Foreclosure of a mortgage loan can be an expeasiddengthy process which could have a substamigdtive effect on our anticipated return
on the foreclosed mortgage loan. RMBS evidenceeésts in or are secured by pools of residentiatgage loans and CMBS evidence inter
in or are secured by a single commercial mortgage br a pool of commercial mortgage loans. Accwlyi, the RMBS and CMBS we invest
in are subject to all of the risks of the respextimderlying mortgage loans.

We may be required to repurchase mortgage loans andemnify investors if we breach representations ashwarranties, which could
harm our earnings.

If we sell loans, we would be requireditake customary representations and warrantiest abioh loans to the loan purchaser. Our
residential mortgage loan sale agreements reqgite tepurchase or substitute loans in

36



the event we breach a representation or warrargngbp the loan purchaser. In addition, we mayedogired to repurchase loans as a result of
borrower fraud or in the event of early paymentadé#éfon a mortgage loan. Likewise, we are requicectpurchase or substitute loans if we
breach a representation or warranty in connectidim eur securitizations. The remedies availabla purchaser of mortgage loans are gene
broader than those available to us against thénatigg broker or correspondent. Further, if a paser enforces its remedies against us, we
may not be able to enforce the remedies we havesighe sellers. The repurchased loans typicaltyanly be financed at a steep discount to
their repurchase price, if at all. They are alqudally sold at a significant discount to the urppfincipal balance. Significant repurchase
activity could harm our cash flow, results of opnas, financial condition and business prospects.

We may enter into derivative contracts that could gpose us to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualificatias a REIT, part of our investment strategy involetering into derivative contracts that could
require us to fund cash payments in certain cirtantes. These potential payments will be continiebilities and therefore may not appear
on our statement of financial condition. Our abitib fund these contingent liabilities will depeowl the liquidity of our assets and access to
capital at the time, and the need to fund theséragant liabilities could adversely impact our firedal condition.

Our Manager’s due diligence of potential investmerg may not reveal all of the liabilities associatedith such investments and may not
reveal other weaknesses in such investments, whicbuld lead to investment losses.

Before making an investment, our Managsesses the strengths and weaknesses of thextmigin issuer of the asset as well as other
factors and characteristics that are material égoirformance of the investment. In making thessssent and otherwise conducting customary
due diligence, our Manager relies on resourcedablaito it and, in some cases, an investigatiothby parties. This process is particularly
important with respect to newly formed originatordssuers with unrated and other subordinatedtras of MBS and ABS because there may
be little or no information publicly available alidhese entities and investments. There can baswrance that our Manager’s due diligence
process will uncover all relevant facts or that anestment will be successful.

Our real estate investments are subject to risks ptcular to real property.

We own assets secured by real estatenagcown real estate directly in the future, eittiough direct investments or upon a default of
mortgage loans. Real estate investments are subjeatious risks, including:

. acts of God, including earthquakes, floods andratiagural disasters, which may result in uninsuosdes

. acts of war or terrorism, including the consequsrafderrorist attacks, such as those that occume8eptember 11, 20C

. adverse changes in national and local economicrearlet conditions

. changes in governmental laws and regulations, |figalicies and zoning ordinances and the relatestiscof compliance with law
and regulations, fiscal policies and ordinan

. costs of remediation and liabilities associatedheitvironmental conditions such as indoor mold;

. the potential for uninsured or un~insured property losse

If any of these or similar events occitrgjay reduce our return from an affected propertinvestment and reduce or eliminate our
ability to make distributions to you.

We may be exposed to environmental liabilities witlmespect to properties to which we take title.

In the course of our business, we mag tdle to real estate, and, if we do take title, @ould be subject to environmental liabilitiestwit
respect to these properties. In such a circumstareenay be held liable to a governmental entityodhird parties for property damage,
personal injury, investigation, and clean-up castsirred by these parties in connection with envinental contamination, or may be required
to investigate or clean up hazardous or toxic sutzss, or chemical releases at a property. The assbciated with investigation or
remediation activities could be substantial. If ewer become subject to significant environmenéddilities, our business, financial condition,
liquidity, and results of operations could be miar and adversely affected.
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We may in the future invest in RMBS collateralizedby subprime mortgage loans, which are subject to treased risks.

We may in the future invest in RMBS battks collateral pools of subprime residential mageg loans. “Subprimehortgage loans ref
to mortgage loans that have been originated ugidgmwriting standards that are less restrictive the@ underwriting requirements used as
standards for other first and junior lien mortgémpgn purchase programs, such as the programs ofd-Btae and Freddie Mac. These lower
standards include mortgage loans made to borrowesisg imperfect or impaired credit histories (uaihg outstanding judgments or prior
bankruptcies), mortgage loans where the amouriteofdan at origination is 80% or more of the vadfiehe mortgage property, mortgage loans
made to borrowers with low credit scores, mortgages made to borrowers who have other debt tipaésents a large portion of their income
and mortgage loans made to borrowers whose incemetirequired to be disclosed or verified. Duedonomic conditions, including
increased interest rates and lower home pricesgli®s aggressive lending practices, subprime gaget loans have in recent periods
experienced increased rates of delinquency, foseody bankruptcy and loss, and they are likelyotatioue to experience delinquency,
foreclosure, bankruptcy and loss rates that areenjgand that may be substantially higher, thasdhexperienced by mortgage loans
underwritten in a more traditional manner. Thugause of the higher delinquency rates and lossesiated with subprime mortgage loans,
the performance of RMBS backed by subprime mortdaaes in which we may invest could be correspogigiadversely affected, which
could adversely impact our results of operatioimgrfcial condition and business.

Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which guarantee the Agey RMBS in which we may invest, were recently plad into the
conservatorship of the Federal Housing Finance Agey.

The interest and principal payments wgeekto receive on some of the mortgage-backedigestin which we intend to invest will be
guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, or Ginnie.Mae recent economic challenges in the residantiagage market have affected the
financial results and stock values of Fannie MakFareddie Mac. In the second quarter of 2008, Batimie Mae and Freddie Mac reported
substantial losses. Fannie Mae reported a nebfdd2.3 billion in the second quarter 2008, comgdawéth a first quarter 2008 net loss of $2.2
billion. Fannie Mae recently stated that it expeabtsdownturn in the housing market and the disoagh the mortgage and credit markets to
continue to adversely affect their financial resutt 2008 and 2009. Freddie Mac has also reported Bss of $821 million in the second
quarter 2008, compared with a first quarter 2008ass of $151 million.

Since June 30, 2008, there have beerased market concerns about Freddie Mac and Fisfagis ability to withstand future credit
losses associated with securities held in theiestment portfolios, and on which they provide goteas, without the direct support of the
federal government. Recently, the government patbeetHousing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008 nkie Mae and Freddie Mac have
recently been placed into the conservatorship@fderal Housing Finance Agency, or FHFA, thalefal regulator, pursuant to its powers
under The Federal Housing Finance Regulatory Refactrof 2008, a part of the Housing and Economicd¥ery Act of 2008. As the
conservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, the FE&i#trols and directs the operations of Fannie BtakFreddie Mac and may (1) take
over the assets of and operate Fannie Mae andieristdat with all the powers of the shareholders,dinectors, and the officers of Fannie Mae
and Freddie Mac and conduct all business of Fadaie and Freddie Mac; (2) collect all obligationsl amoney due to Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac; (3) perform all functions of Fannie Mae aneédtie Mac which are consistent with the conseri@appointment; (4) preserve and
conserve the assets and property of Fannie Ma€&rtilie Mac; and (5) contract for assistance ffillinty any function, activity, action or
duty of the conservator.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conséovaf Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, (i) the U.S. &#pent of Treasury and FHFA have
entered into preferred stock purchase agreemetwgebe the U.S. Department of Treasury and Fannie &fta Freddie Mac pursuant to which
the U.S. Department of Treasury will ensure thahezf Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac maintains a pesitet worth; (ii) the U.S. Department
of Treasury has established a new secured lendatit ¢acility which will be available to Fannie MaFreddie Mac, and the Federal Home
Loan Banks, which is intended to serve as a ligquidackstop, which will be available until Decem2@&09; and (iii) the U.S. Department of
Treasury has initiated a temporary program to pasefRMBS issued by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.nGheshighly fluid and evolving
nature of these events, it is unclear how our lassiwill be impacted. Based upon the further agtndi the U.S. government or market
response to developments at Fannie Mae or Freddie &ur business could be adversely impacted.
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Exchange rate fluctuations may limit gains or resulin losses.

If we directly or indirectly hold assetsnominated in currencies other than U.S. doliaeswill be exposed to currency risk that may
adversely affect performance. Changes in the Lblards rate of exchange with other currencies ratigct the value of investments in our
portfolio and the income that we receive in respécuch investments. In addition, we may incut€@s connection with conversion between
various currencies, which may reduce our net incanteaccordingly may reduce our ability to payribstions to you.

Risks Related To Our Common Stock

Annaly owns a significant percentage of our commostock, which could result in significant influenceover the outcome of matters
submitted to the vote of our stockholders.

As of June 30, 2008, Annaly owned apprately 9.6% of our outstanding common stock, witelcentage excludes unvested shares of
our restricted common stock granted to our exeeutfficers and employees of our Manager or itdiaffis, and is expected to continue to own
a similar percentage following this offering ané tirivate offering made to it immediately afterstbifering, excluding shares to be sold
pursuant to the underwriters’ exercise of theirraltetment option and unvested shares of restristedk granted to our executive officers and
employees of our Manager or its affiliates. Assute Annaly may have significant influence oves thutcome of matters submitted to a vot
our stockholders, including the election of ouedtors or transactions involving a change in cdnfrioe interests of Annaly may conflict with,
or differ from, the interests of other holders af common stock, particularly as Annaly is alsat@é creditor of ours. So long as Annaly
continues to own a significant percentage of shafesir common stock, it will significantly influee all our corporate decisions submitted to
our stockholders for approval, regardless of whetieterminate the management agreement with ounalger.

We issued common stock on the New York Stock Exchga on November 16, 2007.

Our shares of common stock are newlyedsecurities for which there was no trading mapkietr to November 2007. The market price
of our common stock may be highly volatile and ddoé subject to wide fluctuations as has beendbe due to the adverse conditions in the
mortgage industry and credit markets. There isssui@nce that our stock price will not continuexperience significant volatility in the
current environment.

Some additional factors that could negatively dftea share price includ

. actual or anticipated variations in our quartegeating results

. changes in our earnings estimates or publicatioes#arch reports about us or the real estatetinycl
. increases in market interest rates that may leachpgers of our shares to demand a highery

. changes in market valuations of similar compar

. changes in valuations of our ass:

. adverse market reaction to any increased indebssdme incur in the futur

. additions or departures of our Manée's key personne

. actions by stockholder

. speculation in the press or investment communitg;

. general market and economic conditic

Common stock eligible for future sale may have advse effects on our share price.

We cannot predict the effect, if anyfutfire sales of common stock, or the availabilitgloares for future sales, on the market price of
the common stock. Sales of substantial amountsmhwon stock, or the perception that such salesiamedur, may adversely affect prevailing
market prices for the common stock. At June 30820@ had 38,999,850 shares of common stock issngdutstanding. In addition, Annaly
owned approximately 9.6% of our outstanding shafemmmon stock as of June 30, 2008, which pergengxcludes unvested shares of our
restricted common stock granted to our executifieers and employees of our Manager or its af@&atOur equity incentive plan provides for
grants of restricted common stock and other echéised awards up to an
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aggregate of 8% of the issued and outstanding sludireur common stock (on a fully diluted basis arauding shares sold to Annaly
immediately after this offering and concurrentlyttwihe initial public offering and shares sold puanst to the underwriters’ exercise of their
overallotment option) at the time of the award,jeabto a ceiling of 40,000,000 shares availabtédsuance under the plan. On January 2,
2008, our executive officers and other employeesuofManager and our independent directors wenetgdaas a group, 1,301,000 shares of
our restricted common stock. The restricted comstook granted to our executive officers and otimepleyees of our Manager or its affiliates
vests in equal installments on the first businessaf each fiscal quarter over a period of 10 yéaginning on January 2, 2008, of which
73,600 shares vested and 6,713 shares were fdrthiréng the six months ended June 30, 2008. Téteiceed common stock granted to our
executive officers and other employees of our Manayg its affiliates that remain outstanding anel @mvested will fully vest on the death of
the individual. The 1,227,400 shares of our red@ommon stock granted to our executive offiegrs other employees of our Manager or its
affiliates and to our independent directors thatams unvested as of June 30, 2008 representsxamaitely 0.8% of the issued and
outstanding shares of our common stock (on a flillyted basis after giving effect to the shareséskin this offering and including shares t
sold to Annaly immediately after this offering lxcluding any shares to be sold pursuant to theceeeof the underwriters’ overallotment
option). We will not make distributions on sharésestricted stock that have not vested. We, Annahyl our executive officers and our
directors have agreed with the underwriters to-a@&plock-up period (subject to extensions), meguirat, until the end of the 90-day lock-up
period, we and they will not, subject to certaiceptions, sell or transfer any shares of commockstothout the prior consent of Merrill

Lynch & Co, which we refer to as Merrill Lynch. M@ Lynch may, in its sole discretion, at any tiffrem time to time and without notice,
waive the terms and conditions of the lock-up agremts to which it is a party. Additionally, Anndias agreed with us to a further lock-up
period in connection with the shares purchased tuyady concurrently with our initial public offerirtpat will expire at the earlier of (i)
November 15, 2010 or (ii) the termination of themagement agreement. Annaly has further agreedusitb a further loc-up period in
connection with the shares purchased by Annaly idiately after this offering that will expire at tearlier of (i) the date which is three years
following the date of this prospectus or (ii) tleenhination of the management agreement. When tikeup periods expire, these common
shares will become eligible for sale, in some casigect to the requirements of Rule 144 undefStheurities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Securities Act, which are described under “Shatgglie for Future Sale.” The market price of omnemon stock may decline significantly
when the restrictions on resale by certain of toclholders lapse. Sales of substantial amountsmimon stock or the perception that such
sales could occur may adversely affect the prengaitnarket price for our common stock.

There is a risk that you may not receive distributons or that distributions may not grow over time.

We intend to make distributions on a tgidy basis out of assets legally available thar&fmur stockholders in amounts such that all or
substantially all of our REIT taxable income in legear is distributed. We have not establishedrarmim distribution payment level and our
ability to pay distributions may be adversely aféetby a number of factors, including the risk éastdescribed in this prospectus. All
distributions will be made at the discretion of tward of directors and will depend on our earnigs financial condition, maintenance of
REIT status and other factors as our board of tireanay deem relevant from time to time. Amongftieors that could adversely affect our
results of operations and impair our ability to ghstributions to our stockholders are:

. the profitability of the investment of the net peedls of the initial public offering and this offegi

. our ability to make profitable investmen

. margin calls or other expenses that reduce our ftash

. defaults in our asset portfolio or decreases irvidiee of our portfolio; an

. the fact that anticipated operating expense lewalg not prove accurate, as actual results mayfrvany estimates

A change in any one of these factorsaaffiect our ability to make distributions. We cahassure you that we will achieve investment
results that will allow us to make a specified lesfecash distributions or year-to-year increasesdsh distributions.
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Market interest rates may have an effect on the trding value of our shares

One of the factors that investors maysader in deciding whether to buy or sell our shasesur distribution rate as a percentage of our
share price relative to market interest rates.dfkat interest rates increase, prospective investay demand a higher distribution rate or seek
alternative investments paying higher dividendg@rest. As a result, interest rate fluctuationd eapital market conditions can affect the
market value of our shares. For instance, if irsierates rise, it is likely that the market prideaor shares will decrease as market rates on
interest-bearing securities, such as bonds, inereas

Investing in our shares may involve a high degreef aisk.

The investments we make in accordancle atit investment objectives may result in a higtoant of risk when compared to alternative
investment options and volatility or loss of pripai. Our investments may be highly speculative aggressive, are subject to credit risk,
interest rate, and market value risks, among otlaers therefore an investment in our shares map@&asuitable for someone with lower risk
tolerance.

Broad market fluctuations could negatively impact he market price of our common stock.

The stock market has experienced extrgtice and volume fluctuations that have affectedrttarket price of many companies in
industries similar or related to ours and that Hasen unrelated to these companies’ operating ipeaitces. These broad market fluctuations
could reduce the market price of our common stBakthermore, our operating results and prospecislmdelow the expectations of public
market analysts and investors or may be lower thase of companies with comparable market capétdins, which could lead to a material
decline in the market price of our common stock.

Future sales of shares may have adverse consequenfm investors.

We may issue additional shares in subessgqoublic offerings or private placements to ma&es investments or for other purposes. We
are not required to offer any such shares to exjsttockholders on a preemptive basis. Thereforeay not be possible for existing
stockholders to participate in such future shaseds, which may dilute the existing stockholdenteriests in us. Annaly will own
approximately 9.6% of our shares of common stocsfdlse closing of this offering and the privatag@ment made to it immediately after this
offering excluding shares to be sold pursuant ¢outhderwriters’ exercise of their overallotmentioptand unvested shares of restricted stock
granted to our executive officers and employeesuofManager or its affiliates. Annaly will be pettad, subject to the requirements of Rule
144 under the Securities Act, to sell such shapes the earlier of (i) (a) November 15, 2010 wigspect to shares acquired concurrently with
our initial public offering and (b) the date whishthree years after the date of this prospecttis wspect to shares being acquired immediately
after this offering or (ii) the termination of tihneanagement agreement.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure

Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that mayinhibit potential acquisition bids that you may corsider favorable, and the market
price of our common stock may be lower as a result.

Our charter and bylaws contain provisithag have an anti-takeover effect and inhibit angke in our board of directors. These
provisions include the following:

. There are ownership limits and restrictions on sarability and ownership in our charteffo qualify as a REIT for each
taxable year after 2007, not more than 50% of #ilgesof our outstanding stock may be owned, diyemticonstructively, by fiv:
or fewer individuals during the second half of aayendar year. In addition, our shares must befluéaléy owned by 100 or
more persons during at least 335 days of a taxedaleof 12 months or during a proportionate pad ehorter taxable year for
each taxable year after 2007. To assist us infgatisthese tests, our charter generally prohiaitg person from beneficially or
constructively owning more than 9.8% in value omier of shares, whichever is more restrictive,mf elass or series of our
outstanding capital stock. These restrictions magalirage a tender offer or other transactionsaraage in the composition of
our board of directors or control that might invela premium price for our shares or otherwise h@im best interests and any
shares issued or transferred in violation of sedftrictions being automatically transferred toustifor a charitable beneficiary,
thereby resulting in a forfeiture of the additioshhres
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. Our charter permits our board of directors to issteck with terms that may discourage a third pémyn acquiring us. Our
charter permits our board of directors to amendctiaeter without stockholder approval to incredsetotal number of authoriz
shares of stock or the number of shares of anyg caseries and to issue common or preferred staskng preferences,
conversion or other rights, voting powers, restits, limitations as to dividends or other disttibas, qualifications, or terms or
conditions of redemption as determined by our bo@hais, our board could authorize the issuancéoakswith terms and
conditions that could have the effect of discoungga takeover or other transaction in which holdérsome or a majority of our



shares might receive a premium for their shares thesther-prevailing market price of our shar

Maryland Control Share Acquisition A. Maryland law provides that “control shares” af@poration acquired in a “control
share acquisition” will have no voting rights extépthe extent approved by a vote of two-thirdshef votes eligible to be cast
on the matter under the Maryland Control Share Agition Act. “Control sharestneans voting shares of stock that, if aggrec¢
with all other shares of stock owned by the acguirén respect of which the acquirer is able tereise or direct the exercise of
voting power (except solely by a revocable proxyguld entitle the acquirer to exercise voting povmeglecting directors within
one of the following ranges of voting power: onetteor more but less than one-third, one-third orerbut less than a majority,
or a majority or more of all voting power. A “coatrshare acquisition” means the acquisition of oarghares, subject to certain
exceptions.

If voting rights or control shares acquired in a&trol share acquisition are not approved at a $toiclers meeting, or if the
acquiring person does not deliver an acquiringgrestatement as required by the Maryland Contratr&RAcquisition Act, then,
subject to certain conditions and limitations, if&ier may redeem any or all of the control shimefair value. If voting rights

of such control shares are approved at a stockisfdeeting and the acquirer becomes entitled @ &ohajority of the shares of
stock entitled to vote, all other stockholders reagrcise appraisal rights. Our bylaws contain aipron exempting acquisitions
of our shares from the Maryland Control Share Asigioin Act. However, our board of directors may aheur bylaws in the
future to repeal or modify this exemption, in whitdise any control shares of our company acquiradciontrol share acquisition
will be subject to the Maryland Control Share Aaition Act.

Business Combinatiot. Under Maryland law"business combinatio” between a Maryland corporation and an intere
stockholder or an affiliate of an interested stadler are prohibited for five years after the mestent date on which the
interested stockholder becomes an interested swtadth These business combinations include a metgasolidation, share
exchange or, in circumstances specified in theitgtaain asset transfer or issuance or reclassiiicaf equity securities. An
interested stockholder is defined

o] any person who beneficially owns 10% or more ofubng power of the corporati’s shares; ¢

o] an affiliate or associate of the corporation wharay time within the tw-year period before the date in questi
was the beneficial owner of 10% or more of thengipower of the then outstanding voting stock ef th
corporation

A person is not an interested stockholder undestéite if the board of directors approved in adesthe transaction by whi
such person otherwise would have become an ingetesdckholder. However, in approving a transactioa board of directors
may provide that its approval is subject to comqi at or after the time of approval, with anyrterand conditions determined
by the board. After the five-year prohibition, amysiness combination between the Maryland corpmratnd an interested
stockholder generally must be recommended by thedbaf directors of the corporation and approvedhegyaffirmative vote of
at least:

o] 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holdersut§tanding shares of voting stock of the corporatand
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o] two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by hold#ngoting stock of the corporation, other than sis
held by the interested stockholder with whom ohwithose affiliate the business combination is to be
effected or held by an affiliate or associate @fititerested stockholde

These super-majority vote requirements do not afiphe corporation’s common stockholders receiveiaimum
price, as defined under Maryland law, for theirrglsan the form of cash or other consideratiorhangame form as
previously paid by the interested stockholder feishares. The statute permits various exemptions its
provisions, including business combinations thatestempted by the board of directors before the timt the
interested stockholder becomes an interested sttatdsh Our board of directors has adopted a reisoluthich
provides that any business combination betweemdsay other person is exempted from the provisidribe
Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act, providedtithe business combination is first approved leytibard of
directors. This resolution, however, may be alteretepealed in whole or in part at any time. I§ttesolution is
repealed, or the board of directors does not otiserapprove a business combination, this statutedisaourage
others from trying to acquire control of us andréase the difficulty of consummating any off

. Staggered boar. Our board of directors is divided into three sksof directors. The current terms of the direx
expire in 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively. Doecof each class are chosen for three-year tepms the
expiration of their current terms, and each year dass of directors is elected by the stockholdee staggered
terms of our directors may reduce the possibilftg tender offer or an attempt at a change in obrgven though a
tender offer or change in control might be in ybast interest:

. Our charter and bylaws contain other possible -takeover provision. Our charter and bylaws contain otl
provisions that may have the effect of delayindedéng or preventing a change in control of usha removal of
existing directors and, as a result, could preyentfrom being paid a premium for your common stogkr the



then- prevailing market price. See “DescriptiorCafpital Stock” and “Certain Provisions of Maryla@Géneral
Corporation Law and Our Charter and Byle”

Our rights and your rights to take action against air directors and officers are limited, which couldlimit your recourse in
the event of actions not in your best interest:

Our charter limits the liability of ouirdctors and officers to us and you for money dagsagxcept for liability resulting
from:

. actual receipt of an improper benefit or profinioney, property or services;

. a final judgment based upon a finding of active daliberate dishonesty by the director or offi¢eattwas materie
to the cause of action adjudica

for which Maryland law prohibits such exemptionrfrdiability.

In addition, our charter authorizes ushtigate our company to indemnify our present famcher directors and officers fi
actions taken by them in those capacities to thdmam extent permitted by Maryland law. Our bylargguire us to indemnify
each present or former director or officer, to ti@ximum extent permitted by Maryland law, in théethse of any proceeding to
which he or she is made, or threatened to be naaplarty because of his or her service to us. litiaddwe may be obligated to
fund the defense costs incurred by our directodsadficers. See “Certain Provisions of Maryland @&ext Corporation Law and
Our Charter and Bylav—Limitation on Liability of Directors and Officerdndemnification and Advance of Expen¢’

Tax Risks
Your investment has various federal income tax risk

This summary of certain tax risks is bieai to the federal tax risks addressed below. Aaltt risks or issues may exist
that are not addressed in this prospectus andthéd affect the federal tax treatment of us or.y@ecause this prospectus was
written in connection with the marketing of our amn stock, it is not intended to be used and cabeatsed by you to avoid
penalties that may be imposed on stockholders uhddnternal Revenue Code, or the Code. We styangle you to review
carefully the discussion under “Certain Federabme Tax Considerations” and to seek advice basemwonparticular
circumstances from an independent tax ad\
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concerning the effects of federal, state and lowme tax law on an investment in our common stowk on your individual tax situation.
Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to frego otherwise attractive opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT for federal incona& purposes, we must continually satisfy variogssteegarding the sources of our income, the
nature and diversification of our assets, the arteowe distribute to stockholders and the ownershipur stock. To meet these tests, we me
required to forego investments we might otherwis&ken We may be required to make distributions 10 gbdisadvantageous times or wher
do not have funds readily available for distribatidhus, compliance with the REIT requirements tiaigler our investment performance.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to lguidate otherwise attractive investments.

To qualify as a REIT, we generally mussw@re that at the end of each calendar quarteaat ¥5% of the value of our total assets
consists of cash, cash items, government secuaitidgjualified REIT real estate assets, includergain mortgage loans and mortgage-backed
securities. The remainder of our investment in gdes (other than government securities and qyialif real estate assets) generally cannot
include more than 10% of the outstanding votingigées of any one issuer or more than 10% of thel tvalue of the outstanding securities of
any one issuer. In addition, in general, no moaa th% of the value of our assets (other than gorent securities and qualifying real estate
assets) can consist of the securities of any aueisand no more than 25% of the value of out s&teurities can be represented by securities
of one or more TRSs. See “Certain Federal IncomeQansiderations—Taxation of Our Company—Asset et we fail to comply with
these requirements at the end of any quarter, wat caurect the failure within 30 days after the efiduch calendar quarter or qualify for
certain statutory relief provisions to avoid losimgr REIT status and suffering adverse tax consezpse As a result, we may be required to
liquidate from our portfolio otherwise attractivevestments. These actions could have the effeetchfcing our income and amounts available
for distribution to you.

Potential characterization of distributions or gainon sale may be treated as unrelated business taxalincome to tax-exempt investors.

If (1) all or a portion of our assets aubject to the rules relating to taxable mortgagels, (2) we are a “pension-held REIT,” (3) a tax-
exempt stockholder has incurred debt to purchad®lodrour common stock, or (4) the residual ReghtesMortgage Investment Conduit
interests, or REMICs, we buy generate “excess #igfuincome,” then a portion of the distributionsand, in the case of a stockholder
described in clause (3), gains realized on thecfademmon stock by such tax-exempt stockholder begubject to federal income tax as
unrelated business taxable income under the IftB®zenue Code. See “Certain Federal Income Tasiderations—Taxation of Our
Company—Taxable Mortgage Pools.”

Classification of a securitization or financing armngement we enter into as a taxable mortgage poawd subject us or certain of you to
increased taxation.

We intend to structure our securitizataom financing arrangements as to not create dlkaxaortgage pool. However, if we have
borrowings with two or more maturities and (1) tad®rrowings are secured by mortgages or mortgagkell securities and (2) the payments
made on the borrowings are related to the paymentsved on the underlying assets, then the bongsvand the pool of mortgages or
mortgage-backed securities to which such borrowmiegge may be classified as a taxable mortgagewpwer the Internal Revenue Code. If
any part of our investments were to be treatedtazable mortgage pool, then our REIT status waowldbe impaired, but a portion of the
taxable income we recognize may, under regulatioh® issued by the Treasury Department, be claizet as “excess inclusion” income
and allocated among our stockholders to the extieahd generally in proportion to the distributiome make to each stockholder. Any excess
inclusion income would:

. not be allowed to be offset by a stockho’s net operating losse
. be subject to a tax as unrelated business incomstidckholder were a -exempt stockholde
. be subject to the application of federal incomewétkholding at the maximum rate (without reductfon any otherwise

applicable income tax treaty) with respect to amieatiocable to foreign stockholders; ¢
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. be taxable (at the highest corporate tax rateytoather than to you, to the extent the excedasion income relates to stock
held by disqualified organizations (generally, tsempt companies not subject to tax on unrelatsthbas income, including
governmental organization:

Failure to qualify as a REIT would subject us to feleral income tax, which would reduce the cash avaible for distribution to you.

We intend to operate in a manner thattended to cause us to qualify as a REIT for febi@come tax purposes commencing with our
taxable year ending on December 31, 2007. Howdherfederal income tax laws governing REITs aresgmély complex, and interpretations
of the federal income tax laws governing qualificatas a REIT are limited. Qualifying as a REITuigs us to meet various tests regardiny
nature of our assets and our income, the owneddtopr outstanding stock, and the amount of ouritistions on an ongoing basis. While we
intend to operate so that we will qualify as a REJiwen the highly complex nature of the rules goiregy REITS, the ongoing importance of
factual determinations, including the tax treatnmntertain investments we may make, and the pilisgibf future changes in our
circumstances, no assurance can be given that Ieongualify for any particular year. If we fad gualify as a REIT in any calendar year and
we do not qualify for certain statutory relief prgiens, we would be required to pay federal incaaxeon our taxable income. We might need
to borrow money or sell assets to pay that tax. g2ayment of income tax would decrease the amouatioincome available for distribution to
you. Furthermore, if we fail to maintain our quiliftion as a REIT and we do not qualify for certstiatutory relief provisions, we no long
would be required to distribute substantially dlbar REIT taxable income to our stockholders. W@sleur failure to qualify as a REIT were
excused under federal tax laws, we would be disipchifrom taxation as a REIT for the four taxalkars following the year during which
qualification was lost.

Failure to make required distributions would subjed us to tax, which would reduce the cash availabl®r distribution to you.

To qualify as a REIT, we must distribtdeour stockholders each calendar year at least®@08ar REIT taxable income (including
certain items of non-cash income), determined witlegard to the deduction for dividends paid axawgling net capital gain. To the extent
that we satisfy the 90% distribution requirement, distribute less than 100% of our taxable incowe will be subject to federal corporate
income tax on our undistributed income. In additiwe will incur a 4% nondeductible excise tax oa #mount, if any, by which our
distributions in any calendar year are less tharstim of:

. 85% of our REIT ordinary income for that ye
. 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for thaageand
. any undistributed taxable income from prior ye

We intend to distribute our REIT taxalsleome to our stockholders in a manner intendeshtisfy the 90% distribution requirement and
to avoid both corporate income tax and the 4% nduadiile excise tax. However, there is no requinettieat TRSs distribute their after-tax
net income to their parent REIT or their stockhadd®©ur taxable income may substantially exceechetiincome as determined based on
GAAP because, for example, realized capital logsk®e deducted in determining our GAAP net incqrnet may not be deductible in
computing our taxable income. In addition, we ntayest in assets that generate taxable income esexaf economic income or in advance of
the corresponding cash flow from the assets. Texent that we generate such non-cash taxablenedo a taxable year, we may incur
corporate income tax and the 4% nondeductible exeis on that income if we do not distribute suatoime to our stockholders in that year
a result of the foregoing, we may generate lesls flaw than taxable income in a particular yearthat event, we may be required to use cash
reserves, incur debt, or liquidate non-cash asdetses or at times that we regard as unfavotatdatisfy the distribution requirement and to
avoid corporate income tax and the 4% nondeductibbése tax in that year. Moreover, our abilitydistribute cash is restricted by our
financing facilities

Ownership limitations may restrict change of contrd or business combination opportunities in which ya might receive a premium for
their shares.

In order for us to qualify as a REIT &ach taxable year after 2007, no more than 50%lurevof our outstanding capital stock may be
owned, directly or indirectly, by five or fewer iiwiluals during the last half of any calendar yéardividuals” for this purpose include natural
persons, private foundations, some employee
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benefit plans and trusts, and some charitablestr@ist preserve our REIT qualification, our chagenerally prohibits any person from directly
or indirectly owning more than 9.8% in value omimmber of shares, whichever is more restrictivgryf class or series of the outstanding
shares of our capital stock. This ownership lindtacould have the effect of discouraging a takea@veother transaction in which holders of
our common stock might receive a premium for teaares over the then prevailing market price orctvhiolders might believe to be otherw
in their best interests.

Our ownership of and relationship with any TRS whid we may form or acquire in the future will be limited, and a failure to comply
with the limits would jeopardize our REIT status and may result in the application of a 100% excise ta

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stoclook or more TRSs. A TRS may earn income that woatde qualifying income if earned
directly by the parent REIT. Both the subsidiarg éime REIT must jointly elect to treat the subgiglias a TRS. Overall, no more than 25% of
the value of a REIE assets may consist of stock or securities ofoomeore TRSs. A TRS will pay federal, state andlascome tax at regul
corporate rates on any income that it earns. litiaddthe TRS rules impose a 100% excise tax otametransactions between a TRS and its
parent REIT that are not conducted on an arm’stlebgsis. The TRS that we may form in the futureigay federal, state and local income
tax on its taxable income, and its after-tax nebime would be available for distribution to us tmatuld not be required to be distributed to us.
We anticipate that the aggregate value of the TtB&sand securities owned by us will be less tha¥h f the value of our total assets
(including the TRS stock and securities). Furtheemae will monitor the value of our investmentoiur TRSs to ensure compliance with the
rule that no more than 25% of the value of ourtgssay consist of TRS stock and securities (whschpiplied at the end of each calendar
quarter). In addition, we will scrutinize all of ptransactions with taxable REIT subsidiaries teuga that they are entered into on arm’s-length
terms to avoid incurring the 100% excise tax désdtiabove. There can be no assurance, howevewehail be able to comply with the 25%
limitation discussed above or to avoid applicatidthe 100% excise tax discussed above.

We could fail to qualify as a REIT or we could becme subject to a penalty tax if income we recognifeom certain investments that are
treated or could be treated as equity interests ia foreign corporation exceeds 5% of our gross incoenin a taxable year.

We may invest in securities, such as silibated interests in certain CDO offerings, thrattaeated or could be treated for federal (and
applicable state and local) corporate income tap@aes as equity interests in foreign corporati@agegories of income that qualify for the
95% gross income test include dividends, interedtcertain other enumerated classes of passivenecdnder certain circumstances, the
federal income tax rules concerning controlled ifgmecorporations and passive foreign investmentpanmes require that the owner of an
equity interest in a foreign corporation includecamts in income without regard to the owner’s rptef any distributions from the foreign
corporation. Amounts required to be included iroime under those rules are technically neither &diualends nor any of the other
enumerated categories of passive income specifidtki 95% gross income test. Furthermore, theme idear precedent with respect to the
qualification of such income under the 95% grossine test. Due to this uncertainty, we intendrtatlour direct investment in securities that
are or could be treated as equity interests irrgiga corporation such that the sum of the amowetsire required to include in income with
respect to such securities and other amounts cefjnatifying income do not exceed 5% of our gros®ime. We cannot assure you that we
be successful in this regard. To avoid any risfadiing the 95% gross income test, we may be reglio invest only indirectly, through a
domestic TRS, in any securities that are or coelddnsidered to be equity interests in a foreigpa@tion. This, of course, will result in any
income recognized from any such investment to Ibgestito federal income tax in the hands of the T®sch may, in turn, reduce our yield
on the investment.

Liquidation of our assets may jeopardize our REIT galification.

To qualify as a REIT, we must comply wilyuirements regarding our assets and our soaféesome. If we are compelled to liquidate
our investments to repay obligations to our lendeesmay be unable to comply with these requiresjaritimately jeopardizing our
qualification as a REIT, or we may be subject 8% tax on any resultant gain if we sell assetsainsactions that are considered to be
prohibited transactions.

46




The tax on prohibited transactions will limit our ability to engage in transactions, including certairmethods of securitizing mortgage
loans that would be treated as sales for federal @@me tax purposes.

A REIT’s net income from prohibited tracsions is subject to a 100% tax. In general, fitdd transactions are sales or other
dispositions of property, other than foreclosureperty, but including mortgage loans, held prinyaidr sale to customers in the ordinary
course of business. We might be subject to thisftae sold or securitized our assets in a mann&trwas treated as a sale for federal income
tax purposes. Therefore, to avoid the prohibitaddactions tax, we may choose not to engage iaicevdles of assets at the REIT level and
may securitize assets only in transactions thatraeted as financing transactions and not as &al¢ax purposes even though such
transactions may not be the optimal execution preaax basis. We could avoid any prohibited tratisas tax concerns by engaging in
securitization transactions through a TRS, sulifecertain limitations described above. To the eitkat we engage in such activities through
domestic TRSs, the income associated with suchitesi will be subject to federal (and applicabigte and local) corporate income tax.

Characterization of the repurchase agreements we &ar into to finance our investments as sales for tapurposes rather than as secured
lending transactions would adversely affect our altity to qualify as a REIT.

We have entered into and will enter irgpurchase agreements with a variety of counteesatid achieve our desired amount of leverage
for the assets in which we invest. When we enterarepurchase agreement, we generally sell assets counterparty to the agreement and
receive cash from the counterparty. The counteypsuabligated to resell the assets back to useaethd of the term of the transaction, which is
typically 30 to 90 days. We believe that for fedémaome tax purposes we will be treated as theeswifithe assets that are the subject of
repurchase agreements and that the repurchaseregrisewill be treated as secured lending transastiotwithstanding that such agreement
may transfer record ownership of the assets tadl@terparty during the term of the agreemens ftassible, however, that the IRS could
successfully assert that we did not own these sigseing the term of the repurchase agreementghich case we could fail to qualify as a
REIT.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our abil ity to hedge effectively.

The REIT provisions of the Internal RewverCode substantially limit our ability to hedgertgage-backed securities and related
borrowings. Under these provisions, our annualgimesome from non-qualifying hedges, together sitly other income not generated from
qualifying real estate assets, cannot exceed 258aradinnual gross income. In addition, our aggeegabss income from non-qualifying
hedges, fees, and certain other non-qualifyingcsucannot exceed 5% of our annual gross incoma.r@sult, we might have to limit our use
of advantageous hedging techniques or implemesethedges through a TRS, which we may form inah&d. This could increase the cos
our hedging activities or expose us to greatesradsociated with changes in interest rates thanowsd otherwise want to bear.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regulaty tax changes that could reduce the market pricef our common stock.

At any time, the federal income tax lawwsegulations governing REITs or the administmiivterpretations of those laws or regulations
may be amended. We cannot predict when or if amyfaderal income tax law, regulation or administ@interpretation, or any amendmer
any existing federal income tax law, regulatioradministrative interpretation, will be adopted, prdgated or become effective and any such
law, regulation or interpretation may take effetoactively. We and you could be adversely affétte any such change in, or any new,
federal income tax law, regulation or administratinterpretation.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for the educed tax rates.

Legislation enacted in 2003 generallyucs the maximum tax rate for dividends payabotoestic stockholders that are individuals,
trusts and estates from 38.6% to 15% (through 2@i@)dends payable by REITs, however, are generail eligible for the reduced rates.
Although this legislation does not adversely affidet taxation of REITs or dividends paid by REIF& more favorable rates applicable to
regular corporate dividends could cause investdrs are individuals, trusts and estates to perdawestments in REITs to be relatively less
attractive than investments in stock of non-RElTpooations that pay dividends, which could adversdiect the value of the stock of REITS,
including our common stock.
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FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements iis fiiospectus that are subject to risks and unoé&dsi These forward-looking statements
include information about possible or assumed &utesults of our business, financial conditionyiliity, results of operations, plans and
objectives. When we use the words “believe,” “expeéanticipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “continue,”ihtend,” “should,” “may,” “would,” “will”
or similar expressions, we intend to identify forddooking statements. Statements regarding tHewiahg subjects, among others, are
forward-looking by their nature:

. our business and investment strate

. our projected financial and operating rest

. our ability to maintain existing financing arrangemts, obtain future financing arrangements andetmas of such arrangemen
. general volatility of the securities markets in ethive invest

. our expected investmen

. changes in the value of our investme

. interest rate mismatches between our mort-backed securities and our borrowings used to fuetd purchase:
. changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayatst;

. effects of interest rate caps on our adjus-rate mortgag-backed securitie:

. rates of default or decreased recovery rates omgastments

. prepayments of the mortgage and other loans uridgrbur mortgag-backed or other as-backed securitie:

. the degree to which our hedging strategies mayay mot protect us from interest rate volatili

. impact of and changes in governmental regulatittnslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simikters;

. availability of investment opportunities in reatage-related and other securitie

. availability of qualified personne

. estimates relating to our ability to make distribns to you in the future

. our understanding of our competitic

. market trends in our industry, interest rates,dblet securities markets or the general economy

. use of the proceeds of this offerit

The forward-looking statements are basedur beliefs, assumptions and expectations ofudure performance, taking into account all
information currently available to us. You shoulnt place undue reliance on these forward-lookiatestents. These beliefs, assumptions and
expectations can change as a result of many pessifeints or factors, not all of which are knownisoSome of these factors are described in
this prospectus under the headings “Prospectus auyrihfiRisk Factors,” “Management’s Discussion aialysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” and “Business.” If a chaogeurs, our business, financial condition, liquidihd results of operations may vary
materially from those expressed in our forward-lagkstatements. Any forward-looking statement speaity as of the date on which it is
made. New risks and uncertainties arise from tiongnte, and it is impossible for us to predict tha@vents or how they may affect us. Except
as required by law, we are not obligated to, andatantend to, update or revise any forward-logkétatements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that our net proceeds framphblic offering of our shares of common stodkeradeducting the underwriting discount and
our estimated offering expenses, will be approxétya$237.9 million (based on the price on the caxehis prospectus). We estimate that our
net proceeds will be approximately $273.7 millibthie underwriters exercise their overallotmeniaptn full.

Immediately after this offering, we wéktll to Annaly 11,681,415 shares of common stock fimivate offering at the same price per share
as the price per share of this public offering. bpompletion of this offering and the private offigrimmediately after this offering, Annaly
will own approximately 9.6% of our outstanding coomstock (which percentage excludes shares toldgsosuant to the exercise of the
underwriters’ overallotment option and unvestedesaf our restricted common stock granted to @acetive officers and employees of our
Manager or its affiliates). We will not pay any @mdriting fees, commissions or discounts with respe the shares we sell to Annaly. We |
to invest the net proceeds of this offering andsidle of shares to Annaly immediately after thierifig in accordance with our investment
objectives and the strategies described in thispectus. See “Business—Our Investment Strategy.”

We intend to use the net proceeds ofdtiexing to finance the acquisition of non-AgeRWIBS, Agency RMBS, prime and Alt-A
mortgage loans, CMBS, CDOs and other consumer mitnasumer ABS. Since we commenced operations ueiber 2007, we have
focused our investment activities on acquiring #@ency RMBS and on purchasing residential mortdages that have been originated by
select high-quality originators, including the ietanding operations of leading commercial bar@®ar investment portfolio at June 30, 2008
was weighted toward non-Agency RMBS. After the eonsation of this offering, we expect that over tlear term our investment portfolio
will continue to be weighted toward RMBS, subjechiaintaining our REIT qualification and our 1946tA&xemption.

We may also use the proceeds for otheergéd corporate purposes such as repayment obodisy indebtedness, working capital, and
for liquidity needs, although we presently do mdéend to use such net proceeds in the near tepaytalown our repurchase facility with
Annaly. Pending any such uses, we may invest thpnoeeeds from the sale of any securities in @gebearing short-term investments,
including money market accounts that are consistéhtour intention to qualify as a REIT, or mayeusem to reduce short term indebtedness.
These investments are expected to provide a loetereturn than we hope to achieve from investmientsir intended use of proceeds of this
offering. To the extent we raise more proceedaimdffering, we will make more investments. To thxtent we raise less proceeds in this
offering, we will make fewer investments.
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DISTRIBUTION POLICY

We have elected and intend to qualifpedaxed as a REIT for federal income tax purposesmencing with our taxable year ending on
December 31, 2007. Federal income tax law reqtiiratsa REIT distribute with respect to each yedeast 90% of its REIT taxable income,
determined without regard to the deduction fordkvids paid and excluding any net capital gainutfaash available for distribution is less
than 90% of our REIT taxable income, we could lmpied to sell assets or borrow funds to make désthibutions or we may make a portion
of the required distribution in the form of a talebtock distribution or distribution of debt seities. To the extent we distribute less than 90%
of our REIT taxable income in 2007, then we wilttiy this shortfall through throwback dividends.ewill not be required to make
distributions with respect to activities conductebugh the TRS which we may form in the futurer Fmre information, please see “Certain
Federal Income Tax Considerations—Taxation of Com@any.”

To satisfy the requirements to qualifygaREIT and generally not be subject to federabime and excise tax, we intend to make regular
quarterly distributions of all or substantially eflour REIT taxable income to holders of our conmnstock out of assets legally available
therefor. On December 20, 2007, our board of dirsadeclared a quarterly distribution of $0.9 roitlj or $0.025 per share of our common
stock. This dividend was paid on January 25, 200&dckholders of record on December 31, 2007. @rcM19, 2008, our board of directors
declared a quarterly distribution of $9.8 milliar,$0.26 per share of our common stock. This divitdeas paid on April 30, 2008 to
stockholders of record on March 31, 2008. On Jyr#9@8, our board of directors declared a quaridiribution of $6.0 million, or $0.16 per
share of our common stock. This dividend was paiduy 31, 2008 to stockholders of record on Jue2008. On September 9, 2008, we
declared the third quarter 2008 common stock cagtiethd of $0.16 per share of our common stocksTividend is payable October 31, 2(
to common shareholders of record on SeptemberQ0B.2Purchasers in this offering will not partidipén this quarterly distribution. Our
GAAP net loss for the six months ended June 308 2@#s $21.0 million and our Core Earnings were @illion. Any future distributions w
make will be at the discretion of our board of dices and will depend upon our earnings and firgrmndition, maintenance of our REIT
status, applicable provisions of the Maryland Gah€orporation Law, or MGCL, and such other fac@sour board of directors deems
relevant. Our earnings and financial condition wél affected by various factors, including theinttrest and other income from our portfolio,
our operating expenses and any other expendittogsnore information regarding risk factors thatilidomaterially adversely affect our
earnings and financial condition, please see “Riétors.”

We anticipate that our distributions gaitig will be taxable as ordinary income to youthalugh a portion of the distributions may be
designated by us as qualified dividend income pitahgain or may constitute a return of capitak Will furnish annually to each of you a
statement setting forth distributions paid durihg preceding year and their characterization asarglincome, return of capital, qualified
dividend income or capital gain. For more inforroatiplease see “Certain Federal Income Tax Coratides—Taxation of Owners.”
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PRICE RANGE OF OUR COMMON STOCK AND DISTRIBUTIONS

Our common stock began trading publiciyNobvember 16, 2007 and is traded on the New Y tokiSExchange under the trading
symbol “CIM”". As of October 23, 2008, there were &#8,683 shares of common stock issued and outataadd 82 stockholders of record.
The following table sets forth, for the periodsicaded, the high and low sales prices per shaoeio€ommon stock as reported on the New
York Stock Exchange composite tape and the castiedids declared per share of our common stock.

Stock Prices
High Low
October 1, 2008 to October 23, 2C $ 63C $ 25¢€
July 1, 2008 to September 30, 2( $ 9.1t $ 4.2€
April 1, 2008 to June 30, 20( $ 143¢ $ 8.87
January 1, 2008 to March 31, 2C $ 19.7¢ $ 11.1C
November 16, 2007 to December 31, 2! $ 17.8¢ $ 14.1C
Common Dividends
Declared Per Share
April 1, 2008 to June 30, 20( $ 0.1€
January 1, 2008 to March 31, 2C $ 0.2¢
November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2! $ 0.02t

On September 9, 2008, we declared the thiarter 2008 common stock cash dividend of $pelGshare of our common stock. This
dividend is payable October 31, 2008 to commonedi@ders of record on September 18, 2008. Purchasénis offering will not participate
in this quarterly distribution.

The closing sales price of our commomlstin October 23, 2008 was $2.70 per share.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth (1) outwad capitalization at June 30, 2008 and (2) opitafization as adjusted to reflect the effectgipf
the sale of our common stock in this offering abéfering price of $2.25 per share after deductimgunderwriterstommissions and estimat
offering expenses payable by us and (ii) the peiwdfering to Annaly of 11,681,415 shares of ounmomon stock in a private offering
immediately after this offering at the same priee ghare as the price per share of this publigioffe You should read this table together with
“Use of Proceeds” included elsewhere in this progpe

As of June 30, 200!

Actual(1) As Adjusted(1)(2)(3)(4)

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value $.01 per sh:
500,000,000 shares authorized, 38,999,850 shares
issued and outstanding actual and 160,670,098(1)

shares issued and outstanding, as adjuste $ 37¢ $ 1,59¢
Additional paic-in-capital 533,02t 795,95!
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) incc (104,98() (104,980
Accumulated defici (40,745 (40,745
Total stockholder equity $ 387,67¢ $ 651,82!

(1) Does notinclude 1,227,400 unvested shares ofatestrcommon stock granted pursuant to our equitgritive plan as of June 30, 2C
Includes 11,167 shares of restricted common stoafitgd pursuant to our equity incentive plan aluoke 30, 2008 which were forfeit
subsequent to June 30, 20

(2) Does not include $123.5 million in net realizedsles on assets sold and interest rate swaps teetlisabsequent to June 30, 2C

(3) Includes (i) 110,000,000 shares which will be saolthis offering at an offering price of $2.25 ##rare for net proceeds of
approximately $237.9 million after deducting thelarwriters’ commission and estimated offering exgesnof approximately $975
thousand and (ii) the private offering to Annalyldf,681,415 shares of our common stock in a prigtieging immediately after this
offering at the same price per share as the pecaipare of this public offering. The shares solénnaly will be sold at the offering
price without payment of any underwrit’ commission. Se“Use of Proceed”

(4) Does not include the underwrit’ option to purchase or place up to 16,500,000 autditishares

(5)  Our charter provides that we may issue up to 58000 shares of stock, consisting of up to 500@@Wshares of common stock
having a par value of $0.01 per share and up @0®0000 shares of preferred stock having a paevaf$0.01 per share. We have no
shares of preferred stock issued and outstandidgheame will be no shares of preferred stock isarmtloutstanding after this public
offering and the private offering immediately afthis offering.
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MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financ@ndition and results of operations should be reatnjunction with the financial statements
and notes to those statements included in thippaiss. The discussion may contain certain forvi@o#ting statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Forward-looking statements are thiostare not historical in nature. As a resultnainy factors, such as those set forth under
“Risk Factors” in this prospectus, our actual resmay differ materially from those anticipatedsirch forward-looking statements.

Executive Summary

We are a specialty finance company timagsts in residential mortgage-backed securitesdential mortgage loans, real estate related
securities and various other asset classes. Wextemally managed by FIDAC. We have elected atehhto qualify to be taxed as a REIT
federal income tax purposes commencing with oustibxyear ending on December 31, 2007. Our targetset classes and the principal
investments we have made and expect to continomale in each are as follows:

. RMBS, consisting of

o] Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and norestment grade classes, including the BB-ratertBe
and nor-rated classe

o] Agency RMBS

. Whole mortgage loans, consisting
o] Prime mortgage loar
o] Jumbo prime mortgage loa
o] Alt-A mortgage loan

. ABS, consisting of
0 CMBS
o] Debt and equity tranches of CD:

o] Consumer and ni-consumer ABS, including investm«-grade and nc-investment grade classes, including
BB-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

We completed our initial public offeriog November 21, 2007. In that offering and in aatorent private offering to Annaly, we raised
proceeds before offering expenses of approxim&®&88.6 million. We have commenced investing thesegqeds and, as of June 30, 2008,
a portfolio of approximately $1.1 billion of RMB8pproximately $150.1 million of whole mortgage lsaand approximately $613.6 million
securitized loans.

Our objective is to provide attractivekdadjusted returns to our investors over the lamgy, primarily through dividends and secondz
through capital appreciation. We intend to achidgng objective by investing in a broad class oéfinial assets to construct an investment
portfolio that is designed to achieve attractiwk+adjusted returns and that is structured to cpmth the various federal income tax
requirements for REIT status.

Since we commenced operations in NoverBber, we have focused our investment activitieaaquiring non-Agency RMBS and on
purchasing residential mortgage loans that hava bdginated by select high-quality originators;lirding the retail lending operations of
leading commercial banks. Our investment portfatidune 30, 2008 was weighted toward non-Agency BMBter the consummation of this
offering, we expect that over the near term ouesgtment portfolio will continue to be weighted tod/&MBS, subject to maintaining our RE
qualification and our 1940 Act exemption. In additiwe have engaged in and anticipate continuirentiage in transactions with residential
mortgage lending operations of leading commeraalis and other high-quality originators in which identify and re-underwrite residential
mortgage loans owned by such entities, and raltar purchasing and securitizing such residentiatgage loans ourselves, we and the
originator would structure the securitization anelwould purchase the resulting mezzanine and sifaiednon-Agency RMBS. We may also
engage in similar transactions with non-Agency RMB#/hich we would acquire AAA-
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rated non-Agency RMBS and immediately re-securitimese securities. We would sell the resulting Afgted super senior RMBS and retain
the AAA-rated mezzanine RMBS.

Our investment strategy is intended ke tadvantage of opportunities in the current irsterate and credit environment. We will adjust
our strategy to changing market conditions by stgfour asset allocations across these various elssses as interest rate and credit cycles
change over time. We believe that our strategy,bioed with our Manager’s experience, will enabléaipay dividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing market cycles.@ifeect to take a long-term view of assets andliiggs, and our reported earnings and
mark-to-market valuations at the end of a finangbrting period will not significantly impact oabjective of providing attractive risk-
adjusted returns to our stockholders over the fengr.

We use leverage to seek to increase aenfial returns and to fund the acquisition of assets. Our income is generated primarily by
the difference, or net spread, between the incomeavn on our assets and the cost of our borrowiffgshave and expect to continue to
finance our investments using a variety of finagaources including repurchase agreements, waretiacidities, securitizations, commercial
paper and term financing CDOs. We have and expeamtritinue to manage our debt by utilizing interag¢ hedges, such as interest rate s\
to reduce the effect of interest rate fluctuaticelated to our debt. As of September 30, 2008, acedutstanding indebtedness of approxime
$1.119 billion, which consists of recourse leverafjapproximately $620.0 million and non-recoursewsitized financing of approximately
$499.0 million.

Recent Developments

We commenced operations in November 20@7e midst of challenging market conditions whidfected the cost and availability of
financing from the facilities with which we expedt® finance our investments. These instrumenisidec repurchase agreements, warehouse
facilities, securitizations, asset-backed commépaper, or ABCP, and term CDOs. The liquidity iriwhich commenced in August 2007
affected each of these sources—and their indivigualiders—to different degrees; some sources generally beceraeailable, some remair
available but at a high cost, and some were langedffected. For example, in the repurchase agreemarket, non-Agency RMBS became
harder to finance, depending on the type of assdisteralizing the RMBS. The amount, term and rirargquirements associated with these
types of financings were also impacted. At thakgtimarehouse facilities to finance whole loan priesdential mortgages were generally
available from major banks, but at significantlglmér cost and had greater margin requirementsgreously offered. It was also extremely
difficult to term finance whole loans through setimation or bonds issued by a CDO structure. Fairagnusing ABCP froze as issuers became
unable to place (or roll) their securities, whielsulted, in some instances, in forced sales ofgaga-backed securities, or MBS, and other
securities which further negatively impacted thekaavalue of these assets.

Although the credit markets had been wyaieg much turbulence, as we started ramping uppottfolio, we noted a slight easing. We
entered into a number of repurchase agreementewe ase to finance RMBS. In January 2008, we edtérto two whole mortgage loan
repurchase agreements. As we began to see thaldigilof financing, we were also seeing bettedemvriting standards used to originate r
mortgages. We commenced buying and financing RMBSadso entered into agreements to purchase whatgyage loans. We purchased
high credit quality assets which we believed we lddae readily able to finance.

Beginning in mid-February 2008, creditrkeds experienced a dramatic and sudden adversgeh@he severity of the limitation on
liquidity was largely unanticipated by the marke&sedit once again froze, and in the mortgage niavieduations of non-Agency RMBS and
whole mortgage loans came under severe pressueeciBlit crisis began in early February 2008, wadreavily leveraged investor announ
that it had to de-lever and liquidate a portfolfapproximately $30 billion of non-Agency RMBS. &g of these types of securities dropped
dramatically, and lenders started lowering thegwrion non-Agency RMBS that they held as collaterakcure the loans they had extended.
The subsequent failure in March 2008 of a majoegtment bank worsened the crisis. During the sirtiroended June 30, 2008, due to the
deterioration in the market value of our assetsreeeived and met margin calls under our repurchgseements, which resulted in our
obtaining additional funding from third partiescinding from Annaly (see “Certain Relationships &welated Transactions”), and taking other
steps to increase our liquidity. Additionally, ttisruptions during the six months ended June 30826sulted in us not being in compliance
with the net income covenant in one of our whobmloepurchase agreements and the liquidity coveramiur other whole loan repurchase
agreement at a time during which we had no amaauttanding under those facilities. We amendedetbesenants, and on July 29, 2008, we
terminated those facilities to avoid paying nonggstees. Although we made no asset sales duringuheer ended June 30, 2008, for the third
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quarter of 2008, we sold assets with a carryingevaf $432.5 million in AAA-rated non-Agency RMBB8rfa loss of approximately $113
million, which includes a realized loss of $11.5lion related to the August 28, 2008 transactiosadided below, and terminated $983.4
million in notional interest rate swaps for a ladspproximately $10.5 million, which together riésd in a net realized loss of approximately
$123.5 million.

The challenges of the first quarter cdBave continued into the second and third quarées financing difficulties have severely
pressured liquidity and asset values. In Septe2d@8, Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc., a major itmesnt bank, experienced a major
liquidity crisis and failed. Securities trading raims limited and mortgage securities financing retgkemain challenging as the industry
continues to report negative news. This dislocaitidihe non-Agency mortgage sector has made icdifffor us to obtain short-term financing
on favorable terms. As a result, we have complitad securitizations in order to obtain long-teinafcing and terminated our un-utilized
whole loan repurchase agreements in order to gejthg non-usage fees under those agreementsditioad we have continued to seek
funding from Annaly. Under these circumstancesgwgect to take actions intended to protect ourdigy, which may include reducing
borrowings and disposing of assets as well asngisapital in this offering and the private offgrito Annaly immediately after this offering.

During the six months ended June 30, 2608 to the deterioration in the market valuewfassets, we received and met margin calls
under our repurchase agreements, which resultedrihaving to amend our liquidity covenants in €glity, obtaining additional funding
from third parties, including from Annaly (see “@an Relationships and Related Transactions”),takihg other steps to increase our
liquidity. Additionally, the disruptions during thiperiod resulted in us not being in compliancéhe net income covenant in another one of
our mortgage loan facilities. On July 29, 2008, tefeninated both mortgage loan repurchase facilities-Agency RMBS and whole mortga
loan valuations remain volatile and under seveesfure. Securities trading remains limited and gagge securities financing markets remain
challenging as the industry continues to reporttigg news. As a result, we expect to operate avithw level of leverage and to continue to
take actions that would support available cash.

During this period of market dislocatidiscal and monetary policymakers have establistead liquidity facilities for primary dealers
and commercial banks, reduced short-term inteatgsy and passed legislation that is intendeddcead the challenges of mortgage borrowers
and lenders. This legislation, the Housing and Botin Recovery Act of 2008, seeks to forestall hdareclosures for distressed borrowers
assist communities with foreclosure problems. Aligio these aggressive steps are intended to peotdctupport the US housing and mortgage
market, we continue to operate under very diffioudtrket conditions.

Since June 30, 2008, there have beerdsed market concerns about Freddie Mac and Fistagss ability to withstand future credit
losses associated with securities held in theiestment portfolios, and on which they provide goteas, without the direct support of the
federal government. Recently, the government pasetHousing and Economic Recovery Act of 200&hkie Mae and Freddie Mac have
recently been placed into the conservatorship@®fgderal Housing Finance Agency, or FHFA, thalefal regulator, pursuant to its powers
under The Federal Housing Finance Regulatory Refactrof 2008, a part of the Housing and Economicd¥ery Act of 2008. As the
conservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, the FE&i#rols and directs the operations of Fannie MakFreddie Mac and may (1) take
over the assets of and operate Fannie Mae andiErtdd with all the powers of the shareholders,dinectors, and the officers of Fannie Mae
and Freddie Mac and conduct all business of Fadaie and Freddie Mac; (2) collect all obligationsl amoney due to Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac; (3) perform all functions of Fannie Mae anediktie Mac which are consistent with the conseriaeppointment; (4) preserve and
conserve the assets and property of Fannie Ma& udlie Mac; and (5) contract for assistance ffillioy any function, activity, action or
duty of the conservator.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conséovaf Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, (i) the U.S. &#pent of Treasury and FHFA have
entered into preferred stock purchase agreemetwgér the U.S. Department of Treasury and Fannie &ta Freddie Mac pursuant to which
the U.S. Department of Treasury will ensure thaheaf Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac maintains a pesitet worth; (ii) the U.S. Department
of Treasury has established a new secured lendattjt ¢acility which will be available to Fannie MaFreddie Mac, and the Federal Home
Loan Banks, which is intended to serve as a lidgyidackstop, which will be available until DecemB@&09; and (iii) the U.S. Department of
Treasury has initiated a temporary program to pasefRMBS issued by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.nGheshighly fluid and evolving
nature of these events, it is unclear how our lassiwill be impacted. Based upon the further agtind the U.S. government or market
response to developments at Fannie Mae or Freddee dur business could be adversely impacted.
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The Emergency Economic Stabilization 8c2008, or EESA, was recently enacted. The EESWides the U.S. Secretary of the
Treasury with the authority to establish a Troubdsdet Relief Program, or TARP, to purchase framarficial institutions up to $700 billion of
residential or commercial mortgages and any séesyibbligations, or other instruments that areebdas or related to such mortgages, that in
each case was originated or issued on or beforetMi4, 2008, as well as any other financial insgnnthat the U.S. Secretary of the Treas
after consultation with the Chairman of the Boaf&Governors of the Federal Reserve System, detesrilre purchase of which is necessal
promote financial market stability, upon transntitthsuch determination, in writing, to the appriape committees of the U.S. Congress. The
EESA also provides for a program that would all@mpanies to insure their troubled assets.

There can be no assurance that the EEBAave a beneficial impact on the financial maskéncluding current extreme levels of
volatility. To the extent the market does not ragpéavorably to the TARP or the TARP does not fiorchs intended, our business may not
receive the anticipated positive impact from thgadkation. In addition, the U.S. Government, FetiBeserve and other governmental and
regulatory bodies have taken or are consideringgather actions to address the financial cridis.cannot predict whether or when such
actions may occur or what impact, if any, suchadicould have on our business, results of opastiad financial condition.

On July 25, 2008, we sponsored a $151lbmsecuritization whereby we securitized ouerthcurrent inventory of mortgage loans. In
this transaction, we retained all of the securiissied by the securitization trust including apprately $142.4 million of AAA-rated fixed
and floating rate senior bonds and $8.8 milliosulordinated bonds. This transaction will be actedifor as a sale. On August 28, 2008, we
sold approximately $74.9 million of the AAA-rateiddd and floating rate bonds related to the July2Z®8 securitization to third-party
investors and realized a loss of $11.5 million.

On September 9, 2008, we declared the thiarter 2008 common stock cash dividend of $pelGshare of our common stock. This
dividend is payable October 31, 2008 to commondiwders of record on September 18, 2008. Purchasdhis offering will not participate
in this quarterly distribution.

In October 2008, we and FIDAC amendedmanagement agreement to reduce the base managemémm 1.75% per annum to
1.50% per annum of our stockholders’ equity anchiglate the incentive fees previously provided fotlie management agreement.

Trends

We expect the results of our operatianse affected by various factors, many of whichtagond our control. Our results of operations
will primarily depend on, among other things, thed| of our net interest income, the market valueun assets, and the supply of and demand
for such assets. Our net interest income, whidectf the amortization of purchase premiums andetion of discounts, varies primarily as a
result of changes in interest rates, borrowingsastd prepayment speeds, which is a measurembotofjuickly borrowers pay down the
unpaid principal balance on their mortgage loans.

Prepayment Spee@sepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constamiy@nent Rate, or CPR, vary according to interdssrdahe type
of investment, conditions in financial markets, gatition and other factors, none of which can kesljoted with any certainty. In general,
when interest rates rise, it is relatively lessaative for borrowers to refinance their mortgaganls, and as a result, prepayment speeds tend tc
decrease. When interest rates fall, prepaymentsgeead to increase. For mortgage loan and RMB&stnvents purchased at a premium, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of inconeamedecreases because the purchase premiumdv@iptiie bonds amortizes faster than
expected. Conversely, decreases in prepaymentspesdlt in increased income and can extend thecever which we amortize the
purchase premium. For mortgage loan and RMBS invests purchased at a discount, as prepayment speeglase, the amount of income
earn increases because of the acceleration ottieten of the discount into interest income. Gengely, decreases in prepayment speeds
result in decreased income and can extend thechevier which we accrete the purchase discountimévest income.

Rising Interest Rate Environmehs.indicated above, as interest rates rise, prepayspeeds generally decrease, increasing ouestter
income. Rising interest rates, however, increasdioancing costs which may result in a net negatiapact on our net interest income. In
addition, if we acquire Agency and non-Agency RM&fHateralized by monthly reset adjustable-ratetgages, or ARMs, and three- and five-
year hybrid ARMs, such interest rate increasesdcegult in decreases in our net investment incaséhere could be a timing misma
between the interest rate reset dates on our RMB®po and the financing costs of these investtaen
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Monthly reset ARMs are ARMs on which coupon ratset monthly based on indices such as the one-nhomition Interbank Offering Rate,
or LIBOR. Hybrid ARMs are mortgages that have iestrrates that are fixed for an initial period {eglly three, five, seven or ten years) and
thereafter reset at regular intervals subject ter@st rate caps.

With respect to our floating rate investrts, such interest rate increases should resiiciaases in our net investment income because
our floating rate assets are greater in amounttfenelated floating rate liabilities. Similarltich an increase in interest rates should generally
result in an increase in our net investment incoméxed-rate investments made by us because xenlfate assets would be greater in amu
than our fixed-rate liabilities. We expect, howeubat our fixed-rate assets would decline in vatua rising interest rate environment and that
our net interest spreads on fixed rate assets amdlihe in a rising interest rate environmenti® ¢éxtent such assets are financed with floating
rate debt.

Credit RiskOne of our strategic focuses is acquiring assetshaie believe to be of high credit quality. Weibeé this strategy will
generally keep our credit losses and financingsclast. We retain the risk of potential credit lossa all of the residential mortgage loans we
hold in our portfolio. Additionally, some of ouniastments in RMBS may be qualifying interests formpmses of maintaining our exemption
from the 1940 Act because we retain a 100% owngtiskérest in the underlying loans. If we purchalbelasses of these securitizations, we
have the credit exposure on the underlying loarisr B the purchase of these securities, we conaldeie diligence process that allows us to
remove loans that do not meet our credit standaaded on loan-to-value ratios, borrowers’ crediras, income and asset documentation and
other criteria that we believe to be important aadions of credit risk.

Size of Investment Portfoliche size of our investment portfolio, as measunrethb aggregate unpaid principal balance of ourtgagre
loans and aggregate principal balance of our mgegelated securities and the other assets we ®@ai30 a key revenue driver. Generally, as
the size of our investment portfolio grows, the amtoof interest income we receive increases. Tigetanvestment portfolio, however, drives
increased expenses as we incur additional intergmnse to finance the purchase of our assets.

Since changes in interest rates may fagnitly affect our activities, our operating resuliepend, in large part, upon our ability to
effectively manage interest rate risks and prepaymigks while maintaining our status as a REIT.

Current Environmenthe current weakness in the broader mortgage nsacketdd adversely affect one or more of our po&ttenders
or any of our lenders and could cause one or miooerrpotential lenders or any of our lenders taihwilling or unable to provide us with
financing or require us to post additional collatem general, this could potentially increase fimgncing costs and reduce our liquidity or
require us to sell assets at an inopportune timee¥pect to use a number of sources to financeweastments, including repurchase
agreements, warehouse facilities, securitizatiasset-backed commercial paper and term CDOs. QGunarket conditions have affected the
cost and availability of financing from each of skesources and their individual providers to défgrdegrees; some sources generally are
unavailable, some are available but at a high emgt,some are largely unaffected. For exampléyérrépurchase agreement market, borrowers
have been affected differently depending on the tyfpsecurity they are financing. Non-Agency RMB&é& been harder to finance, depending
on the type of assets collateralizing the RMBS. @mount, term and margin requirements associatddthese types of financings have been
negatively impacted.

Currently, warehouse facilities to finenghole loan prime residential mortgages are géigeraailable from major banks, but at
significantly higher cost and have greater margiuirements than previously offered. Many majorikdsathat offer warehouse facilities have
also reduced the amount of capital available to eetkants and consequently the size of those tiasilbffered now are smaller than those
previously available. We decided to terminate ewo whole loan repurchase agreements in order tmgaying non-usage fees under those
agreements.

It is currently a challenging market ¢éorh finance whole loans through securitization@mnds issued by a CDO structure. The highly
rated senior bonds in these securitizations and G@@tures currently have liquidity, but at mucldev spreads than issues priced in recent
history. The junior subordinate tranches of thesectures currently have few buyers and currentketaconditions have forced issuers to retain
these lower rated bonds rather than sell them.
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Certain issuers of ABCP have been untbfgace (or roll) their securities, which has fe=d; in some instances, in forced sales of MBS
and other securities which has further negativelgacted the market value of these assets. Thesentanditions are fluid and likely to
change over time. As a result, the execution ofimugstment strategy may be dictated by the cadtaamilability of financing from these
different sources.

If one or more major market participafiaits or otherwise experiences a major liquiditisisr, as was the case for Bear Stearns & Co. in
March 2008, and Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. ipt&mber 2008, it could negatively impact the makdity of all fixed income securities
and this could negatively impact the value of theusities we acquire, thus reducing our net bodkevad=urthermore, if many of our potential
lenders or any of our lenders are unwilling or uadb provide us with financing, we could be ford¢edsell our securities or residential
mortgage loans at an inopportune time when prioesl@pressed. For example, for the quarter endedhvBd, 2008, we sold assets with a
carrying value of $394.2 million for an aggregated of $32.8 million. While we did not sell any eissduring the quarter ended June 30, 2008,
for the third quarter of 2008, we sold assets witarrying value of $432.5 million in AAA-rated ndmgency RMBS for a loss of
approximately $113 million and terminated $983.4lio1i in notional interest rate swaps for a losspproximately $10.5 million, which
together resulted in a net realized loss of appnakely $123.5 million.

Since June 30, 2008, there have beerdsed market concerns about Freddie Mac and Fistagss ability to withstand future credit
losses associated with securities held in theiestment portfolios, and on which they provide gotas, without the direct support of the
federal government. Recently, the government pasetHousing and Economic Recovery Act of 200&nkie Mae and Freddie Mac have
recently been placed into the conservatorship®fgderal Housing Finance Agency, or FHFA, thelefal regulator, pursuant to its powers
under The Federal Housing Finance Regulatory Refsctrof 2008, a part of the Housing and Economicd®ery Act of 2008. As the
conservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, the FE&i#rols and directs the operations of Fannie MakFreddie Mac and may (1) take
over the assets of and operate Fannie Mae andieristdat with all the powers of the shareholders,dinectors, and the officers of Fannie Mae
and Freddie Mac and conduct all business of Faaie and Freddie Mac; (2) collect all obligationslamoney due to Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac; (3) perform all functions of Fannie Mae anediktie Mac which are consistent with the conseriaeppointment; (4) preserve and
conserve the assets and property of Fannie Ma€&rtdlie Mac; and (5) contract for assistance ffillinty any function, activity, action or
duty of the conservator.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conséovaf Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, (i) the U.S. &#apent of Treasury and FHFA have
entered into preferred stock purchase agreemetwgér the U.S. Department of Treasury and Fannie &a Freddie Mac pursuant to which
the U.S. Department of Treasury will ensure thahezf Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac maintains a pesitet worth; (ii) the U.S. Department
of Treasury has established a new secured lendattt ¢acility which will be available to Fannie MaFreddie Mac, and the Federal Home
Loan Banks, which is intended to serve as a ligyidackstop, which will be available until DecemB@&09; and (iii) the U.S. Department of
Treasury has initiated a temporary program to paselRMBS issued by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.nGheshighly fluid and evolving
nature of these events, it is unclear how our lassiwill be impacted. Based upon the further agtind the U.S. government or market
response to developments at Fannie Mae or Fredde dur business could be adversely impacted.

The Emergency Economic Stabilization 8ice008, or EESA, was recently enacted. The EE4&ides the U.S. Secretary of the
Treasury with the authority to establish a Troubdsdet Relief Program, or TARP, to purchase framarficial institutions up to $700 billion of
residential or commercial mortgages and any séesyibbligations, or other instruments that areebbam or related to such mortgages, that in
each case was originated or issued on or beforetMi4, 2008, as well as any other financial insgnnthat the U.S. Secretary of the Treas
after consultation with the Chairman of the Boaf&Governors of the Federal Reserve System, detesrilre purchase of which is necessal
promote financial market stability, upon transntitthsuch determination, in writing, to the appriape committees of the U.S. Congress. The
EESA also provides for a program that would all@mpanies to insure their troubled assets.

There can be no assurance that the EEBAave a beneficial impact on the financial maskéncluding current extreme levels of
volatility. To the extent the market does not ragpéavorably to the TARP or the TARP does not fiorchs intended, our business may not
receive the anticipated positive impact from thgidkation. In addition, the U.S. Government, FetiBeserve and other governmental and
regulatory bodies have taken or are consideringgather actions to address the financial cridis.cannot predict whether or when such
actions may occur or what impact, if any, suchadicould have on our business, results of opastiod financial condition.
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In the current market, it may be diffical impossible to obtain third party pricing ortimvestments we purchase. In addition, validating
third party pricing for our investments may be msubjective as fewer participants may be willingptovide this service to us. Moreover, the
current market is more illiquid than in recent bigtfor some of the investments we purchase. liligovestments typically experience greater
price volatility as a ready market does not exdstvolatility increases or liquidity decreases waynmave greater difficulty financing our
investments which may negatively impact our earsiagd the execution of our investment strategy.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are preparegtoordance with GAAP. These accounting principley nequire us to make some complex and
subjective decisions and assessments. Our masatatcounting policies will involve decisions aassessments that could affect our reported
assets and liabilities, as well as our reporte@maes and expenses. We believe that all of thesidesiand assessments upon which our
financial statements are based have been andevibdisonable at the time made and based upon &fiormavailable to us at that time. At e
quarter end, we calculate estimated fair valueguaipricing model. We validate our pricing modeldbtaining independent pricing on all of
our assets and performing a verification of thasgees to our own internal estimate of fair vaNe have identified what we believe will be
our most critical accounting policies to be thddaling:

Valuation of Investments

On January 1, 2008, we adopted FASB @iate of Financial Accounting Standards No. 1540y Value Measurementsor SFAS 157,
which defines fair value, establishes a frameworknfieasuring fair value in accordance with GAAP arpands disclosures about fair value
measurements. The FASB has recently issued apstsition clarifying the application of SFAS 157, ialinis effective for the quarter ended
September 30, 2008. We are evaluating the posiiimpted by the FASB relating to the fiscal quaetailed September 30, 2008. The position
adopted by the FASB could affect the value of o8BS as reflected in our financial statements anddoesult in our book value per share
being different from the estimate provided in thiespectus. The valuation hierarchy is based upenransparency of inputs to the valuatio
an asset or liability as of the measurement ddte.tfiree levels are defined as follow:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methlody are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identicakds and liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methiody include quoted prices for similar assets aabllities in active markets, and inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dilgor indirectly, for substantially the full terof the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methiody are unobservable and significant to fair value

Mortgage-backed securities and interatst swaps are valued using a pricing model. The iBSng model incorporates such factors as
coupons, prepayment speeds, spread to the Treasdrswap curves, convexity, duration, periodic léfieccaps, and credit enhancement.
Interest rate swaps are modeled by incorporatic factors as the Treasury curve, LIBOR rates,thadeceive rate on the interest rate swaps.
Management reviews the fair values determined byptiting model and compares its results to depletes received on each investment to
validate the reasonableness of the valuationsaneticby the pricing models. The dealer quotesingibrporate common market pricing
methods, including a spread measurement to thesingaurve or interest rate swap curve as wellnaerlying characteristics of the particular
security including coupon, periodic and life cafede reset period, issuer, additional credit supgod expected life of the security.

Any changes to the valuation methodolagyreviewed by management to ensure the changeppropriate. As markets and products
develop and the pricing for certain products becomere transparent, we continue to refine our Yeloanethodologies. The methods used by
us may produce a fair value calculation that matybeadndicative of net realizable value or refleetof future fair values. Furthermore, while
we believe our valuation methods are appropriatecamsistent with other market participants, the efsdifferent methodologies, or
assumptions, to determine the fair value of ceffia@ncial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair value at the reporting date. We
use inputs that are current as of the measurenag¢at @hich may include periods of market disloaatiduring which price transparency may
reduced. This condition could cause our financiatruments to be reclassified from Level 2 to Le/@i the future.

We have classified our RMBS as “Leveb®"described above.
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Loans Held for Investmen

We purchase residential mortgage loadscéassify them as loans held for investment orstaeement of financial condition. Loans held
for investment are intended to be held to matuitg, accordingly, are reported at the principal am@utstanding, net of provisions for loan
losses.

Loan loss provisions are examined quigreerd updated to reflect expectations of futurebable credit losses based on factors such as
originator historical losses, geographic conceimnaindividual loan characteristics, experiencaesskes, and expectations of future loan pool
behavior. As credit losses occur, the provisiondan losses will reflect that realization.

When we determine that it is probable tuantractually due specific amounts are deemeadlleutible, the loan is considered impaired.
To measure our impairment we determine the exdetbe oecorded investment amount over the netline of the collateral, as reduced by

selling costs. Any deficiency between the carryangount of an asset and the net sales price of sepsad collateral is charged to the allow
for loan losses.

An allowance for mortgage loans is maired at a level believed adequate by managemeiidorb probable losses. We may elect to
sell a loan held for investment due to adverse gbaiin credit fundamentals. Once the determindtambeen made by us that we will no
longer hold the loan for investment, we will accofar the loan at the lower of amortized cost dimeated fair value. The reclassification of
loan and recognition of impairments could adverséfgct our reported earnings.

Valuations of Available-for-Sale Securities

We expect our investments in RMBS willdgsgmarily classified as available-for-sale sedastthat are carried on the statement of
financial condition at their fair value. This clé@&sation will result in changes in fair values bgirecorded as statement of financial condition
adjustments to accumulated other comprehensiveniaar loss, which is a component of stockholdegsiity.

Our available-fosale securities have fair values as determinedneférence to fair values calculated using a pgichodel. Manageme
reviews the fair values generated to insure pricegeflective of the current market. We perforrablidation of the fair value calculated by the
pricing model by comparing its results to indeperigeices provided by dealers in the securitieda@mithird party pricing services. If dealers
independent pricing services are unable to prozigece for an asset, or if the price providedhmsn is deemed unreliable by our Manager,
then the asset will be valued at its fair valuel@®rmined in good faith by our Manager. The pgdssubject to various assumptions which
could result in different presentations of value.

When the fair value of an available-fatessecurity is less than its amortized cost foextended period, we consider whether there is an
other-than-temporary impairment in the value ofgbkeurity. If, based on our analysis, an other-tieamporary impairment exists, the cost b
of the security is written down to the thearrent fair value, and the unrealized loss issfamed from accumulated other comprehensive I
an immediate reduction of current earnings (alsdflbss had been realized in the period of othen-emporary impairment). The
determination of other-than-temporary impairmerd subjective process, and different judgmentsamsdmptions could affect the timing of
loss realization.

We consider the following factors whemedmining an other-than-temporary impairment feeaurity:

. The length of time and the extent to which the raaialue has been less than the amortized
. Whether the security has been downgraded by egratiency; an
. Our intent to hold the security for a period of ¢isufficient to allow for any anticipated recov@mymarket value

The determination of other-than-temporary impant is made at least quarterly. If we detern@némpairment to be other than temporary
we will realize a loss which will negatively impamirrent income.

Investment Consolidation

For each investment we make, we will eatd the underlying entity that issued the seasritve will acquire or to which we will make a
loan to determine the appropriate accounting. hfopeing our analysis, we refer to guidance in S 140,Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishmehftsabilities , and FASB Interpretation No. (FIN) 46Rpnsolidation of Variable Interest
Entities. FIN 46R

60




addresses the application of Accounting ReseardletBuNo. 51,Consolidated Financial Statement® certain entities in which voting rights
are not effective in identifying an investor witltantrolling financial interest. In variable intsteentities, or VIES, an entity is subject to
consolidation under FIN 46R if the investors eitlemot have sufficient equity at risk for the gntd finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support, are unable to tlifee entity’s activities, or are not exposed te émtity’s losses or entitled to its residual
returns. VIEs within the scope of FIN 46R are regdito be consolidated by their primary beneficiditye primary beneficiary of a VIE is
determined to be the party that absorbs a majofitiie entitys expected losses, its expected returns, or boik.determination can sometirr
involve complex and subjective analyses.

Interest Income Recognition

Interest income on available-for-saleus#ies and loans held for investment is recogniaeer the life of the investment using the
effective interest method as described by SFAS@pAccounting for Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Assetiaith Originating or Acquiring
Loans and Initial Direct Costs of Leas, for securities of high credit quality and Emeggissues Task Force No. 99-Fxcognition of Intere:
Income and Impairment on Purchased and Retaine@fggal Interests in Securitized Financial Ass, for all other securities. Income
recognition is suspended for loans when, in theiopiof management, a full recovery of income arnidgipal becomes doubtful. Income
recognition is resumed when the loan becomes atnaly current and performance is demonstratdzbtoesumed.

Under SFAS No. 91 and Emerging Issue& Fasce No. 99-20, management will estimate, atithe of purchase, the future expected
cash flows and determine the effective interest batsed on these estimated cash flows and ourgsegrice. As needed, these estimated cast
flows will be updated and a revised yield compuiaded on the current amortized cost of the investnire estimating these cash flows, there
will be a number of assumptions that will be subjeaincertainties and contingencies. These incthdeate and timing of principal payments
(including prepayments, repurchases, defaults ignedations), the pass-through or coupon rate atetest rate fluctuations. In addition,
interest payment shortfalls due to delinquencietherunderlying mortgage loans, and the timindhefragnitude of credit losses on the
mortgage loans underlying the securities have toigmentally estimated. These uncertainties amtirngencies are difficult to predict and
subject to future events that may impact managemestimates and our interest income.

Accounting For Derivative Financial Instruments

Our policies permit us to enter into gative contracts, including interest rate swapsiatetest rate caps, as a means of mitigating our
interest rate risk. We use interest rate derivdtigruments to mitigate interest rate risk ratian to enhance returns.

We account for derivative financial instrents in accordance with SFAS No. 188counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities, as amended and interpreted. SFAS No. 133 reqairentity to recognize all derivatives as eithesess or liabilities in the statement
of financial condition and to measure those instnts at fair value. Additionally, the fair valugjastments will affect either other
comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity uhtl hedged item is recognized in earnings or renre depending on whether the
derivative instrument qualifies as a hedge for aating purposes and, if so, the nature of the heggctivity. We have elected not to qualify
for hedge accounting treatment. As a result, oeraing results may suffer because losses on tlivatiees that we enter into may not be
offset by a change in the fair value of the reldiedged transaction.

In the normal course of business, we ms®ya variety of derivative financial instrumemtsrtanage, or hedge, interest rate risk. These
derivative financial instruments must be effeciiveeducing our interest rate risk exposure in otdejualify for hedge accounting. When the
terms of an underlying transaction are modifiedwben the underlying hedged item ceases to efisthanges in the fair value of the
instrument are included in net income for eachqeketintil the derivative instrument matures or igled. Any derivative instrument used for
risk management that does not meet the hedgirgyieris carried at fair value with the changesatue included in net income.

Derivatives will be used for economic eedj purposes rather than speculation. We will cglyquotations from third parties to detern
fair values. If our hedging activities do not ackEeur desired results, our reported earnings neagdversely affected.
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Reserve for Possible Credit Loss

The expense for possible credit lossepimection with debt investments is the chargeatmings to increase the allowance for possible
credit losses to the level that management estéatbe adequate considering delinquencies, Igssriexnce and collateral quality. Other
factors considered relate to geographic trendpaodiuct diversification, the size of the portfofind current economic conditions. Based upon
these factors, we establish the provision for fmsgiredit losses by category of asset. Whengtadable that we will be unable to collect all
amounts contractually due, the account is consitlienpaired.

Where impairment is indicated, a valuatirite-down or write-off is measured based upandhkcess of the recorded investment amount
over the net fair value of the collateral, as redliby selling costs. Any deficiency between theyiag amount of an asset and the net sales
price of repossessed collateral is charged toltbeance for credit losses.

Income Taxes

We have elected and intend to qualifpeédaxed as a REIT commencing with our taxable gading on December 31, 2007.
Accordingly, we will generally not be subject torporate federal or state income tax to the exteattwe make qualifying distributions to you,
and provided we satisfy on a continuing basis,uftoactual investment and operating results, thd Re&guirements including certain asset,
income, distribution and stock ownership testsvdffail to qualify as a REIT, and do not qualify frertain statutory relief provisions, we will
be subject to federal, state and local income tardsmay be precluded from qualifying as a REITtl@& subsequent four taxable years
following the year in which we lost our REIT quadgtion. Accordingly, our failure to qualify as &R could have a material adverse impact
on our results of operations and amounts avaif@bldistribution to you.

The dividends paid deduction of a REITdaalifying dividends to its stockholders is cortgrliusing our taxable income as opposed to
net income reported on the financial statementgalil@ income, generally, will differ from net incemeported on the financial statements
because the determination of taxable income iscbaseax provisions and not financial accountiniggples.

In the future, we may elect to treat @ierbf our subsidiaries as TRSs. In general, a ®R#irs may hold assets and engage in activities
that we cannot hold or engage in directly and galyemay engage in any real estate or non-reatesédated business. A TRS is subject to
federal, state and local corporate income taxes.

While any TRS we may form in the futur#l enerate net income, our TRS can declare divildeto us which will be included in our
taxable income and necessitate a distribution to gmnversely, if we retain earnings at the TR&llewo distribution is required and we can
increase book equity of the consolidated entity.

Financial Condition

At June 30, 2008, our portfolio consistépproximately $1.1 billion of RMBS, approximit&150.1 million of whole mortgage loans,
and approximately $613.6 million in securitizedriea

The following table summarizes certaiarelcteristics of our portfolio at June 30, 2008 Bedember 31, 2007.

June 30, December 31
2008 2007

Leverage at peri-end 3.6:1 0.5:1
Residential mortga-backed securities as a % of portfc 61.8% 87.5%
Residential mortgage loans as a % of portf 7.7% 12.5%
Loans collateralizing secured debt as a % of plot 30.5% —
Fixec-rate investments as % of portfo 20.(% 14.2%
Adjustablerate investments as % of portfo 80.(% 85.6%
Fixec-rate investment

Residential mortgar-backed securities as a % of fi-rate asset 16.(% 39.5%

Residential mortgage loans as a % of f-rate asset 15.2% 60.5%

Loans collateralizing secured debt as a % of -rate asset 68.£% —
Adjustablerate investment

Residential mortga-backed securities as a % of adjust-rate asset 73.2% 95.5%

Residential mortgage loans as a % of adjus-rate asset 5.8% 4.5%

Loans collateralizing secured debt as a % of adlpl-rate asset 21.(% —
Annualized yield on average earning assets duhageérioc 6.1&% 7.02%
Annualized cost of funds on average repurchasenbalduring the perio 5.5% 5.0&%
Annualized interest rate spread during the pe 0.65% 1.94%
Weighted average yield on assets at p-end 6.18% 6.62%
Weighted average cost of funds at pe-end 5.35% 5.02%
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Residential Mortgac-Backed Securities
The table below summarizes our RMBS imesits at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007:

June 30, 2008 December 31, 2007

(dollars in thousands)

Amortized cos $ 122156 $ 1,114,13
Unrealized gain — 10,67¢
Unrealized losse (104,98)) (522)
Fair value $ 1,116,580 $ 1,124,29

As of June 30, 2008, the RMBS in our fodic were purchased at a net discount to theiryadwe. Our RMBS had a weighted average
amortized cost of 99.4% and 98.8% at June 30, 20@8ecember 31, 2007, respectively.

The following tables summarize certaiareteteristics of our RMBS portfolio at June 30, 2@dd December 31, 2007.

Weighted Averages

Estimated Value Constant
(dollars in Yield to Prepayment
thousands) (1) Coupon Maturity Rate(2)
June 30, 200 $ 1,116,58! 6.27% 6.52% 13%
December 31, 200 $ 1,124,291 6.32% 6.87% 10%

(1) All assets listed in this chart are carried atrtfedr value.

(2) Represents the estimated percentage of principalii be prepaid over the next three months basetistorical principal paydown
All of our RMBS investments at June 3002 and December 31, 2007 carried actual or im@\i&A credit ratings.

Actual maturities of RMBS are generaliyger than stated contractual maturities, as #éreyaffected by the contractual lives of the
underlying mortgages, periodic payments of priniciaad prepayments of principal. The stated comtigddinal maturity of the mortgage loans
underlying our portfolio of RMBS ranges up to 4@y but the expected maturity is subject to chdoaged on the prepayments of the
underlying loans. As of June 30, 2008, the avefegéd contractual maturity of the RMBS portfolio34 years, and as of December 31, 2007, it
was 29 years. The estimated weighted average mamthaturity of the RMBS in the tables below aredzhupon our prepayment expectati
which are based on both proprietary and subscrigi@sed financial models. Our prepayment projestmmsider current and expected trends
in interest rates, interest rate volatility, steegmof the yield curve, the mortgage rate of thetanding loan, time to reset and the spread
margin of the reset.

The CPR attempts to predict the percentdgrincipal that will be prepaid over a periddime. We calculate average CPR on a
quarterly basis based on historical principal paya® As interest rates rise, the rate of refinaggitypically declines, which we expect may
result in lower rates of prepayment and, as a treslbwer portfolio CPR. Conversely, as interasés fall, the rate of refinancings typically
increases, which we expect may result in highesraf prepayment and, as a result, a higher part@PR.

After the reset date, interest rates unhybrid adjustable rate RMBS securities adjustuafly based on spreads over various LIBOR
Treasury indices. These interest rates are sutnj@etps that limit the amount the
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applicable interest rate can increase during aay, y@own as periodic cap, and through the matofitjhhe applicable security, known as a
lifetime cap. The weighted average periodic cagHerportfolio is an increase of 1.93% and the Wid average maximum lifetime increases

and decreases for the portfolio are 12.18%.

The following table summarizes our RMB$@ding to their estimated weighted average léssifications as of June 30, 2008 and

December 31, 2007:

Fair Value

December 31,
June 30, 2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)

Less than one yei $ — $ 45,86¢
Greater than one year and less than five y 1,071,85: 1,078,42.
Greater than or equal to five yei 44,73¢ —
Total $ 1,116,58! $ 1,124,29i
Whole Mortgage Loan Portfolio Characteristics
The following tables present certain eleteristics of our whole mortgage loan portfolicodsune 30, 2008.
(dollars in thousands)
Original loan balanc $ 153,96t
Unpaid principal balanc $ 152,31!
Weighted average coupon rate on lo 5.71%
Weighted average original term (yea 28.¢
Weighted average remaining term (ye: 28.7
Geographic Distribution Remaining Balance
Top 5 States (dollars in thousands) % of Loan Portfolio Loan Count
CA $ 35,85« 23.5% 50
IL 14,947 9.8% 23
NJ 11,64: 7.6% 18
SC 6,96¢ 4.6% 8
NY 6,741 4.4% 10
Total $ 76,15: 49.9% 10¢
Remaining
Balance % of
(dollars in Loan Loan % of Loan
Occupancy Status thousands) Portfolio Count Loan Purpose Portfolio
Ownel-occupied $ 137,54t 90.2% 19¢€ Purchast 50.5%
Second hom 14,33( 9.4% 19 Cash out refinanc 18.1%
Investor 43¢ 0.3% 1 Rate and term refinani 31.4%
Total $ 152,31 100.(% 21€ 100.(%
% of
% of Loan ARM
Documentation Type Portfolio ARM Loan Type Loans
Full/alternative 77.2% Traditional ARM loans —
Stated income/no rat 22.%% Hybrid ARM loans 100.(%
Total 100.(% Total 100.(%
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Dollars in % of Loan
Unpaid Principal Balance Thousands FICO Score Portfolio
$417,000 or les $ 394 740 and abov 59.5%
$417,001 to $650,0C 66,39¢ 700 to 73¢ 25.4%
$650,001 to $1,000,0(C 66,47! 660 to 69¢ 13.2%
$1,000,001 to $2,000,0( 19,05! 620 to 65¢ 0.2%
$2,000,001 or mor — Below 620 or not availabl 1.5%
Total $ 152,31! Total 100.(%
Weighted Average FICO Sco 749.(
Original Loan-to-Value Dollars in % of Loan
Ratio Thousands Property Type Portfolio
80.01% and abov $ 24,88! Single-family 62.8%
70.01% to 80.009 79,33( Planned urban developme 28.(%
60.01% to 70.009 16,79¢ Condominium 4.2%
60.00% or les 31,31( Other residentie 5.C%
Total $ 152,31 Total 100.(%
Weighted Average Original Lo-to-Value Ratic 72.3(%
% of ARM
Periodic Cap on Hybrid ARM Loans Loans
3.00% or les: 100.(%
3.01% to 4.00% —
4.01% to 5.00% —
Total 100.(%

We purchase our whole mortgage loans serécing retained basis. As a result, we do eotise any loans, or receive any servicing

income.



Hedging Instrument

As of June 30, 2008 and December 31, 28@7ad entered into hedges with a notional amot$it.0 billion and $1.2 billion,
respectively. Our hedges at June 30, 2008 and DmzeB1, 2007 were fixed-for-floating interest rateap agreements whereby we swapped
the floating rate of interest on the liabilities twedged for a fixed rate of interest. At June 3M&, the unrealized loss on our interest rate swap
agreements was $10.1 million. At December 31, 2@@¥ unrealized loss on our interest rate swapeageats was $4.2 million. In a decreasing
interest rate environment, we expect that theviaine of our hedges will continue to decrease. Nttenid to continue to seek such hedges for
our floating rate debt in the future. In the thipdarter of 2008, we terminated $983.4 million iiowal interest rate swaps for a loss of
approximately $10.5 million.

Results of Operations for the Six Months Ended Jun&0, 2008
Net Income/Loss Summary

For the six months ended, June 30, 2608net loss was $21.0 million, or $0.54 per averstgare. We attribute the net loss for the six
months ended June 30, 2008 primarily to unrealiasskes on our interest rate swaps due to fair vadijiestments and realized losses on sal
investments. The table below presents the net irdoss summary for the six months ended June 318:20

(dollars in thousands, except for per share data)

For the Six
Months
Ended June
30, 2008
Interest incom $ 58,14¢
Interest expens 34,04°
Net interest incom 24,09¢
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (5,909
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investn (31,179
Realized gain on terminations of interest rate & 122
Net investment income (los (12,869
Expense:
Management fe 4,45k
General and administrative expen 3,71¢
Total expense 8,17:
Gain (loss) before income tax (21,03¢)
Income taxe: 3
Net income (loss $ (21,039

Net income (loss) per she- basic and dilute:

$ (0.59

Weighted average number of shares outstar— basic and dilute: 38,995,09
Comprehensive Income (Los:
Net income (loss (21,039
Other comprehensive los
Unrealized loss on availal-for-sale securitie (136,159
Reclassification adjustment for realized (gainssés included in net incor 31,17¢
Other comprehensive lo (104,981)



Comprehensive los $ (126,019
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We attribute the net loss primarily taealized losses on our interest rate swaps dugitedlue adjustments and realized losses on sale:
of investments during the quarter ended June 308.20

Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average earning assets of $1i@rbfbr the six months ending June 30, 2008. @terest income for this six month period was
$58.1 million. The yield on our portfolio was 6.38% this six month period.

Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

Our largest expense is the cost of boeiunds. We had average borrowed funds of $1liémind total interest expense of $34.0
million for the six months ending June 30, 2008r @erage cost of funds was 4.91% for the six moetiding June 30, 2008. We attribute the
increase in interest expense to the increase imbenest rate swap expense and an increase irhteeigverage rate we paid to finance our
assets.

The table below shows our average bordofueds and average cost of funds as comparecdet@g® one-month and average six-month
LIBOR for the quarters ended March 31, 2008 and B 2008, and the period commencing Novembe2@17 (inception) and ending
December 31, 2007.

Average Cost of Funds
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thousands)

Average
Average Average Cost Cost of
One-Month of Funds Funds
Average LIBOR Relative to Relative to
Average Average One- Average Relative to Average Average
Borrowed Interest Cost of Month Six-Month Average Six- One-Month Six-Month
Funds Expense Funds LIBOR LIBOR Month LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
For the quarter ended June !
2008 $ 1,44956 $ 20,02t 5.5%% 2.5% 2.9% (0.34%) 2.94% 2.6(%
For the quarter ended March
31, 200¢€ $ 1,325,150 $ 14,02: 4.2%% 3.31% 3.1&% 0.1%% 0.92% 1.05%
For the period commencing
November 21, 2007 ar
ending December 31, 20( $ 270,58: $ 41t 5.08% 4.98% 4.8%% 0.14% 0.1(% 0.24%

Net Interest Income

Our net interest income, which equalsriest income less interest expense, totaled $2dlidmfor the six months ended June 30, 2008.
Our net interest spread, which equals the yieldwraverage assets for the period less the averagef funds for the period, for this six
month period was 1.47%.

The table below shows our average asstls total interest earned on assets, yield orageeinterest earning assets, average balance o
repurchase agreements, interest expense, aversigef donds, net interest income, and net intenast spread for the quarters ended March 31,
2008 and June 30, 2008, and the period commenaiwvgiNber 21, 2007 and ending December 31, 2007.
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Net Interest Income
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thousands)

Yield on
Average Average Net
Average Interest Interest Balance of Average Net Interest
Earning Earned on Earning Repurchase Interest Cost of Interest Rate
Assets Held Assets Assets Agreements Expense Funds Income Spread
For the quarter ended June
2008 $ 1,917,96! $ 29,63( 6.1€% $ 1,449,56 $ 20,02t 55%% $ 9,92¢ 0.65%
For the quarter ended March
31, 200€ $ 1,555,89 $ 25,79( 6.6% $ 1,325,151 $ 14,02: 42% $ 14,17 2.4(%
For the period commencir
November 21, 2007 and
ending December 31, 20! $ 399,73t $ 3,49 702% $ 27058 $ 41¢F 509 $ 3,071 1.94%

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets and Interese Savaps

For the six months ended June 30, 20@8ald assets with a carrying value of $369.9 arilfior an aggregate loss of $31.2 million.

Management Fee and General and Administrative Exges

We paid our Manager a base managemewif f84.5 million for the six months ended June 3108 and did not pay an incentive fee for
this six month period.

General and administrative (or G&A) expesiwere $3.7 million for the six months ended Rhe008.

Total expenses as a percentage of avéotajeassets were 0.89% for the six months ended 30, 2008.

Currently, our Manager has waived ithfip require us to pay our pro rata portion ofdtsd its affiliates’, rent, telephone, utilities,
office furniture, equipment, machinery and othdicef internal and overhead expenses requireddooperations. In October 2008, we and
FIDAC amended our management agreement to rededsate management fee from 1.75% per annum to 1p&@%nnum of our
stockholders’ equity and eliminate the incentivesf@reviously provided for in the management agesgm

The table below shows our total managerfenand G&A expenses as compared to averageatssats and average equity for the
quarters ended March 31, 2008 and June 30, 208&harperiod commencing November 21, 2007 and gridactember 31, 2007.

Management Fee and G&A Expenses and Operating Egpreatios
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thousands)

Total
Management Total Management Total Management
Fee and Fee and G&A Fee and G&A
G&A Expenses/Average Expenses/Average
Expenses Total Assets Equity
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $ 3,38( 0.7% 3.35%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 4,79 1.1(% 4.0(%
For the period commencing November 21,
2007 and ending December 31, 2( $ 1,827 1.55% 3.05%

Net Income/Loss and Return on Average Hyu

Our net income (loss) was ($21.0) millfonthe six months ended June 30, 2008. We attithe losses incurred during the six months

ended June 30, 2008 to realized losses on salegestments and unrealized losses on interestved@s. The table below shows our net

interest income, gain (loss) on sale of assetgalized gains
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(loss) on interest rate swaps, total expensespiadax, each as a percentage of average equityhandturn on average equity for the quarters
ended June 30, 2008, March 31, 2008, and the pedigtinencing November 21, 2007 and ending Decenthez(®?7.

Components of Return on Average Equity
(Ratios have been annualized)

Net Gain/(Loss) Unrealized

Interest on Sale of Gain/(Loss) on Total

Income/ Investments Interest Rate Expenses/ Income Return on

Average /Average Swaps/Average Average Tax/Average Average

Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 9.84% 1.7% 25.3t% (3.35%) — 33.6(%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( 11.8% (27.4(%) (26.2%%) (4.00%) — (45.8€6%)
For the period commencing November 21, 2007

ending December 31, 20! 5.1€% — (6.97%) (3.05%) (0.01%) (4.87%)

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We held cash and cash equivalents ofcequpiately $49.9 million at June 30, 2008 compareddsh and cash equivalents of
approximately $6.0 million at December 31, 2007. &ttebute the increase to a reduction in levetagas and the termination of short term
investments in reverse repurchase agreements.

Our operating activities provided netlcagapproximately $15.6 million from operations tbe six months ended June 30, 2008.

Our investing activities used net casBDfl billion for the six months ended June 30,820e used this cash primarily for the purchase
of investments.

Our financing activities as of June 3008 consisted of proceeds from repurchase agrespantvell as the debt obligations of a $619.7
million securitization we completed during the ¢earWe expect to continue to borrow funds in thief of repurchase agreements as well as
other types of financing. We currently have essitdd uncommitted repurchase agreements for RMBSMitounterparties, including
Annaly. As of June 30, 2008, we had $50.0 milliotstanding under our repurchase agreement with lxnAa of September 30, 2008, we t
approximately $620.0 million outstanding under gnggeement, which constitutes approximately 56%unftotal financing. The terms of the
repurchase transaction borrowings under our masperrchase agreements generally conform to thestarine standard master repurchase
agreement as published by the Securities IndustlyFénancial Markets Association, or SIFMA, asd¢payment, margin requirements and the
segregation of all securities we have initiallyssohder the repurchase transaction. In additioch é&ander typically requires that we include
supplemental terms and conditions to the standastenrepurchase agreement. Typical supplementas$ @nd conditions include changes to
the margin maintenance requirements, required tngirand purchase price maintenance requiremefgirements that all controversies
related to the repurchase agreement be litigatedoiarticular jurisdiction and cross default pravis. These provisions will differ for each of
our lenders and will not be determined until weagein a specific repurchase transaction. We reamlegtablished two repurchase agreements
for whole mortgage loans as of June 30, 2008, wiviele terminated subsequent to the end of the gquart

Our RMBS repurchase agreement with Anialplled daily at market rates, bears interestiBOR plus 150 basis points, and is sect
by the RMBS pledged under the agreement. We dexpct to increase significantly the amount of siées pledged to Annaly or
significantly increase or decrease the funds weowofrom Annaly as a result of this offering.

In March 2008, we entered into a recdisisales agreement with Annaly. This agreementighed for the sale of approximately $127
million of receivables by us to Annaly of the preds that we were due to receive under a mortgagedarchase and sale agreement with a
third party. Annaly paid us a discounted amourdwath receivables due from the third party equédde than one percent of such receivables
due from the third party in exchange for us recejuthe purchase price under the receivables sgtegment in immediately available funds
from Annaly. The agreement contained representstiwarranties and covenants by both parties. Adasth 31, 2008, each party had
performed their outstanding obligations under tiieament, the third party purchaser under
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the mortgage loan purchase and sale agreemenglichthp purchase price under the mortgage loarhpsecand sale agreement, and we have
remitted such amounts to Annaly pursuant to theivables sales agreement. We did not enter intsanyar arrangement with Annaly
subsequent to March 31, 2008.

We had outstanding $909.0 million in negniase agreements collateralized by our RMBS witlglted average borrowing rates of
4.85% and weighted average remaining maturitiez3alays as of June 30, 2008. The RMBS pledgedIkderal under these repurchase
agreements had an estimated fair value of $911llibmat June 30, 2008. The interest rates of theparchase agreements are generally
indexed to the one-month LIBOR rate and repricembedingly.

At June 30, 2008 and March 31, 2008rémrirchase agreements for RMBS had the followingairing maturities:

June 30, 2008 March 31, 2008
(dollars in thousands)

Within 30 days $ 539,60: $ 598,16¢
30 to 59 day: 344,97 384,96«
60 to 89 day: — —
90 to 119 day 24,51¢ —
Greater than or equal to 120 d: — 24,51«
Total $ 909,08¢ $ 1,007,64

During the quarter ended March 31, 2@@8entered into two master repurchase agreemergagnt to which we finance whole
mortgage loans. As of March 31, 2008, we had $48¥llion borrowed against these facilities, whicttluded $55.2 million of RMBS, at an
effective rate of 4.41%. The amount borrowed onldla@s held for investment at March 31, 2008 wdktaralized by mortgage loans with a
carrying value of $433.3 million, including accruieterest, and cash totaling $35.2 million. As ehd 30, 2008, we had no amounts borrowed
against these facilities. On July 29, 2008, we teated these agreements in order to avoid payimgusage fees under those agreements.

Increases in short-term interest rateddcoegatively affect the valuation of our mortgagtated assets, which could limit our borrowing
ability or cause our lenders to initiate marginsadmounts due upon maturity of our repurchaseaagents will be funded primarily through
the rollover/reissuance of repurchase agreementsnamthly principal and interest payments receiwedur mortgage-backed securities.

For our short-term (one year or less) land-term liquidity, which includes investing andmpliance with collateralization requirements
under our repurchase agreements (if the pledgéated! decreases in value or in the event of mazglls created by prepayments of the
pledged collateral), we also rely on the cash flomn investments, primarily monthly principal amddrest payments to be received on our
RMBS and whole mortgage loans, cash flow from tile sf securities as well as any primary securitiésrings authorized by our board of
directors.

Based on our current portfolio, leveragio and available borrowing arrangements, weelreliour assets will be sufficient to enable us
to meet anticipated short-term (one year or légs)dity requirements such as to fund our investnaativities, pay fees under our management
agreement, fund our distributions to stockholded pay general corporate expenses. However, aedserin prepayment rates substantially
above our expectations could cause a temporariditgshortfall due to the timing of the necessargrgin calls on the financing arrangements
and the actual receipt of the cash related to pah@aydowns. If our cash resources are at ang tirsufficient to satisfy our liquidity
requirements, we may have to sell investmentssmeisiebt or additional equity securities in a comistock offering. If required, the sale of
RMBS or whole mortgage loans at prices lower theairtcarrying value would result in losses and oedlincome.

Our ability to meet our long-term (greatean one year) liquidity and capital resourceuregments will be subject to obtaining additional
debt financing and equity capital. Subject to oaintaining our qualification as a REIT, we exp&ctise a number of sources to finance our
investments, including repurchase agreements, wasehfacilities, securitizations, commercial paged term financing CDOs. Such financ
will depend on market conditions for capital raisesl for the investment of any proceeds. If wetenable to renew, replace or expand our
sources of financing on substantially similar terinenay have an adverse effect on our business and
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results of operations. Upon liquidation, holderof debt securities, if any, and shares of pretestock, if any, and lenders with respect to
other borrowings will receive a distribution of cawailable assets prior to the holders of our comstock.

We are not required by our investmentiglimes to maintain any specific debt-to-equityorais we believe the appropriate leverage for
the particular assets we are financing dependbl@uoredit quality and risk of those assets. Howewer repurchase agreements for whole loans
require us to maintain certain debt-to-equity atidt June 30, 2008, our total debt was approxity&te.4 billion which represented a debt-to-
equity ratio of approximately 3.6:1. As of SeptemB@, 2008, we had outstanding indebtedness ofbappately $1.119 billion, which consis
of recourse leverage of approximately $620.0 nrilkmd non-recourse securitized financing of appnaxely $499.0 million.

Stockholders’ Equity

During the quarter ended June 30, 20@8declared dividends to common shareholders tgt&&0 million, or $0.16 per share, all of
which was paid on July 31, 2008. During the quasteded March 31, 2008, we declared dividends toneomshareholders totaling $9.8
million, or $0.26 per share, all of which was paidApril 30, 2008. During the period ended Decen8ier2007, we declared dividends to
common shareholders totaling $943 thousand or $Qo@2 share, all of which was paid on January 2682

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
Management Agreement

We have entered into a management agraesmitn FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC is entitléd receive a base management fee and,
in certain circumstances, a termination fee anthlbersement of certain expenses as described management agreement. Such fees and
expenses do not have fixed and determinable payn€hé base management fee is payable quarteslyears in an amount equal to 1.50%
per annum, calculated quarterly, of our stockhadequity (as defined in the management agreemeEHDAC uses the proceeds from its
management fee in part to pay compensation tdfitess and employees who, notwithstanding thatagerof them also are our officers,
receive no cash compensation directly from us.@dse management fee will be reduced, but not beéosw, by our proportionate share of any
CDO base management fees FIDAC receives in commmegfth the CDOs in which we invest, based on theegntage of equity we hold in
such CDOs. We expect to enter into certain corgriett contain a variety of indemnification obligass, principally with FIDAC, brokers and
counterparties to repurchase agreements. The maxipotential future payment amount we could be meglio pay under these
indemnification obligations is unlimited.

Financing Arrangements with Annaly

In March 2008, we entered into a RMBSurepase agreement with Annaly. This agreement oentaistomary representations,
warranties and covenants contained in such agrasmsof June 30, 2008, we had $50.0 million @utding under this agreement with a
weighted average borrowing rate of 3.96%. As oftSeper 30, 2008, we had approximately $620.0 milbatstanding under this agreement,
which constitutes approximately 56% of our totakficing. As of October 13, 2008, the weighted ayel@rrowing rate on amounts
outstanding under this agreement was 3.97%. Our &kpurchase agreement with Annaly is rolled datilsnarket rates, bears interest at
LIBOR plus 150 basis points, and is secured byRWHBS pledged under the agreement. We do not expéctrease significantly the amount
of securities pledged to Annaly or significantlgiease or decrease the funds we borrow from Aramaly result of this offering.

In March 2008, we entered into a recdiesisales agreement with Annaly. This agreementigied for the sale of approximately $127
million of receivables by us to Annaly of the preds that we were due to receive under a mortgagedarchase and sale agreement with a
third party. Annaly paid us a discounted amourguwfh receivables due from the third party equédds than one percent of such receivables
due from the third party in exchange for us reggjuhe purchase price under the receivables sgtesment in immediately available funds
from Annaly. The agreement contained representstiwarranties and covenants by both parties. Adasth 31, 2008, each party had
performed their outstanding obligations under tiieeament, the third party purchaser under the ragedoan purchase and sale agreemen
paid the purchase price under the mortgage loachpse and sale agreement, and we have remittedasaimts to Annaly pursuant to the
receivables sales agreement. We did not enteamgasimilar arrangement with Annaly during the dqelmaended June 30, 2008.
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Restricted Stock Grant

During the quarter ended June 30, 2028 shares of restricted stock we had awardedrtdlanager’'s employees vested and 6,713
shares were forfeited or cancelled. We did nottggag incentive awards during the quarter endeé 30y 2008.

At June 30, 2008 there are approximateymillion unvested shares of restricted stockasisto employees of FIDAC. For the three
months ended June 30, 2008, compensation expessgdaeral and administrative costs associatedtidthmortization of the fair value of 1
restricted stock totaled $337 thousand.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following table summarizes our coctiwal obligations at June 30, 2008.

(dollars in thousands)

Greater

Than or
Within One One to Three to Equal to
Contractual Obligations Year Three Years Five Years Five Years Total
Repurchase agreements for RM $ 909,08t $ — $ — $ — 3 909,08
Securitized dek 93,63¢ 173,87- 105,02¢ 152,93¢ 525,47:
Interest expense on RMBS repurch
agreements(1 19 — — — 19
Interest expense on securitized d 31,33: 51,50: 30,76¢ 227,99: 341,59
Total $ 1,034,07! $ 225,37" $ 135,78t $ 380,93¢ $ 1,776,17

1) Interest is based on rates in effect as of Jun@(UB.

The repurchase agreements for our repsecfacilities generally do not include substanfik@visions other than those contained in the
standard master repurchase agreement as publigtibd Becurities Industry and Financial Marketsokgation.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships withamsolidated entities or financial partnershipshsas entities often referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which wouldehlaeen established for the purpose of facilitatifipalance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furthveg,have not guaranteed any obligations of uncodatd entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any secttities. As such, we are not materially exposeahty market, credit, liquidity or financii
risk that could arise if we had engaged in sucatieships.

Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay anrdigidends to our stockholders of at least 90% oftanable income, determined without regard
to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding aet capital gains. We intend to pay regular tpubr dividends to our stockholders. Before
we pay any dividend, whether for U.S. federal inediax purposes or otherwise, which would only bid pat of available cash to the extent
permitted under our warehouse and repurchasetiesiind commercial paper, we must first meet bathoperating requirements and
scheduled debt service on our warehouse lines #red debt payable.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liab#$ are interest rate sensitive in nature. As dtrésterest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chamgénterest rates do not necessarily correlathk inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our financial statements are prepared iardaace with GAAP and our distributions will be eimhined by our board of directors
consistent with our obligation to distribute to @tiockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable ine@mn an annual basis in order to maintain
our REIT qualification; in each case, our acti\stend balance sheet are measured with refereinistéoical cost and/or fair market value
without considering inflation.
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Q UANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKE T RISK

The primary components of our market sk related to credit risk, interest rate rislkegatyment risk, market value risk and real estate
market risk. While we do not seek to avoid risk ptetely, we believe the risk can be quantified frioistorical experience and we seek to
actively manage that risk, to earn sufficient congagion to justify taking those risks and to maimtzapital levels consistent with the risks we
undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in conn@etivith our investments and face more credit rislassets we own which are rated below “AAA”
The credit risk related to these investments pesta the ability and willingness of the borrowergay, which is assessed before credit is
granted or renewed and periodically reviewed thhawg the loan or security term. We believe thaidies loan credit quality is primarily
determined by the borrowers’ credit profiles anan@haracteristics. Our Manager uses a compreleogdit review process. Our Manager’'s
analysis of loans includes borrower profiles, al a®valuation and appraisal data. Our Manages aempensating factors such as liquid
assets, low loan-to-value ratios and job stabititgvaluating loans. Our Manager’s resources irekgroprietary portfolio management
system, as well as third party software systems.NManager utilizes third party due diligence firtosperform an independent underwriting
review to insure compliance with existing guiden®ur Manager selects loans for review predicatedsk-based criteria such as loan-to-
value, borrower’s credit score(s) and loan size. anager also outsources underwriting services\t@w higher risk loans, either due to
borrower credit profiles or collateral valuatiosugs. In addition to statistical sampling technggweir Manager creates adverse credit and
valuation samples, which we individually review.Qdianager rejects loans that fail to conform to standards. Our Manager accepts only
those loans which meet our underwriting criteriac®we own a loan, our Manager’s surveillance medecludes ongoing analysis through
our proprietary data warehouse and servicer fi@glitionally, the non-Agency RMBS and other ABS walniwe will acquire for our portfolio
are reviewed by FIDAC to ensure that they satisfiyrisk based criteria. Our Manager’s review of #kgency RMBS and other ABS includes
utilizing its proprietary portfolio management srst Our Manager’s review of non-Agency RMBS andeo#BS is based on quantitative and
gualitative analysis of the risk-adjusted returnsion-Agency RMBS and other ABS present.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitivartany factors, including governmental monetary &xdolicies, domestic and international
economic and political considerations and othetofacbeyond our control. We are subject to interatst risk in connection with our
investments and our related debt obligations, whighgenerally repurchase agreements, warehoubgeacsecuritization, commercial paper
and term financing CDOs. Our repurchase agreenagntsvarehouse facilities may be of limited duratioat are periodically refinanced at
current market rates. We intend to mitigate thsk through utilization of derivative contracts,marily interest rate swap agreements.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Income

Our operating results depend, in large, pa differences between the income from our $twents and our borrowing costs. Most of our
warehouse facilities and repurchase agreementsderfimancing based on a floating rate of intecedtulated on a fixed spread over LIBOR.
The fixed spread varies depending on the type détiying asset which collateralizes the financiagcordingly, the portion of our portfolio
which consists of floating interest rate assetslvéilmatch-funded utilizing our expected sourceshmirtterm financing, while our fixed intere
rate assets will not be match-funded. During periofdrising interest rates, the borrowing cost®eisgéed with our investments tend to increase
while the income earned on our fixed interest natestments may remain substantially unchangeds Will result in a narrowing of the net
interest spread between the related assets analbngs and may even result in losses. Furthernduthis portion of the interest rate and cr
cycles, defaults could increase and result in tfedses to us, which could adversely affect ayuitlity and operating results. Such
delinquencies or defaults could also have an adweffect on the spread between interest-earnirefsaaad interest-bearing liabilities. Hedging
techniques are partly based on assumed leveleppments of our fixed-rate and hybrid adjustabte-mortgage loans and RMBS. If
prepayments are slower or faster than assumedfdraf the mortgage loans and RMBS will be longeshorter, which would reduce the
effectiveness of any hedging strategies we mayandemay cause losses on such transactions. Heslgatggies involving the use of derivat
securities are highly complex and may produce ilelagturns.
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Interest Rate Effects on Fair Valu

Another component of interest rate riskhie effect changes in interest rates will havéherfair value of the assets we acquire. We face
the risk that the fair value of our assets willrgese or decrease at different rates than thairdfabilities, including our hedging instruments.
We primarily assess our interest rate risk by estimg the duration of our assets and the durati@upliabilities. Duration essentially meast
the market price volatility of financial instrumerds interest rates change. We generally calcdiatgion using various financial models and
empirical data. Different models and methodologi@s produce different duration numbers for the ssevairities.

It is important to note that the impattbanging interest rates on fair value can chaigeificantly when interest rates change beyond
100 basis points from current levels. Therefore wblatility in the fair value of our assets coirldrease significantly when interest rates
change beyond 100 basis points. In addition, ddmors impact the fair value of our interest ragmsitive investments and hedging
instruments, such as the shape of the yield cunegket expectations as to future interest rate gésand other market conditions.
Accordingly, in the event of changes in actualiest rates, the change in the fair value of ouetassould likely differ from that shown above
and such difference might be material and adverseit stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate morggagins and RMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS ichwhe underlying mortgages are
typically subject to periodic and lifetime intereate caps and floors, which limit the amount byoktthe security’s interest yield may change
during any given period. However, our borrowingtsgaursuant to our financing agreements will nosilgject to similar restrictions.
Therefore, in a period of increasing interest ratgsrest rate costs on our borrowings could iaseawithout limitation by caps, while the
interest-rate yields on our adjustable-rate mordagns and RMBS would effectively be limited. Thisblem will be magnified to the extent
we acquire adjustable-rate RMBS that are not basedortgages which are fully indexed. In addititre mortgages or the underlying
mortgages in an RMBS may be subject to periodiergay caps that result in some portion of the istelbeing deferred and added to the
principal outstanding. This could result in oureigt of less cash income on our adjustable-rategages or RMBS than we need in order to
pay the interest cost on our related borrowinggs€hfactors could lower our net interest incomeanise a net loss during periods of rising
interest rates, which would harm our financial dbéod, cash flows and results of operations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our asifjions of hybrid adjustable-rate mortgages and88Mvith borrowings that, after the effect of
hedging, have interest rates based on indicesepriting terms similar to, but of somewhat shon@turities than, the interest rate indices and
repricing terms of the mortgages and RMBS. Thus)dst cases the interest rate indices and reprteimgs of our mortgage assets and our
funding sources will not be identical, thereby tirgaan interest rate mismatch between assetsiabitities. Therefore, our cost of funds wo
likely rise or fall more quickly than would our e@mgs rate on assets. During periods of changitegest rates, such interest rate mismatches
could negatively impact our financial conditionshdlows and results of operations. To mitigateri@st rate mismatches, we may utilize the
hedging strategies discussed above. Our analysisksfis based on our Manager’s experience, estgnanodels and assumptions. These
analyses rely on models which utilize estimatefamfvalue and interest rate sensitivity. Actuabeomic conditions or implementation of
investment decisions by our management may prodaseets that differ significantly from the estimatend assumptions used in our models
and the projected results shown in this prospectus.

Our profitability and the value of ourrgolio (including interest rate swaps) may be adeéy affected during any period as a result of
changing interest rates. The following table quatithe potential changes in net interest inconteportfolio value should interest rates go up
or down 25, 50, and 75 basis points, assumingitid gurves of the rate shocks will be paralletéwh other and the current yield curve. All
changes in income and value are measured as pageettianges from the projected net interest in@mdeportfolio value at the base interest
rate scenario. The base interest rate scenariona@ssinterest rates at June 30, 2008 and variousatss regarding prepayment and all activ
are made at each level of rate shock. Actual resoltld differ significantly from these estimates.
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Projected Percentage Change in Projected Percentage Change in

Change in Interest Rate Net Interest Income Portfolio Value
-75 Basis Point (9.2€%) 1.1€%
-50 Basis Point (6.34%) 1.1(%
-25 Basis Point (3.2(%) 1.02%
Base Interest Ral — —
+25 Basis Point 3.4(% 0.77%
+50 Basis Point 6.82% 0.61%
+75 Basis Point 10.20% 0.42%

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principatloese investments, premiums paid on such investmweél be amortized against interest
income. In general, an increase in prepayment wilbaccelerate the amortization of purchase prans, thereby reducing the interest income
earned on the investments. Conversely, discounssiol investments are accreted into interest incémgeneral, an increase in prepayment
rates will accelerate the accretion of purchaseaodists, thereby increasing the interest incomeesgbom the investments.

Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weipatverage life of our investments based on assonsptegarding the rate at which the
borrowers will prepay the underlying mortgagesgémeral, when fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-ratetgage loans or RMBS are acquired
with borrowings, we may, but are not required tigeinto an interest rate swap agreement or dtbdging instrument that effectively fixes
our borrowing costs for a period close to the @pdited average life of the fixed-rate portion of tlelated assets. This strategy is designed to
protect us from rising interest rates because thetving costs are fixed for the duration of theefi+ate portion of the related assets. Howe
if prepayment rates decrease in a rising inteegstenvironment, the life of the fixed-rate portwfrthe related assets could extend beyond the
term of the swap agreement or other hedging ingninThis could have a negative impact on our te$tdm operations, as borrowing costs
would no longer be fixed after the end of the haggnstrument while the income earned on the hyadidstable-rate assets would remain
fixed. This situation may also cause the markateaif our hybrid adjustable-rate assets to decluith, little or no offsetting gain from the
related hedging transactions. In extreme situatismesmay be forced to sell assets to maintain aatediquidity, which could cause us to incur
losses.

Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities ardeited at their estimated fair value with unrealigains and losses excluded from earnings and
reported in other comprehensive income pursuaBE#®S No. 115Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and BgSiecurities The
estimated fair value of these securities fluctugrésarily due to changes in interest rates anérfctors. Generally, in a rising interest rate
environment, the estimated fair value of these isgesi would be expected to decrease; conversely,decreasing interest rate environment
estimated fair value of these securities wouldypeeted to increase. As market volatility increasebquidity decreases, the fair value of our
investments may be adversely impacted. If we aablento readily obtain independent pricing to vatédour estimated fair value of securities
in the portfolio, the fair value gains or lossesar@led in other comprehensive income may be adyeaffected.

Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real propedyn@ay own real property directly in the future. Restial property values are subject to
volatility and may be affected adversely by a nundfdactors, including, but not limited to, natednregional and local economic conditions
(which may be adversely affected by industry slowds and other factors); local real estate conditi@uch as an oversupply of housing);
changes or continued weakness in specific inds&igynents; construction quality, age and designpdeaphic factors; and retroactive char
to building or similar codes. In addition, decreaseproperty values reduce the value of the cailédtand the potential proceeds available to a
borrower to repay our loans, which could also caissto suffer losses.
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Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining REIT status, we seek to manage risk exposupeatect our portfolio of residential
mortgage loans, RMBS, and other assets and radatetthgainst the effects of major interest ratengha. We generally seek to manage our

by:

* monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the rasg¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

» attempting to structure our financing agreementsatee a range of different maturities, terms, arpatibns and interest rate adjustment
periods;

» using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, omiaraps, floors and forward sales to adjust therést rate sensitivity of our MBS and
our borrowings

» using securitization financing to lower averaget@gunds relative to shc-term financing vehicles further allowing us to reeethe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pedbtime in contrast to short term financing and un¢y dates of the investments
included in the securitization; au

» actively managing, on an aggregate basis, theastteate indices, interest rate adjustment perimud,gross reset margins of «
investments and the interest rate indices and td@rg periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets andlitiab are concerned with the timing and magnitofi¢he repricing of assets and liabilities. We
attempt to control risks associated with intera movements. Methods for evaluating interestrigkeinclude an analysis of our interest rate
sensitivity “gap”, which is the difference betwedaterest-earning assets and inteltgstring liabilities maturing or repricing withingaven time
period. A gap is considered positive when the arhofimterest-rate sensitive assets exceeds theiained interest-rate sensitive liabilities. A
gap is considered negative when the amount ofésteate sensitive liabilities exceeds interes-snsitive assets. During a period of rising
interest rates, a negative gap would tend to adeesfect net interest income, while a positive geould tend to result in an increase in net
interest income. During a period of falling intarestes, a negative gap would tend to result iilmarease in net interest income, while a
positive gap would tend to affect net interest mecadversely. Because different types of assetdiabitities with the same or similar
maturities may react differently to changes in allanarket rates or conditions, changes in inter@sts may affect net interest income
positively or negatively even if an institution weegperfectly matched in each maturity category.

The following table sets forth the estiethmaturity or repricing of our interest-earnirggets and interest-bearing liabilities at June 30,
2008. The amounts of assets and liabilities shoitimimva particular period were determined in acemck with the contractual terms of the
assets and liabilities, except adjustable-ratedpand securities are included in the period incitheir interest rates are first scheduled to
adjust and not in the period in which they mature does include the effect of the interest ratepsw@he interest rate sensitivity of our assets
and liabilities in the table could vary substamyi@ based on actual prepayment experience.

Within 3 1Yearto3 Greater than
Months 3-12 Months Years 3 Years Total

(dollars in thousands)

Rate sensitive asse $ — $ 49620 $ 360,14 $ 157825 $ 1,988,02
Cash equivalent 49,88¢ — — 49,88¢
Total rate sensitive asse $ 4988¢ $ 49,62 $ 360,14¢ $ 157825 $ 2,037,91
Rate sensitive liabilities, with the effect of sws: (19,689 214,11 598,65t 641,47: 1,434,561
Interest rate sensitivity ge $ 6957 $ (164,49) $ (238,50) $ 936,78t $ 603,35
Cumulative rate sensitivity ge $ 69570 $ (9492) $ (333,429 $ 603,35’

Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap as a pesgs
of total rate-sensitive asse 3% (5%) (16%) 3C%
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Our analysis of risks is based on FIDA&xperience, estimates, models and assumptionseTdralyses rely on models which utilize
estimates of fair value and interest rate sensgjtivictual economic conditions or implementatiornirofestment decisions by FIDAC may
produce results that differ significantly from thstimates and assumptions used in our models arqtofected results shown in the above
tables and in this prospectus. These analysesinamgain forward-looking statements and are sthifethe safe harbor statement set forth
under the heading “Forward-Looking Statements.”
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B USINESS
Our Company

We are a specialty finance company tasts in residential mortgage-backed securitieRMBS, residential mortgage loans, real
estate-related securities and various other akssas. We have elected and intend to qualify tiaked as a real estate investment trust, or
REIT, for federal income tax purposes commencint) wur taxable year ending on December 31, 200¥el§ualify for taxation as a REIT,
we generally will not be subject to federal incotae on our taxable income that is distributed tostockholders. We are externally managed
by Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company, which igéer to as our Manager or FIDAC. Our Managemisngestment advisor registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or.Sfditionally, our Manager is a wholly-owned subiary of Annaly Capital
Management, Inc., or Annaly, a New York Stock Exualexlisted REIT, which has a long track record ahiaging investments in U.S.
government agency mortgage-backed securities.

Our objective is to provide attractivekradjusted returns to our investors over the l@mgy, primarily through dividends and secondz
through capital appreciation. We intend to achidgn® objective by investing in a broad class oéfinial assets to construct an investment
portfolio that is designed to achieve attractigk+adjusted returns and that is structured to cpmith the various federal income tax
requirements for REIT status and to maintain o@ngastion from registration under the Investment CanmypAct of 1940, or 1940 Act.

We were organized in Maryland on Jun20D7, and commenced operations on November 21, 200Wing the completion of our
initial public offering. In our initial public offeéng, including the exercise of the underwritesgerallotment option, we sold approximately 3
million shares of our common stock at $15.00 parshand raised proceeds of $479.3 million beféfieriog expenses. Concurrent with our
initial public offering, in a private offering wekl to Annaly approximately 3.6 million shares ofr @ommon stock at $15.00 per share for
aggregate proceeds of approximately $54.3 million.

Our Manager

We are externally managed and adviseBIDAC pursuant to a management agreement. All ofofficers are employees of our
Manager or its affiliates. Our Manager is a fixadéme investment management company specializingaimaging investments in U.S.
government agency residential mortgage-backed iesyior Agency RMBS, which are mortgage passttglocertificates, collateralized
mortgage obligations, or CMOs, and other mortghgeked securities representing interests in ogabitins backed by pools of mortgage lo
issued or guaranteed by the Federal National Mgegessociation, or Fannie Mae, the Federal Homa IMartgage Corporation, or Freddie
Mac, and the Government National Mortgage Assamiatdr Ginnie Mae. Our Manager also has experignoganaging investments in non-
Agency RMBS and collateralized debt obligationsC&rOs; real estate-related securities; and managedijt and interest rate-sensitive
investment strategies. Our Manager commenced actestment management operations in 1994. At 30n2008, our Manager was the
adviser or sub-adviser for funds with approximatky7 billion in net assets and $11.8 billion ingg assets, and which consisted
predominantly of Agency RMBS.

Our Manager is responsible for adminieteour business activities and day-to-day openati®Ve have no employees other than our
officers. Pursuant to the terms of the managemgneieanent, our Manager provides us with our managetaam, including our officers, along
with appropriate support personnel. Our Managet &l times subject to the supervision and ovéitsig our board of directors and has only
such functions and authority as we delegate to it.

Our Manager has well-respected and dstadul portfolio management resources for each ofasgeted asset classes and a sophisticate
infrastructure supporting those resources, inclydivestment professionals focusing on residentiatgage loans, Agency and non-Agency
RMBS and other asset-backed securities. Additignale have benefited and expect to continue to fitefrem our Manager’s finance and
administration functions, which address legal, ciamge, investor relations and operational matieduding portfolio management, trade
allocation and execution, securities valuatiork nenagement and information technologies in cotimeaevith the performance of its duties.

We do not pay any of our officers anytcasmpensation. Rather, we pay our Manager a basagement fee pursuant to the terms of
the management agreement.
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Our Competitive Advantages
We believe that our competitive advansaigelude the following:
Investment Strategy Designed to Perform in a Vayieff Interest Rate and Credit Environments

We seek to manage our investment strate@glance both interest rate risk and credit Nk believe this strategy is designed to
generate attractive, risk-adjusted returns in &taof market conditions because operating comdgiin which either of these risks are
increased, or decreased, may occur at differemtgai the economic cycle. For example, there nmeapdyiods when interest-rate sensitive
strategies outperform credit-sensitive strategiksraby we would receive increased income over osir @f financing, in which case our
portfolio’s increased exposure to this risk woukdheneficial. There may be other periods when tisitive strategies outperform interest-
rate sensitive strategies. Although we face intawe risk and credit risk, we believe that wiipeopriate hedging strategies, as well as our
ability to evaluate the quality of targeted asagestment opportunities, we can reduce these aisigprovide attractive risk-adjusted returns.

Credit-Oriented Investment Approach

We seek to minimize principal loss whitaximizing risk-adjusted returns through our Man&geredit-based investment approach,
which is based on rigorous quantitative and qualgaanalysis.

Experienced Investment Advisor

Our Manager has a long history of strpagormance across a broad range of fixed-incorseta.sOur Manages’most senior investme
professionals have a long history of investing iradety of mortgage and real estagdated securities and structuring and marketingp€D0u
Manager is also acting as liquidating agent foumber of CDOs, and has competitive advantagesesudt of its knowledge regarding the
pipeline, values, supply and market participantdifpidations of CDOs because of its involvementhiese liquidations. Investments will be
overseen by an Investment Committee of our Managetfessionals, consisting of Michael A.J. FarMellington J. Denahan-Norris, James
P. Fortescue, Kristopher Konrad, Rose-Marie LyRunald Kazel, Jeremy Diamond, Eric Szabo and Matth@mbiase.

Access to Annaly’s and Our Manager’s Relationships

Annaly and our Manager have developed-iemm relationships with a number of commerciaiksaand other financial intermediaries.
We believe these relationships provide us withr@ezof high-quality investment opportunities.

Access to Our Manager’s Systems and Infrastructure

Our Manager has created a proprietartff@mr management system, which we believe provigesith a competitive advantage. Our
Manager’s personnel have created a comprehensiaede and administrative infrastructure, an impdrt@mponent of a complex investment
vehicle such as a REIT. In addition, most of oumisliger’'s personnel are also Annalyersonnel; therefore, they have had extensiveresre
managing Annaly, which is a REIT.

Alignment of Interests between Annaly, Our Managand Our Investors

Immediately after this offering, we wéktll to Annaly 11,681,415 shares of common stock fimivate offering at the same price per share
as the price per share of this public offering. bpompletion of this offering and the private offigrimmediately after this offering, Annaly
will own approximately 9.6% of our outstanding coomstock (which percentage excludes shares toldeaesuant to the exercise of the
underwriters’ overallotment option and unvestedesaf our restricted common stock granted to @acetive officers and employees of our
Manager or its affiliates).

We believe that Annaly’s investment atignur Manager’s interests with our interests.
Our Investment Strategy

Our objective is to provide attractivekdadjusted returns to our investors over the lamgy, primarily through dividends and secondz
through capital appreciation. We intend to achigng objective by investing in a diversified invesnt portfolio of residential mortgage-
backed securities, residential mortgage loans,egtake-related securities and various other atsstes, subject to maintaining our REIT status
and exemption from registration under the 1940 Abe residential mortgage backed securities, or BlVisset backed securities, or
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ABS, commercial mortgage backed securities, or CMBfsl CDOs we purchase may include investment-gradenon-investment grade

classes, including the BB-rated, B-rated and ndedralasses.

We rely on our Manager’s expertise imiifging assets within our target asset classes.Nlanager makes investment decisions based
on various factors, including expected cash yiedtitive value, risk-adjusted returns, current prajected credit fundamentals, current and
projected macroeconomic considerations, currentpaojgcted supply and demand, credit and markletcoscentration limits, liquidity, cost
financing and financing availability, as well asintaining our REIT qualification and our exemptifsom registration under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investmeaitocation strategy as market conditions changeetk to maximize the returns from our
investment portfolio. We believe this strategy, tdémed with our Manager’s experience, will enabldaipay dividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing interest rateaadit cycles and provide attractive long-term mesuto investors.

Our targeted asset classes and theipainovestments we have made and expect to ma&adh are as follows:

Asset Class

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities, or RMBS

Residential Mortgage Loat

Other Asse-Backed Securities, or AB

Principal Investments

Non-Agency RMBS, including investment- grade and non-
investment grade classes, including the BB-ratetqtBd and non-
rated classe:

Agency RMBS.

Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loanscthrafbrm to thi
underwriting guidelines of Fannie Mae and FreddecMvhich we
refer to as Agency Guidelines; and jumbo prime gege loans,
which are mortgage loans that conform to the Agdbuidelines
except as to loan siz

Alt- A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that inaay bee
originated using documentation standards thatem®dtringent the
the documentation standards applied by certairr ditisé lien
mortgage loan purchase programs, such as the Adgenicielines,
but have one or more compensating factors suctbasrawer with
a strong credit or mortgage history or significassets

Commercial mortga¢-backed securities, or CMB

Debt and equity tranches of collateralized debigaltions, ot
CDOs.

Consumer and n-consumer ABS, including investm«-grade anc
non-investment grade classes, including the BBdrdBerated and
nor-rated classe:

Since we commenced operations in NoverBber, we have focused our investment activitieaaquiring non-Agency RMBS and on
purchasing residential mortgage loans that hava bdginated by select high-quality originators;lirding the retail lending operations of
leading commercial banks. This is in contrast tm&g’s strategy which concentrates on Agency RMB8r investment portfolio at June 30,
2008 was weighted toward non-Agency RMBS. After¢cbasummation of this offering, we expect that ahernear term our investment
portfolio will continue to be weighted toward RMB&)bject to maintaining our REIT qualification and




our 1940 Act exemption. In addition, we have engaigeand anticipate continuing to engage in tratisas with residential mortgage lending
operations of leading commercial banks and othgii-quality originators in which we identify and wederwrite residential mortgage loans
owned by such entities, and rather than purchasidgsecuritizing such residential mortgage loansejves, we and the originator would
structure the securitization and we would purctihegesulting mezzanine and subordinate non-Ag&MBS. We may also engage in similar
transactions with non-Agency RMBS in which we woatdjuire AAA-rated non-Agency RMBS and immediateysecuritize those securities.
We would sell the resulting AAA-rated super sedBS and retain the AAA-rated mezzanine RMBS. @westment decisions, however,
will depend on prevailing market conditions andlwilange over time. As a result, we cannot preatietpercentage of our assets that will be
invested in each asset class or whether we widshin other classes of investments. We may changavestment strategy and policies
without a vote of our stockholders.

We have elected and intend to qualifpeédaxed as a REIT commencing with our taxable gading December 31, 2007 and to operate
our business so as to be exempt from registratioleiuthe 1940 Act, and therefore we will be reqlib@invest a substantial majority of our
assets in loans secured by mortgages on real estdtesal estateelated assets. Subject to maintaining our REITifieetion and our 1940 Ac
exemption, we do not have any limitations on th@ants we may invest in any of our targeted asssisels.

Our Investment Portfolio

As of June 30, 2008, our investment plicifconsisted of the following (dollars in thousksi:

Estimated Fair Percent of Total Weighted Average
Amortized Cost Value Portfolio(1) Coupon(1)
RMBS $1,221,56 $1,116,58! 59.2% 6.27%
Residential Mortgage Loans( $ 150,62 $ 150,08: 8.C% 5.71%
Securitized Loan $ 614,27 $ 613,58 32.6% 5.9€%
Total $1,986,47. $1,880,24 100.(%

(1) Based on estimated fair value.

(2) On April 24, 2008, we sponsored a $619illian securitization, which was structured as adeterm financing transaction. See “—
Recent Developments.” Securitizations structurefinamcings will result in the outstanding prindifp@alance of the securitized mortgage loans
remaining on our books as an asset and the ouistppdncipal balance of the notes issued by thstiwill be recorded on our books as a
liability. On July 25, 2008, we sponsored a $15mhilfion securitization, which was structured asates Securitizations structured as sales will
result in the fair value of any notes and equityrat@in remaining on our books as an asset.

The following briefly discusses the pipal types of investments that we have made andaxp make:
Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

We have invested in and intend to comtitauinvest in RMBS which are typically pagseugh certificates created by the securitizati€
a pool of mortgage loans that are collateralizeddsydential real estate properties.

The securitization process is governedixy or more of the rating agencies, includingtFRatings, Moody'’s Investors Service and
Standard & Poor’s, which determine the respectimediclass sizes, generally based on a sequenyiadgrd structure. Bonds that are rated
from AAA to BBB by the rating agencies are consétketinvestment grade.” Bond classes that are siatelto the BBB class are considered
“below-investment grade” or “non-investment gradehe respective bond class sizes are determinesditmsthe review of the underlying
collateral by the rating agencies. The paymentsived from the underlying loans are used to magetyments on the RMBS. Based on the
sequential payment priority, the risk of nonpaymientthe investment grade RMBS is lower than ts& df nonpayment for the nanvestmen
grade bonds. Accordingly, the investment gradesdagypically sold at a lower yield compared te tion-investment grade classes which are
sold at higher yields.

We invest in investment grade and noregtment grade RMBS. We evaluate the credit chaisiits of these types of securities,
including, but not limited to, loan balance distrilon, geographic concentration, property type upemcy, periodic and lifetime cap, weighted-
average loan-to-value and weighted-average FIC@sQualifying securities are then analyzed usiagedine expectations of expected
prepayments and losses from given sectors, issnerthe current state of the fixed-income marketses and prepayments are stressed
simultaneously based on a credit risk-based m&#alurities in this portfolio are monitored for \arce from expected prepayments,
frequencies, severities, losses and cash flow.dlleediligence process is particularly
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important and costly with respect to newly formeijimators or issuers because there may be litteodnformation publicly available about
these entities and investments.

We may invest in net interest margin sigieis, or NIMs, which are notes that are payabbenfand secured by excess cash flow that is
generated by RMBS or home equity line of creditkeacsecurities, or HELOCSs, after paying the debtise, expenses and fees on such
securities. The excess cash flow represents allpmrtion of a residual that is generally retaibgdhe originator of the RMBS or HELOCs. 1
residual is illiquid, thus the originator will motiee the position by securitizing the residual &wliing a NIM, usually in the form of a note t
is backed by the excess cash flow generated inrtlerlying securitization.

We may invest in mortgage pass-througtifimates issued or guaranteed by Ginnie Mae, iahtae or Freddie Mac. We refer to these
U.S. government agencies as Agencies, and to thigage pass-through certificates they issue oraguiee as Agency Mortgage Pass-through
Certificates. More specifically, Agency MortgagesBdhrough Certificates are securities represemtitegests in “pools” of mortgage loans
secured by residential real property where paymefit®th interest and principal, plus pre-paid pifal, on the securities are made monthly to
holders of the security, in effect “passing througtonthly payments made by the individual borronensthe mortgage loans that underlie the
securities, net of fees paid to the issuer/guaraarid servicers of the securities. We may alsoshivecollateralized mortgage obligations, or
CMOs, issued by the Agencies. CMOs consist of mplglttlasses of securities, with each class bedlifferent stated maturity dates. Monthly
payments of principal, including prepayments, &t feturned to investors holding the shortesturigyt class; investors holding the longer
maturity classes receive principal only after tingt fclass has been retired. We refer to thesestgpsecurities as Agency CMOs, and we refer
to Agency Mortgage Pass-through Certificates andntg CMOs as Agency RMBS.

Agency RMBS are collateralized by eitfieed-rate mortgage loans, or FRMs, adjustable-madetgage loans, or ARMs, or hybrid
ARMSs. Hybrid ARMs are mortgage loans that haverederates that are fixed for an initial periodo{tally three, five, seven or ten years) and
thereafter reset at regular intervals subject tier@st rate caps. Our allocation between secudtéateralized by FRMs, ARMs or hybrid
ARMs will depend on various factors including, Imat limited to, relative value, expected futuregagment trends, supply and demand, costs
of financing, costs of hedging, expected futureriest rate volatility and the overall shape ofth8. Treasury and interest rate swap yield
curves. We take these factors into account whemaie these types of investments.

Recently, the government passed the “guasnd Economic Recovery Act of 2008”. Fannie Mad Freddie Mac have recently been
placed into the conservatorship of the Federal Hgusinance Agency, or FHFA, their federal regulapursuant to its powers under The
Federal Housing Finance Regulatory Reform Act df&@& part of the Housing and Economic RecoveryoA@008. As the conservator of
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, the FHFA controls aretts the operations of Fannie Mae and Freddie &tacmay (1) take over the assets of
and operate Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac with alptiveers of the shareholders, the directors, andffieers of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
and conduct all business of Fannie Mae and Fraddie (2) collect all obligations and money due tmfie Mae and Freddie Mac; (3) perfc
all functions of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac whigh @nsistent with the conservator’s appointmebtpfeserve and conserve the assets and
property of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; and (5}remhfor assistance in fulfilling any function tiadty, action or duty of the conservator.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conséovaf Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, (i) the U.S. &#pent of Treasury and FHFA have
entered into preferred stock purchase agreemetwgbe the U.S. Department of Treasury and Fannie &fta Freddie Mac pursuant to which
the U.S. Department of Treasury will ensure thahezf Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac maintains a pesitet worth; (ii) the U.S. Department
of Treasury has established a new secured lendatit ¢acility which will be available to Fannie MaFreddie Mac, and the Federal Home
Loan Banks, which is intended to serve as a ligquidackstop, which will be available until Decem@&09; and (iii) the U.S. Department of
Treasury has initiated a temporary program to pasetRMBS issued by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.

The Emergency Economic Stabilization 8ick008, or EESA, was recently enacted. The EE4&ides the U.S. Secretary of the
Treasury with the authority to establish a Troubdsdet Relief Program, or TARP, to purchase framarficial institutions up to $700 billion of
residential or commercial mortgages and any séesyibbligations, or other instruments that areebbas or related to such mortgages, that in
each case was originated or issued on or beforetMit, 2008, as well as any other financial insgntthat the U.S. Secretary of the Treas
after consultation with the Chairman of the Boaf&Governors of the Federal Reserve System, detesrilre purchase of which is necessal
promote financial market stability, upon transntitthsuch determination, in
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writing, to the appropriate committees of the WCBngress. The EESA also provides for a programviioald allow companies to insure their
troubled assets.

There can be no assurance that the EEBAave a beneficial impact on the financial maskéncluding current extreme levels of
volatility. To the extent the market does not respéavorably to the TARP or the TARP does not fiorcas intended, our business may not
receive the anticipated positive impact from thgidkation. In addition, the U.S. Government, FetiBeserve and other governmental and
regulatory bodies have taken or are consideringgather actions to address the financial cridis. cannot predict whether or when such
actions may occur or what impact, if any, suchamsticould have on our business, results of op&stad financial condition.

We anticipate engaging in transactiorth wésidential mortgage lending operations of legdiommercial banks and other high-quality
originators in which we identify and r@derwrite residential mortgage loans owned by smthies, and rather than purchasing and secing
such residential mortgage loans ourselves, welandriginator would structure the securitizatiod are would purchase the resulting
mezzanine and subordinate non-Agency RMBS. We risayeangage in similar transactions with non-AgeR&BS in which we would
acquire AAA-rated non-Agency RMBS and immediatedysecuritize those securities. We would sell tisalltang AAA-rated super senior
RMBS and retain the AAA-rated mezzanine RMBS.

Residential Mortgage Loans

We have invested and intend to contiu@vest in residential mortgage loans (mortgage$osecured by residential real property)
primarily through direct purchases from selecteghkguality originators. On December 14, 2007, weersd into a mortgage loan purchase
agreement with PHH Mortgage Corporation. We intendnter into additional mortgage loan purchaseagents with a number of primary
mortgage loan originators, including mortgage basikeommercial banks, savings and loan associatimmse builders, credit unions and
mortgage conduits. We may also purchase mortgageslon the secondary market. We expect these todressecured primarily by resident
properties in the United States.

We invest primarily in residential morggaloans underwritten to our specifications. Thgionators perform the credit review of the
borrowers, the appraisal of the properties secutirgoan, and maintain other quality control prhaes. We generally consider the purcha:
loans when the originators have verified the boexshincome and assets, verified their credit mjstmnd obtained appraisals of the properties.
We or a third party perform an independent undeingireview of the processing, underwriting andnl@éosing methodologies that the
originators used in qualifying a borrower for ano®epending on the size of the loans, we mayeew all of the loans in a pool, but rather
select loans for underwriting review based uporcifigerisk-based criteria such as property locatioan size, effective loan-to-value ratio,
borrower’s credit score and other criteria we ha&ito be important indicators of credit risk. Adaiitally, before the purchase of loans, we
obtain representations and warranties from eadinatior stating that each loan is underwrittenuorequirements or, in the event underwri
exceptions have been made, we are informed sevihatay evaluate whether to accept or reject thesloAn originator who breaches these
representations and warranties in making a loarvibgourchase may be obligated to repurchase #reffom us. As added security, we use
services of a thirgharty document custodian to insure the quality acliracy of all individual mortgage loan closingdments and to hold tl
documents in safekeeping. As a result, all of thgimal loan collateral documents that are signgdhle borrower, other than the original credit
verification documents, are examined, verified hattl by the third-party document custodian.

We currently do not intend to originatentigage loans or provide other types of financmthe owners of real estate. We currently dc
intend to establish a loan servicing platform, éxpect to retain highly-rated servicers to sera@gemortgage loan portfolio. We purchase
certain residential mortgage loans on a servicetgined basis. In the future, however, we maydetd originate mortgage loans or other ty
of financing, and we may elect to service mortgiag®s and other types of assets.

We expect that all servicers servicingloans will be highly rated by the rating agencl& also conduct a due diligence review of ¢
servicer before executing a servicing agreememti@Geg procedures will typically follow Fannie Magiidelines but will be specified in each
servicing agreement. All servicing agreements milet standards for inclusion in highly rated maytt@acked or asset-backed securitizations.
We have entered into a master servicing agreemiémtMells Fargo, N.A. to assist us with managemsetyicing oversight, and other
administrative duties associated with managingnoortgage loans.

We expect that the loans we acquire lbglfirst lien, single-family residential traditidrfaxed-rate, adjustable-rate and hybrid adjustable
rate loans with original terms to maturity of nobma than 40 years and are
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either fully amortizing or are interest-only for tgpten years, and fully amortizing thereafter.déixate mortgage loans bear an interest rate
is fixed for the life of the loan. All adjustablete and hybrid adjustable-rate residential mortdages will bear an interest rate tied to an
interest rate index. Most loans have periodic #etirhe constraints on how much the loan interagt can change on any predetermined
interest rate reset date. The interest rate on &djcistable-rate mortgage loan resets monthly,-semially or annually and generally adjust
a margin over a U.S. Treasury index or the LIBO&e Hybrid adjustable-rate loans have a fixed f@atan initial period, generally three to
ten years, and then convert to adjustable-rateslf@rtheir remaining term to maturity.

We acquire residential mortgage loanfarportfolio with the intention of either secizibg them and retaining them in our portfolio as
securitized mortgage loans, or holding them inresidential mortgage loan portfolio. To facilitdbe securitization or financing of our loans,
we expect to generally create subordinate certé&gavhich provide a specified amount of creditamement. We expect to issue securities
through securities underwriters and either retagsé securities or finance them in the repurchgieeement market. There is no limit on the
amount we may retain of these below-investmentggbordinate certificates. Until we securitize msidential mortgage loans, we expect to
finance our residential mortgage loan portfolicotigh the use of warehouse facilities and repurchgesements.

Other Asset-Backed Securities

We may invest in securities issued irioas CDO offerings to gain exposure to bank loaosporate bonds, ABS, mortgages, RMBS
CMBS and other instruments. To avoid any actuglesceived conflicts of interest with our Manager jmvestment in any such security
structured or managed by our Manager will be apgaddswy a majority of our independent directors. i® éxtent such securities are treated as
debt of the CDO issuer for federal income tax pegse we will hold the securities directly, subjecthe requirements of our continued
qualification as a REIT as described in “Certaidé&ral Income Tax Considerations — Asset Tests.thEcextent the securities represent equity
interests in a CDO issuer for federal income tapppses, we may be required to hold such secutliresigh a taxable REIT subsidiary, or T
which would cause the income recognized with ressfgesuch securities to be subject to federal @pulicable state and local) corporate
income tax. See “Risk Factors — Tax Risks.” We ddall to qualify as a REIT or we could become sgbjo a penalty tax if the income we
recognize from certain investments that are treatemuld be treated as equity interests in a foreorporation exceed 5% of our gross income
in a taxable year.

We may invest in CMBS, which are securgdor evidence ownership interests in, a singhlaroercial mortgage loan or a pool of
mortgage loans secured by commercial propertiess@ Becurities may be senior, subordinated, inwggtgrade or non-investment grade. We
intend to invest in CMBS that will yield currentiémest income and where we consider the returmingipal to be likely. We intend to acquire
CMBS from private originators of, or investors imortgage loans, including savings and loan assongtmortgage bankers, commercial
banks, finance companies, investment banks and ettiities.

In general, CDO issuers are special pgegpehicles that hold a portfolio of income-prodwgcassets financed through the issuance of
rated debt securities of different seniority andigg The debt tranches are typically rated basedash flow structure, portfolio quality,
diversification and credit enhancement. The egsétyurities issued by the CDO vehicle are the “foss” piece of the CDO vehicle’s capital
structure, but they are also generally entitledltoesidual amounts available for payment after@DO vehicle’s senior obligations have been
satisfied. Some CDO vehicles are “synthetic,” irichithe credit risk to the collateral pool is tréarsed to the CDO vehicle by a credit
derivative such as a credit default swap.

We also intend to invest in consumer ABBese securities are generally securities for wtie underlying collateral consists of assets
such as home equity loans, credit card receivasidsauto loans. We also expect to invest in norsworer ABS. These securities are generally
secured by loans to businesses and consist obagsgt as equipment loans, truck loans and agrielikéquipment loans. Issuers of consumer
and non-consumer ABS generally are special purpogges owned or sponsored by banks and finanogaaies, captive finance subsidiaries
of nonfinancial corporations or specialized originatarstsas credit card lenders. We may purchase RMBSA&S which are denominated
foreign currencies or are collateralized by non-ld&ets.
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Investment Sourcing

Our Manager takes advantage of the bneddork of relationships it and Annaly have estti®id over the past decade to identify
investment opportunities. Our Manager and Annaleh&lationships with a large and diverse groufin@ncial intermediaries, ranging from
major commercial and investment banks to speciaitgstment dealers and brokerage firms. In additinbelieve that a portion of our
Manager’s transaction pipeline, such as the CD®gadhsors, will generate appropriate investmenbdppities for us. Our Manager also
sources investments directly from third-party aragprs, such as in the case of CDOs and CLOs, spathdy other asset management firms.

Investing in our targeted asset classésghly competitive. Our Manager competes with ynetier investment managers for profitable
investment opportunities in fixed-income assets#asand related investment opportunities.

Investment Process

Our investment process benefits fromrésaurces and professionals of our Manager. Thegsimnals responsible for portfolio
management decisions are Matthew Lambiase, ourderesand Chief Executive Officer and our Managé&skecutive Vice President,
Structured Products; William B. Dyer, our Head afdérwriting and our Manager’s Executive Vice Presid Christian J. Woschenko, our
Head of Investments and our Manager’'s Executive Vresident; Eric Szabo, our Manager’s Senior Yiesident and Investment Strategist;
and Konstantin Pavlov, our Manager’s Senior VicesiRfent and Senior Repo Trader. Investments ams@se by an Investment Committee of
our Manager’s professionals, consisting of Michagdl Farrell, Wellington J. Denahan-Norris, JameEdttescue, Kristopher Konrad, Rose-
Marie Lyght, Ronald Kazel, Jeremy Diamond, Ericl8rand Matthew Lambiase. This Investment Committesrsees our investment
guidelines and will meet periodically to discussefprences for sectors and sub-sectors.

Our investment process includes souraimg) screening of investment opportunities, assgssirestment suitability, conducting credit
and prepayment analysis, evaluating cash flow afidteral performance, reviewing legal structurd aervicer and originator information and
investment structuring, as appropriate, to seektactive return commensurate with the risk weberaring. Upon identification of an
investment opportunity, the investment is screear@imonitored by our Manager to determine its ihpaamaintaining our REIT qualificatic
and our exemption from registration under the 1840 We have made and will seek to make investmiengectors where our Manager has
strong core competencies and where we believetaiskliand expected performance can be reasonablytified.

Our Manager evaluates each one of owgsimrent opportunities based on its expected righssetl return relative to the returns available
from other, comparable investments. In additioneweluate new opportunities based on their relaiected returns compared to our
comparable securities held in our portfolio. Thent of any leverage available to us for use in fogén investment purchase are also taken
into consideration, as are any risks posed byuildiify or correlations with other securities in thartfolio.

Once a potential residential loan packagestment has been identified, our Manager aind ffarties it engages perform financial,
operational and legal due diligence to assessghke of the investment. Our Manager and third parit engages analyze the loan pool and
conduct follow-up due diligence as part of the umdiing process. As part of this process, the faggors which the underwriters consider
include, but are not limited to, documentation, teéekincome ratio, loan-to-value ratios and propesluation. Consideration is also given to
other factors such as price of the pool, geographicentrations and type of product. Our Managi@mes its underwriting criteria based upon
actual loan portfolio experience and as market itimms and investor requirements evolve. Similaalgsis is also performed on securities,
where the evaluation process also includes relatige analyses based on yield, credit rating,anestife, expected duration, option-adjusted
spreads, prepayment assumptions and credit exosptther considerations in our investment protedade analysis of fundamental
economic trends, suitability for investment by alREonsumer borrowing trends, home price appresiaand relevant regulatory
developments.

Investment Guidelines

We have adopted a set of investment ¢jneethat set out the asset classes, risk tolertawvels, diversification requirements and other
criteria used to evaluate the merits of specifiesiments as well as the overall portfolio compasitOur Manager’s Investment Committee
reviews our compliance with the investment
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guidelines periodically and our board of directaseives an investment report at each quarterrendrijunction with its review of our
quarterly results. Our board also reviews our itmesit portfolio and related compliance with ourgatment policies and procedures and
investment guidelines at each regularly scheduteddof directors meeting.

Our board of directors and our Managbrn&stment Committee have adopted the followinglglimes for our investments and
borrowings:

. No investment shall be made that would cause €altto qualify as a REIT for federal income taxrpases
. No investment shall be made that would cause be tegulated as an investment company under the A8¢
. With the exception of real estate and housing,ingls industry shall represent greater than 20%hefsecurities or aggregate

risk exposure in our portfolio; ar

. Investments in nc-rated or deeply subordinated ABS or other secasrttiat are nc-qualifying assets for purposes of the 7
REIT asset test will be limited to an amount nogxaeed 50% of our stockhold’ equity.

These investment guidelines may be chéibgea majority of our board of directors withotckholder approval.

Our board of directors has also adoptseparate set of investment guidelines and proesdaorgovern our relationship with FIDAC. \
have also adopted detailed compliance policieoteimn our interaction with FIDAC, including whenAC is in receipt of material non-
public information.

Our Financing Strategy

We use leverage to increase potentiatmstto our stockholders. We are not required tmtam any specific debt-to-equity ratio as we
believe the appropriate leverage for the particatsets we are financing depends on the crediityjaal risk of those assets. Our leverage
ratio has fluctuated and we expect it to contimufiuctuate from time to time based upon, amongiothings, our assets, market conditions
conditions and availability of financings. As off@@ember 30, 2008, we had outstanding indebtedrfesgspooximately $1.119 billion, which
consists of recourse leverage of approximately $b&0llion and non-recourse securitized financifigyoproximately $499.0 million.

Subject to our maintaining our qualificatas a REIT, we expect to use a number of sodectisance our investments, including the
following:

. Repurchase Agreemer. We have financed and intend to continue to fieacertain of our assets through the use of repsa
agreements. We anticipate that repurchase agresméhibe one of the sources we will use to achieuedesired amount of
leverage for our residential real estate assetsint#ad to maintain formal relationships with mplé counterparties to obtain
financing on favorable terms. We currently havalelished uncommitted repurchase agreements for RMBE12
counterparties, including Annaly. As of June 300&0we had $50.0 million outstanding under our repase agreement with
Annaly. As of September 30, 2008, we had approxhga620.0 million outstanding under this agreemethiich constitutes
approximately 56% of our total financing. We hasioa¢stablished two repurchase agreements for wihatgyage loans as of
June 30, 2008, which were terminated subsequehetend of the quarter. For a description of the$eof our repurchase
agreements, see “Management’s Discussion and Aralj&inancial Condition and Results of Operatietsquidity and
Capital Resource”

. Warehouse FacilitiesWe intend to utilize credit facilities for cagiteeeded to fund our assets. We intend to mairiitaimal
relationships with multiple counterparties to maintwarehouse lines on favorable terms. As of B&008, we had no
outstanding warehouse facility balanc

. Securitizatior. We acquire residential mortgage loans for outfplio with the intention of securitizing them anetaining the
securitized mortgage loans in our portfolio. Tailftate the securitization or financing of our lenve will generally create
subordinate certificates, providing a specified amaf
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credit enhancement, which we intend to retain inpmstfolio. As described below, as of June 30,230 had one complett
securitization and a second securitization clo$exdtly after the end of that quart

On April 24, 2008, we sponsored a $619.7 millioawstization, a long-term financing transaction wéigy we securitized our
then-current inventory of mortgage loans. In trésaction, we sold approximately $536.9 milliorA@fA-rated fixed and
floating rate bonds to third party investors, aethined approximately $46.3 million of AAA-rated manine bonds and $36.5
million in subordinated bonds. This transaction W& accounted for as a financing pursuant to SEA®

On July 25, 2008, we sponsored a $151.2 milliomsgzation whereby we securitized our tl-current inventory of mortgac
loans. In this transaction, we retained all of si&s issued by the securitization trust includagproximately $142.4 million of



AAA-rated fixed and floating rate senior bonds and $8lBon in subordinated bonds. This transactioll s accounted for as
sale. On August 28, 2008, we sold approximately.$#illion of the AAA-rated fixed and floating rab®nds related to the July
25, 2008 securitization to th-party investors and realized a loss of $11.5 rmill

. Asse-Backed Commercial PapeiVe may finance certain of our assets using dssekted commercial paper, or ABCP, cond
which are bankruptcy-remote special purpose vehitiat issue commercial paper and the proceed$ichvare used to fund
assets, either through repurchase or secured ppdigrams. We may utilize ABCP conduits of thiedtes or create our own
conduit. As of June 30, 2008, we had no outstandssg-backed commercial paper balanc

. Term Financing CDO. We may finance certain of our assets using témanting strategies, including CDOs and other n-
funded financing structures. CDOs are multiple £ldsbt securities, or bonds, secured by poolss#tassuch as mortgage-
backed securities and corporate debt. Like tyealritization structures, in a CD

o] the assets are pledged to a trustee for the berfi¢fie holders of the bond
o] one or more classes of the bonds are rated by omem rating agencies; a
o] one or more classes of the bonds are markete@videavariety of fixed-income investors, which eresbthe CDO

sponsor to achieve a relatively low cost of |-term financing

Unlike typical securitization structures, the urdieig assets may be sold, subject to certain litioites, without a correspondir
pay-down of the CDO, provided the proceeds arevesited in qualifying assets. As a result, CDOs lenthie sponsor to actively
manage, subject to certain limitations, the podssfets. We believe CDO financing structures magnbappropriate financing
vehicle for our target asset classes because thiegnable us to obtain relatively low, long-terrast of funds and minimize the
risk that we may have to refinance our liabilittefore the maturities of our investments, whileiggvus the flexibility to manac
credit risk and, subject to certain limitationsta@e advantage of profit opportunities. As of J80e2008, we had no outstand
term financing CDOs

Our Interest Rate Hedging and Risk Management Stragy

We may, from time to time, utilize detiiv@ financial instruments to hedge all or a portad the interest rate risk associated with our
borrowings. Under the federal income tax laws agglie to REITSs, we generally will be able to enéo certain transactions to hedge
indebtedness that we may incur, or plan to in@uadguire or carry real estate assets, althougkotalrgross income from such hedges and
other non-qualifying sources must not exceed 25%uofgross income.

We may engage in a variety of interett management techniques that seek to mitigategelsan interest rates or other potential
influences on the values of our assets. The fedsrame tax rules applicable to REITs may requs¢aiimplement certain of these techniques
through a TRS that is fully subject to corporatecime taxation. Our interest rate management teabsiqay include:

. puts and calls on securities or indices of se@gs;

. Eurodollar futures contracts and options on suctiracts;
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. interest rate caps, swaps and swapti
. U.S. treasury securities and options on U.S. tmgasecurities; an

. other similar transaction

We expect to attempt to reduce interatgt risks and to minimize exposure to interestftattuations through the use of match funded
financing structures, when appropriate, wherebysegk (i) to match the maturities of our debt oliliges with the maturities of our assets and
(i) to match the interest rates on our investmerith like-kind debt (i.e., floating rate assets &inanced with floating rate debt and fixed-rate
assets are financed with fixed-rate debt), direstlthrough the use of interest rate swaps, capsher financial instruments, or through a
combination of these strategies. We expect th@ltov us to minimize the risk that we have to rafine our liabilities before the maturities of
our assets and to reduce the impact of changiegesit rates on our earnings.

We may, from time to time, enter intceirgst rate swap agreements to offset the potextiedrse effects of rising interest rates under
short-term repurchase agreements. Interest rate agr@ements have historically been structured thattthe party seeking the hedge
protection receives payments based on a variatdecst rate and makes payments based on a fixaeéttrate. The variable interest rate on
which payments are received is calculated basadaus reset mechanisms for LIBOR. The repurclagseements generally have maturities
of 30 to 90 days and carry interest rates thaespiond favorably to the LIBOR rates for those spsr@ds. The swap agreements will
effectively fix our borrowing cost and will not teeld for speculative or trading purposes.

As of June 30, 2008, we had enteredvat@mus amortizing interest rate swap agreemertts avhumber of counterparties whereby we
swap a floating rate of interest in the liabilitg\are hedging for a fixed rate of interest. Theragate notional amount of these agreements was
$1.0 billion. The weighted average fixed rate wigl g these interest rate swaps was 4.10% as ef 3un2008.

Interest rate management techniques telmoinate interest rate risk but, rather, seefttigate it. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to
Our Business—Hedging against interest rate expasaseadversely affect our earnings, which couldioedour cash available for distribution
to you.” and “—Our hedging strategies may not becessful in mitigating the risks associated witieiast rates.”

Credit Analysis and Structuring

We benefit from our Managem®xperience in credit analysis and investmentsiring. The credit analysis process is driven xtgmsive
research that focuses, where applicable, on therlymag collateral, servicer and structure of anl@a security, as well as the borrower or
issuer, its management team and overall conditioits industry. When conducting due diligence, blanager evaluates a number of
important business considerations, as well as aaletax, accounting, environmental and legal issuegtermining whether to proceed with an
investment.

Risk Management

Risk management is an integral componéntr strategy to deliver returns to our stockleodd Because we have invested and will
continue to invest primarily in fixed-income seci@s, investment losses from credit defaults, egerate volatility or other risks can
meaningfully reduce or eliminate our distributidosstockholders. In addition, because we utilipaficial leverage in funding our portfolio,
mismatches in the maturities of our assets anditiab can create risk in the need to continuadlgew or otherwise refinance our liabilities.

Our net interest margins are dependent upon aiy®sipread between the returns on our asset portfiotl our overall cost of funding. To
minimize the risks to our portfolio, we actively ploy portfolio-wide and security-specific risk me@sment and management processes in our
daily operations. Our risk management tools inclsafitware and services licensed or purchased fhinah parties, in addition to proprietary
analytical methods developed by FIDAC. There candguarantee that these tools will protect us froanket risks.

Conflicts of Interest

We are dependent on our Manager for ayrtd-day management and do not have any indepenéfeers or employees. Our officers
also serve as employees of our Manager or itsaaéfg. Our non-independent directors also serargsoyees of our Manager. Our
management agreement with our Manager was negbtieteveen related parties and its terms, inclutieg payable, may not be as favorable
to us as if it had been negotiated at arm’s lemgth an unaffiliated third party. In addition, thdility of our Manager and its officers
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and employees to engage in other business activitay reduce the time our Manager and its offiaedsemployees spend managing us.

Our Manager has discretionary investnaemtority over a number of different funds and aets. Although currently none of these
funds or accounts have investment objectives tlénally overlap with ours, it is possible in theure that our Manager may manage funds
and accounts that may compete with us for investmgportunities. Also, to the extent our Managenages investment vehicles (other than
CDOs) that meet our investment objectives, our Manavill have an incentive to invest our funds urcls investment vehicles because of the
possibility of generating an additional incrememteinagement fee. Our Manager may also invest in CBénaged by it that could result in
conflicts with us, particularly if we invest in @gtion of the equity securities and there is a metation of value of such CDO before closing
could suffer an immediate loss equal to the deeregathe market value of the underlying investmémaddition, to the extent we seek to in
in Agency RMBS, we may compete for investment opputies with Annaly. Our Manager has an investnaiaication policy in place so that
we may share equitably with other client accoufisus Manager and Annaly in all investment oppoities, particularly those involving an
asset with limited supply, that may be suitabledor account and such other accounts. Our Managelisy also includes other controls
designed to monitor and prevent any particular aetor Annaly from receiving favorable treatmeneoany other fund or account. This
investment policy may be amended by our Managangatime without our consent. To the extent FIDA@&snaly’s, or our business evolves
in such a way to give rise to conflicts not curhgaddressed by our Manageihvestment allocation policy, our Manager mayoheerefine its
policy to handle any such situations. To avoid aatpal or perceived conflicts of interest with dlainager, an investment in any security
structured or managed by our Manager will be apgadwy a majority of our independent directors.

The ability of our Manager and its offis@nd employees to engage in other businesstagimay reduce the time our Manager spends
managing us. Further, during turbulent conditionthe mortgage industry, distress in the creditkai@ror other times when we will need
focused support and assistance from our Manadeer entities for which or Manager also acts anaastment manager will likewise require
greater focus and attention, placing our Managessurces in high demand. In such situations, wemoareceive the necessary support and
assistance we require or would otherwise receiweifvere internally managed or if our Manager dittact as a manager for other entities.

We have agreed to pay our Manager a tmasegement fee that is not tied to our performafie.base management fee may not
sufficiently incentivize our Manager to generateaaitive risk-adjusted returns for us.

It is difficult and costly to terminatieet management agreement we have entered into withlanager without cause. Our independent
directors will review our Manager’s performance dnel management fees annually, and following titeairterm, the management agreement
provides that it may be terminated annually by itbaut cause upon the affirmative vote of at least-thirds of our independent directors or
by a vote of the holders of at least a majorityhaf outstanding shares of our common stock (otteer those shares held by Annaly or its
affiliates), based upon: (i) our Manager’s unsatisry performance that is materially detrimentali$ or (ii) our determination that the
management fees payable to our Manager are npstdiject to our Manager’s right to prevent terrtiotabased on unfair fees by accepting a
reduction of management fees agreed to by at teasthirds of our independent directors. Our Mamagd be provided 180-daygrior notice
of any such termination. Upon such terminationwilepay our Manager a termination fee equal t@thtimes the average annual base
management fee earned by our Manager during tbe P4imonth period before such termination, caledas of the end of the most recently
completed fiscal quarter. These provisions mayeiase the effective cost to us of terminating theagament agreement, thereby adversely
affecting our ability to terminate our Manager with cause. In addition, we have entered into argdy@se agreement with Annaly, our
Managers parent, to finance our RMBS. This financing agement may make us less likely to terminate ourdden. It could also give rise
further conflicts because Annaly may be a credifasurs. As one of our creditors, Annaly’s integestay diverge from the interests of our
stockholders.

Our Manager may terminate the managemgmement if we become required to register ag@@stment company under the 1940 Act,
with such termination deemed to occur immediateliple such event, in which case we would not baired to pay a termination fee. Our
Manager may also decline to renew the managemes¢agnt by providing us with 180-days’ written getiin which case we would not be
required to pay a termination fee.
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The management agreement provides tha#lanager will not assume any responsibility otfen to provide the services called for by
the management agreement. It further providesainaManager will not be responsible for any actdour board of directors in following or
declining to follow its advice or recommendatio@sir Manager, its officers, managers and employéksot be liable to us, any subsidiary of
ours, our directors, our stockholders or any suasits stockholders or partners for acts or omissiperformed in accordance with and
pursuant to the management agreement, except leechasts constituting bad faith, willful miscondugross negligence, or reckless disregard
of their duties under the management agreemenhaVe agreed to indemnify our Manager, its officetackholders, managers, directors,
employees, any person controlling or controlledi®/Manager and any person providing sub-advisenyices to the Manager, with respect to
all expenses, losses, damages, liabilities, demahdsges and claims arising from acts of our Managt constituting bad faith, willful
misconduct, gross negligence, or reckless disregiaddties, performed in good faith in accordanddhend pursuant to the management
agreement.

Resolution of Potential Conflicts of Interest and Alocation of Investment Opportunities

FIDAC will abide by its allocation polignd thus will offer us the right to participatealhinvestment opportunities that it determines
appropriate for us in view of our investment obijges, policies and strategies and other relevarbfa, subject to the exception that, in
accordance with FIDAC's allocation policy descrilsow, we might not participate in each such opputy but will on an overall basis
equitably participate with FIDAC's other clientsall such opportunities. FIDAC allocates investnseiteligible accounts, including us, based
on current demand according to the market valuheficcount (which is the amount of available epitat, consistent with such account’s
investment parameters, may be invested in a prdgosestment). An account has current demandid# positive market value. For certain
transactions that cannot be allocated on a prdoadis, such as in the case of “whole pool” tradas Manager will endeavor to allocate such
purchases over time in a fair and equitable marftre investment cannot fulfill the pro rata aédgion or be allocated in marketable portions,
the investment is allocated on a rotational basectounts with current demand, with an emphasisgol on those accounts that were excluded
in prior allocations, but without any preferenceegi to accounts based on their market value. Ttagiooal system is determined by FIDAC’s
chief investment officer and is overseen by its ptiamce officer to ensure fair and equitable inreatt allocation to all accounts in accordance
with the 1940 Act.

Operating and Regulatory Structure
REIT Qualification

We have elected and intend to qualifpedreated as a REIT under Sections 856 througtoB8® Internal Revenue Code commencing
with our taxable year ending on December 31, 2QQif.qualification as a REIT depends upon our abibtmeet on a continuing basis, thro
actual investment and operating results, variomsptex requirements under the Internal Revenue Celdéng to, among other things, the
sources of our gross income, the composition ahgegaf our assets, our distribution levels anddilrersity of ownership of our shares. We
believe that we have been organized in conformitia tihe requirements for qualification and taxatemna REIT under the Internal Revenue
Code, and that our manner of operation enables ot the requirements for qualification and taxeas a REIT.

As a REIT, we generally will not be sultjeo federal income tax on our REIT taxable incomgedistribute currently to you. If we fail to
qualify as a REIT in any taxable year and do natifyufor certain statutory relief provisions, welMbe subject to federal income tax at regular
corporate rates and may be precluded from quatifa;a REIT for the subsequent four taxable yedli®aing the year during which we lost
our REIT qualification. Even if we qualify for tattan as a REIT, we may be subject to some fedstatle and local taxes on our income or

property.
1940 Act Exemption

We operate our business so that we ampkfrom registration under the 1940 Act. We idtémrely on the exemption from registration
provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the 1940 Act,ravision designed for companies that do not issedeemable securities and are primarily
engaged in the business of purchasing or otheradgairing mortgages and other liens on and inteliesteal estate.

To qualify for the exemption, we makedstments so that at least 55% of the assets wecomsist of qualifying mortgages and other
liens on and interests in real estate, which allectovely referred to as “qualifying
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real estate assets,” and so that at least 80%eafdbets we own consist of real estate-relatetsg@seluding our qualifying real estate assets).
We do not intend to issue redeemable securities.

Based on no-action letters issued bystiadf of the Securities and Exchange Commissiomtlagsify our investment in residential
mortgage loans as qualifying real estate assetsngsas the loans are “fully secured” by an indere real estate. That is, if the loan-to-value
ratio of the loan is equal to or less than 100%ntie consider the mortgage loan a qualifying estdte asset. We do not consider loans with
loan-to-value ratios in excess of 100% to be quiaigf real estate assets for the 55% test, but i@alyestate-related assets for the 80% test.

We also consider RMBS such as Agency WiRadol Certificates to be qualifying real estateets By contrast, an agency certificate that
represents less than the entire beneficial intémetsie underlying mortgage loans is not considéoege a qualifying real estate asset for
purposes of the 55% test, but constitutes a reéaleeselated asset for purposes of the 80% teshpBance with the 1940 Act may require us to
purchase Agency Whole Pool Certificates.

We treat our ownership interest in padlg/hole loan RMBS, in cases in which we acquire éhtire beneficial interest in a particular
pool, as qualifying real estate assets based action positions of the Staff of the Securities &xdhange Commission. We generally do not
expect our investments in CMBS and other RMBS itmmests to constitute qualifying real estate aseetthe 55% test, unless such treatment
is consistent with guidance of the Staff of the8iies and Exchange Commission. Instead, thessstments generally will be classified as
real estate-related assets for purposes of thet88&0WNe do not expect that our investments in CBQgther ABS will constitute qualifying
real estate assets. We may, however, treat outyaqterests in a CDO issuer that we determine“imajority owned subsidiary” and that is
exempt from 1940 Act registration under Section(&(¢C) of the 1940 Act as qualifying real estasseds, real estate-related assets, and
miscellaneous assets in the same proportion aasdes in such CDO are qualifying real estate sig®etl estate-related assets and
miscellaneous assets. We may in the future, howewvedify our treatment of such CDO equity to conido guidelines provided by the Staff
of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

We also invest in other types of RMBS &MBS, which we will not treat as qualifying reatate assets for purposes of determining our
eligibility for the exemption from registration proed by Section 3(c)(5)(C) unless such treatmgbinsistent with guidance of the Staff of
Securities and Exchange Commission. We have noestgd no-action or other interpretative guidancapplied for an exemptive order with
respect to the treatment of such assets. In thenabsf guidance of the Staff of the Securities Bxchange Commission that otherwise
supports the treatment of such investments asfginglireal estate assets, we will treat them, fmppses of determining our eligibility for the
exemption from registration provided by Section)@E}C), as real estate-related assets or miseglanassets as appropriate. Any additional
guidance from the Staff of the Securities and ErgeaCommission could provide additional flexibilttyus, or it could further inhibit our
ability to pursue the investment strategy we hawesen.

We monitor our assets to ensure thateet|55% of our assets consist of qualifying retdte assets, and that at least 80% of our assets
consist of qualifying real estate assets and retate-related assets. We expect, when requiretbdhe mix of our investments, to acquire
pools of whole loan RMBS for compliance purposasestments in such pools may not represent an aptimse of our investable capital
when compared to the available investments we t@ugsuant to our investment strategy.

Licensing

We may be required to be licensed to lpase and sell previously originated residentialtgage loans in certain jurisdictions (including
the District of Columbia) in which we will conduectir business. We are currently in the process t#ioing those licenses, if required. Our
failure to obtain or maintain licenses will restriwr investment options. We will consummate ttifering even if we have not yet obtained
such licenses. We intend to be licensed in thagesivhere licenses are required to purchaselgrsglously originated mortgage loans as
soon as reasonably practicable.

Policies with Respect to Certain Other Activities

If our board of directors determines thddlitional funding is required, we may raise sfuctds through additional offerings of equity or
debt securities or the retention of cash flow (sabjo provisions in the Code concerning distridtiequirements and the taxability of
undistributed REIT taxable income) or a combinatiéthese methods. If our board of directors deteesito raise additional equity capital, it
has the authority, without
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stockholder approval, to issue additional commaouglsor preferred stock in any manner and on suchg@nd for such consideration as it
deems appropriate, at any time.

We may offer equity or debt securities@purchase or otherwise reacquire our shares, ligagtity obligations, or for working capital
purposes or other reasons. In addition, we mayolaomoney to finance the acquisition of investmeWs. intend to use traditional forms of
financing, such as repurchase agreements. Ourtinees guidelines and our portfolio and leveragepmeodically reviewed by our board of
directors as part of their oversight of our Manager

We engage in the purchase and sale ektments. We will not underwrite the securitiegthier issuers. We will not make loans to other
persons or invest in the securities of other issémrthe purpose of exercising control of thostties.

Our board of directors may change anthege policies without prior notice to you or aevby our stockholders.
Competition

Our net income depends, in large parpumability to acquire assets at favorable spres@s our borrowing costs. In acquiring real
estate-related assets, we will compete with ottatgage REITs, specialty finance companies, savamgsloan associations, banks, mortgage
bankers, insurance companies, mutual funds, itistital investors, investment banking firms, finadénstitutions, governmental bodies and
other entities. In addition, there are numeroustgagre REITs with similar asset acquisition objeesivincluding a number that have been
recently formed, and others that may be organizele future. These other REITs will increase catitipa for the available supply of
mortgage assets suitable for purchase. Many of@wmpetitors are significantly larger than we amjéhaccess to greater capital and other
resources and may have other advantages over addition, some of our competitors may have higlsértolerances or different risk
assessments, which could allow them to considddarwariety of investments and establish more fabke relationships than we can. Current
market conditions may attract more competitors ciwimay increase the competition for sources offiingg. An increase in the competition
sources of funding could adversely affect the apdlity and cost of financing, and thereby adversdfect the market price of our common
stock.

Staffing

We are managed by our Manager pursuahetmanagement agreement between our Managersaddl of our officers are employees
of our Manager or its affiliates. We will have nmgloyees upon completion of this offering othemtloair officers. See “Our Manager and the
Management Agreement—Management Agreement.”

Legal Proceedings
Neither we nor our Manager is currentlpject to any legal proceedings which it considerse material.
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OUR MANAGER AND THE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
General

We are externally advised and manageapyManager. All of our officers are employees of Manager or its affiliates. The executive
offices of our Manager are located at 1211 AverfubeAmericas, Suite 2902, New York, New York 18G8d the telephone number of our
Manager’s executive offices is (212) 696-0100.

Officers of Our Manager

The following sets forth certain inforruat with respect to the executive officers and epés of our Manager:

Name Age Position Held with our Manager
Michael A.J. Farrel 57 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeulificer
Wellington J. DenahéNorris 44 Vice Chairman of the Board, Chief Investment Offiaad Chief Operating Office
Kathryn F. Fagal 41 Chief Financial Officer and Treasut
Jeremy Diamoni 45 Managing Directo
Ronald Kaze 40 Managing Directo
R. Nicholas Sing| 49 Executive Vice President, General Counsel, Corpd8acretary and Chief Compliar
Officer
James P. Fortesc! 35 Managing Director and Head of Liabilitir
Kristopher Konrac 34 Managing Director and (-Head Portfolio Manageme
Ros¢Marie Lyght 35 Managing Director and (-Head Portfolio Manageme
Matthew Lambias 42 Executive Vice President, Structured Prodi
Christian J. Woschenk 48 Executive Vice Presidel
William B. Dyer 61 Executive Vice Presidel
A. Alexandra Denaha 38 Controller
Konstantin Pavlo 37 Senior Vice President and Senior Repo Tri
Eric Szabc 33 Executive Vice President and Investment Strate
Kevin Riordan 52 Director

Michael A.J. Farrellis the Chief Executive Officer, President and foemadf FIDAC and Chairman, Chief Executive OfficBresident
and one of the founders of Annaly. Mr. Farrell vaafounder of FIDAC in July 1994 and since Novemb@®4 he has been its President and
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Farrell was electedDacember 5, 1996 to serve as Chairman of the BaraddChief Executive Officer of
Annaly. Mr. Farrell was appointed as Annaly’s Pdesit effective January 1, 2002. Mr. Farrell is anber of our Manager’s Investment
Committee. Prior to founding FIDAC, from Februai§92 to July 1994, Mr. Farrell served as Presidéitadel Funding Corporation. From
April 1990 to January 1992, Mr. Farrell was a Mangdirector for Schroder Wertheim & Co. Inc., is Fixed Income Department. In
addition to being the former Chairman of the Priyn2ealers Operations Committee of the Public SéegrAssociation (from 1981 through
1985) and its Mortgage Backed Securities Divistumjs a former member of the Executive CommitteiésdPrimary Dealers Division (from
1983 through 1988). Mr. Farrell has served on therd of directors for the US Dollar Floating Raten#, Ltd. since August 1994 and the bc
of governors of the National Association of Reatlafes Investment Trusts since January 2000 andédes the Chairman of the board of trus
of the Oratory Preparatory School since June 2004.

Wellington J. Denahan-Norrisis the Vice-Chairman of Annaly, and Chief Investin@fficer and Chief Operating Officer of Annaly
and FIDAC. Ms. Denahan-Norris is a member of ounltger's Investment Committee. Ms. Denahan-Norris glacted on December 5, 1996
to serve as Vice Chairman of the Board and a direxftAnnaly. Ms. Denahan-Norris was appointed AniseChief Operating Officer in
January 2006. Ms. Denahan-Norris has been the Ghiegtment Officer of Annaly since 1996. She wésumder of Annaly and has been the
Chief Operating Officer of FIDAC since January 2086e has been FIDAC's Senior Vice President ditasch 1995, Treasurer since July
1994 and Chief Investment Officer since Februar§71%-rom July 1994 through March 1995 she was & Piesident of FIDAC. She is also
responsible for the development of Annaly and FIDg\NG-house portfolio systems. Ms. Denahdorris has been the Portfolio Manager for
U.S. Dollar Floating Rate Fund since its incepiiougust 1994. Prior to joining FIDAC, from Mard®92 to July 1994, Ms. Denahan-Norris
had been Vice President responsible for assettgaieand financing at Citadel Funding CorporatiBrior to joining Citadel she had been a
trader on the mortgage-backed securities deskrab8er

93




Wertheim and Co. Inc. from July 1991 to March 1998e has a Bachelors Degree in Finance from FI&idte University and attended the
New York Institute of Finance for intense mortg-backed securities studies.

Kathryn F. Faganis our Manager's and Annaly’s Chief Financial O#fiand Treasurer. Ms. Fagan was employed by Ararady
FIDAC on April 1, 1997 in the positions of Chiefriaincial Officer and Treasurer of each of Annaly &HIAC. From June 1, 1991 to February
28, 1997, Ms. Fagan was Chief Financial Officer @aahtroller of First Federal Savings & Loan Assticia of Opelousas, Louisiana. First
Federal is a publicly owned savings and loan tbaterted to the stock form of ownership during éployment period. Ms. Fagan’s
responsibilities at First Federal included all fio&al reporting, including reports for internal used reports required by the SEC and the Office
of Thrift Supervision. During the period from Septger 1988 to May 1991, Ms. Fagan was employedask and savings and loan auditol
John S. Dowling & Company, a corporation of CeetifiPublic Accountants. Ms. Fagan is a Certifiedlieukccountant and has an M.B.A.
from the University of Southwestern Louisiana.

Jeremy Diamonds one of our Directors. He is also a Managing Etwefor FIDAC and Annaly and a member of our Magreg)
Investment Committee. He joined Annaly and FIDAQViarch 2002. From 1990 to 2002 he was Preside@raft’s Financial Publishing, a
financial research company and publisher of Grdntarest Rate Observer. In addition to his resiilitees as principal business executive,
Mr. Diamond conducted security analysis and finahtiarket research. Mr. Diamond began his careanamalyst in the investment banking
group at Lehman Brothers. Mr. Diamond has an M.Brém UCLA and a Bachelors Degree from Princetoriversity.

Ronald Kazels a Managing Director for Annaly and FIDAC. Mr. K& is a member of our Managethvestment Committee. Mr. Ka
joined these companies in December 2001. BefoningiAnnaly and FIDAC, Mr. Kazel was a Senior VReesident in Friedman Billing
Ramsey’s financial services investment banking gr&wring his tenure there, he was responsiblstfoicturing both the private and public
equity offerings for Annaly in 1997. From 1991 1896, Mr. Kazel served as a Vice President at Sa@ileill & Partners where he was
involved in asset/liability management and mortghgeked securities analysis and sales. Mr. Kazebhaachelor of Science in Finance and
Management from New York University.

R. Nicholas Singlis Executive Vice President and serves as Genenah&2l, Corporate Secretary and Chief Compliandie&ffor
Annaly and FIDAC. Before joining these companie§abruary 2005, Mr. Singh was a partner at thefiawMcKee Nelson LLP. Mr. Singh
has experience in a broad range of public and faritransactions. Before joining McKee Nelson, he waartner at the law firm of Sidley
Austin, LLP. Mr. Singh received a J.D. from the Wiagton College of Law, American University, an Mf&om Columbia University and a
Bachelors Degree from Carleton College.

James P. Fortescués a Managing Director and Head of Liabilities FHDAC and Annaly. Mr. Fortescue is a member of Mlanager’s
Investment Committee. He started with FIDAC in Ja885 where he was in charge of finding financingmortgage-backed and corporate
bonds for regional dealers. In September 1996 pareded his responsibilities for all financing aitids which included trading and structuring
all liabilities, coordinating trade settlementsiwiitroker dealers and maintaining the relationshiipis these dealers. Mr. Fortescue has been in
charge of liability management for Annaly sinceiiitseption, and continues to oversee all finaneiogyvities for FIDAC. Mr. Fortescue holds a
Bachelors Degree in Finance from Siena College.

Kristopher Konrad is a Managing Director and Co-Head of Portfolio Mgement for FIDAC and Annaly. Mr. Konrad is a membie
our Manager’s Investment Committee. He has workedbéth companies since October 1997. Currently,Knrad is a portfolio manager for
Annaly and has served in this capacity since Deegr2800. Before this, he was head of financingHerUS Dollar Floating Rate Fund, Ltd.
and assisted with the management of FIDAC’s highameth separate accounts. Mr. Konrad has a Bach&egree in Business from Ithaca
College and has attended the New York InstitutEinénce for intense mortgage-backed securitiesestud

Rose-Marie Lyghtis a Managing Director and Co-Head of Portfolio Mgement for FIDAC and Annaly. Ms. Lyght is a membkour
Manager’s Investment Committee. She joined bothpaories in April 1999. Since that time she has beenlved in the asset selection and
financing for FIDAC's funds and high net worth segta accounts. She has been a portfolio managbeddS Dollar Floating Rate Fund, Ltd.
since December 2000. Ms. Lyght has a Bachelor @r8e in Finance and an M.B.A. from Villanova Urrisigy.
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Matthew Lambiaseis our President and Chief Executive Officer, and of our Directors. He is Executive Vice Presid&ttuctured
Products for Annaly and FIDAC and a member of oanllger’s Investment Committee. He joined these amieg in June 2004. Before
joining Annaly and FIDAC, Mr. Lambiase was a Dimacin Fixed Income Sales at Nomura Securities fratonal, Inc. Over his 11 ye
employment at Nomura, Mr. Lambiase was responéiblehe distribution of commercial and residenti@rtgage-backed securities to a wide
variety of institutional investors. Mr. Lambiass@lheld positions at Bear, Stearns & Company as Fresident in Institutional Fixed Income
Sales and as a mortgage analyst in the Financialyfics and Structured Transaction Group. Mr. Laasbihas a Bachelors Degree in
Economics from the University of Dayton.

Christian J. Woschenkads our Manager’'s Executive Vice President and seageour Head of Investments. Before joining FIDAC
August 2007, Mr. Woschenko worked at PHH Mortgaigees2005 with responsibilities for arranging, miirtgand pricing the securitizations
of their non-Agency residential mortgage productide was a member of both PHH’s Credit Committes: laterest Rate Risk Committee.
Previously, Mr. Woschenko was employed as Seniontdége Credit Trader at RBC Capital, Senior Assstk®d Securities Banker at BB&T
Capital Markets and as a Principal in Mortgage frgét Mariner Capital Management. Mr. Woschenks a@&achelors Degree in Accounting
from Widener University.

William B. Dyeris our Manager's Executive Vice President and seageour Head of Underwriting. Before joining FIDACAugust
2007, Mr. Dyer was Vice President, Credit Risk Mgeraent for PHH Mortgage Corporation from 1997 whégeresponsibilities included
supervision of the Credit Solutions Department. Dlyer was Vice President at the Fixed-Income Dorisbf Nomura Asset Capital
Corporation from 1994 to 1997, where he managebiréésed activities critical for the securitizatior sale of the mortgage loans. Mr. Dyer
has an M.B.A. from St. John’s University and a Baoh of Science from St. Francis College.

A. Alexandra Denaharis our Chief Financial Officer and Secretary, amel €Controller of Annaly and FIDAC. Before joininghAaly
and FIDAC in October 2002, Ms. Denahan was a bssigensultant in Fort Lauderdale, Florida. Ms. Demahas a Bachelors Degree in
Accounting and an M.B.A. from Florida Atlantic Urgksity.

Konstantin Pavlovis Senior Vice President and Senior Repo Tradémaialy and FIDAC. He has worked for both compasiese
March of 2001. Since 2004, Mr. Pavlov has assistete financing for Annaly and oversees the finagdor the FIDAC accounts. Mr. Pavlov
has a Bachelors Degree from San Diego State Utitiyers

Eric Szabds an Executive Vice President and Investment &gist for Annaly and FIDAC. Mr. Szabo is a membiowar Manager’s
Investment Committee. Before joining these compmaimieApril 2004, he worked for Times Square Capifaihagement as a Mortgage Analyst
and Trader since 2001. Mr. Szabo has a Bachelatgd® from The College of New Jersey and a M.Aiirance from Boston College. Mr.
Szabo is a PRMIA certified Professional Risk Manaayel a CFA charterholder.

Kevin Riordanis an officer of Annaly and FIDAC whose title widach of Annaly and FIDAC is “Director.” Mr. Riordgoined these
companies in May 2008. Before joining Annaly an®AC, Mr. Riordan was the Commercial Mortgage Se@sgiGroup Managing Director
TIAA-CREF. During his tenure there, he was resplolesior the oversight of their $22 billion commexicieal estate securities portfolio which
included CMBS and CDO securities, REIT debt, REbmmon and preferred stock, and the originatiomudilsbalance commercial mortgage
loans. He is a member of the Commercial Mortgagrifges Association and currently serves as abfsihe Government Relations
Committee. Mr. Riordan is a Certified Public Acctamt and received a B.A. in accounting from Rutgéesvark College of Arts and Sciences
and an M.B.A. in Finance from Seton Hall University

Investment Committee

The role of our Investment Committeedisdview and approve our investment policies, auestment portfolio holdings and related
compliance with our investment policies. The Inwestit Committee meets as frequently as necessanylér for us to achieve our investment
objectives. Our Manager has an Investment Committeeir Manager’s professionals, consisting of MiehA.J. Farrell, Wellington J.
Denahan-Norris, James P. Fortescue, KristopherdthmRose-Marie Lyght, Ronald Kazel, Jeremy Diamdird; Szabo and Matthew
Lambiase. For biographical information on the merslod our Investment Committee, see “Our Manageértae Management Agreement—
Officers of Our Manager.”
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Management Agreement

We have entered into a management agraenith Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company, ddanager, pursuant to which it
provides for the day-to-day management of our djmers.

The management agreement requires ouaigarto manage our business affairs in conformity the policies and the investment
guidelines that are approved and monitored by oardof directors. Our Manager’s role as managender the supervision and direction of
our board of directors. Our Manager is respondiim€i) the selection, purchase and sale of outfplim investments, (ii) our financing
activities, and (iii) providing us with investmegdvisory services. Our Manager is responsible forday-to-day operations and performs (or
causes to be performed) such services and activiglating to our assets and operations as arepigte, which include, without limitation,
the following:

0] serving as our consultant with respect to the pligiceview of the investment criteria and parangefer our investments,
borrowings and operations, any modifications toclhwill be approved by a majority of our independdinectors;

(ii) investigating, analyzing and selecting possiblegtment opportunities and acquiring, financinggireng, selling, restructuring, or
disposing of investments consistent with the inwestt guidelines

(iii) with respect to prospective purchases, sales,drasges of investments, conducting negotiationsusrbehalf with sellers ar
purchasers and their respective agents, repres@staind investment banke

(iv) negotiating and entering into, on our behalf, drédance agreements, repurchase agreements, tsatiohs, commercial pape
CDOs, interest rate swaps, warehouse facilitiesadimather agreements and instruments required$do conduct our busine:

(v) engaging and supervising, on our behalf and aerpense, independent contractors which providesinvent banking, mortgage
brokerage, securities brokerage, other financialises, due diligence services, underwriting reveaasvices, and all other services
as may be required relating to our investme

(vi) coordinating and managing operations of any joartture or co-investment interests held by us amdiecting all matters with the
joint venture or c-investment partner:

(vii) providing executive and administrative personnffice space and office services required in remdgservices to u:

(viii) administering the day-to-day operations and periiogrand supervising the performance of such otterimistrative functions

necessary to our management as may be agreed ypam Manager and our board of directors, includimghout limitation, the
collection of revenues and the payment of our dabtsobligations and maintenance of appropriatepeten services to perform
such administrative function

(ix) communicating on our behalf with the holders of ahgpur equity or debt securities as required tsBathe reporting and othi
requirements of any governmental bodies or agemcigading markets and to maintain effective ietes with such holder:

) counseling us in connection with policy decisiombé& made by our board of directc

(xi) evaluating and recommending to our board of dimsdedging strategies and engaging in hedgingiaegwn our behalf,

consistent with such strategies, as so modifiech fiime to time, with our status as a REIT, and wlith investment guideline

(xii) counseling us regarding the maintenance of ounstad a REIT and monitoring compliance with theowes REIT qualification tes
and other rules set out in the Internal RevenueeGaul Treasury Regulations thereunder and usingnesaially reasonable efforts
to cause us to qualify for taxation as a RE

(xiii) counseling us regarding the maintenance of our piemfrom the 1940 Act and monitoring complianciéwthe requirements fc
maintaining an exemption from the 1940 Act and ggiommercially reasonable efforts to cause us totaia such exemption fro
registration from the status as an investment coyppader the 1940 Ac
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii)

(xxiii)

(xxiv)

(xxv)

(xxvi)

(xxvii)

(xxviii)

assisting us in developing criteria for asset pasehcommitments that are specifically tailoredupbiovestment objectives al
making available to us its knowledge and experiewitie respect to mortgage loans, real estate a=tate-related securities, other
real estat-related assets and r-real estat-related asset:

furnishing reports and statistical and economieaesh to us regarding our activities and serviegfopmed for us by our Manage

monitoring the operating performance of our investts and providing periodic reports with respeetéto to the board of
directors, including comparative information witkspect to such operating performance and budgetemjected operating resul

investing and r-investing any moneys and securities of ours (inalgéhvesting in sho-term investments pending investmen
other investments, payment of fees, costs and egsenr payments of dividends or distributionsuosiockholders and partners)
and advising us as to our capital structure andalagpising;

causing us to retain qualified accountants and lemansel, as applicable, to assist in developpr@priate accounting procedures,
compliance procedures and testing systems witrect$p financial reporting obligations and comptianwvith the provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code applicable to REITs and tmlaot quarterly compliance reviews with respectete

assisting us in qualifying to do business in aplagable jurisdictions and to obtain and maintdirappropriate license:

assisting us in complying with all regulatory regments applicable to us in respect of our busiaessities, including preparing
causing to be prepared all financial statementsired under applicable regulations and contraaindertakings and all reports and
documents, if any, required under the Exchange thetSecurities Act, or by the NYS

assisting us in taking all necessary actions tolenas to make required tax filings and reportsluding soliciting stockholders fc
required information to the extent provided by pinevisions of the Internal Revenue Code applictREITSs;

placing, or arranging for the placement of, allesdpursuant to the Manager’s investment deterimimafor us either directly with
the issuer or with a broker or dealer (including affiliated broker or dealer

handling and resolving all claims, disputes or coversies (including all litigation, arbitratioretdement or other proceedings or
negotiations) in which we may be involved or to géhive may be subject arising out of our day-to-olagrations (other than with
the Manager of its affiliates), subject to suchifations or parameters as may be imposed from tintine by the board of
directors;

using commercially reasonable efforts to cause msgeincurred by us or on our behalf to be comraklydgieasonable or
commercially customary and within any budgeted peters or expense guidelines set by the boardectdrs from time to time

representing and making recommendations to usrinaxtion with the purchase and finance of, and citmemt to purchase and
finance, mortgage loans (including on a portfolésis), real estate, real estate-related securitiber real estate-related assets and
nor-real estat-related assets, and the sale and commitment telggil asset:

advising us with respect to and structuring longrtéinancing vehicles for our portfolio of assedad offering and selling securities
publicly or privately in connection with any sudhugtured financing

performing such other services as may be requid fime to time for management and other actisitilating to our assets a
business as our board of directors shall reasomaflyest or our Manager shall deem appropriatenthdeparticular circumstance
and

using commercially reasonable efforts to caus® ueinply with all applicable law:

Pursuant to the management agreemenManager does not assume any responsibility olfzsr to render the services called for

thereunder and is not responsible for any actiomuotboard of directors in following or declining follow its advice or recommendations. Our
Manager, its officers, its stockholders, managdirectors, officers, employees, any person cont@lor controlled by the Manager and any
person providing sub-
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advisory services to the Manager, is not liablagpany subsidiary of ours, our directors, ourldtotders or any subsidiary’s stockholders or
partners for acts or omissions performed in acameéavith and pursuant to the management agreeeagpt because of acts constituting bad
faith, willful misconduct, gross negligence, orkksss disregard of their duties under the manageagreement, as determined by a final non-
appealable order of a court of competent jurisdictiWe have agreed to indemnify our Manager, itmbers and its officers with respect to all
expenses, losses, damages, liabilities, demandggehand claims arising from acts of our Managécanstituting bad faith, willful
misconduct, gross negligence, or reckless disregfaddties, performed in good faith in accordand#hend pursuant to the management
agreement. Our Manager has agreed to indemnifywrsjirectors and officers with respect to all exges, losses, damages, liabilities,
demands, charges and claims arising from actsofMamager constituting bad faith, willful miscondugross negligence or reckless disregard
of its duties under the management agreement oclaitgs by our Manager’'s employees relating totées and conditions of their
employment by our Manager. For the avoidance obdamur Manager is not liable for trade errors tinaty result from ordinary negligence,
such as errors in the investment-decision makingegss (e.g., a transaction was effected in violatioour investment guidelines) or in the
trade process (e.g., a buy order was entered thsfes sell order, or the wrong security was puseldbor sold, or a security was purchased or
sold in an amount or at a price other than theecb@mount or price). Notwithstanding the foregoimgr Manager carries errors and omissions
and other customary insurance at the time of tfiesiog.

Pursuant to the terms of the managengneeanent, our Manager is required to provide ub witr management team, including a
president, chief executive officer, head of undémg, head of investments, and chief financiala#f, along with appropriate support
personnel, to provide the management services pydxéded by our Manager to us.

The management agreement may be amemadaddified by agreement between us and our Mandder initial term of the management
agreement expires on December 31, 2010 and wdlb@matically renewed for a one year term eachvanséry date thereafter unless
previously terminated as described below. Our iedépnt directors review our Manageperformance and the management fees annuall
following the initial term, the management agreetmeay be terminated annually upon the affirmatigéevof a least two-thirds of our
independent directors or by a vote of the holdéesmajority of the outstanding shares of our comrstock (other than those shares held by
Annaly or its affiliates), based upon (1) unsatisfay performance that is materially detrimentaligoor (2) our determination that the
management fees payable to our Manager are npstdiject to our Manager’s right to prevent suchteation due to unfair fees by accepting
a reduction of management fees agreed to by attigaghirds of our independent directors. We nqrstivide 180-days’ prior notice of any
such termination. Our Manager will be paid a temtiion fee equal to three times the average anrasd lmanagement fee earned by our
Manager during the 24-month period immediately pdéng such termination, calculated as of the erntti@imost recently completed fiscal
guarter before the date of termination.

We may also terminate the managementaggat, without the payment of any termination feigh 30 days’ prior written notice from
our board of directors for cause, which is defiasd

. our Manage’'s continued material breach of any provision ofrttenagement agreement following a period of 30 dégs
written notice thereof (or 45 days after writtertioe of such breach if our Manager, under certaitumstances, has taken steps
to cure such breach within 30 days of the writtetioe);

. our Manage's fraud, misappropriation of funds, or embezzlenagyatinst us

. our Manage’'s gross negligence of duties under the managerges¢ment

. the occurrence of certain events with respectadtimkruptcy or insolvency of our Manager, inclgdam order for relief in an
involuntary bankruptcy case or our Manager autlingior filing a voluntary bankruptcy petitio

. our Manager is convicted (including a plea of ncdmtendere) of a felon

. the dissolution of our Manager; a

. change of control of our Manager or Anne

We may not assign our rights or respdlisds under the management agreement withoupthee written consent of our Manager,
except in the case of an assignment to another REdther organization which is our
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successor, in which case such organization shdlbbed by the terms of such assignment in the saemer as we are bound under the
management agreement. Our Manager may generailyaseign the management agreement with the widggnoval of a majority of our
independent directors. Our Manager, however, maigagertain of its duties under the managemergeagent to any of its affiliates without
the approval of our independent directors if sussignment does not require our approval underrthestment Advisers Act of 1940.

Our Manager may terminate the managemgmtement if we become required to register asw@@stment company under the 1940 Act,
with such termination deemed to occur immediatelipke such event, in which case we would not baired to pay a termination fee. Our
Manager may decline to renew the management agrédmeroviding us with 180-days’ written notica,which case we would not be
required to pay a termination fee. In additionyd default in the performance of any material tefrthe agreement and the default continues
for a period of 30 days after written notice to ms; Manager may terminate the management agrearpent60 days, written notice. If the
management agreement is terminated by the Manager aur breach, we would be required to pay ouradden the termination fee described
above.

Management Fees

We do not maintain an office or employgeanel. Instead we rely on the facilities and veses of our Manager to conduct our
operations. Expense reimbursements to our Managenade in cash on a monthly basis following the @heach month.

Base Management Fee

We pay our Manager a base managemeuui@eerly in arrears in an amount equal to 1.50%@apeum, calculated quarterly, of our
stockholders’ equity. For purposes of calculatimg base management fee, our stockholdEmsity means the sum of the net proceeds fron
issuances of our equity securities since inceg@tincated on a pro rata daily basis for such issaa during the fiscal quarter of any such
issuance), plus our retained earnings at the esdalf quarter (without taking into account any ash equity compensation expense incurred
in current or prior periods), less any amount thatpay for repurchases of our common stock, arsldag unrealized gains, losses or other
items that do not affect realized net income (rélgms of whether such items are included in otberpgrehensive income or loss, or in net
income). This amount is adjusted to exclude onetwents pursuant to changes in GAAP, and certaircash charges after discussions
between our Manager and our independent directatspproved by a majority of our independent doextThe base management fee is
reduced, but not below zero, by our proportionates of any CDO base management fees FIDAC receivamnection with the CDOs in
which we invest, based on the percentage of egquéthold in such CDOs. The base management feg/&ébfmindependent of the performance
of our investment portfolio. Our Manager uses tl@peds from its management fee in part to pay emsgtion to its officers and employees
who, notwithstanding that certain of them also@ureofficers, receive no cash compensation dirdfotign us. If we invest in any collateralized
debt obligation or investment fund managed by oankger or any of its affiliates, then the annuaklimanagement fee payable by us to our
Manager is reduced by an amount equal to the basagement fee allocable to the equity supportimgraestment in such collateralized debt
obligation or investment fund, except in cases wlerr Manager or any of its affiliates does noereg a fee in connection with the
management of such collateralized debt obligatioimeestment fund.

Our Manager’s base management fee isileadal by our Manager within 30 days after the ehelach quarter and such calculations are
promptly delivered to us. We are obligated to gayltase management fee in cash within five busiegs after delivery to us of our
Manager’s written statement setting forth the cotafion of the base management fee for such quarter.

Reimbursement of Expenses

Because our Manager’'s employees perfamntain legal, accounting, due diligence tasks ahdrcservices that outside professionals or
outside consultants otherwise would perform, oun®ger is paid or reimbursed for the documentedafgs¢rforming such tasks, provided
that such costs and reimbursements are in amoumth \@re no greater than those which would be daytaloutside professionals or
consultants engaged to perform such services pursmagreements negotiated on an arm’s-lengttsbasi

We also pay all operating expenses, eéxtege specifically required to be borne by ounisiger under the management agreement. Out
Manager is responsible for all costs incident ®plerformance of its duties under
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the management agreement, including compensationrdflanager’s employees and other related expefbesexpenses required to be paid
by us include, but are not limited to:

0

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
()

(xi)
(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

expenses in connection with the issuance and triiosacosts incident to the acquisition, dispositémd financing of o
investments

costs of legal, tax, accounting, consulting, anditiadministrative and other similar services reeddor us by providers retained by
our Manager or, if provided by our Manager’s empley, in amounts which are no greater than thosehwinduld be payable to
outside professionals or consultants engaged fompeisuch services pursuant to agreements negiteten arr’ s-length basis

the compensation and expenses of our directorshencost of liability insurance to indemnify ourelitors and officers

costs associated with the establishment and maintenof any of our credit facilities or other inteness of ours (includir
commitment fees, accounting fees, legal fees, mipand other similar costs) or any of our secwgitiferings;

expenses connected with communications to holdevarosecurities or of our subsidiaries and otreokikeeping and clerical wol
necessary in maintaining relations with holderswith securities and in complying with the contiruoeporting and other
requirements of governmental bodies or agencieljding, without limitation, all costs of prepariagd filing required reports with
the SEC, the costs payable by us to any transtartamnd registrar in connection with the listingl@m trading of our stock on any
exchange, the fees payable by us to any such egeharconnection with its listing, costs of prepagiprinting and mailing our
annual report to our stockholders and proxy mdtewiéth respect to any meeting of our stockhold

costs associated with any computer software ontenel electronic equipment or purchased informatéahnology services frol
third party vendors that is used solely for

expenses incurred by managers, officers, emplogegsgents of our Manager for travel on our bedvadf other ot-of-pocket
expenses incurred by managers, officers, emplogegsgents of our Manager in connection with thelpase, financing,
refinancing, sale or other disposition of an inwestt or establishment and maintenance of any o€wadtit facilities and other
indebtedness or any of our securities offerit

costs and expenses incurred with respect to markagmation systems and publications, researchipatibns and materials, ai
settlement, clearing and custodial fees and expe

compensation and expenses of our custodian ansfeéraagent, if any
the costs of maintaining compliance with all fediestate and local rules and regulations or angmotégulatory agenc
all taxes and license fee

all insurance costs incurred in connection withdperation of our business except for the costidbattble to the insurance that ¢
Manager elects to carry for itself and its emplay:

costs and expenses incurred in contracting witld {@rties, including affiliates of our Manager; fbe servicing and special
servicing of our asset

all other costs and expenses relating to our basiaad investment operations, including, withauitition, the costs and expense
acquiring, owning, protecting, maintaining, devétapand disposing of investments, including ap@aieporting, audit and legal
fees;

expenses relating to any office(s) or office faiei, including but not limited to disaster backapovery sites and facilities,
maintained for us or our investments separate tr@office or offices of our Manage

expenses connected with the payments of interiesdethds or distributions in cash or any other fauathorized or caused to be m.
by the board of directors to or on account of hadde our securities or of our subsidiaries, inahgd without limitation, in
connection with any dividend reinvestment pl
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(xvii) any judgment or settlement of pending or threatgmedeedings (whether civil, criminal or otherwisginst us or any subsidiary,
against any trustee, director or officer of us army subsidiary in his capacity as such for whighor any subsidiary is required to
indemnify such trustee, director or officer by ammurt or governmental agency; &

(xviiiy  all other expenses actually incurred by our Managéch are reasonably necessary for the performbypair Manager of its dutie
and functions under the management agreer

In addition, we are required to pay oo @ta portion of rent, telephone, utilities, offifurniture, equipment, machinery and other of
internal and overhead expenses of our Managertaradfiliates required for our operations. Thespamses are allocated between FIDAC and
us based on the ratio of our proportion of grosg@scompared to all remaining gross assets marggeldDAC as calculated at each quarter
end. We and FIDAC will modify this allocation mettaogy, subject to our board of directors’ appraf&he allocation becomes inequitable
(i.e., if we become very highly leveraged compaeBIDAC's other funds and accounts). CurrenthDAC has waived its right to request
reimbursement from us of these expenses until Boehas it determines to rescind that waiver.

From November 21, 2007, the date we conuee operations, through December 31, 2007, ouralglemnearned base management fe
approximately $1.2 million, no incentive fees, angbense reimbursements of approximately $719 tmaugeor the three months ended March
31, 2008 and June 30, 2008, our Manager earnecdhimasagement fees of approximately $2.2 million apgroximately $2.2 million,
respectively, and no incentive fees. In OctobeB20 and FIDAC amended our management agreemeadtce the base management fee
from 1.75% per annum to 1.50% per annum of ourktolcders’ equity and eliminate the incentive feesvpusly provided for in the
management agreement.
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MANAGEMENT
Our Directors and Executive Officers

Our board of directors consists of fivembers. Our board of directors has determinedttineé of our directors satisfy the listing
standards for independence of the NYSE.

The following sets forth certain inforriwat with respect to our directors and executivéceff:

Name Age Position Held with Us
Matthew Lambias: 42 Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
Christian J. Woschenk 48 Head of Investment
William B. Dyer 61 Head of Underwriting
A. Alexandra Denaha 38 Chief Financial Officer and Secretz
Paul Donlin* 47 Nonexecutive Chairman of the Board of Direct
Jeremy Diamon 45 Director
Mark Abrams* 59 Director
Paul A. Keenan' 41 Director
* Independent directors

Biographical Information
Executive Officers
For biographical information on our exte officers, see “Our Manager and the Managemaneéement—Officers of Our Manager.”
Directors

Pursuant to our charter, the board adadors is divided into three classes of directows: Class | Directors (Messrs. Donlin and Abra
will serve until our annual meeting of stockholder2011, our Class Il Directors (Messrs. Lambiasd Keenan) will serve until our annual
meeting of stockholders in 2009; and our Clas®itector (Mr. Diamond) will serve until our annuaketing of stockholders in 2010. At each
annual meeting of the stockholders, the successdh® class of directors whose term expires &t sueeting are elected to hold office for a
term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholdeisl in the third year following the year of thelection and until their successors are duly
elected and qualify. Our bylaws provide that a migjof the entire board of directors may, at aegular or special meeting called for that
purpose, increase or decrease the number of dise¢élowever, unless our bylaws are amended, thébauof directors may never be less than
the minimum number required by the MGCL nor mornti5. Set forth below are the names and certémiation on each of our directors.

Class | Directors

Paul Donlinis one of our Class | Directors and our Nonexeeu@hairman of the Board of Directors. Mr. Donliceatly left Citigroup
after a career that spanned 21 years. For thelpastars at Citigroup, Mr. Donlin was in the setzagition business, with his most recent
position being the Head of Global Securitizationhia Global Securitized Markets Business withingixncome. Earlier in his career at
Citicorp, Mr. Donlin managed the Structured Finaand Advisory Unit of Citicorp’s Private Bank. MPonlin has a B.S. from Georgetown
University and an M.B.A. from Harvard University.

Mark Abramsis one of our Class | Directors. Mr. Abrams hawvedras Chief Investment Officer of the Presideritifd Insurance
Company since November 2003 and as Executive \Mfiesident since 2005. He was Senior Vice PresidetieoPresidential Life Insurance
Company from 2001 to 2005. Before that, Mr. Abragessed as Vice President of the Presidential lrifeifance Company since October 1¢
Mr. Abrams currently serves as a director of treutance Company. Mr. Abrams has a B.A. from HoBattege.
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Class Il Directors

Matthew Lambiases one of our Class Il Directors. For biographicdibrmation on Mr. Lambiase, see “Our Manager drel t
Management Agreement—Officers of Our Manager.”

Paul A. Keenaris one of our Class Il Directors. Mr. Keenan hasrbeith Kelley, Drye and Warren LLP since 2002 @&nd partner and
the head of Real Estate Finance at the law firm.Kenan has a J.D. from Seton Hall University af@IA. from Rutgers, the State University
of New Jersey.

Class Ill Directors

Jeremy Diamonds our Class Il Director. For biographical infortitan on Mr. Diamond, see “Our Manager and the Mamagnt
Agreement—Officers of Our Manager.”

Corporate Governance—Board of Directors and Commitees

Our business is managed by our Managejest to the supervision and oversight of our dazrdirectors, which has established
investment guidelines for our Manager to followitgxday-to-day management of our business. A nigjofiour board of directors is
“independent,” as determined by the requirementh®New York Stock Exchange and the regulatiorth@fSEC. In connection with these
independence determinations, our board of directonsidered all of the relationships between easdtibr, our Manager, and us, including
those relationships deemed immaterial, and in @4 the following relationship:

Mr. Donlin, our Nonexecutive Chairmantioé Board of Directors, has a direct economic egkein a separate account managed on a
discretionary basis by FIDAC. The separate accomartaged on a discretionary basis by FIDAC hasaheesnvestment objectives and sim
management fees as other FIDAC managed accounfsiatisland amounts to less than 1% of the sepacatnts and funds managed by
FIDAC.

In light of the ordinary course of busiesature of these transactions, the size of trestment account as compared to the funds
managed by FIDAC, and the nature of Mr. Donlin’eras an investor in the investment account, tleedof directors determined that these
relationships are not material and that Mr. Doigifindependent” within the meaning of the rulegttd NY SE.

As a result of this review, our boarddoEctors, based upon the fact that none of oureroployee directors have any material
relationships with us other than as directors avlddrs of our common stock, affirmatively deterndrieat three of our directors are
independent directors under NYSE rules. Our inddpendirectors are Mark Abrams, Paul Donlin andl RatKeenan. Jeremy Diamond and
Matthew Lambiase are not considered independemiusecthey are employees of our Manager.

Our directors keep informed about ourifiess at meetings of our board and its committadslaough supplemental reports and
communications. Our independent directors meetlaglgun executive sessions without the presenceunfcorporate officers.

Audit Committet

Our board of directors has establisheduwatit committee, which is composed of each ofiodependent directors, Messrs. Donlin,
Abrams and Keenan. Mr. Abrams chairs our audit caétamand serves as our audit committee finangipéd, as that term is defined by the
SEC. Each of the members of the audit committéfniancially literate” under the rules of the NYSEhe committee assists the board in
overseeing:

. our accounting and financial reporting proces

. the integrity and audits of our financial statense

. our compliance with legal and regulatory requiretag

. the qualifications and independence of our indepanhtkegistered public accounting fir

. the performance of our independent registered pagicounting firm and any internal auditors; i
. acting as ¢ Qualified Legal Compliance Commit” as defined in the applicable rules of the S

The audit committee is also responsibleehgaging our independent registered public attiogi firm, reviewing with the independent
registered public accounting firm the plans andiltsf the audit engagement, approving professisaaices provided by the independent
registered public accounting firm, reviewing the
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independence of the independent registered pubtiouating firm, considering the range of audit aod-audit fees and reviewing the
adequacy of our internal accounting controls.

Our board of directors has determined a&liaof the directors serving on the audit comegtare independent members of the audit
committee under the current NYSE independence reapgints and SEC rules. The audit committee meetsetfuirements for independence
under, and the functioning of the audit committemplies with, current rules of the SEC and NYSE.

Compensation Committee

Our board of directors has establishedrapensation committee, which is composed of e&oluindependent directors, Messrs.
Donlin, Abrams and Keenan. Mr. Keenan chairs themensation committee, whose principal functionstare

. evaluate the performance of our office

. evaluate the performance of our Manay

. review the compensation and fees payable to ouagl@mnunder our management agreen

. recommend to the board of directors the compensétioour independent directors; a

. a](cjf_rpinister the issuance of any securities undeequity incentive plan to our employees or the @ygés of our Manager or its
affiliates.

Our board of directors has determined &liaf the directors serving on the compensatiommittee are independent members of the
compensation committee under the current NYSE ieddpnce requirements and SEC rules. The compemgatiomittee meets the
requirements for independence under, and the fumioty of the committee complies with, current rubéshe NYSE.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Commi

Our board of directors has establishadrainating and corporate governance committee, wisicomposed of each of our independent
directors, Messrs. Donlin, Abrams and Keenan. Mmlih chairs the committee, which is responsiblesteeking, considering and
recommending to the full board of directors quatificandidates for election as directors and recarnding a slate of nominees for election as
directors at the annual meeting of stockholderalsib periodically prepares and submits to the déaradoption the nominating and corporate
governance committee’s selection criteria for dmeaominees. It reviews and makes recommendationmaatters involving general operation
of the board and our corporate governance, andadlgmecommends to the board nominees for each dteerof the board. In addition, the
nominating and corporate governance committee diyrfaailitates the assessment of the board ofaiies’ performance as a whole and of the
individual directors and reports thereon to therboa

Our board of directors has determined &liaf the directors serving on the nominatingl @erporate governance committee are
independent members of the nominating and corpg@ternance committee under the current NYSE inaldgece requirements and SEC
rules. The nominating and corporate governance dtigermeets the requirements for independence uaddrthe functioning of the
committee complies with, current rules of the NYSE.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Our board of directors has establishedde of business conduct and ethics that appliesrtofficers, directors and employees and to
our Manager’s officers, directors and employeesmngwech individuals are acting for or on our beh&thong other matters, our code of
business conduct and ethics is designed to detargeping and to promote:

. honest and ethical conduct, including the ethiealdiing of actual or apparent conflicts of inteflestween personal al
professional relationship

. full, fair, accurate, timely and understandableltisure in our SEC reports and other public comations;

. compliance with applicable governmental laws, raled regulations
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. prompt internal reporting of violations of the cadeappropriate persons identified in the code;

. accountability for adherence to the co

Any waiver of the code of business condund ethics for our executive officers or direstoray be made only by our board of directors
or one of our board committees and will be prompgiclosed as required by law or stock exchangela&gns.

Director Compensation

We compensate only those directors wkdradependent under the NYSE listing standards. aynber of our board of directors who is
also an employee of our Manager is referred tmasxaluded director. Each excluded director doé¢sexeive additional compensation for
serving on our board of directors. Each independi&attor receives an annual fee for their servafe®45,000. The chair of our audit
committee receives an additional annual fee of lMfor his service in such capacity. Each indepandirector receives a fee of $500 for
attendance at every in-person meeting of the bofditectors or committee of the board of directansl a fee of $250 for attendance at every
telephonic meeting of the board of directors or oottee of the board of directors. Fees to our irhelent directors are paid in cash or shares
of our common stock at the election of each dinediée also reimburse our directors for their traasgbenses incurred in connection with their
attendance at full board and committee meetings.

Our independent directors are eligiblegtmeive restricted common stock, option and osk@rk-based awards under our equity incentive
plan.

Director Summary Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the compemsgiaid by us to our non-employee directors forfibeal year ended December 31, 2007.

Change in
Fees Pension Value
Earned or Non-Equity and Deferred
Paid in Stock Option Incentive Plan Compensation All Other
Name Cash (1) Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation Total
Mark Abrams $7,08: — — — — — $ 7,082
Paul Donlin $5,79¢ — — — — — $ 5,794
Paul A. Keenal $5,79¢ — — — — — $ 5,794

(1) Reflects fees we paid each independent directan ftee date of their appointment as director on Muwer 15, 2007 to
December 31, 200°

Executive Compensation

We have not paid, and we do not intengay, any annual cash compensation to our execotiicers for their services as executive
officers. Our executive officers are compensatedinryManager. Our Manager has informed us thagumsethe services performed by these
executive officers or employees in their capaciiesuch are not performed exclusively for usafitnot segregate and identify that portion of
the compensation awarded to, earned by, or paditexecutive officers by our Manager that relatgegly to their services to us.

Equity Incentive Plan

We have adopted an equity incentive pdgprovide incentives to our independent directersployees of our Manager and its affiliates,
including Annaly, and other service providers imstate their efforts toward our continued succéssy-term growth and profitability and to
attract, reward and retain personnel. The equigntive plan is administered by the compensationroittee of our board of directors. Unless
terminated earlier, our equity incentive plan waitminate in 2017, but will continue to govern upieed awards.

Our equity incentive plan provides foagts of restricted common stock and other equigedawards up to an aggregate of 8% of the
issued and outstanding shares of our common stoth (ully diluted basis and including shares tebke to Annaly with this offering
immediately after this offering and shares to He porsuant to the exercise of the underwritergrallotment option) at the time of the award,
subject to a ceiling of 40,000,000 shares availédléssuance under the plan. Upon completion isf ¢iffering, the number of issued and
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outstanding shares of our common stock will inceeasd, therefore, the number of shares availablis§oance under our equity incentive plan
will increase by 8% of the number of shares of camrstock issued in this offering, including shasekl pursuant to the exercise of the
underwriters’ overallotment option, up to a ceilioigd0,000,000 shares. As of June 30, 2008, we pemted 1,301,000 shares of restricted
stock under our equity incentive plan.

Our equity incentive plan permits thergirag of options to purchase shares of common statekided to qualify as incentive stock
options under the Internal Revenue Code, and giptikns that do not qualify as incentive stock opsi. The exercise price of each stock
option may not be less than 100% of the fair maviebde of our shares of common stock on the datgarit. The compensation committee
determines the terms of each option, including wéeech option may be exercised and the period &, tihany, after retirement, death,
disability or termination of employment during whioptions may be exercised. Options become vesig@xercisable in installments and the
exercisability of options may be accelerated bydbmpensation committee.

Our equity incentive plan also permits ¢hianting of shares of our common stock in thenfof restricted common stock. A restricted
common stock award is an award of shares of constamk that may be subject to forfeiture (vestimgytrictions on transferability and such
other restrictions, if any, as the compensationrogtee may impose at the date of grant. The shaegsvest and the restrictions may lapse
separately or in combination at such times, undeh €ircumstances, including, without limitationsecified period of employment or the
satisfaction of pre-established criteria, in sutdtallments or otherwise, as our compensation ctteeinay determine.

Unrestricted shares of common stock, tviaie shares of common stock awarded at no ctisétparticipant or for a purchase price
determined by the compensation committee, maykssssued under our equity incentive plan. The camation committee may also grant
shares of our common stock, stock appreciatiortgjgierformance awards, dividend equivalent rigdutsl other stock and non-stock-based
awards under the incentive plan. These awards maybject to such conditions and restrictions astimpensation committee may detern
including, but not limited to, the achievement eftain performance goals or continued employmetit ws through a specific period. Each
award under the plan may not be exercisable maire 10 years after the date of grant.

Our board of directors may at any timeeadh alter or discontinue the incentive plan, antrot, without a participant’s consent, take any
action that would diminish any of the rights of Bymarticipant under any award granted under the. glpproval of the stockholders, however,
is required for any amendment that would, othen thaough adjustment as provided in the incentiea:p

. increase the total number of shares of our comrtamk geserved for issuance under the incentive;}
. change the class of eligible participants undeiirthentive plan

. reprice any option or stock appreciation right

. otherwise require such approv

Our equity incentive plan provides tha tompensation committee of our board of diredtassthe discretion to provide that all or any
outstanding options and stock appreciation righlisbecome fully exercisable, all or any outstarglstock awards will become vested and
transferable and all or any outstanding performaeges and incentive awards will be earned, ahgroutstanding awards may be cancelled
in exchange for a payment of cash or all or angtantling awards may be substituted for awardsathlesubstantially preserve the otherwise
applicable terms of any affected awards previogsinted under the equity incentive plan if thera éhange in control of us.

Under our equity incentive plan, a chaimgeontrol is defined as the occurrence of antheffollowing events: (i) the acquisition of mc
than 50% of our voting shares by any person;H{#&)dale or disposition of all or substantiallyaflbur assets; (iii) a merger, consolidation or
statutory share exchange where our stockholdersifiately prior to such event hold less than 50%hefvoting power of the surviving or
resulting entity; (iv) during any two year periodralirectors, including subsequent directors recemed or approved by our directors, at the
beginning of such period cease to constitute a ntgjof our board of directors; (v) stockholder apyal of our liquidation or dissolution; or
(vi) the adoption by our board of directors of adl@tion to the effect that, in its
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judgment, as a consequence of any transactionemt.ea change in control has effectively occureedtept, in the case of clauses (i) throl
(vi), if the change of control results from a tracson between us and our Manager or an affiliitsuo Manager or from a termination of the
management agreement for cause.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

We have adopted a long term stock ingerglan, or Incentive Plan, to provide incentivestrr independent directors, employees of our
Manager and its affiliates to stimulate their ef§diowards our continued success, long-term granthprofitability and to attract, reward and
retain personnel and other service providers. Tberitive Plan authorizes the compensation comnuftéee board of directors to grant
awards, including incentive stock options as defineder Section 422 of the Code, or ISOs, non-fiedlstock options, or NQSOs, restricted
shares and other types of incentive awards. Thentive Plan authorizes the granting of optionstbepnawards for an aggregate of 8% of the
outstanding shares of our common stock (excludirages from this offering), up to a ceiling of 4000000 shares. For a description of our
Incentive Plan, see Note 10 to the Financial Statém

The following table provides informatiea of December 31, 2007 concerning shares of aunmmm stock authorized for issuance under
our existing Incentive Plan.

Number of Securities to Weighted Average Number of Securities
be Issued upon Exercise Exercise Price of Available for Future
of Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Issuance Under Equity
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Compensation Plans
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Stockhold
@ — — 3,016,44¢
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by
Stockholders(2 — — —
Total — — 3,016,44¢

(1) The amount does not give effect to the 1,301,0@0eshof restricted common stock issued subseqodrdcember 31, 2007
our Manager’'s employees and to our independenttdirg under our equity incentive plan or incredsssause of this offering.
Each of our independent directors was granted 38&fes of our restricted common stock which fuélgted on January 2, 20
The restricted common stock approved as grantartefficers and other employees of our Managetoaffiliates will vest in
equal installments on the first business day ohdmcal quarter over a period of 10 years begigrin January 2, 2008, or all
outstanding unvested shares will fully vest ondbath of the individua

(2) We do not have any equity plans that have not bpenoved by our stockholde
Restricted Common Stock Awards

We made grants on January 2, 2008 ofl10B0 shares of restricted common stock to ourwikexofficers and other employees of our
Manager or its affiliates, and our independentadaes. Each independent director was granted 30@6es of our restricted common stock
which fully vested on January 2, 2008. The restdatommon stock granted to our executive officas@her employees of our Manager or its
affiliates vests in equal installments on the fimssiness day of each fiscal quarter over a peridd years beginning on January 2, 2008, of
which 73,600 shares vested and 6,713 shares wdegdd during the six months ended June 30, 2088.restricted common stock granted to
our executive officers and other employees of oaniger or its affiliates that remain outstanding are unvested will fully vest on the death
of the individual. The 1,227,400 shares of ourriet®d common stock granted to our executive offi@nd other employees of our Manager or
its affiliates and to our independent directorg teanains unvested as of June 30, 2008 represeptexamately 0.8% of the issued and
outstanding shares of our common stock (on a flillyted basis after giving effect to the shareséskin this offering and including shares t
sold to Annaly with this offering immediately aftigris offering but excluding any shares to be smlcsuant to the exercise of the underwriters’
overallotment option) based on the assumption1h@t000,000 shares of our common stock will beedsu this offering. We will not make
distributions on shares of restricted stock whiakiehnot vested.
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Indemnification and Limitation on Liability; Insura nce

Maryland law permits a Maryland corpavatio include in its charter a provision limitirftetliability of its directors and officers to the
corporation and its stockholders for money damagpasept for liability resulting from:

. actual receipt of an improper benefit or profinioney, property or services;

. active and deliberate dishonesty established liyahjftidgment and which is material to the causaation.

Our charter contains such a provisionchlgliminates directors’ and officers’ liability the maximum extent permitted by Maryland
law.

Our charter also authorizes our comp#mihe maximum extent permitted by Maryland lawoltigate our company to indemnify any
present or former director or officer or any indiwal who, while a director or officer of our comgaand at the request of our company, serves
or has served another corporation, real estatesiment trust, partnership, joint venture, trustpkayee benefit plan or other enterprise as a
director, officer, partner or trustee, from andiagtany claim or liability to which that individuenay become subject or which that individual
may incur because of his or her service in any sagiacity and to pay or reimburse his or her realsienexpenses in advance of final
disposition of a proceeding.

Our bylaws obligate us, to the maximurteekpermitted by Maryland law, to indemnify anggent or former director or officer or any
individual who, while a director or officer of oubmpany and at the request of our company, senfeasoserved another corporation, real
estate investment trust, partnership, joint ventutst, employee benefit plan or other enterpaisa director, officer, partner or trustee and
is made, or threatened to be made, a party tortheepding because of his or her service in thaa@apfrom and against any claim or liability
to which that individual may become subject or vhhtieat individual may incur because of his or rewiEe in any such capacity and to pay or
reimburse his or her reasonable expenses in adwdffical disposition of a proceeding.

Maryland law requires a corporation (gslés charter provides otherwise, which our chattes not) to indemnify a director or officer
who has been successful, on the merits or otherimidke defense of any proceeding to which heheris made, or threatened to be made, a
party because of his or her service in such capadiryland law permits a corporation to indemrit/present and former directors and
officers, among others, against judgments, pemsalfiiees, settlements and reasonable expensedhadatearred by them in connection with &
proceeding to which they may be made, or threatémee made, a party because of their servicedsetlor other capacities unless it is
established that:

. the act or omission of the director or officer waaterial to the matter giving rise to the procegdind (i) was committed in bad
faith or (ii) was the result of active and delilterdishonesty

. the director or officer actually received an impgopersonal benefit in money, property or servioe

. in the case of any criminal proceeding, the dineotoofficer had reasonable cause to believe tiefatt or omission was
unlawful.

A court may order indemnification if ietérmines that the director or officer is fairlydareasonably entitled to indemnification, even
though the director or officer did not meet thesgrébed standard of conduct or was adjudged liablthe basis that personal benefit was
improperly received.

Under Maryland law, however, a Marylamdporation may not indemnify for an adverse judghiera suit by or in the right of the
corporation or for a judgment of liability on thadis that personal benefit was improperly receivetkss in either case a court orders
indemnification and then only for expenses. In &ddj Maryland law permits a corporation to advarezsonable expenses to a director or
officer upon the corporation’s receipt of:

. a written affirmation by the director or officer bis or her good faith belief that he or she hastirestandard of conduct
necessary for indemnification by the corporatiarg

. a written undertaking by him or her or on his or behalf to repay the amount paid or reimbursethkycorporation if it is
ultimately determined that the standard of condvas not met
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We have obtained a policy of insuranceeurwhich our directors and officers are insuredject to the limits of the policy, against
certain losses arising from claims made againgi directors and officers because of any acts ossioms covered under such policy in their
respective capacities as directors or officerduitiog certain liabilities under the Securities Act
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PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

Immediately prior to the completion ofstioffering, there will be 38,988,683 shares of common stock outstanding and 82 stockho
of record. The following table sets forth certaiformation, as of October 23, 2008 and immediaa#gr this offering, regarding the owners
of each class of capital stock by:

. each of our director:

. each of our executive officer

. each holder of 5% or more of each class of ourtabgiock; anc
. all of our directors and officers as a gro

In accordance with SEC rules, each listed pe's beneficial ownership include
. all shares the investor actually owns beneficialpf record;

. all shares over which the investor has or sharéagor dispositive control (such as in the capaa& a general partner of an
investment fund); an

. all shares the investor has the right to acquithiwib0 days (such as shares of restricted comrnuomk shat are currently vest
or which are scheduled to vest within 60 da

Unless otherwise indicated, all sharesoavned directly and the indicated person has\smiag and investment power. Except as
indicated in the footnotes to the table below,libsiness address of the stockholders listed beddiei address of our principal executive off
1211 Avenue of the Americas, Suite 2902, New Ydhw York 10036.

Percentage of Common Stock Outstanding

As of Immediately After This
October 23, 2008 Offering(1)(2)
Name Shares Ownec Percentage Shares Ownec Percentage

Matthew Lambiase(¢ 90,00( * 90,00( *
Christian J. Woschenko(: 88,97 * 88,97: *
William B. Dyer(5) 69,46¢ * 69,46¢ *
A. Alexandra Denahan(t 70,00( * 70,00( *
Paul Donlin(7) 3,32¢ * 103,32 *
Jeremy Diamond(€ 68,524 * 68,524 *
Mark Abrams(9; 3,00( * 3,00( *
Paul A. Keenan(1C 3,32¢ * 3,32¢ *

All Directors and Officers as a Grol 396,79: 1.C% 496,79: *
FMR LLC(11) 4,804,13! 12.2% 4,804,13! 3.0%
ValueAct Capital Master Fund Ill, L.P.(1 4,532,62! 11.€% 4,532,62! 2.8%
LMM LLC; Legg Mason Opportunit
Trust; Legg Mason Capital Manageme
Inc.; and Legg Mason Special Investm
Trust, Inc.(13 4,423,98. 11.2% 4,423,98. 2.8%
Annaly Capital Management, Inc.(1 3,621,58 9.3% 15,302,99 9.5%
Marc C. Cohodes(1* 3,618,05 9.3% 3,618,05 2.3%
Avenir Corporation(16 3,037,05! 7.8% 3,037,05! 1.8%
Capital Research Global Investors(. 2,239,801 5.7% 2,239,801 1.4%
Reed Conner & Birdwell, LLC(1€ 1,945,73! 5.0% 1,945,73! 1.2%

* Less than 1 percer
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(1) Includes vested and unvested shares of restriciednon stock approved as grants to our independiettdrs and employees of our
Manager or its affiliates

(2)  Assumes the issuance of 110,000,000 shares offeredy and the sale of 11,681,415 shares of oummnstock in a private offerir
immediately after this offering at the same priee ghare as the price per share of this publiciaffe Does not include any shares of



®3)

(4)

®)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)
(10)
11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

common stock reserved for issuance upon exercieeainderwriters’ option. Assumes that no existiogger of shares of our common
stock, other than Annaly, purchases shares iroffesing.

Mr. Lambiase, our Chief Executive Officer, Presitland one of our directors, beneficially owns 90,80ares. Mr. Lambiase w
awarded 90,000 shares of restricted common stoadwest in equal installments on the first busingay of each fiscal quarter over a
period of 10 years beginning on January 2, 2008fA3ctober 23, 2008, 9,000 shares have vestesha@s will vest within 60 days of
October 23, 2008 and 81,000 shares will vest ntmae 60 days after October 23, 20

Mr. Woschenko, our Head of Investments, benefigialns 88,973 shares. Mr. Woschenko was award@OG&hares of restricted
common stock which vest in equal installments enfitst business day of each fiscal quarter oveeréod of 10 years beginning on
January 2, 2008. As of October 23, 2008, 7,97 3eshlaave vested, no shares will vest within 60 déy3ctober 23, 2008 and 81,000
shares will vest more than 60 days after OctobePQ@8.

Mr. Dyer, our Head of Underwriting, beneficially oa69,469 shares. Mr. Dyer was awarded 70,000 slodrestricted common stor
which vest in equal installments on the first besmday of each fiscal quarter over a period ofedds beginning on January 2, 2008.
As of October 23, 2008, 6,649 shares have vesteghares will vest within 60 days of October 23)&@nd 63,000 shares will vest
more than 60 days after October 23, 2(

Ms. Denahan, our Chief Financial Officer and Semrgtbeneficially owns 70,000 shares. Ms. Denahas awarded 70,000 shares of
restricted common stock which vest in equal instalits on the first business day of each fiscaltguaver a period of 10 years
beginning on January 2, 2008. As of October 238200000 shares have vested, no shares will vésini80 days of October 23, 2008
and 63,000 shares will vest more than 60 days @ftéober 23, 200¢

Mr. Donlin is one of our directors. Mr. Donlin, oNionexecutive Chairman of the Board of Directonsemnds to purchase 100,000 shi
of our common stock through one of the underwriterthis offering.

Mr. Diamond, one of our directors, beneficially aw88,524 shares. Mr. Diamond was awarded 70,00@sloé restricted common
stock which vest in equal installments on the finssiness day of each fiscal quarter over a paidd years beginning on January 2,
2008. As of October 23, 2008, 5,524 shares havedeso shares will vest within 60 days of Octa®®&r2008 and 63,000 shares will
vest more than 60 days after October 23, 2

Mr. Abrams is one of our director
Mr. Keenan is one of our directol

The business address for this stockholder is 8b&hire Street, Boston, MA 02109. Based solelyndorimation contained in a
Schedule 13G dated June 10, 2008 filed by FMR LTl&& Schedule 13G reports that FMR LLC has soleodisipe power over
4,804,138 shares and sole voting power over 39GsRBafes, and that Edward C. Johnson Il has ssjoditive power over 4,804,138
shares

The business address for this stockholder is clodAxt Capital, 435 Pacific Avenue, Fourth FlooanS-rancisco, CA 94133. Bas
solely on information contained in a Schedule 1B&lfby ValueAct Capital Master Fund IlI, L.P., Partners lll, LLC, ValueAct
Capital Management, L.P., ValueAct Capital Managetmel C, ValueAct Holdings, L.P., and ValueAct Haids GP, LLC on April 2¢
2008 as amended on May 14, 2008, June 9, 2008,21yr#908, and October 21, 2008, respectively. &bt Capital Master Fund llI,
L.P. has been granted a waiver to own up to 12#upotommon stock

The business address for these stockholders i&ifyp0 Street, Baltimore, MD 21202. Based solelyimiormation contained in
Schedule 13G filed jointly by LMM LLC, Legg MasorpPortunity Trust, Legg Mason Capital Managemert, and Legg Mason
Special Investment Trust, Inc. on December 10, 280@mended on February 14, 2008 and August 18, 28§pectively. LMM LLC
has shared voting and dispositive power over 17/83shares of common stock. Legg Mason Capital iament, Inc. has shared
voting and dispositive power over 3,256,200 shafepmmon stock. Legg Mason Opportunity Trust hasrbgranted a waiver to own
up to 15% of our common stoc

Annaly owns our Manager. The business addres$if®stockholder is 1211 Avenue of the Americastesp902, New York, NY 1003
Annaly has been granted a waiver to own up to 12&upncommon stock
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(15)

(16)

The business address for this stockholder is cfip€oRiver Management, L.P., 12 Linden Place, Sé¢door, Red Bank, NJ 07701.
Based solely on information contained in a Sched@I8 filed by Marc C. Cohodes on February 12, 200& shares shown as
beneficially owned by Marc C. Cohodes reflect searecommon stock held by Copper River Partnei,,la New York limited
partnership, and the other investment funds andwumts over which Marc C. Cohodes holds investmentrol and voting control with
respect to their investments (collectively the “Bsif). Mr. Cohodes by virtue of his position asgijnanaging partner of Copper River,
and (ii) the managing member of Copper River Manzgg, L.L.C., the investment advisor to the Fupassesses the sole power to
vote and the sole power to direct the dispositiballo3,618,057 of these shari

The business address for this stockholder is 1@t$ylvania Avenue NW, 4th Floor, Washington, DO@& Based solely on
information contained in a Schedule 13G filed byeAw Corporation on June 10, 2008 and in a SchelRllefiled by Avenir



Corporation on October 21, 2008 as amended on ©cf#) 2008, respectivel

(17) The business address for this stockholder is 33BhSdope Street, Los Angeles, CA 90071. Basedsolelinformation contained in a
Schedule 13G filed by Capital Research Global Itoreson February 12, 2008. Capital Research Glovaistors has sole dispositive
power and voting power over 2,239,800 shares ofrcomstock as a result of it acting as investmentisad to various investment
companies registered under Section 8 of the Invasti@ompany Act of 1941

(18) The business address for this stockholder is 1BHtta Monica Boulevard, Suite 1700, Los Angeles,90825. Based solely ¢
information contained in a Schedule 13G filed be&€onner & Birdwell, LLC on April 2, 200
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
Management Agreement

We have entered into a management agreesith FIDAC, our Manager, pursuant to which ibpides the day-to-day management of
our operations. The management agreement requirddanager to manage our business affairs in camifgwith the policies and the
investment guidelines that are approved and madtby our board of directors. See “Our ManagertardMlanagement Agreement—
Management Agreement.”

Our chief executive officer and presidetiief financial officer, head of underwritinge&rsurer, controller, secretary, and head of
investments also serve as employees of our ManAgex.result, the management agreement betweemdusuet Manager was negotiated
between related parties, and the terms, includéeg payable, may not be as favorable to us akafitbeen negotiated with an unaffiliated tl
party. See “Business—Conflicts of Interest “ andsiRFactors—Risks Associated with Our ManagemedtRelationship with Our Manager—
There are conflicts of interest in our relationsiith our Manager which could result in decisiohattare not in your best interests.”

Restricted Common Stock Awards

Our equity incentive plan provides foagts of restricted common stock and other equisetiawards up to an aggregate of 8% of the
issued and outstanding shares of our common stock ully diluted basis and including shares tsblel to Annaly immediately after this
offering and shares to be sold pursuant to theceseenf the underwriters’ overallotment option}ta time of the award, subject to a ceiling of
40,000,000 shares available for issuance undepléime Each independent director was granted 3,88€es of our restricted common stock
which fully vested on January 2, 2008. In additionr executive officers and other employees ofanager or its affiliates were granted
shares of our restricted common stock which, a®apgand together with the shares granted to @legandent directors, represented an
aggregate of 1,301,000 shares of our common stdekrestricted common stock granted to our exeewflicers and other employees of our
Manager or its affiliates vests in equal installtsesn the first business day of each fiscal quarter a period of 10 years beginning on Jan
2, 2008, of which 73,600 shares vested and 6,74festwere forfeited during the six months endee Bl 2008. The restricted common st
granted to our executive officers and other empdeyaf our Manager or its affiliates that remainstaniding and are unvested will fully vest on
the death of the individual. The 1,227,400 shafesiorestricted common stock granted to our exeeudfficers and other employees of our
Manager or its affiliates and to our independergators that remains unvested as of June 30, 209¥8sents approximately 0.8% of the issued
and outstanding shares of our common stock (ofiyadiluted basis after giving effect to the shaigsued in this offering and including shares
to be sold to Annaly immediately after this offeribut excluding any shares to be sold pursuaritd@xercise of the underwriters’
overallotment option), based on the assumptionth@t000,000 shares of our common stock will bedddn this offering. We do not make
distributions on shares of restricted stock whiakiehnot vested.

Purchases of Common Stock by Affiliates

Immediately after this offering, we wéktll to Annaly 11,681,415 shares of common stock fimivate offering at the same price per share
as the price per share of this public offering. pompletion of this offering and the private offigrimmediately after this offering, Annaly
will own approximately 9.6% of our outstanding coomstock (which percentage excludes shares toldgsosuant to the exercise of the
underwriters’ overallotment option and unvestedesaf our restricted common stock granted to @acetive officers and employees of our
Manager or its affiliates). We plan to invest tiet proceeds of this offering and the sale of shirésinaly immediately after this offering in
accordance with our investment objectives and titetegjies described in this prospectus.

Paul Donlin, our Nonexecutive Chairmaritaf Board of Directors, intends to purchase 1@ glares of our common stock through one
of the underwriters in this offering.

Financings by Annaly

In March 2008, we entered into a RMBSurepase agreement with Annaly. This agreement getaistomary representations,
warranties and covenants contained in such agrasmé&fe have, from time to time, received finandiragn Annaly under this facility. As of
June 30, 2008, we had $50.0 million outstandingeutite agreement with a weighted average borrovéteyof 3.96%. As of September 30,
2008, we had approximately $620.0 million outstagdinder this agreement, which constitutes apprataiy 56% of our total financing. As
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October 13, 2008, the weighted average borrowitggaa amounts outstanding under this agreemenB\wa%. Our RMBS repurchase
agreement with Annaly is rolled daily at markeegtbears interest at LIBOR plus 150 basis poamtd,is secured by the RMBS pledged under
the agreement. We do not expect to increase signifiy the amount of securities pledged to Annalgignificantly increase or decrease the
funds we borrow from Annaly as a result of thiseoifig.

In March 2008, we entered into a recdiesisales agreement with Annaly. This agreementigied for the sale of approximately $127
million of receivables by us to Annaly of the preds that we were due to receive under a mortgagedarchase and sale agreement with a
third party. Annaly paid us a discounted amourdwath receivables due from the third party equédde than one percent of such receivables
due from the third party in exchange for us reggjuhe purchase price under the receivables sgtesment in immediately available funds
from Annaly. The agreement contained representatiwarranties and covenants by both parties. Adasth 31, 2008, each party had
performed their outstanding obligations under thieeament, the third party purchaser under the ragedoan purchase and sale agreemen
paid the purchase price under the mortgage loachpse and sale agreement, and we have remittedasaimts to Annaly pursuant to the
receivables sales agreement.

Other Relationships

Matthew J. Lambiase, our President ani@f@Executive Officer, one of our directors and Eyeecutive Vice President, Structured
Products for Annaly and FIDAC, is the son of onéahaly’s directors, John A. Lambiase. A. AlexanBrnahan, our Chief Financial Officer
and Secretary and the Controller of Annaly and FID#s the sister of Wellington J. Denahan-Nortig Vice Chairman of Annaly and Chief
Investment Officer and Chief Operating Officer afifaly and FIDAC.

Paul Donlin, our Nonexecutive Chairmarthef Board of Directors, has a direct economicreggein a separate account managed on a
discretionary basis by FIDAC. See “Management—CrafmGovernance—Board of Directors and Committedsive for a description of the
transactions involving FIDAC and this separate aoto

Related Person Transaction Policies

Our code of business conduct and etleigsires all of our personnel to be scrupulous widiag a conflict of interest with regard to our
interests. The code prohibits us from entering ambsiness relationship with an immediate famignmber or with a company that the
employee or immediate family member has a substdimiancial interest in unless such relationskipisclosed to and approved in advance by
our board of directors.

Each of our directors and executive efficis required to complete an annual disclosuestipnnaire and report all transactions with us
in which they and their immediate family memberd bawill have a direct or indirect material intstevith respect to us. We review these
guestionnaires and, if we determine it necessasguds any reported transactions with the entieedof directors. We do not, however, ha\
formal written policy for approval or ratificatiosf such transactions, and all such transactions\ekiated on a case-by-case basis. If we
believe a transaction is significant to us andesjsarticular conflict of interest issues, we wiicuss it with our legal counsel, and if neces¢
we will form an independent board committee whiels the right to engage its own legal and finarmdainsel to evaluate and approve the
transaction.

In addition, we will not invest in anyltzderalized debt obligation or security structutednanaged by our Manager or any of its
affiliates unless the investment is approved inaabe by a majority of our independent directors.

Lack of Separate Representation

K&L Gates LLP is counsel to us, our Maeagnd Annaly in connection with this offering amdy in the future act as counsel to us, our
Manager and Annaly. There is a possibility thath@ future the interests of various parties maylrexadverse. If such a dispute were to arise
between us, our Manager or Annaly, separate codimsslich matters will be retained as and whenawpate. In the event of a dispute or
conflict between us, FIDAC, or Annaly, K&L Gates Blwill not represent any of the parties in any sdisipute or conflict.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following summary description of eapital stock does not purport to be complete anslibject to and qualified in its entirety by
reference to the MGCL and our charter and our bydaeopies of which will be available before thesalg of this offering from us upon
request. See “Where You Can Find More Information.”

General

Our charter provides that we may issuéupb0,000,000 shares of stock, consisting ofoup0i0,000,000 shares of common stock ha
a par value of $0.01 per share and up to 50,00Gs08ks of preferred stock having a par value ditsper share. Upon completion of this
offering and the private offering to Annaly immetily after this offering, 160,670,098 shares of owon stock will be issued and outstanding
and no shares of preferred stock will be issuedaanstanding. Our board of directors, with the appt of a majority of the entire board and
without any action on the part of our stockholdemay amend our charter from time to time to inceemsdecrease the aggregate number of
shares of stock or the number of shares of stoekpfclass or series that we have authority teeissmder Maryland law, our stockholders
generally are not personally liable for our delstd abligations solely as a result of their statsistackholders.

Common Stock

All shares of our common stock have eqiggits as to earnings, assets, dividends andgyatirad, when they are issued, will be duly
authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assble. Distributions may be paid to the holdersusfcommon stock if, as and when
authorized by our board of directors and declageddiout of funds legally available therefor. Slsaw€our common stock have no preemptive,
appraisal, preferential exchange, conversion cemgation rights and are freely transferable, exedygre their transfer is restricted by federal
and state securities laws, by contract or by te&iotions in our charter. In the event of our ldption, dissolution or winding up, each share of
our common stock would be entitled to share ratabbll of our assets that are legally availabledistribution after payment of or adequate
provision for all of our known debts and other ligies and subject to any preferential rights ofders of our preferred stock, if any preferred
stock is outstanding at such time. Subject to darter restrictions on the transfer and ownershiguo stock and except as may otherwise be
specified in the terms of any class or series afon stock, each share of our common stock enttilefiolder to one vote on all matters
submitted to a vote of stockholders, including eékextion of directors. Except as provided with exgfo any other class or series of stock, the
holders of our common stock will possess exclusiting power. There is no cumulative voting in thection of directors, which means that
holders of a majority of the outstanding sharesashmon stock can elect all of our directors, anldidrs of less than a majority of such shares
will be unable to elect any director.

Power to Reclassify Shares of Our Stock

Our charter authorizes our board of doecto classify and reclassify any unissued shafretock into other classes or series of stock,
including preferred stock. Before issuance of shafeeach class or series, the board of direcsorsquired by Maryland law and by our charter
to set, subject to our charter restrictions onttaesfer and ownership of our stock, the termdepeaces, conversion or other rights, voting
powers, restrictions, limitations as to dividendsther distributions, qualifications and termsonditions of redemption for each class or
series. Thus, the board of directors could autledtiz issuance of shares of common stock or pesfetock with terms and conditions which
could have the effect of delaying, deferring orgrgting a transaction or a change in control thighirinvolve a premium price for holders of
our common stock or otherwise be in their bestré@ss. No shares of our preferred stock are prgsenitstanding and we have no present
to issue any preferred stock.

Power to Issue Additional Shares of Common Stock ahPreferred Stock

We believe that the power of our boardioéctors to amend the charter without stockhosggaroval to increase the total number of
authorized shares of our stock or any class oesefi our stock, to issue additional authorizedumigsued shares of our common stock or
preferred stock and to classify or reclassify wmsksshares of our common stock or preferred stodilzereafter to cause us to issue such
classified or reclassified shares of stock willpde us with increased flexibility in structuringgsible future financings and acquisitions an
meeting other needs which might arise. The additiolasses or series, as well as our common stdgttihe available for issuance without
further action by our stockholders, unless stoatt@ohction is required by applicable law or thesubf any stock exchange or automated
guotation system on which our securities may hedisr
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traded. Although our board of directors has noritibs at the present time of doing so, it coulchauize us to issue a class or series that could,
depending upon the terms of such class or serday,ddefer or prevent a transaction or a changeirtrol of us that might involve a premium
price for holders of our common stock or otherviisdn their best interests.

Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer

To qualify as a REIT under the InternavBnue Code for each taxable year beginning akee®ber 31, 2007, our shares of capital
stock must be beneficially owned by 100 or morespes during at least 335 days of a taxable ye&® ahonths or during a proportionate part
of a shorter taxable year. Also, beginning aftecé&eber 31, 2007, no more than 50% of the valuaipbatstanding shares of capital stock
may be owned, directly or constructively, by fivefewer individuals (as defined in the Internal Beue Code to include certain entities) du
the second half of any calendar year.

Our charter, subject to certain exce@i@ontains restrictions on the number of sharesiptapital stock that a person may own. Our
charter provides that (subject to certain excegtibescribed below) no person may own, or be degmedn by the attribution provisions of
the Internal Revenue Code, more than 9.8% in vatue number of shares, whichever is more resuéctof any class or series of our capital
stock.

Our charter also prohibits any persomfi© beneficially or constructively owning sham@sour capital stock that would result in our
being “closely held” under Section 856(h) of theehmal Revenue Code or otherwise cause us toofgilialify as a REIT and (ii) transferring
shares of our capital stock if such transfer woekllt in our capital stock being owned by fewemntfi00 persons. Any person who acquires or
attempts or intends to acquire beneficial or cartsive ownership of shares of our capital stock wi#l or may violate any of the foregoing
restrictions on transferability and ownership, drons the intended transferee of shares of oukstdiich are transferred to the trust (as
described below), will be required to give notinemediately to us and provide us with such othesrmfition as we may request to determine
the effect of such transfer on our status as a RHA€ foregoing restrictions on transferability avanership will not apply if our board of
directors determines that it is no longer in owsthiterests to attempt to qualify, or to continoigualify, as a REIT.

Our board of directors, in its sole digion, may exempt a person from the foregoingiagins. The person seeking an exemption must
provide to our board of directors such represemtaticovenants and undertakings as our board eftdiis may deem appropriate to conclude
that granting the exemption will not cause us &elour status as a REIT. Our board of directors at&y require a ruling from the Internal
Revenue Service or an opinion of counsel to detegrar ensure our status as a REIT.

Any attempted transfer of our securitiggch, if effective, would result in a violation tfe foregoing restrictions will cause the number
of securities causing the violation (rounded toriearest whole share) to be automatically transfieto a trust for the exclusive benefit of one
or more charitable beneficiaries, and the propasedsferee will not acquire any rights in such sities. The automatic transfer will be deen
to be effective as of the close of business orbtigness day (as defined in our charter) before#ite of the transfer. If, for any reason, the
transfer to the trust is ineffective, our chartesyides that the purported transfer in violatiortted restrictions will be voidb initio . Shares of
our stock held in the trust will be issued and tautding shares. The proposed transferee will neéfitseconomically from ownership of any
securities held in the trust, will have no righlagividends and no rights to vote or other rightslautable to the shares of stock held in thett
The trustee of the trust will have all voting rigland rights to dividends or other distributionhwespect to shares held in the trust. These
rights will be exercised for the exclusive benefithe charitable beneficiary. Any dividend or atldéstribution paid before our discovery that
shares of stock have been transferred to thewilldie paid by the recipient to the trustee upemand. Any dividend or other distribution
authorized but unpaid will be paid when due totthstee. Any dividend or distribution paid to tiestee will be held in trust for the charitable
beneficiary. Subject to Maryland law, the trustel mave the authority (i) to rescind as void armter cast by the proposed transferee before ou
discovery that the shares have been transferrggbtsust and (i) to recast the vote in accordamitle the desires of the trustee acting for the
benefit of the charitable beneficiary. Howevenvd have already taken irreversible corporate acttmen the trustee will not have the authority
to rescind and recast the vote.

Within 20 days of receiving notice from that the securities have been transferred ttrilsg the trustee will sell the securities to a
person designated by the trustee, whose owner§liie gecurities will not violate the above owngpdimitations. Upon such sale, the interest
of the charitable beneficiary in the securitiesdssill terminate and the trustee will distributeethet proceeds of the sale to the proposed
transferee and to the charitable
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beneficiary as follows. The proposed transfereéredeive the lesser of (i) the price paid by thepesed transferee for the securities or, if the
proposed transferee did not give value for the séesiin connection with the event causing theusiéies to be held in the trust (e.g., a gift,
devise or other similar transaction), the markatep(as defined in our charter) of the securitiedte day of the event causing the securities to
be held in the trust and (ii) the price receivedtmy trustee from the sale or other dispositiothefsecurities. The trustee may reduce the
amount payable to the proposed transferee by tloeiainof dividends and distributions paid to thegmeed transferee and owed by the
proposed transferee to the trustee. Any net saleepds in excess of the amount payable to the pedpimansferee will be paid immediately to
the charitable beneficiary. If, before our discgvitrat the securities have been transferred tartis¢, the securities are sold by the proposed
transferee, then (i) the securities shall be deamédve been sold on behalf of the trust anddithe extent that the proposed transferee
received an amount for the securities that excelamount the proposed transferee was entitleective, the excess shall be paid to the
trustee upon demand.

In addition, the securities held in thest will be deemed to have been offered for salgst or our designee, at a price per share equal t
the lesser of (i) the price per share in the tretis@ that resulted in the transfer to the trust fothe case of a devise or gift, the marketest
the time of the devise or gift) and (ii) the markeite on the date we, or our designee, accepiffee We may reduce the amount payable to
the proposed transferee, however, by the amousmtyflividends or distributions paid to the proposadsferee on the securities and owed by
the proposed transferee to the trustee. We wilehe right to accept the offer until the trustaes kold the securities. Upon a sale to us, the
interest of the charitable beneficiary in the séms sold will terminate and the trustee will distte the net proceeds of the sale to the prog
transferee.

All certificates representing the sedasitwill bear a legend referring to the restriciatescribed above or will state that we will fumés
full statement about certain transfer restrictitma stockholder upon request and without charge.

Every owner of more than 5% (or such lop@rcentage as required by the Internal Revenuke Gothe regulations promulgated
thereunder) in value of all classes or series ofstack, including shares of common stock, withindaiys after the end of each taxable year,
will be required to give written notice to us statithe name and address of such owner, the numibbaces of each class and series of shares
of our stock which the owner beneficially owns andescription of the manner in which the sharehalé. Each owner shall provide to us
such additional information as we may request terdane the effect, if any, of the beneficial owstép on our status as a REIT and to ensure
compliance with the ownership limitations. In adatit each such owner shall upon demand be reqtorptbvide to us such information as we
may request, in good faith, to determine our statua REIT and to comply with the requirementsmyftaxing authority or governmental
authority or to determine such compliance.

These ownership limitations could del@dgfer or prevent a transaction or a change in obtitat might involve a premium price for the
common stock or might otherwise be in your besrists.

Listing

Our shares of common stock are listetherNew York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CIM”.
Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar forshuares of common stock is Mellon Investor ServideS.
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C ERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE MARYLAND GENERAL CORPORATI ON LAW
AND OUR CHARTER AND BYLAWS

The following description of the term®af stock and of certain provisions of Marylanavles only a summary. For a complete
description, we refer you to the MGCL, our chaed our bylaws, copies of which will be availab&fdye the closing of this offering from us
upon request.

The MGCL and our charter and bylaws cionpaovisions that could make it more difficult farpotential acquirer to acquire us by a
tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise. Theseigions are expected to discourage certain coetakeover practices and inadequate take
bids and to encourage persons seeking to acquiteotof us to negotiate first with our board ofetitors. We believe that the benefits of these
provisions outweigh the potential disadvantagedisfouraging any such acquisition proposals becaumseng other things, the negotiation of
such proposals may improve their terms.

Classification of Board of Directors

Pursuant to our charter, our board aéators is divided into three classes of directDigectors of each class will be chosen for three-
year terms upon the expiration of their currentnteand every year one class of our directors wikkkected by our stockholders. We beli
that classification of our board of directors heipsissure the continuity and stability of our bess strategies and policies as determined k
board of directors. Holders of shares of our comistogk do not have the right to cumulative votindghe election of directors. Consequently,
at each annual meeting of stockholders, the holafersmajority of the shares of our common stoditled to vote are able to elect all of the
successors of the class of directors whose teripiseeat the meeting.

Currently the number of directors in eatdss and the expiration of each class term felksvs:

Class | Director: 2 Directors Expires 2011
Class Il Director 2 Directors Expires 200¢
Class 1l Directors 1 Director Expires 201(

The classified board provision in our tbacould have the effect of making the replaceneéincumbent directors more time consun
and difficult. Two separate meetings of stockhddderstead of one, are generally required to eHeztiange in a majority of our board of
directors. Thus, the classified board provisionldancrease the likelihood that incumbent directoiié retain their positions. The staggered
terms of directors may delay, defer or preveninaée offer or an attempt to change control of ugnethough a tender offer or change in
control might be in your best interests.

Number of Directors; Vacancies; Removal of Directos

Our charter provides that the numberidadors is set at five, which number may be inseebor decreased by the board of directors in
accordance with our bylaws. Our bylaws provide thatajority of our entire board of directors mayany regular or special meeting called for
that purpose, increase or decrease the numbereatalis. However, unless our bylaws are amendedjdimber of directors may never be less
than the minimum number required by the MGCL, norerthan 15.

Our bylaws provide that any vacancy ontmard of directors may be filled by a majoritytbé remaining directors. Any individual so
elected director will hold office for the unexpireefm of the director he or she is replacing. Charter provides that a director may be remc
at any time only for cause upon the affirmativeevot at least two-thirds of the votes entitled ¢éodast in the election of directors. These
provisions preclude stockholders from removing inbent directors, except for cause and upon a suigtaffirmative vote, and filling the
vacancies created by such removal with their owminees.

Our charter provides that, at such timeva have at least three independent directorsiataiss of our common or preferred stock is
registered under the Securities Exchange Act ofi188the Exchange Act, we will elect to be subjedhe provision of Subtitle 8 of Title 3 of
the MGCL regarding the filling of vacancies on th@ard of directors. Accordingly, at such time, gtcas may be provided by the board of
directors in setting the terms of any class oreseoif stock, any and all vacancies on the boadire€tors may be filled only by the affirmative
vote of a majority of the remaining directors ificd, even if the remaining directors do not can$ti a quorum, and any director elected to fill
a vacancy will serve for the remainder of the fetin of the class in which the vacancy occurredwantd a successor is duly elected and
qualified.
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Our charter provides that a director rhayemoved only for cause, as defined in our cheatel then only by the affirmative vote of at
least two-thirds of the votes entitled to be caghe election of directors.

Action by Stockholders

Under the MGCL, stockholder action cartdieen only at an annual or special meeting ofi$tolders or by unanimous written conser
lieu of a meeting (unless the charter providesaftasser percentage, which our charter does niogsd provisions, combined with the
requirements of our bylaws regarding the calling stockholder-requested special meeting of stddkh® discussed below, may have the
effect of delaying consideration of a stockholdepwsal until the next annual meeting.

Advance Notice Provisions for Stockholder Nominatins and Stockholder Proposals

Our bylaws provide that with respect moamnual meeting of stockholders, nominations divikuals for election to the board of
directors and the proposal of business to be cersitlby stockholders may be made only (i) purst@atir notice of the meeting, (ii) by the
board of directors or (iii) by a stockholder whosaastockholder of record both at the time of giviri notice by such stockholder as provided
for in our bylaws and at the time of the annual timgeand who is entitled to vote at the meeting ahd has complied with the advance notice
procedures of the bylaws. With respect to specegdtings of stockholders, only the business spekifieour notice of the meeting may be
brought before the meeting. Nominations of indialufor election to the board of directors at acigdeneeting may be made only (i) pursuant
to our notice of the meeting, (ii) by the boarddotctors or (iii) provided that the board of dif@s has determined that directors will be ele
at the meeting, by a stockholder who was a stodéraif record both at the time of giving of notmesuch stockholder, as provided for in our
bylaws, and at the time of the special meeting igtentitled to vote at the meeting and who has dieupvith the advance notice provisions of
the bylaws.

The purpose of requiring stockholdergit@ us advance notice of nominations and otheinkss is to afford our board of directors a
meaningful opportunity to consider the qualificaoof the proposed nominees and the advisabiligngfother proposed business and, to the
extent deemed necessary or desirable by our bdalideators, to inform stockholders and make reca@ndations about such qualifications or
business, as well as to provide a more orderlygatore for conducting meetings of stockholders. édtdh our bylaws do not give our board of
directors any power to disapprove stockholder nations for the election of directors or proposalsommending certain action, they may
have the effect of precluding a contest for thetée of directors or the consideration of stockieslproposals if proper procedures are not
followed and of discouraging or deterring a thiedty from conducting a solicitation of proxies tea its own slate of directors or to approve
its own proposal without regard to whether congitlen of such nominees or proposals might be hdrarfbeneficial to us and our
stockholders.

Calling of Special Meetings of Stockholders

Our bylaws provide that special meetiofjstockholders may be called by our board of dimecand certain of our officers. Additionally,
our bylaws provide that, subject to the satisfactibcertain procedural and informational requiratseby the stockholders requesting the
meeting, a special meeting of stockholders shatldiled by our secretary upon the written requéstarkholders entitled to cast not less th.
majority of all the votes entitled to be cast atlsmeeting.

Approval of Extraordinary Corporate Action; Amendme nt of Charter and Bylaws

Under Maryland law, a Maryland corporatgenerally cannot dissolve, amend its chartergmesell all or substantially all of its assets,
engage in a share exchange or engage in simitaactions outside the ordinary course of businedess approved by the affirmative vote of
stockholders entitled to cast at least two-thirtithe votes entitled to be cast on the matter. Hamea Maryland corporation may provide in its
charter for approval of these matters by a lessegntage, but not less than a majority of alheftotes entitled to be cast on the matter. Our
charter, with certain exceptions, generally prosife approval of charter amendments and extraarditransactions, which have been first
declared advisable by our board of directors, leystockholders entitled to cast at least a majoffithe votes entitled to be cast on the matter.

Our bylaws provide that the board of dioes will have the exclusive power to adopt, afterepeal any provision of our bylaws and to
make new bylaws.
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No Appraisal Rights

As permitted by the MGCL, our charteryides that stockholders are not entitled to exerajgpraisal rights unless a majority of our
board of directors determines that such rightsyappl

Control Share Acquisitions

The Maryland Control Share AcquisitiontAcovides that control shares of a Maryland caaion acquired in a control share acquisi
have no voting rights except to the extent apprdwed vote of two-thirds of the votes entitled ®dast on the matter. Shares owned by the
acquirer, by officers or by directors who are empkes of the corporation are excluded from sharéeshto vote on the matter. Control shares
are voting shares of stock which, if aggregateth @it other shares of stock owned by the acquirémn cespect of which the acquirer is able to
exercise or direct the exercise of voting powecégpt solely by a revocable proxy), would entitle #tquirer to exercise voting power in
electing directors within one of the following rasgof voting power:

. one-tenth or more but less than «third;
. one-third or more but less than a majority;
. a majority or more of all voting powe

Control shares do not include sharesitfiiiring person is then entitled to vote as alte$inaving previously obtained stockholder
approval. A control share acquisition means theaisttipn of control shares, subject to certain gtoss.

A person who has made or proposes to raamntrol share acquisition may compel the bo&udirectors of the corporation to call a
special meeting of stockholders to be held witlirdays of demand to consider the voting rightdefdhares. The right to compel the callin
a special meeting is subject to the satisfactioceofain conditions, including an undertaking ty fflze expenses of the meeting. If no request
for a meeting is made, the corporation may itsedspnt the question at any stockholders meeting.

If voting rights are not approved at theeting or if the acquiring person does not delareecquiring person statement as required b
statute, then the corporation may repurchase fovédue any or all of the control shares, excépse for which voting rights have previously
been approved. The right of the corporation to refpase control shares is subject to certain canditand limitations. Fair value is determin
without regard to the absence of voting rightstfar control shares, as of the date of the lastrcbsihare acquisition by the acquirer or of any
meeting of stockholders at which the voting righitshe shares are considered and not approvedtitig/rights for control shares are approved
at a stockholders meeting and the acquirer becemtéted to vote a majority of the shares entitiedote, all other stockholders may exercise
appraisal rights. The fair value of the sharesedsrdhined for purposes of appraisal rights maybedess than the highest price per share paid
by the acquirer in the control share acquisition.

The Control Share Acquisition Act does apply (a) to shares acquired in a merger, codattin or share exchange if the corporation is
a party to the transaction or (b) to acquisitiopgraved or exempted by the charter or bylaws ottivporation.

Our bylaws contain a provision exempfiran the Control Share Acquisition Act any andaadbuisitions by any person of our shares of
stock. There can be no assurance that such prowisgibnot be amended or eliminated at any timéhia future. However, we will amend our
bylaws to be subject to the Control Share Acquisithct only if the board of directors determineattit would be in our best interests.

Business Combinations

Under Maryland law, “business combinatibbetween a Maryland corporation and an interesteckholder or an affiliate of an
interested stockholder are prohibited for five geater the most recent date on which the intedestieckholder becomes an interested
stockholder. These business combinations includerger, consolidation, share exchange, or, in gistances specified in the statute, an asset
transfer or issuance or reclassification of egségurities. An interested stockholder is defined as

. any person who beneficially owns 10% or more ofubng power of the corporati’s shares; ¢
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. an affiliate or associate of the corporation wharey time within the two-year period before théeda question, was the
beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting powéthe then outstanding voting stock of the cogtion.

A person is not an interested stockholdeter the statute if the board of directors appdown advance the transaction by which he, sl
it otherwise would have become an interested sudien. However, in approving a transaction, therbad directors may provide that its
approval is subject to compliance, at or aftertiime of approval, with any terms and conditionsedetined by the board.

After the five-year prohibition, any bnsss combination between the corporation and areisiied stockholder generally must be
recommended by the board of directors of the catjpmr and approved by the affirmative vote of aste

. 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holdemsutétanding shares of voting stock of the corporatand

. two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by holagngoting stock of the corporation other than skdreld by the intereste
stockholder with whom or with whose affiliate thesiness combination is to be effected or held bgffitiate or associate of the
interested stockholde

These super-majority vote requirementaatoapply if the corporatios’common stockholders receive a minimum price gdiseld unde
Maryland law, for their shares in the form of castother consideration in the same form as preWopsid by the interested stockholder for its
shares.

The statute permits various exemptioamfits provisions, including business combinatitired are exempted by the board of directors
before the time that the interested stockholdeolvess an interested stockholder. Our board of diredias adopted a resolution which prov
that any business combination between us and 4y person is exempted from the provisions of theifless Combination Act, provided that
the business combination is first approved by therd of directors. This resolution, however, mayaltered or repealed in whole or in part at
any time. If this resolution is repealed, or thatabof directors does not otherwise approve a lessicombination, the statute may discourage
others from trying to acquire control of us andréase the difficulty of consummating any offer.

Subtitle 8

Subtitle 8 of Title 3 of the MGCL permasMaryland corporation with a class of equity sé@s registered under the Exchange Act and
at least three independent directors to elect tsubgect, by provision in its charter or bylawsaaresolution of its board of directors and
notwithstanding any contrary provision in the cbadr bylaws, to any or all of five provisions:

. a classified boarc

. a twc-thirds stockholder vote requirement for removirgjractor;

. a requirement that the number of directors be fixelg by vote of the director:

. a requirement that a vacancy on the board be filldyg by the remaining directors and for the rerdainof the full term of th

class of directors in which the vacancy occurrexdt

. a majority requirement for the calling of a speciedeting of stockholder

Through provisions in our charter andalmg unrelated to Subtitle 8, we already (a) reqaiir@o-thirds stockholder vote for the removal
of any director from the board, as well as reqtheg such removal be for cause (as defined in barter), (b) unless called by our Chairman of
the Board, our President, our Chief Executive @ffior the board, require the request of holdeis fjority of outstanding shares to call a
special meeting and (c) vest in the board the skabupower to fix the number of directorships. ©@harter also provides that at such time as
Subtitle 8 becomes applicable to us, our boardhille the exclusive power to fill vacancies onlibard, by a vote of a majority of the
remaining directors, and such vacancies will Hediuntil the end of the term of the class of dives in which the vacancy occurred.
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Limitation on Liability of Directors and Officers; Indemnification and Advance of Expense:

Maryland law permits a Maryland corpavatio include in its charter a provision limitirftetliability of its directors and officers to the
corporation and its stockholders for money damagespt for liability resulting from (i) actual rdpeof an improper benefit or profit in
money, property or services or (ii) active and laslate dishonesty established by a final judgmedtvehich is material to the cause of action.
Our charter contains such a provision which elirteésalirectors’ and officers’ liability to the maxinm extent permitted by Maryland law.

Our charter also authorizes our comp#mihe maximum extent permitted by Maryland lawoldigate our company to indemnify any
present or former director or officer or any indival who, while a director or officer of our compaand at the request of our company, serves
or has served another corporation, real estatesiment trust, partnership, joint venture, trustpkayee benefit plan or other enterprise as a
director, officer, partner or trustee, from andiaghany claim or liability to which that individuenay become subject or which that individual
may incur because of his or her service in any sagacity and to pay or reimburse his or her reasienexpenses in advance of final
disposition of a proceeding.

Our bylaws obligate us, to the maximurteekpermitted by Maryland law, to indemnify anggent or former director or officer or any
individual who, while a director or officer of oubmpany and at the request of our company, semnessoserved another corporation, real
estate investment trust, partnership, joint ventust, employee benefit plan or other enterpgisa director, officer, partner or trustee and
is made, or threatened to be made, a party tortheepding because of his or her service in any saphcity from and against any claim or
liability to which that individual may become sutf@r which that individual may incur because & bi her service in any such capacity ar
pay or reimburse his or her reasonable expenszdvimnce of final disposition of a proceeding. Chairter and bylaws also permit our comp
to indemnify and advance expenses to any individim served a predecessor of our company in attyeofapacities described above and any
employee or agent of our company or a predecessuraompany.

Maryland law requires a corporation (gslés charter provides otherwise, which our chattes not) to indemnify a director or officer
who has been successful, on the merits or otherimiske defense of any proceeding to which heheris made a party because of his or her
service in that capacity. Maryland law permits gpooation to indemnify its present and former dioes and officers, among others, against
judgments, penalties, fines, settlements and reddem®xpenses actually incurred by them in conoedtiith any proceeding to which they
be made, or are threatened to be made, a partysdecatheir service in those or other capacitidsess it is established that (i) the act or
omission of the director or officer was materiattte matter giving rise to the proceeding and (&% wommitted in bad faith or (2) was the
result of active and deliberate dishonesty, (i@ director or officer actually received an impropersonal benefit in money, property or serv
or (i) in the case of any criminal proceedingg ttirector or officer had reasonable cause to &elieat the act or omission was unlawful.

A court may order indemnification if ikgtrmines that the director or officer is fairlydar@asonably entitled to indemnification, even
though the director or officer did not meet thesgrébed standard of conduct or was adjudged liablthe basis that personal benefit was
improperly received. However, under Maryland lawjaryland corporation may not indemnify for an adeejudgment in a suit by or in the
right of the corporation or for a judgment of liyi on the basis that a personal benefit was impprty received, unless in either case a court
orders indemnification, and then only for expenseaddition, Maryland law permits a corporatioratdvance reasonable expenses to a dir
or officer upon the corporation’s receipt of (ijvaitten affirmation by the director or officer ofshor her good faith belief that he or she has met
the standard of conduct necessary for indemniticaby the corporation and (i) a written undertakby him or her or on his or her behalf to
repay the amount paid or reimbursed by the corjuorétit is ultimately determined that the standlaf conduct was not met.
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

We cannot predict the effect, if any tthales of shares or the availability of sharesé&de will have on the market price of our common
stock prevailing from time to time. Sales of subitd amounts of our common stock in the public ke&ror the perception that such sales
could occur, could adversely affect the prevailingrket price of our common stock.

Upon completion of this offering and firévate offering to Annaly immediately after thiering, we will have outstanding an aggreg
of approximately 160,670,098 shares of our comntocks In addition, our equity incentive plan proegdfor grants of restricted common stock
and other equity-based awards up to an aggreg&®aff the issued and outstanding shares of ountammstock (on a fully diluted basis and
including shares to be sold to Annaly immediatdtgrathis offering and shares to be sold pursuarié exercise of the underwriters’
overallotment option) at the time of the award,jeabto a ceiling of 40,000,000 shares availabtédsuance under the plan. On January 2,
2008, we granted 1,301,000 shares of our restrzxi@tmon stock to our independent directors andMamagers employees. Each indepenc
director was granted 3,000 shares of our restrictedmon stock which fully vested on January 2, 200t restricted common stock grante
our executive officers and other employees of oanlfjer or its affiliates vests in equal installnsert the first business day of each fiscal
quarter over a period of 10 years beginning ondang, 2008, of which 73,600 shares vested and36kares were forfeited during the six
months ended June 30, 2008. The restricted cominok granted to our executive officers and othepleyees of our Manager or its affiliates
that remain outstanding and are unvested will fuélgt on the death of the individual. The 1,227 di@éres of our restricted common stock
granted to our executive officers and other empsyaf our Manager or its affiliates and to our peledent directors that remains unvested as
of June 30, 2008 represents approximately 0.8%efdsued and outstanding shares of our commok &taca fully diluted basis after giving
effect to the shares issued in this offering amtliting shares to be sold to Annaly immediatelgrathis offering but excluding any shares ti
sold pursuant to the exercise of the underwriteverallotment option) based on the assumption1h8t000,000 shares of our common stock
will be issued in this offering.

The shares of common stock sold in tHisrimg will be freely tradable without restrictiar further registration under the Securities Act
unless the shares are held by any of our “affgidtas that term is defined in Rule 144 under theuSities Act. As defined in Rule 144, an
“affiliate” of an issuer is a person that directty,indirectly through one or more intermediariemntrols, is controlled by or is under common
control with the issuer. All shares of our comméwck held by our affiliates, including our execetiofficers and our directors, are restricted
securities as that term is defined in Rule 144 utite Securities Act. Restricted securities magddd in the public market only if registered
under the securities laws or if they qualify foreatemption from registration under Rule 144, agdesd below.

Rule 144

On November 15, 2007, the SecuritiesExchange Commission adopted amendments to Rulevhi¢sh became effective on February
15, 2008. Rule 144, as amended, is described below.

In general, under Rule 144 under the Biesi Act, a person (or persons whose sharesggeegated) who is not deemed to have been at
affiliate of ours at any time during the three nienpreceding a sale, and who has beneficially owestticted securities within the meaning of
Rule 144 for at least six months (including anyigetof consecutive ownership of preceding non-atid holders), would be entitled to sell
those shares, subject only to the availabilitywfent public information about us. A non-affilidtperson who has beneficially owned
restricted securities within the meaning of Ruld 1@r at least one year would be entitled to $elke shares without regard to the provisions of
Rule 144.

A person (or persons whose shares amnegatgd) who is deemed to be an affiliate of onsweho has beneficially owned restricted
securities within the meaning of Rule 144 for astesix months would be entitled to sell within ahgee-month period a number of shares that
does not exceed the greater of one percent oh#redutstanding shares of our common stock orvbege weekly trading volume of our
common stock reported through the New York Stockhaxge during the four calendar weeks precedinly sale. Such sales are also subject
to certain manner of sale provisions, notice regqugnts and the availability of current public imf@tion about us.
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No assurance can be given as to (i)ikedihood that an active market for our common ktadl develop, (ii) the liquidity of any such
market, (i) the ability of the stockholders tdigbe securities, or (iv) the prices that stockiek may obtain for any of the securities. No
prediction can be made as to the effect, if argt fiture sales of shares, or the availabilitytadres for future sale, will have on the market
price prevailing from time to time. Sales of sulbgil amounts of common stock, or the percepti@t sluch sales could occur, may affect
adversely prevailing market prices of the commawlstSee “Risk Factors—Risks Related To Our Com®Simck.”

Lock-Up Agreements

We, Annaly and each of our executivecsffs, and our directors agreed with the underveritet to offer, sell or otherwise dispose of
common stock or any securities convertible intexercisable or exchangeable for common stock orighys to acquire common stock for a
period of 90 days after the date of this prospeatithout the prior written consent of Merrill Lyhcsubject to specific limited exceptions. See
“Underwriting—No Sales of Similar Securities.”

In connection with the 90-day restricpetiod with the underwriters, if either (1) duritige last 17 days of the lock-up period, we release
earning results or material news, or a materiahexaating to us occurs or (2) before the expiratbf the 90-day restricted period, we
announce that we will release earnings resultsdutie 16-day period beginning on the last dayefd0-day period, then in either case the
expiration of the lock-up will be extended untietexpiration of the 18-day period beginning ondhte of the release of the earnings results or
the occurrence of the material news or event, picable, unless Merrill Lynch waives, in writingiich an extension.

Merrill Lynch has informed us that they 1ot have a present intent or arrangement togeleay of the securities subject to the lock-up
provisions agreed to with the underwriters. Theasé of any lock-ups will be considered on a cgsealke basis. Merrill Lynch in its sole
discretion and at any time without notice releasaes or all of the shares subject to lock-up agredsneefore the expiration of the 90-day lock-
up period. When determining whether or not to redeshares from the lock-up agreements, Merrill bywdl consider, among other factors,
the stockholder’s reasons for requesting the relghs number of shares for which the releaseiiglrequested and market conditions at such
time.

Additionally, Annaly has agreed with osat further lock-up period in connection with thees purchased by Annaly concurrently with
our initial public offering that will expire at thearlier of (i) November 15, 2010 or (ii) the temation of the management agreement. Annaly
has further agreed with us to a further lock-upqeein connection with the shares purchased by Aninamediately after this offering that will
expire at the earlier of (i) the date which is thyears following the date of this prospectus idtife termination of the management agreement.
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C ERTAIN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

This section summarizes the materialf@dacome tax considerations that you, as an OJaeedefined in the immediately succeeding
paragraph) of shares of common stock, may consédevant. McKee Nelson LLP has acted as our taxisel) has reviewed this section and is
of the opinion that the discussion contained hefi@iy summarizes the federal income tax consegegithat are likely to be material to an
Owner of our shares of common stock. Because #uitios is a summary, it does not address all asgédaxation that may be relevant to
particular Owners of our common stock in light loéir personal investment or tax circumstancesy aettain types of Owners that are subject
to special treatment under the federal incomeaws) such as insurance companies, tax-exempt aegaomis (except to the extent discussed in
“—Taxation of Owners,—Taxation of Tax-Exempt Owridselow), regulated investment companies, partripssand other pass-through
entities (including entities classified as parthgrs for federal income tax purposes), financiatitntions or broker-dealers, and non-U.S.
individuals and foreign corporations (except to ééent discussed in “—Taxation of Owners,—Taxatibiroreign Owners” below) and other
persons subject to special tax rules.

You should be aware that in this sectiginen we use the term:

. “Code” we mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ague

. “Disqualified organizatio” we mean any organization described in section 8§0&Y of the Code, including

the United State
any state or political subdivision of the Unitect8s;

any foreign governmen

iv. any international organizatio
V. any agency or instrumentality of any of the foregp
vi. any charitable remainder trust or other tax-exeongénization, other than a farmer’s cooperativedesd in section
521 of the Code, that is exempt both from inconxatian and from taxation under the unrelated bissiniaxable
income provisions of the Code; a
Vii. any rural electrical or telephone cooperat
. “Domestic Owne” we mean an Owner that is a U.S. Per:
. “Foreign Owne” we mean an Owner that is not a U.S. Per
. “IRS;” we mean the Internal Revenue Serv
. “Owner” we mean any person having a beneficial ownershgréast in shares of our common stc
. “TMP,” we mean a taxable mortgage pool as that term isetkin section 7701(i)(2) of the Coc
. “TRS,” we mean a taxable REIT subsidiary describeder “—Requirements for Qualification—Taxable REBUibsidiaries”
below;
. “U.S. Persorl” we mean (i) a citizen or resident of the United&a(ii) a corporation (or entity treated as goooation for

federal income tax purposes) created or organizéltel United States or under the laws of the Urfitsdes or of any state
thereof, including, for this purpose, the Disto€tColumbia; (iii) a partnership (or entity treatasl a partnership for tax purposes)
organized in the United States or under the lawtke@tnited States or of any state thereof, inciggdfor this purpose, the

District of Columbia (unless provided otherwisefbiure Treasury regulations); (iv) an estate whoseme is includible in gro:
income for federal income tax purposes regardlégs source; or (v) a trust, if a court within thimited States is able to exerc
primary supervision over the administration of thest and one or more U.S. Persons have authoritpiitrol all substantial
decisions of the trust. Notwithstanding the prengdilause, to the extent provided in Treas
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regulations, certain trusts that were in existemmtédugust 20, 1996, that were treated as U.S. Rensoor to such date, and that
elect to continue to be treated as U.S. Persoss aae U.S. Persor

The statements in this section and theiop of McKee Nelson LLP are based on the curfederal income tax laws. We cannot assure
you that new laws, interpretations of law or caletisions, any of which may take effect retroadyivevill not cause any statement in tl
section to be inaccurate. No assurance can be thatthe IRS would not assert, or that a courtldoot sustain, a position contrary to any of
the tax consequences described below. We haveuaghsand will not seek an advance ruling fromIfR® regarding any matter in this
prospectus.

This summary provides general informatioy and is not tax advice. We urge you to congoilltr tax advisor regarding the specific tax
consequences to you of the purchase, ownershipaladf our common stock and of our election tealded as a REIT. Specifically, you
should consult your tax advisor regarding the feljetate, local, foreign, and other tax conseqgegmé such purchase, ownership, sale and
election, and regarding potential changes in appletax laws.

Taxation of Our Company

We have elected to be taxed as a REI'Eu8dctions 856 through 860 of the Code commengitigour short taxable year ending on
December 31, 2007. We believe that we were orgdrare have operated and will continue to operageiéh a manner as to qualify for
taxation as a REIT under the federal income tasJdwt no assurances can be given that we willad@én a manner so as to qualify or remain
gualified as a REIT. This section discusses the lgeverning the federal income tax treatment oE&iIRand the owners of REIT stock. These
laws are highly technical and complex.

In connection with this offering, McKeeNon LLP is rendering an opinion that we will gfyato be taxed as a REIT for our short
taxable year ending on December 31, 2007, andyangation and current and proposed method ofadiper will enable us to continue to
meet the requirements for qualification and taxatie a REIT for our taxable year ending on DecerBheP007 and subsequent taxable years.
Investors should be aware that McKee Nelson LLBigsion is based upon customary assumptions, isittondd upon certain representations
made by us as to factual matters, including reptasiens regarding the nature of our assets andahduct of our business, and is not binding
upon the IRS or any court.

In addition, McKee Nelson LLP’s opiniahased on existing federal income tax law govergumalification as a REIT, which is subject
to change either prospectively or retroactively.r&étiver, our qualification and taxation as a REIpeted upon our ability to meet on a
continuing basis, through actual annual operatsglts, certain qualification tests set forth ia federal income tax laws. Those qualification
tests involve the percentage of income that we fam specified sources, the percentage of ourtafisat falls within specified categories, the
diversity of our stock ownership, and the perceatagour earnings that we distribute. McKee NelsbR will not review our compliance with
those tests on a continuing basis. Accordinglyasgurance can be given that our actual resultpexftions for any particular taxable year will
satisfy such requirements. For a discussion ofdhe&onsequences of our failure to qualify as alREée “—Failure to Qualify.”

If we qualify as a REIT, we generally Wibt be subject to federal income tax on our téx@icome that we currently distribute to our
stockholders, but taxable income generated by onregdtic TRSs, if any, will be subject to reguladdeal (and applicable state and local)
corporate income tax. However, we will be subjediederal tax in the following circumstances:

. We will pay federal income tax on our taxable inegiimcluding net capital gain, that we do not distre to stockholders during,
or within a specified time period after, the calengear in which the income is earn
. We may be subject to the “alternative minimum tar"any items of tax preference including any deidastof net operating
losses
. We will pay federal income tax at the highest cogpe rate on
o] net income from the sale or other disposition @ipgrty acquired through foreclosure, which we rédeas

foreclosure property, that we hold primarily folesto customers in the ordinary course of businasd
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o] other noi-qualifying income from foreclosure proper

. We will pay a 100% tax on net income earned frotassar other dispositions of property, other thareélosure property, that \
hold primarily for sale to customers in the ordineourse of busines

. If we falil to satisfy the 75% gross income testh@ 95% gross income test, as described below Urdéross Income Tests,”
but nonetheless continue to qualify as a REIT beeawe meet other requirements, we will be subfeat100% tax or

o] the greater of the amount by which we fail the 7%ss income test or the 95% gross income testjptied, in
either case, b



o} a fraction intended to reflect our profitabili

If we fail to satisfy the asset tests by more thate minimis amount, as described below under “—eA$ssts,” as long as the
failure was due to reasonable cause and not téulvileglect, we dispose of the assets or otheraaseply with such asset tests
within six months after the last day of the quaitewhich we identify such failure and we file dhedule with the IRS describing
the assets that caused such failure, we will payx &qual to the greater of $50,000 or 35% of #teimcome from the non-
qualifying assets during the period in which weefdito satisfy such asset te:

If we fail to satisfy one or more requirements REIT qualification, other than the gross incomeasesd the asset tests, and ¢
failure was due to reasonable cause and not dwélfiol neglect, we will be required to pay a petyabf $50,000 for each such
failure.

We may be required to pay monetary penalties tdRISein certain circumstances, including if we tailmeet recordkeeping
requirements intended to monitor our compliancé wides relating to the composition of a REIT scétiwolders, as described
below in“—Requirements for Qualificatic”

If we fail to distribute during a calendar yeatestst the sum of: (i) 85% of our REIT ordinary inw®for the year, (ii) 95% of o
REIT capital gain net income for the year and iy undistributed taxable income from earlier pasi we will pay a 4%
nondeductible excise tax on the excess of the reduaiistribution over the sum of the amount we altguwistributed and any
retained amounts on which income tax has beenagialte corporate leve

We may elect to retain and pay federal income tarwr net lon-term capital gain. In that case, a Domestic Ownauld/be
taxed on its proportionate share of our undistedubng-term capital gain (to the extent that wéenatimely designation of
such gain to the stockholder) and would receiveeditor refund for its proportionate share of the we paid

We will be subject to a 100% excise tax on tranisastbetween us and any of our TRSs that are matuaied on an ar's-
length basis

If (&) we recognize excess inclusion income faaxable year as a result of our ownership of a 18ty interest in a TMP ¢
our ownership of a REMIC residual interest andai®@ or more Disqualified Organizations is the rdamwvner of shares of our
common stock during that year, then we will be sabjo tax at the highest corporate federal inctareate on the portion of the
excess inclusion income that is allocable to theqDalified Organizations. We do not anticipate owyrREMIC residual
interests; we may, however, own 100% of the equtgrests in one or more CDO offerings or one orartusts formed in
connection with our securitization transactiond,ibtend to structure each CDO offering and eadu$ézation transaction so
that the issuing entity would not be classifiedddMP. Se¢‘—Taxable Mortgage Poo”

If we acquire any asset from a C corporation, oofmoration that generally is subject to full caigte-level tax, in a merger or
other transaction in which we acquire a basis énasset that is determined by reference eithéret&tcorporation’s basis in the
asset or to another asset, we will pay tax at ifjledst corporate federal income tax rate if we gae gain on the sale or
disposition of the asset during the 10-year pesifter we acquire the asset. The amount of gaininhwe will pay tax is the
lesser of:

o] the amount of gain that we recognize at the timihefsale or disposition, ai
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o] the amount of gain that we would have recognizedeithad sold the asset at the time we acquiredsyming that
the C corporation will not elect in lieu of thigatment to an immediate tax when the asset is 1@l

In addition, notwithstanding our qualiton as a REIT, we may also have to pay certaite sthd local income taxes, because not all
states and localities treat REITS in the same nraihia¢ they are treated for federal income tax psegs. Moreover, as further described below,
any domestic TRS in which we own an interest walldubject to federal, state and local corporatenectax on its taxable income. We could
also be subject to tax in situations and on traiwa not presently contemplated.

Requirements for Qualification
A REIT is a corporation, trust, or assticn that meets each of the following requirements
1. It is managed by one or more trusteatirectors.
2. Its beneficial ownership is evidenbgdransferable shares or by transferable certédcaf beneficial interest.
3. It would be taxable as a domestic amfion, but for the REIT provisions of the feddralome tax laws.
4. It is neither a financial institutiolor an insurance company subject to special prmvisof the federal income tax laws.
5. At least 100 persons are beneficiatens of its shares or ownership certificates.

6. Not more than 50% in value of its ¢antsling shares or ownership certificates is owd@dgtly or indirectly, by five or fewer
individuals, which the federal income tax laws defto include certain entities, during the last bébany taxable year. For purposes of this
requirement, indirect ownership will be determitgdapplying attribution rules set out in sectiodt ®f the Code, as modified by section 856
(h) of the Code.

7. It elects to be taxed as a REIT, arimade such election for a previous taxable year satisfies all relevant filing and other
administrative requirements that must be met toteled maintain REIT qualification.

8. It meets certain other qualificatiests, described below, regarding the nature afdtsme and assets.

We must meet requirements 1 through fhdwur entire taxable year and must meet requinefeluring at least 335 days of a taxable
year of twelve months, or during a proportionate péa taxable year of less than twelve monthgjukements 5 and 6 will apply to
beginning with our 2008 taxable year. If we compiyh all the requirements for ascertaining the okghg of our outstanding stock in a
taxable year and have no reason to know that watei requirement 6, we will be deemed to havesati requirement 6 for that taxable year.
For purposes of determining share ownership uregrirement 6, an “individual” generally includesupplemental unemployment
compensation benefits plan, a private foundatiom portion of a trust permanently set aside oduselusively for charitable purposes. An
“individual” generally does not include a trust tiga qualified employee pension or profit shatingt under the federal income tax laws,
however, and beneficiaries of such a trust wiltheated as owning our stock in proportion to tlaeiuarial interests in the trust for purposes of
requirement 6.

We believe that we will issue in thisesfhg common stock with sufficient diversity of oamhip to satisfy requirements 5 and 6. In
addition, our charter restricts the ownership aaddfer of our stock so that we should continusatisfy these requirements. The provisions of
our charter restricting the ownership and transféehe common stock are described in “Descriptib@apital Stock—Restrictions on
Ownership and Transfer.”

To monitor compliance with the share omh@ requirements, we generally are required tmtai@ records regarding the actual
ownership of our shares. To do so, we must demaitté statements each year from the record holofesgynificant percentages of our stock
pursuant to which the record holders must disclbseactual owners of the shares (i.e., the pensndred to include our dividends in their
gross income). We must maintain a list of thoseqes failing or refusing to comply with this demaasdpart of our records. We could be
subject to monetary penalties if we fail to compith these record keeping requirements. If youdaitefuse to comply with the demands, you
will be required by Treasury Regulations to subarstatement with your tax return disclosing youvakcownership of our shares and other
information. In addition, we must satisfy all re¢ex filing
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and other administrative requirements that mushbeto elect and maintain REIT qualification and ascalendar year for federal income tax
purposes. We intend to continue to comply with ¢hegjuirements.

Qualified REIT Subsidiaries

A corporation that is a “qualified REIlTlssidiary” is not treated as a corporation sepdrata its parent REIT. All assets, liabilities, and
items of income, deduction and credit of a qualifiREIT subsidiary are treated as assets, lials)i@d items of income, deduction and credit
of the REIT. A qualified REIT subsidiary is a corption, other than a TRS, all of the capital sto€khich is owned, directly or indirectly, by
the REIT. Thus, in applying the requirements désctiherein, any qualified REIT subsidiary that weaavill be ignored, and all assets,
liabilities, and items of income, deduction andditref such subsidiary will be treated as our asdegbilities, and items of income, deduction
and credit. If we own 100% of the equity interéata CDO issuer or other securitization vehicle thdreated as a corporation for tax purpa
that CDO issuer or other securitization vehicle lddae a qualified REIT subsidiary, unless we arel@pO issuer or other securitization
vehicle jointly elect to treat the CDO issuer dneatsecuritization vehicle as a TRS. It is antitgpathat CDO financings we enter into will be
treated as qualified REIT subsidiaries.

Other Disregarded Entities and Partnerships

An unincorporated domestic entity, suslagartnership, limited liability company, or trtisat has a single owner generally is not tre
as an entity separate from its parent for fedex@me tax purposes. An unincorporated domestityeniih two or more owners generally is
treated as a partnership for federal income tapgres. In the case of a REIT that is a partnempiarmership that has other partners, the REIT
is treated as owning its proportionate share oid®ets of the partnership and as earning itsaddlecshare of the gross income of the
partnership for purposes of the applicable REITli§joation tests. For purposes of the 10% valué¢ ese “—Asset Tests”), our proportionate
share is based on our proportionate interest irtjuity interests and certain debt securities bdyethe partnership. For all of the other asset
and income tests, our proportionate share is baseair proportionate interest in the capital inéésén the partnership. Our proportionate share
of the assets, liabilities, and items of incomeum§ partnership, joint venture or limited liabilitpmpany that is treated as a partnership for
federal income tax purposes in which we acquirstarest, directly or indirectly, will be treated aur assets and gross income for purposes of
applying the various REIT qualification requirenent

If a disregarded subsidiary of ours cedede wholly-owned-fer example, if any equity interest in the subsigis acquired by a pers
other than us or another disregarded subsidiaoudf—the subsidiary’s separate existence wouldngdr be disregarded for federal income
tax purposes. Instead, the subsidiary would havépteiowners and would be treated as either anpaship or a taxable corporation. Such an
event could, depending on the circumstances, aelyesffect our ability to satisfy the various asaetl gross income requirements applicab
REITs, including the requirement that REITs gergnalay not own, directly or indirectly, more thafi% of the securities of another
corporation. See “—Asset Tests” and “—Gross Incdrests.”

Taxable REIT Subsidiaries

A REIT is permitted to own up to 100%tloé stock of one or more TRSs. A TRS is a fullyatsle corporation that may earn income that
would not be qualifying income if earned directly the parent REIT. The subsidiary and the REIT nuistly elect to treat the subsidiary as a
TRS. A corporation with respect to which a TRS dliseor indirectly owns more than 35% of the votipogwer or value of the stock will
automatically be treated as a TRS. We generally masaywn more than 10%, as measured by voting powealue, of the securities of a
corporation that is not a qualified REIT subsidiantess we and such corporation elect to treat sagboration as a TRS. Overall, no more
than 25% of the value of a REIT’s assets may conéistock or securities of one or more TRSs.

The separate existence of a TRS or dtéhe@ble corporation, unlike a qualified REIT sultesig or other disregarded subsidiary as
discussed above, is not ignored for U.S. feder@nme tax purposes. Accordingly, a domestic TRS dgeherally be subject to federal (and
applicable state and local income tax) corporaterime tax on its earnings, which may reduce the ftaghgenerated by us and our subsidia
in the aggregate and our ability to make distritmasito our stockholders.

A REIT is not treated as holding the &sséa TRS or other taxable subsidiary corporatioas receiving any income that the subsidiary
earns. Rather, the stock issued by the subsidiaagp asset in the hands of the REIT,
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and the REIT generally recognizes as income thidelvs, if any, that it receives from the subsigidihis treatment can affect the gross
income and asset test calculations that applyadrtBIT, as described below. Because a parent R&#$ dot include the assets and income of
such subsidiary corporations in determining theepgs compliance with the REIT requirements, sutfities may be used by the parent REIT
to undertake indirectly activities that the REITesumight otherwise preclude it from doing direatlythrough pass-through subsidiaries or
render commercially unfeasible (for example, atiéigithat give rise to certain categories of inca@meh as non-qualifying hedging income or
inventory sales).

Certain restrictions imposed on TRSsistended to ensure that such entities will be stthijeappropriate levels of U.S. federal income
taxation. First, a TRS may not deduct interest payimade in any year to an affiliated REIT toaktent that such payments exceed,
generally, 50% of the TRS'’s adjusted taxable incéon¢hat year (although the TRS may carry forwtardand deduct in, a succeeding year the
disallowed interest amount if the 50% test is §iatilsin that year). In addition, if amounts arec¢otd a REIT or deducted by a TRS due to
transactions between the REIT and a TRS that extbeeamount that would be paid to or deducted pgréy in an arm’dength transaction, tt
REIT generally will be subject to an excise taxadn 100% of such excess. We intend to scrutialzef our transactions with any of our
subsidiaries that are treated as a TRS in an @ff@hsure that we do not become subject to thisestax; however, we cannot assure you that
we will be successful in avoiding this excise tax.

Gross Income Tests

We must satisfy two gross income testaialty to maintain qualification as a REIT. Firat,least 75% of our gross income for each
taxable year must consist of defined types of inedhat we derive from investments relating to praperty or mortgages on real property, or
from qualified temporary investments. Qualifying@me for purposes of the 75% gross income testrgynancludes:

. rents from real propert

. interest on debt secured by a mortgage on reakpippr on interests in real proper

. dividends or other distributions on, and gain fribra sale of, shares in other REI

. gain from the sale of real estate ass

. any amount includible in gross income with resgiec regular or residual interest in a REMIC, usliess than 95% of tt

REMIC's assets are real estate assets, in which casa pniportionate amount of such income will qualdpnd

. income derived from certain temporary investme

Second, in general, at least 95% of sasgincome for each taxable year must consisianfime that is qualifying income for purpose
the 75% gross income test, other types of interedtdividends, gain from the sale or dispositiostotk or securities (provided that such stock
or securities are not inventory property, i.e.,qemty held primarily for sale to customers in thidioary course of business) or any combination
of these.

Gross income from the sale of inventagperty is excluded from both the numerator anddr@ominator in both income tests. Income
and gain from hedging transactions that we entertmhedge indebtedness incurred or to be incuoredquire or carry real estate assets will
generally be excluded from both the numerator aeddenominator for purposes of the 95% gross indestebut not the 75% gross income
test). We intend to monitor the amount of our noialifying income and manage our investment poxftdi comply at all times with the gross
income tests but we cannot assure you that webeiuccessful in this effort.

Interest

The term “interest,” as defined for pusps of both gross income tests, generally excladggamount that is based in whole or in part on
the income or profits of any person. However, ies¢generally includes the following: (i) an amotirat is based on a fixed percentage or
percentages of gross receipts or sales and (@naunt that is based on the income or profits lmdr@ower, where the borrower derives
substantially all of its income from the real prayesecuring the debt by leasing substantiallyo&lts interest in the property, but only to the
extent that the amounts received by the borrowerddvbe qualifying “rents from real property” if reiwed directly by a REIT.
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If a loan contains a provision that desita REIT to a percentage of the borrower’s gaionuthe sale of the real property securing the
loan or a percentage of the appreciation in thpgnyg’s value as of a specific date, income atteble to that loan provision will be treated as
gain from the sale of the property securing theeghich generally is qualifying income for purpes# both gross income tests.

Interest on debt secured by a mortgagealhproperty or on interests in real propertgaserally qualifying income for purposes of the
75% gross income test. However, if the highestqggpisl amount of a loan outstanding during a taxgblar exceeds the fair market value of the
real property securing the loan as of the datdBE agreed to originate or acquire the loan, diponf the interest income from such loan
will not be qualifying income for purposes of thg%4 gross income test, but will be qualifying incofaepurposes of the 95% gross income
test. The portion of the interest income that wilt be qualifying income for purposes of the 75%sgrincome test will be equal to the portion
of the principal amount of the loan that is notwsed by real property (i.e., the amount by whioh ltten exceeds the value of the real estats
is security for the loan).

Interest, including original issue disnbor market discount, that we accrue on our refdte-related investments generally will be
qualifying income for purposes of both gross incdests. However, many of our investments will ntskcured by mortgages on real property
or interests in real property. Our interest incdroen those investments will be qualifying income paurposes of the 95% gross income tes
not the 75% gross income test. In addition, asudised above, if the fair market value of the retdte securing any of our investments is less
than the principal amount of the underlying loappation of the income from that investment will pgalifying income for purposes of the 9
gross income test but not the 75% gross income test

Fee Income

We may receive various fees in conneactiih our operations. The fees will be qualifyimgome for purposes of both the 75% gross
income and 95% gross income tests if they arevedeén consideration for entering into an agreememake a loan secured by a mortgage on
real property or an interest in real property drelfees are not determined by income or profisngfperson. Other fees are not qualifying
income for purposes of either gross income tesy. f&es earned by our TRS will not be included forgmses of the gross income tests.

Dividends

Our share of any dividends received faomg corporation (including any TRS that we formdualing the completion of this offering, and
any other TRS, but excluding any REIT or any qiedifREIT subsidiary) in which we own an equity net&t will qualify for purposes of the
95% gross income test but not for purposes of 8% @ross income test. Our share of any dividendsived from any other REIT in which we
own an equity interest will be qualifying income faurposes of both gross income tests.

Rents from Real Property
We currently do not intend to acquirel gaperty with the proceeds of this offering.
Hedging Transactions

We may, from time to time, enter into §ied) transactions with respect to the interestrigteassociated with our borrowings. To the
extent that we enter into a contract to hedge @sterate risk on indebtedness incurred to acquioawoy real estate assets, any income and gain
from such hedging transaction will be excluded frgmoss income for purposes of the 95% gross indesteand the 75% gross income test. To
the extent that we hedge for certain other purpdbesesultant income or gain will be treatedre®ime that does not qualify under the 95%
gross income test or the 75% gross income testint¥ed to structure any hedging transaction in ameathat does not jeopardize our status as
a REIT but we cannot assure you that we will beesssful in this regard. We may conduct some avfadur hedging activities through a TRS,
the income from which may be subject to federabime tax, rather than participating in the arrangasdirectly or through a partnership,
qualified REIT subsidiary or other disregarded $dibsy. No assurance can be given, however, thahedging activities will not give rise to
income that does not qualify for purposes of eithréboth of the REIT gross income tests, and vl adversely affect our ability to satisfy the
REIT qualification requirements.

Failure to Satisfy Gross Income Tests

We intend to monitor the amount of ounsgualifying income and manage our assets to convjilythe gross income tests for each
taxable year for which we seek to maintain ounustats a REIT. We cannot assure you, however, thatilwbe able to satisfy the gross inco
tests. If we fail to satisfy one or both of the ggancome
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tests for any taxable year, we may nevertheleslifgjaa a REIT for such year if we qualify for refiunder certain provisions of the Code.
These relief provisions will be generally availalfl§) our failure to meet such tests was dueg@asonable cause and not due to willful neglect,
and (ii) we file with the IRS a schedule describihg sources of our gross income in accordancewéhsury Regulations. We cannot predict,
however, whether in all circumstances, we wouldifuor the benefit of these relief provisions. &ddition, as discussed above under “—
Taxation of Our Company,” even if the relief prawiss apply, a tax would be imposed upon the ambynthich we fail to satisfy the

particular gross income test.

Asset Tests

To qualify as a REIT, we also must sgtthe following asset tests at the end of eachtquaf each taxable year. First, at least 75% of
the value of our total assets must consist of soonebination of “real estate assets,” cash, casisitgovernment securities, and, under some
circumstances, stock or debt instruments purchastddhew capital. For this purpose, the term “restlate assets” includes interests in real
property (including leaseholds and options to aegreéal property and leaseholds), stock of otheparations that qualify as REITs and
interests in mortgage loans secured by real proieitiuding certain types of mortgage backed siées). Assets that do not qualify for
purposes of the 75% test are subject to the additiasset tests described below.

Second, the value of our interest in ang issuer’s securities (other than debt and egeityrities issued by any of our TRSs, qualified
REIT subsidiaries, any other entity that is disrdgd as an entity separate from us, and any eouégest we may hold in a partnership) may
not exceed 5% of the value of our total assetsd] e may not own more than 10% of the voting poarel0% of the value of any one
issuer’s outstanding securities (other than debtesuity securities issued by any of our TRSs,ifjed|REIT subsidiaries, any other entity that
is disregarded as an entity separate from us, ap@@uity interest we may hold in a partnershipuih, no more than 25% of the value of our
total assets may consist of the securities of smaare TRSs. For purposes of the 10% value testieim “securities” does not include certain
“straight debt” securities.

Notwithstanding the general rule that,darposes of the gross income and asset tes|aiRtreated as owning its proportionate share
of the underlying assets of a partnership in witittolds a partnership interest, if a REIT holddehtedness issued by a partnership, the
indebtedness will be subject to, and may causelation of the asset tests, unless it is a qualifynortgage asset or otherwise satisfies the
rules for “straight debt.” Similarly, although stoof another REIT qualifies as a real estate dsseturposes of the REIT asset tests, non-
mortgage debt issued by another REIT may not stifgua

Any regular or residual interest thataven in a REMIC will generally qualify as real egtassets. However, if less than 95% of the
assets of a REMIC consist of assets that qualifgakestate assets, then we will be treated abrtgptlirectly our proportionate share of the
assets of such REMIC for purposes of the asset test

We believe that most of the real estatated securities that we expect to hold will baldfying assets for purposes of the 75% asset test
However, our investment in other asset-backed ge&xsjrbank loans and other instruments that ates@cured by mortgages on real property
will not be qualifying assets for purposes of thé6rasset test.

We will monitor the status of our asdetspurposes of the various asset tests and wak & manage our portfolio to comply at all times
with such tests. There can be no assurance, howtea¢mwe will be successful in this effort. Indhiegard, to determine our compliance with
these requirements, we will need to estimate thgevaf our assets to ensure compliance with thetassts. We will not obtain independent
appraisals to support our conclusions concerniag/gttiues of our assets, and we will generally oslyepresentations and warranties of sellers
from whom we acquire mortgage loans concerninddae-to-value ratios for such mortgage loans. Meeepsome of the assets that we may
own may not be susceptible to precise valuatiothddigh we will seek to be prudent in making thest@reates, there can be no assurance that
the IRS will not disagree with these determinatiand assert that a different value is applicableyhich case we might not satisfy the 75%
asset test and the other asset tests and would failalify as a REIT.

Failure to Satisfy Asset Tests
If we fail to satisfy the asset testdtasend of a quarter, we will not lose our REIT Ification if:
. we satisfied the asset tests at the end of thegireg calendar quarter; a
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. the discrepancy between the value of our assetthanasset test requirements arose from changke imarket values of our
assets and was not wholly or partly caused by ¢lyeiaition of one or more n-qualifying assets

If we did not satisfy the condition débed in the second bullet above, we still couldidwisqualification by eliminating any
discrepancy within 30 days after the close of thlermdar quarter in which it arose.

If we violate the 5% value test, 10% ugttest or 10% value test described above at ti@fany calendar quarter, we will not lose our
REIT qualification if (i) the failure is de minimi@p to the lesser of 1% of our total assets oriilllon) and (ii) we dispose of these assets or
otherwise comply with the asset tests within sixathe after the last day of the quarter. In the eeéa more than de minimis failure of any of
the asset tests, as long as the failure was digasonable cause and not to willful neglect, wénat lose our REIT qualification if we (i) file
with the IRS a schedule describing the assetscthaged the failure, (i) dispose of these assetsharwise comply with the asset tests within
six months after the last day of the quarter aiidp@y a tax equal to the greater of $50,000 pédurfe or an amount equal to the product of the
highest corporate income tax rate (currently 358@) the net income from the non-qualifying assetinguthe period in which we failed to
satisfy the asset tests.

Annual Distribution Requirements

To qualify as a REIT, we are requirediistribute dividends (other than capital gain dands) to our stockholders in an amount at least
equal to:

(A) the sum of
(i) 90% of our “REIT taxablecmme” (computed without regard to the dividendsiglgduction and our net capital gains), and
(i) 90% of the net income &ftax), if any, from foreclosure property (as dised below), minus

(B) the sum of certain items of non-casfome.

In addition, if we were to recognize “Inin-gain” (as defined below) on disposition ofyamssets acquired from a “C” corporation in a
transaction in which our basis in the assets wéarigéned by reference to the “C” corporation’s Bg$or instance, if the assets were acquired
in a tax-free reorganization), we would be requiiedistribute at least 90% of the built-in-gaicagnized net of the tax we would pay on such
gain. “Built-in-gain” is the excess of (a) the faiarket value of an asset (measured at the tiraeafisition) over (b) the basis of the asset
(measured at the time of acquisition).

Such distributions must be paid in theatde year to which they relate, or in the followitaxable year if either (i) we declare the
distribution before we file a timely federal inconae return for the year and pay the distributidthwr before the first regular dividend
payment after such declaration or (ii) we declagedistribution in October, November or Decembetheftaxable year, payable to stockholc
of record on a specified day in any such month,aadctually pay the dividends before the end otiday of the following year. The
distributions under clause (i) are taxable to tlen@rs of our common stock in the year in which paittl the distributions in clause (ii) are
treated as paid on December 31 of the prior taxgdde. In both instances, these distributions ediatour prior taxable year for purposes of the
90% distribution requirement.

We will pay federal income tax at corgertax rates on our taxable income, including agitel gain, that we do not distribute to
stockholders. Furthermore, if we fail to distribaliering each calendar year, or by the end of Jgrfedowing the calendar year in the case of
distributions with declaration and record dateBrfglin the last three months of the calendar yagleast the sum of (i) 85% of our REIT
ordinary income for such year, (ii) 95% of our REdpital gain income for such year and (iii) anglistributed taxable income from prior
periods, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductilxeise tax on the excess of such required distdbudiver the amounts actually distributed.
We generally intend to make timely distribution$fisient to satisfy the annual distribution requirents and to avoid corporate federal income
tax and the 4% nondeductible excise tax.

We may elect to retain, rather than diste, our net capital gain and pay tax on suchgydn this case, we could elect to have our
stockholders include their proportionate shareushsundistributed capital gains in income and teeiee a corresponding credit or refund, as
the case may be, for their share of the tax paidshystockholders would then increase the adjussi of their stock by the difference
between the designated amounts
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of capital gains from us that they include in thiakable income, and the tax paid on their behalidwith respect to that income.

To the extent that a REIT has availateeaperating losses carried forward from priorytears, such losses may reduce the amount of
distributions that it must make to comply with REIT distribution requirements. Such losses, howewdl generally not affect the character,
in the hands of stockholders, of any distributitivet are actually made by the REIT, which are galhetaxable to stockholders to the extent
that the REIT has current or accumulated earningspaofits. See “—Taxation of Stockholders, —Taaatof Taxable Domestic
Stockholders.”

We may find it difficult or impossible toeet distribution requirements in certain circiamses. Due to the nature of the assets in which
we will invest, we may be required to recognizeatalg income from those assets in advance of oeipecf cash flow on or proceeds from
disposition of such assets. For instance, we magdpgired to accrue interest and discount incommorigage loans, mortgage backed
securities, and other types of debt securitiest@résts in debt securities before we receive agynents of interest or principal on such assets.
Moreover, in certain instances we may be requivegttrue taxable income that we may not actuatiggeize as economic income. For
example, if we own a residual equity position imartgage loan securitization, we may recognizelitexancome that we will never actually
receive due to losses sustained on the underlyortgage loans. Although those losses would be didadleidor tax purposes, they would likely
occur in a year subsequent to the year in whichewegnized the taxable income. Thus, for any taxgbhr, we may be required to fund
distributions in excess of cash flow received froan investments. If such circumstances arise, théand our distribution requirement and
maintain our status as a REIT we may have to ss#ta at unfavorable prices, borrow at unfavortdstes, make taxable stock dividends, or
pursue other strategies. We cannot be assuredveoyvany such strategy would be successful if ashdlow were to become insufficient to
make the required distributions.

Under certain circumstances, we may e @hrectify a failure to meet the distributiorgterement for a year by paying “deficiency
dividends” to stockholders in a later year, whicaynbe included in our deduction for dividends pfaidthe earlier year. Thus, we may be able
to avoid being taxed on amounts distributed ascagfcy dividends; however, we will be required &y pnterest and a penalty to the IRS based
on the amount of any deduction taken for deficietieydends.

Failure to Qualify

If we falil to satisfy one or more requirents for REIT qualification, other than the grogsome tests and the asset tests, we could avoid
disqualification if our failure is due to reasorabhuse and not to willful neglect and we pay aftgrof $50,000 for each such failure. In
addition, there are relief provisions for a failafethe gross income tests and asset tests, aslobt “—Gross Income Tests” and “—Asset
Tests.”

If we fail to qualify for taxation as &Rl in any taxable year, and the relief provisidiesnot apply, we will be subject to tax (including
any applicable alternative minimum tax) on our tdgancome at regular federal corporate incomea#es. Distributions to stockholders in
year in which we fail to qualify will not be dedilde by us nor will they be required to be madesiich event, to the extent of current
accumulated earnings and profits, all distributitmstockholders will be taxable as ordinary incoared, subject to certain limitations of the
Code, corporate stockholders may be eligible ferdividends received deduction, and individual lshatders and other non-corporate
stockholders may be eligible to be taxed at theced 15% rate currently applicable to qualifieddind income (through 2010). Unless
entitled to relief under specific statutory prowiss, we will also be disqualified from taxationsaREIT for the four taxable years following the
year during which qualification was lost. We canpadict whether in all circumstances we would betled to such statutory relie

Prohibited Transactions

Net income derived by a REIT from a pbiteid transaction is subject to a 100% exciseTae.term “prohibited transaction” generally
includes a sale or other disposition of propertiéothan foreclosure property) that is held “pnityefor sale to customers in the ordinary
course of a trade or business.” Although we doempect that our assets will be held primarily falesto customers or that a sale of any of our
assets will be in the ordinary course of our bussnéhese terms are dependent upon the partiadts dnd circumstances, and we cannot a
you that we will never be subject to this excise Ehe 100% tax does not apply to gains from the sbproperty that is held through a TRS
other taxable corporation, although such incomébeilsubject to tax in the hands of the corporasibregular federal corporate income tax
rates.

134




Foreclosure Property

A REIT is subject to tax at the maximuanporate rate (currently 35%) on any income fromeétosure property, including gain from 1
disposition of such foreclosure property, othentircome that otherwise would be qualifying incofmepurposes of the 75% gross income
test. Foreclosure property is real property andmergonal property incident to such real propdjtsh@t is acquired by a REIT as result of the
REIT having bid on such property at foreclosurehaving otherwise reduced the property to ownershipossession by agreement or process
of law, after there was a default (or default wasinent) on a lease of such property or a mortd@ae held by the REIT and secured by the
property, (ii) for which the related loan or leaga&s acquired by the REIT at a time when default m@smminent or anticipated and (iii) for
which such REIT makes a proper election to treafpitoperty as foreclosure property. Any gain friwe $ale of property for which a
foreclosure election has been made will not beesathip the 100% excise tax on gains from prohibitadsactions described above, even if the
property would otherwise constitute inventory oaleée property in the hands of the selling REIT. Bdenot expect to receive income from
foreclosure property that is not qualifying incofoe purposes of the 75% gross income test. Howeéf/@e do receive any such income, we
intend to make an election to treat the relateg@my as foreclosure property.

Taxable Mortgage Pools

An entity, or a portion of an entity, miag classified as a TMP under the Code if (i) sattslly all of its assets consist of debt
obligations or interests in debt obligations, fiipre than 50% of those debt obligations are raat@snortgage loans, interests in real estate
mortgage loans or interests in certain mortgageked securities as of specified testing dati@sth@ entity has issued debt obligations thatd
two or more maturities and (iv) the payments rezplito be made by the entity on its debt obligatitiesr a relationshipto the payments to t
received by the entity on the debt obligations thholds as assets. Under Treasury Regulatiomsssfthan 80% of the assets of an entity (or a
portion of an entity) consist of debt obligatiotieese debt obligations are considered not to caagsubstantially all” of its assets, and
therefore the entity would not be treated as a TMP.

We do not intend to structure or entéo Becuritization or financing transactions that eause us to be viewed as owning interests in
one or more TMPs. Generally, if an entity or a jporof an entity is classified as a TMP, then thétg or portion thereof is treated as a taxable
corporation and it cannot file a consolidated fatlercome tax return with any other corporationhbwever, a REIT owns 100% of the equity
interests in a TMP, then the TMP is a qualified REUbsidiary and, as such, ignored as an entitgraggpfrom the REIT.

If, notwithstanding our intent to avoidving the issuing entity in any of our securitigator financing transactions classified as a TMP,
one or more of such transactions was so classifiet, as long as we owned 100% of the equity isteti@ the issuing entity, all or a portion of
the income that we recognize with respect to ovestment in the issuing entity will be treated ssess inclusion income. Section 860E(c) of
the Code defines the term “excess inclusion” withpect to a residual interest in a REMIC. The IIR8yever, has yet to issue guidance on the
computation of excess inclusion income on equitgrests in a TMP held by a REIT. Generally, howgegcess inclusion income with respect
to our investment in any TMP and any taxable yaliraqual the excess of (i) the amount of incomeagerue on our investment in the TMP
over (ii) the amount of income we would have acdrifi@ur investment were a debt instrument havingsaue price equal to the fair market
value of our investment on the day we acquiredd a yield to maturity equal to 120% of the long¥teapplicable federal rate in effect on the
date we acquired our interest. The term “applicéddieral rate” refers to rates that are based aghted average yields for treasury securities
and are published monthly by the IRS for use iiousrtax calculations. If we undertake securitmatiransactions that are TMPs, the amount
of excess inclusion income we recognize in anylikxgear could represent a significant portion wf ital taxable for that year.

Although we intend to structure our s@@ation and financing transactions so that we nat recognize any excess inclusion income,
we cannot assure you that we will always be sufgkissthis regard. If, notwithstanding our intemte recognized excess inclusion income,
then under guidance issued by the IRS we woulegeired to allocate the excess inclusion incomegntmnately among the dividends we
pay to our stockholders and we must notify ourlgtotders of the portion of our dividends that regemgts excess inclusion income. The portion
of any dividend you receive that is treated as ex@eclusion income is subject to special rulesstFyour taxable income can never be less
the sum of your excess inclusion income for the;yeecess inclusion income cannot be offset withaperating losses or other allowable
deductions. Second, if you are a tax-exempt orgdioiz and your excess inclusion income is subthié¢ unrelated business income tax, then
the excess inclusion portion of any dividend yazeiee will be treated as unrelated business taxabtame. Third,
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dividends paid to Foreign Owners who hold stockifiwestment and not in connection with a tradeusitess conducted in the United Sates
will be subject to United States federal withholgiblax without regard to any reduction in rate otfiee allowed by any applicable income tax
treaty.

If we recognize excess inclusion incoarg] one or more Disqualified Organizations areneébolders of shares of common stock, we
will be taxable at the highest federal corporat®ine tax rate on the portion of any excess inclugioome equal to the percentage of our s
that is held by Disqualified Organizations. In seittumstances, we may reduce the amount of otnitlisons to a Disqualified Organization
whose stock ownership gave rise to the tax. Textent that our common stock owned by Disqualiftedanizations is held by a broker/de:
or other nominee, the broker/dealer or other nomimeuld be liable for a tax at the highest corpotak rate on the portion of our excess
inclusion income allocable to our common stock hmldhe broker/dealer or other nominee on behatfiefDisqualified Organizations.

If we own less than 100% of the equitgiasts in a TMP, the foregoing rules would notiapRather, the entity would be treated as a
corporation for federal income tax purposes andlevpatentially be subject to federal corporate mectax. This could adversely affect our
compliance with the REIT gross income and assé&t tisscribed above. We currently do not have, anctotly do not intend to enter into any
securitization or financing transaction that isMFin which we own some, but less than all, ofelqeity interests, and we intend to monitor
structure of any TMPs in which we have an inteteginsure that they will not adversely affect datiss as a REIT. We cannot assure you that
we will be successful in this regard.

Taxation of Owners
Taxation of Taxable Domestic Owners

DistributionsAs long as we qualify as a REIT, distributions wake to our taxable Domestic Owners out of currertocumulated
earnings and profits (and not designated as cagaial dividends) will be taken into account by thasnordinary income. Dividends we pay to a
corporation will not be eligible for the dividendsceived deduction. In addition, distributions wekm to individuals and other Owners that are
not corporations generally will not be eligible the 15% reduced rate of tax currently (through®@0d effect for “qualified dividend income.”
However, provided certain holding period and otteguirements are met, an individual or other nomarmate Owner will be eligible for the
15% reduced rate with respect to (i) distributiattsibutable to dividends we receive from certa@i torporations, such as our TRSs, and (ii)
distributions attributable to income upon which meve paid corporate income tax.

Distributions that we designate as capién dividends will be taxed as long-term capifains (to the extent that they do not exceed our
actual net capital gain for the taxable year) withegard to the period for which you have ownedeammmon stock. However, corporate
Owners may be required to treat up to 20% of aextapital gain dividends as ordinary income. Loagrt capital gains are generally taxable at
maximum federal rates of 15% (through 2010) indage of individuals, trusts and estates, and 35#teicase of corporations.

Rather than distribute our net capitahgawe may elect to retain and pay the federalrime tax on them, in which case you will (i)
include your proportionate share of the undistelutet capital gains in income, (ii) receive a itriedt your share of the federal income tax we
pay and (iii) increase the basis in your commoglstay the difference between your share of thetabgain and your share of the credit.

Distributions in excess of our currentl @tcumulated earnings and profits will not be bdeo you to the extent that they do not exceed
your adjusted tax basis in our common stock you,dwhrather, will reduce your adjusted tax basigaur common stock. Assuming that -
common stock you own is a capital asset, to thergxhat such distributions exceed your adjustedé#asis in the common stock you own, you
must include them in income as long-term capitéh gar short-term capital gain if the common stbels been held for one year or less).

If we declare a dividend in October, NoNeer or December of any year that is payable tokimlders of record on a specified date in
any such month, but actually distribute the ama@diared in January of the following year, then youst treat the January distribution as
though you received it on December 31 of the yeavhich we declared the dividend. In addition, wayrelect to treat other distributions after
the close of the taxable year as having been paidglthe taxable year, but you will be treatedhaging received these distributions in the
taxable year in which they are actually made.

To the extent that we have availableopefrating losses and capital losses carried fordvard prior tax years, such losses may reduce
the amount of distributions that we must make tmgly with the REIT distribution
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requirements. See “—Annual Distribution Requirersénbuch losses, however, are not passed througbu@nd do not offset your income
from other sources, nor would they affect the ctigraof any distributions that you receive from ysy will be subject to tax on those
distributions to the extent that we have curreraarumulated earnings and profits.

Although we do not expect to recognizg excess inclusion income, if we did recognize sgdaclusion income, we would identify a
portion of the distributions that we make to yole&sess inclusion income. Your taxable income @renbe less than the sum of your excess
inclusion income for the year; excess inclusioroine cannot be offset with net operating losseglerallowable deductions. See “—Taxable
Mortgage Pools.”

Dispositions of Our Stockny gain or loss you recognize upon the sale oemwdlisposition of our common stock will generally dapita
gain or loss for federal income tax purposes, aitico@ long-term capital gain or loss if you heltetcommon stock for more than one year. In
addition, any loss you recognize upon a sale onaxge of our common stock that you have ownedixamenths or less (after applying cert
holding period rules) will generally be treatedsdsng-term capital loss to the extent of distribug received from us that you are required to
treat as long-term capital gain.

If you recognize a loss upon a disposittbour common stock in an amount that exceedgscpbed threshold, it is possible that the
provisions of recently adopted Treasury Regulatiomslving “reportable transactions” could applyithwva resulting requirement to separately
disclose the loss-generating transaction to the WRislle these regulations are directed towards Staelters,” they are written quite broadly,
and apply to transactions that would not typichllyconsidered tax shelters. In addition, recenthceed legislation imposes significant
penalties for failure to comply with these requiests. You should consult your tax advisor concey@iny possible disclosure obligation with
respect to the receipt or disposition of our comrstmrtk, or transactions that might be undertakegctly or indirectly by us. Moreover, you
should be aware that we and other participantsaérnransactions involving us (including our advionay be subject to disclosure or other
requirements pursuant to these regulations.

Amounts that you are required to inclidéaxable income with respect to our common stgmk own, including taxable distributions
and the income you recognize with respect to uribiged net capital gain, and any gain recognizeshuyour disposition of our common
stock, will not be treated as passive activity meo You may not offset any passive activity loggas may have, such as losses from limited
partnerships in which you have invested, with inegrou recognize with respect to our shares of comstack. Generally, income you
recognize with respect to our common stock wiltieated as investment income for purposes of thestment interest limitations.

Information Reporting and Backup Withtio¢d We will report to our stockholders and to the IR8 amount of distributions we pay
during each calendar year and the amount of tawitdnold, if any. Under the backup withholding rsilegou may be subject to backup
withholding at a current rate of 28% with respectlistributions unless you:

l. are a corporation or come within certain other gxecategories and, when required, demonstratdabisor

Il. provide a taxpayer identification number, certista no loss of exemption from backup withholdiagd otherwise comply with
the applicable requirements of the backup withimgdiles.

Any amount paid as backup withholdingl wé creditable against your federal income talsility. For a discussion of the backup
withholding rules as applied to foreign owners, ‘sed axation of Foreign Owners.”

Taxation of Tax-Exempt Owners

Tax-exempt entities, including qualifiechployee pension and profit sharing trusts andviddal retirement accounts, are generally
exempt from federal income taxation. However, tasy subject to taxation on their unrelated busiteesable income (“UBTI"). Provided that
a tax-exempt Owner (i) has not held our commonksésc‘debt financed property” within the meaningted Code and (ii) has not used our
common stock in an unrelated trade or businessyatadhat we distribute to tax-exempt Owners gelyesaould not constitute UBTI.
However, a tax-exempt Owner’s allocable share gfeatess inclusion income that we recognize wilsblject to tax as UBTI. See “—
Taxable Mortgage Pools.” We intend to structuresmauritization and financing transactions so Weatvill avoid recognizing any excess
inclusion income.
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Tax-exempt Owners that are social clubgjntary employee benefit associations, suppleatememployment benefit trusts and
qualified group legal services plans, exempt fraxation under special provisions of the federabme tax laws, are subject to different UBTI
rules, which generally will require them to chagaie distributions that they receive from us asTUB

In certain circumstances, a qualified Eyge pension trust or profit sharing trust thahewnore than 10% of our stock could be reqt
to treat a percentage of the dividends that itivesefrom us as UBTI if we are a “pension-held REMe will not be a pension-held REIT
unless either (a) one pension trust owns more 268 of the value of our stock or (b) a group ofgien trusts individually holding more than
10% of our stock collectively owns more than 50%haf value of our stock. However, the restrictionsownership and transfer of our stock
described under “Description of Capital Stock—Resbns on Ownership and Transfer” are designedraather things to prevent a tax-
exempt entity from owning more than 10% of the eatdi our stock, thus making it unlikely that we Mikcome a pension-held REIT.

Taxation of Foreign Owners

The following is a summary of certain Uf€deral income and estate tax consequences ofithership and disposition of our common
stock applicable to a Foreign Owner.

If a partnership, including for this poge any entity that is treated as a partnership) #8r federal income tax purposes, holds our
common stock, the tax treatment of a partner irpiénership will generally depend upon the stafube partner and the activities of the
partnership. An investor that is a partnership hguikoreign Owners as partners should consultitadaisors about the U.S. federal income
consequences of the acquisition, ownership anasligpn of our common stock.

The discussion is based on current lagvisufior general information only. The discussiaidi@sses only certain and not all aspects of
U.S. federal income and estate taxation.

Ordinary Dividend Distributiong.he portion of dividends received by a Foreign Ompegyable out of our current and accumulated
earnings and profits that are not attributableupaapital gains and that are not effectively cated with a U.S. trade or business of the
Foreign Owner will be subject to U.S. withholdiraxtat the rate of 30% (unless reduced by an afgdidacome tax treaty). In general, a
Foreign Owner will not be considered engaged in& ttade or business solely as a result of itsessitip of our common stock. In cases
where the dividend income from a Foreign Ownenrgestment in our common stock is (or is treateceffectively connected with the Foreign
Owner’s conduct of a U.S. trade or business, threigfp Owner generally will be subject to U.S. taxgeaduated rates, in the same manner as
Domestic Owners are taxed with respect to suclddivds (and may also be subject to the 30% brarmdhsptax in the case of a foreign owner
that is a foreign corporation). If a Foreign Owitethe record holder of shares of our common staekplan to withhold U.S. income tax at the
rate of 30% on the gross amount of any distribugaid to a Foreign Owner unless:

. a lower income treaty rate applies and the For@gmer provides us with an IRS Form W-8BEN evidegaéfigibility for that
reduced rate; c

. the Foreign Owner provides us with an IRS Forl-8ECI certifying that the distribution is effectiyetonnected incom:e

Under some income tax treaties, lowehkagtding tax rates do not apply to ordinary dividerirom REITs. Furthermore, reduced treaty
rates are not available to the extent that distidiog are treated as excess inclusion income. Sekakable Mortgage Pools.” We intend to
structure our securitization and financing transast so that we will avoid recognizing any excessusion income.

Non-Dividend Distribution®istributions we make to a Foreign Owner that areaonsidered to be distributions out of our currd
accumulated earnings and profits will not be subjed).S. federal income or withholding tax unléss distribution exceeds the Foreign
Owner’s adjusted tax basis in our common stocketitne of the distribution and, as described betbe Foreign Owner would otherwise be
taxable on any gain from a disposition of our commatock. If it cannot be determined at the timeéstrihution is made whether or not such
distribution will be in excess of our current arcd@mulated earnings and profits, the entire distiim will be subject to withholding at the rate
applicable to dividends. A Foreign Owner may, hogregeek a refund of such amounts from the IRSsfsubsequently determined that the
distribution was, in fact, in excess of our current accumulated earnings and profits, providegtbper forms are timely filed with the IRS
by the Foreign Owner.
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Capital Gain Dividend®istributions that we make to Foreign Owners thiatadtributable to our disposition of U.S. realpeay
interests (“USRPI,” which term does not includeehaists in mortgage loans and mortgage backed 8esydre subject to U.S. federal income
and withholding taxes pursuant to the Foreign Itmesit in Real Property Act of 1980, or FIRPTA, andy also be subject to branch profits
tax if the Foreign Owner is a corporation thatas entitled to treaty relief or exemption. Althougle do not anticipate recognizing any gain
attributable to the disposition of USRPI, as dediby FIRPTA, Treasury Regulations interpreting BiRPTA provisions of the Code impose a
withholding tax at a rate of 35% on all of our ¢apgain dividends (or amounts we could have degighas capital gain dividends) paid to
Foreign Owners, even if no portion of the capit@ihg we recognize during the year are attributeblzur disposition of USRPI. However, in
any event, the FIRPTA rules will not apply to distitions to a Foreign Owner so long as (i) our camratock is regularly traded (as definec
applicable Treasury Regulations) on an establisieedrities market, and (ii) the Foreign Owner oatiually or constructively) no more than
5% of our common stock at any time during the oearyperiod ending with the date of the distribution

Dispositions of Our Stoddnless our common stock constitutes a USRPI, acdadar common stock by a Foreign Owner generally w
not be subject to U.S. federal income tax undeiPHIR. We do not expect that our common stock witisttute a USRPI. Our common stock
will not constitute a USRPI if less than 50% of assets throughout a prescribed testing periodstasfsinterests in real property located
within the United States, excluding, for this pusppinterest in real property solely in the capyaast a creditor. Even if the foregoing test is not
met, our common stock will not constitute a USRRVé are a domestically controlled REIT. A “domeatly controlled REIT” is a REIT in
which, at all times during a specified testing pdriless than 50% in value of its shares is hetecty or indirectly by foreign owners. We do
not intend to maintain records to determine wheterare a domestically controlled REIT for this pase.

Even if we do not constitute a domeslycabntrolled REIT, a Foreign Owner’s sale of oonumon stock generally will still not be
subject to tax under FIRPTA as a sale of a USR&Vigded that (i) our stock is “regularly traded” @eafined by applicable Treasury
Regulations) on an established securities marké&{igrthe selling Foreign Owner has owned (actual constructively) 5% or less of our
outstanding common stock at all times during a ifieelctesting period.

If gain on the sale of our stock werejsabto taxation under FIRPTA, the Foreign Owneuldogenerally be subject to the same
treatment as a Domestic Owner with respect to gaah (subject to applicable alternative minimum azxl a special alternative minimum tax
in the case of nonresident alien individuals) drelgurchaser of the common stock could be reqairedthhold 10% of the purchase price and
remit such amount to the IRS.

Capital gains not subject to FIRPTA witinetheless be taxable in the United States ta@dfoOwner in two cases. First, if the Foreign
Owner’s investment in our common stock is effedfivannected with a U.S. trade or business condugyesuch Foreign Owner, the Foreign
Owner will generally be subject to the same treatnas a Domestic Owner with respect to such ganof&d, if the Foreign Owner is a
nonresident alien individual who was present inlinited States for 183 days or more during thelikxgear and has a “tax home” in the
United States, the nonresident alien individual & subject to a 30% tax on the individual's calpiain.

Estate TaxOur common stock owned or treated as owned bydinidual who is not a citizen or resident of theitdd States (as
specially defined for U.S. federal estate tax pags) at the time of death will be includible in théividual’s gross estate for U.S. federal es
tax purposes, unless an applicable estate tay tpeatides otherwise. Such individual's estate meaysubject to U.S. federal estate tax on the
property includible in the estate for U.S. fedesstiate tax purposes.

Other Tax Consequences

Possible Legislative or Other Actionseafing Tax Consequencé¥ospective investors should recognize that thegmtefederal income
tax treatment of an investment in our common stoely be modified by legislative, judicial or adminigive action at any time, and that any
such action may affect investments and commitmgr@sgiously made. The rules dealing with federabime taxation are constantly under
review by persons involved in the legislative pixcand by the IRS and Treasury Department, reguhiinevisions of regulations and revised
interpretations of established concepts as wedtatsitory changes. Revisions in federal tax lavesiaterpretations thereof could adversely
affect the tax consequences of an investment irconmmon stock.

State and Local Tax&¥e and our stockholders may be subject to stalecaf taxation in various state or local jurisdiets, including
those in which we or they transact business odeedihe state and local tax treatment
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may not conform to the federal income tax consegeguiscussed above. Consequently, prospectivetargeshould consult their own tax
advisors regarding the effect of state and localdws on an investment in our common stock.
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UNDERWRITING

We intend to offer the shares throughuheerwriters. Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smihcorporated, Credit Suisse Securities
(USA) LLC, and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. aitingcas the representatives of the underwritersetbbelow. Subject to the terms and
conditions described in a purchase agreement an®agd the underwriters, we have agreed to steteinderwriters and the underwriters
severally have agreed to purchase from us, the auoftshares listed opposite their names below.

Number

Underwriter of Shares

Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporal 40,700,00
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LL 14,300,00
Deutsche Bank Securities Ir 14,300,00
Citigroup Global Markets Inc 12,100,00
J.P. Morgan Securities In 12,100,00
UBS Securities LLC 12,100,00
JMP Securities LLC 2,200,00!
Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Ini 2,200,001

Total 110,000,00

The underwriters have agreed to purchisd the shares sold under the purchase agreeifreamt of these shares are purchased. If an
underwriter defaults, the purchase agreement pesvidat the purchase commitments of the nondefigulthderwriters may be increased or the
purchase agreement may be terminated.

We have agreed to indemnify the undeessitgainst certain liabilities, including lialigis under the Securities Act of 1933, as amer
or to contribute to payments the underwriters mayeguired to make in respect of those liabilities.

The underwriters are offering the shasebject to prior sale, when, as and if issuechtbaccepted by them, subject to approval of legal
matters by their counsel, including the validitytleé shares, and other conditions contained iptinehase agreement, such as the receipt t

underwriters of officer’s certificates and legaipns. The underwriters reserve the right to wittvd, cancel or modify offers to the public and
to reject orders in whole or in part.

Commissions and Discounts

The representatives have advised ughkeainderwriters propose initially to offer the s#sato the public at the public offering price on
the cover page of this prospectus and to dealetmtprice less a concession not in excess of78.@4r share. The underwriters may allow,
the dealers may reallow, a discount not in excé$sl® per share to other dealers. After the pulifiering, the public offering price,
concession and discount may be changed.

The following table shows the public ofifg price, underwriting discount and proceeds befxpenses to us. The information assumes
either no exercise or full exercise by the unddessiof their overallotment options.

Per Share Without Option With Option
Public offering price $ 22t $ 247,500,00 $ 284,625,00
Underwriting discoun $ 0787 $ 8,657,000 $ 9,955,55
Proceeds, before expenses, t( $ 2171 $ 238,843,00 $ 274,669,45

The expenses of the offering, not inahgdihe underwriting discount, are estimated at $8band are payable by us.
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Overallotment Option

We have granted options to the underverite purchase up to 16,500,000 additional shargsegublic offering price less the
underwriting discount. The underwriters may exertiese options for 30 days from the date of thisgectus solely to cover any
overallotments. If the underwriters exercise thgs@ons, each will be obligated, subject to comdisi contained in the purchase agreement, to
purchase a number of additional shares proporgotwathat underwriter’s initial amount reflectedtlire above table.

No Sales of Similar Securities

Pursuant to certain “lock-up” agreemewnts,and our executive officers and directors hayeed, subject to certain exceptions, not to
offer, sell, contract to sell, announce any intemtio sell, pledge or otherwise dispose of, diyeatlindirectly, or file with the SEC a registrati
statement under the Securities Act relating to, @mmon shares or securities convertible into ehargeable or exercisable for any common
shares without the prior written consent of Melciinch for a period of 90 days after the date & rospectus. Specifically, we and these ¢
individuals have agreed, with certain exceptioms,ta directly or indirectly:

. offer, pledge, sell or contract to sell any comrstotk;

. sell any option or contract to purchase any comsiook;

. purchase any option or contract to sell any comstook;

. grant any option, right or warrant for the saleny common stocl

. lend or otherwise dispose of or transfer any comstook;

. request or demand that we file a registration stat# related to the common stock;

. enter into any swap or other agreement that tresysfewhole or in part, the economic consequeriaamership of any commc

stock whether any such swap or transaction is teeltéed by delivery of shares or other securifiesash or otherwist

This lock-up provision applies to commatack and to securities convertible into or excleside or exercisable for or repayable with
common stock. It also applies to common stock owred or acquired later by the person executingatireement or for which the person
executing the agreement later acquires the poweispbsition. The 9@ay restricted period will be automatically extethdfe(1) during the las
17 days of the 90-day restricted period we issueaanings release or material news or a mater@ttenelating to us occurs or (2) prior to the
expiration of the 90-day restricted period, we amre that we will release earnings results or besoawvare that material news or a material
event will occur during the 16-day-period beginnorgthe last day of the 9flay restricted period, in which case the restnitidescribed abo
will continue to apply until the expiration of ti8-day period beginning on the issuance of the easnielgase or the occurrence of the mat
news or material event. The exceptions permit sy other things and subject to restrictions(apissue common stock or options pursuant
to our long term stock incentive plan or pursuarthe exercise of employee stock options or otherds, and (b) issue common stock purs
to our stock dividend reinvestment plan, once distadd.

New York Stock Exchange Listing
Our shares of common stock are listetherNew York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CIM”.
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Price Stabilization, Short Positions

Until the distribution of the shares ampleted, SEC rules may limit underwriters andisglgroup members from bidding for and
purchasing our common stock. However, the repratigas may engage in transactions that stabilieetite of the common stock, such as
bids or purchases to peg, fix or maintain thateoric

If the underwriters create a short posiiin the common stock in connection with the affgri.e., if they sell more shares than are listed
on the cover of this prospectus, the representativey reduce that short position by purchasingeshiarthe open market. The representatives
may also elect to reduce any short position by@sieg all or part of the overallotment option désed above. Purchases of the common stock
to stabilize its price or to reduce a short positieay cause the price of the common stock to bleehithan it might be in the absence of such
purchases.

We have been advised that on OctobeP@33 from 11:11 a.m. (New York City time) until thearket close, one of the underwriters
purchased, on behalf of the syndicate, 585,60Ceshafrour common stock at an average price of 5. pér share in compliance with Rule
104 of Regulation M.

Neither we nor any of the underwriterskasaany representation or prediction as to thectiine or magnitude of any effect that the
transactions described above may have on the pfittee common stock. In addition, neither we noy ahthe underwriters makes any
representation that the representatives will engragfgese transactions or that these transactam® commenced, will not be discontinued
without notice.

Selling Restrictions

This prospectus does not constitute &r off, or an invitation by or on behalf of us,layr or on behalf of the underwriters, to subscribe
for or purchase, any of the shares in any jurigalicto any person to whom it is unlawful to makelsan offer or solicitation in that
jurisdiction. The distribution of this prospectusdahe offering of the shares in certain jurisdio may be restricted by law. We and
underwriters require persons into whose possesisiprospectus comes to inform themselves abalit@nbserve any such restrictions.

In relation to each Member State of thieopean Economic Area which has implemented theg@aius Directive (individually, a
Relevant Member State), each underwriter has repted and agreed that with effect from and inclgdive date on which the Prospectus
Directive is implemented in that Relevant Membext&{or the Relevant Implementation Date) it hashmade and will not make an offer of
common stock to the public in that Relevant Menthtate prior to the publication of a prospectuseiation to the common stock which has
been approved by the competent authority in thég\R@t Member State or, where appropriate, appravedother Relevant Member State
notified to the competent authority in that Relevsiember State, all in accordance with the Progpebirective, except that it may, with eff
from and including the Relevant Implementation Dateke an offer of common stock to the public iattRelevant Member State at any time:

. to legal entities which are authorized or reguldtedperate in the financial markets or, if notsmhorized or regulated, whose
corporate purpose is solely to invest in securi

. to any legal entity which has two or more of (i)arerage of at least 250 employees during thditeatcial year; (ii) a tots
balance sheet of more than €43,000,000 and (ii§renual net turnover of more than €50,000,000haws in its last annual or
consolidated accounts;

. in any other circumstances which do not requireptiiglication by the Issuer of a prospectus purst@aiticle 3 of the
Prospectus Directive

For the purposes of this provision, thpression an “offer of common stock to the publictelation to any common stock in any
Relevant Member State means the communicationyifi@am and by any means of sufficient informationtbe terms of the offer and the
common stock to be offered so as to enable antovesdecide to purchase or subscribe the comnumk sas the same may be varied in that
Relevant Member State by any measure implemerti@adtospectus Directive in that Relevant MembeteStad the expression Prospectus
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Directive means Directive 2003/71/EC and includeg r@levant implementing measure in each Relevanhber State.
Each underwriter has represented andedgtet:

. it has not made and will not make an offer of thenmon stock to the public in the United Kingdonoptto the publication of a
prospectus in relation to the common stock andffer that has been approved by the FSA or, whepeogpriate, approved in
another Member State and notified to the FSA na#ldcordance with the Prospectus Directive, exitegttit may make an offer
the common stock to persons who fall within theirdgén of “qualified investor” as that term is deéd in Section 86 (7) of
FSMA, or otherwise in circumstances which do nsufein an offer of transferable securities to plublic in the United Kingdol
within the meaning of FSMA

. it has only communicated or caused to be commuetdcand will only communicate or cause to be comeated any invitation
or inducement to engage in investment activity lfimithe meaning of Section 21 of FSMA) receivedtby connection with the
issue or sale of any common stock in circumstaircegich Section 21(1) of FSMA does not apply taitd

. it has complied and will comply with all applicalpeovisions of FSMA with respect to anything doreittin relation to the
common stock in, from or otherwise involving theited Kingdom.

Internet Distribution

Merrill Lynch will be facilitating interet distribution for this offering to certain of itsternet subscription customers. Merrill Lynch
intends to allocate a limited number of shares#de to its online brokerage customers. An eleatrprospectus is available on the internet
site maintained by Merrill Lynch. Other than th@gpectus in electronic format, the information lo@ Merrill Lynch web site is not part of tt
prospectus.

Other Relationships

Certain of the underwriters and theipesdive affiliates have, from time to time, perfeun and may in the future perform, various
financial advisory and investment banking serviocesis, for which they received or will receive tarsary fees and reimbursement of
expenses. In addition, we have currently in eféedtave had in effect in recent periods repurcla@seements with one or more of the
underwriters or their affiliates whereby, amongeotthings, we borrow funds to finance the purched@MBS. Although not currently in
effect, in recent periods we have had warehousktieand entered into interest rate swaps with or more of the underwriters or their
affiliates. Furthermore, certain of the underwstand their respective affiliates are or have lmeemterparties to securities and other trading
activities with us. Deutsche Bank Securities Imd &redit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, or theiileffes, were lead bookrunners for the
$619.7 million securitization we sponsored on Agdl 2008. Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC terfffiliates, was the sole lead bookrur
for the $151.2 million securitization we sponsooedJuly 25, 2008.

Paul Donlin, our Nonexecutive Chairmarthef Board of Directors, intends to purchase 10D dg}ares of our common stock through one
of the underwriters in this offering.
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LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters relating to thitedhg will be passed upon for us by K&L Gates LMPashington, D.C. In addition, the descript
of federal income tax consequences contained isghton of the prospectus entitled “Certain Fede@me Tax Considerations” is based on
the opinion of McKee Nelson LLP. Certain legal regdtrelating to this offering will be passed uponthe underwriters by Fried, Frank,
Harris, Shriver & Jacobson LLP, New York, New York.

EXPERTS

The financial statements as of Decemtie2807, and for the period November 21, 2007 (dpgrations commenced) through
December 31, 2007, included and incorporated reete in this prospectus have been audited byitiBef Touche LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated inrtteport, which is included and incorporated bference herein. Such financial statements
have been so included and incorporated in reliapos the report of such firm given upon their aatlyaas experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the Securities and liaxege Commission a registration statement on Foefrh, $cluding exhibits and schedules fi
with the registration statement of which this pedps is a part, under the Securities Act of 18933%mended, with respect to the shares of
common stock to be sold in this offering. This pestus does not contain all of the informationfgeh in the registration statement and
exhibits and schedules to the registration staténfem further information with respect to us ahd shares of common stock to be sold in this
offering, reference is made to the registratiotesteent, including the exhibits and schedules tadigéstration statement. Copies of the
registration statement, including the exhibits aoldedules to the registration statement, may beieveal without charge at the public refere
room of the Securities and Exchange Commission,FL8@eet, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 2054f@®rmation about the operation of
the public reference room may be obtained by aaliire Securities and Exchange Commission at 1-&0-3300. Copies of all or a portion of
the registration statement may be obtained fronpthsic reference room of the Securities and Exgea&bommission upon payment of
prescribed fees. Our Securities and Exchange Caosioniéilings, including our registration statemearte also available to you, free of charge,
on the Securities and Exchange Commission’s websitevw.sec.gov.

We are subject to the information ancbrépg requirements of the Securities Exchangedhdi934, as amended, and file periodic
reports, proxy statements and make available tstmakholders annual reports containing auditednfafal information for each year and
quarterly reports for the first three quartersadtefiscal year containing unaudited interim finahmformation.

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to “incorporate by refece” information into this prospectus which haetbpreviously filed, which means that we
can disclose important information to you by rafegryou to another document filed separately whii SEC. The information incorporated by
reference is deemed to be part of this prospeetuspt for any information superseded by informmatiothis prospectus. We have filed the
documents listed below with the SEC (File No. 1-837under the Exchange Act, and these documenis@rgporated herein by reference:

— Our Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2007 filed ondd&, 2008
— Our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14Adfiten March 31, 200¢

— Our Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 filed on Nldy2008:
— Our Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2008 filed on Aug§u2008
— Our Current Report on Forn-K filed on May 5, 2008

— Our Current Report on Forn-K filed on August 1, 2008 (relating to our termiioat of our master repurchase agreements);
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— Our Current Report on Forn-K filed on October 20, 200

Any statement contained in this prospgcituin a document incorporated by reference sigatleemed to be modified or superseded for
all purposes to the extent that a statement caedaimthis prospectus or in any other document Wwhi@lso incorporated by reference modi
or supersedes that statement.

We will provide to each person, includengy beneficial owner, to whom a copy of this pexdps is delivered, a copy of any or all of the
information that has been incorporated by referémdkis prospectus but not delivered with thisgpectus (other than the exhibits to such
documents which are not specifically incorporatgddierence herein); we will provide this infornmatiat no cost to the requester upon written
or oral request to Investor Relations, Chimera $tment Corporation, 1211 Avenue of the AmericasteS2002, New York, New York 10036,

telephone number (212) 696-0100.
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R EPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIN®RERM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chimera Investment Corporation
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying statement of dinhoondition of Chimera Investment Corporatidme(tCompany”) as of December 31,
2007 and the related statements of operations @amgrehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and flasVs for the period from November
21, 2007 (date operations commenced) to Decemh&0BT . These financial statements are the redpititysof the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hiésancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@iq@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of isriral control over financial reporting.
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigrawnglit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsaimopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autfibancludes examining, on a test basis, evideopparting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audit provides a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presailyf in all material respects, the financial gimsi of Chimera Investment Corporation as of
December 31, 2007, and the results of its operatgoml its cash flows for the period from NovemberZD07 (date operations commenced) to
December 31, 2007, in conformity with accountinmg@iples generally accepted in the United State&mérica.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
New York, New York
March 3, 2008
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
S TATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands)

June 30, 2008

Consolidated December 31,
(unaudited) 2007

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 49,88¢ $ 6,02¢
Restricted cas 29,507 1,35(
Reverse repurchase agreems — 265,00(
Mortgage-Backed Securities, at fair vali 1,116,58! 1,124,291
Loans held for investment, net of allowance fomlé@sses of $546 and $81, respecti 150,08: 162,37:
Securitized loans held for investment, net of alloee for loan losses of $698 thous: 613,58( —
Accrued interest receivab 9,86: 6,03¢
Other asset 1,64¢ 562
Total asset $ 197115 $ 1,565,63
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:

Repurchase agreemel $ 909,08¢ $ 270,58¢

Securitized dek 504,39° —

Payable for investments purchas 146,82 748,92(

Accrued interest payab 3,51¢ 41k

Dividends payabli 6,044 943

Accounts payable and other liabiliti 3,54( 1,72¢

Interest rate swaps, at fair val 10,06¢ 4,15¢
Total liabilities 1,583,47 1,026,74
Commitments and Contingencies (Note
Stockholder Equity:

Common stock: par value $.01 per share; 500,000s88¢€es authorized, 38,999,850 and 37,70%

shares issued and outstanding, respect 37¢ 377

Additional paic-in capital 533,02t 532,20¢

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) inc¢ (104,981) 10,15:

Accumulated defici (40,74% (3,849
Total stockholder equity 387,67¢ 538,88
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 197115 $ 1,565,63

See notes to financial statements.
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

S TATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Interest incomt
Interest expens

Net interest incom

Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investrr
Realized gains on terminations of interest rateps

Net Investment Income (los

Expense:
Management fe
General and administrative expen

Total expense

Income (loss) before income tax

Income tax

Net income (loss

Net income (loss) per she- basic and dilute:

Weighted average number of shares outstar— basic and dilute:

Comprehensive income (los:
Net income (loss

Other comprehensive los

Unrealized gain (loss) on availa-for-sale securitie

Reclassification adjustment for realized lossetunted in net incom

Other comprehensive (loss) incol

Comprehensive (loss) incor

For the Six
Months Ended
June 30, 2008
Consolidated

For the Period
November 21, 2007
(date operations

commenced) through

(unaudited) December 31, 2007
$ 58,14 $ 3,49:
34,04 41F
24,09¢ 3,07
(5,909 (4,156
(31,179 -
125 —
(12,867 (1,079
4,45¢ 1,215
3,71¢ 60¢%
8,174 1,82z
(21,036 (2,901
3 5
$ 21,039 ($ 2,906)
$ 0.59) (% 0.0§)
38,995,09 37,401,73
$ 21,039 ($ 2,906)
(136,159 10,15¢
31,17« —
(104,98() 10,15¢
($ 126,019 $ 7,247

See notes to financial statements.



CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(dollars in thousands)
(Information with respect to 2008 is unaudited)

Accumulated
Common Additional Other
Stock Par Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated
Value Capital Income Deficit Total
Balance, November 21, 200
(date operations commence $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Proceeds from common stock offerir 377 532,19° — — 532,57
Net income — — — (2,90¢) (2,90¢6)
Other comprehensive incor — — 10,15: — 10,15:
Proceeds from direct purchas — 11 — 11
Common dividends declared, $0.025 per sl — — — (943) (943)
Balance, December 31, 20C 377 532,20t 10,15: (3,849 538,88
Net loss — — — (21,039 (21,03¢)
Other comprehensive (loss) incol — — (115,13) — (115,13)
Costs associated with common stock offe — (21€) — — (21€)
Restricted stock gran 1,034 — — 1,03t
Common dividends declared, $0.42 per sl — — — (15,85%) (15,859
Balance, June 30, 2008 (: $ 37¢ $ 533,02 $ (104,98() $ (40,749 $ 387,67

(1) Represents consolidated balance at June 38, 200

See notes to financial statements.
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousands)

Cash Flows From Operating Activitie
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to meshcprovided by operating activitie
Amortization of investment premiums and discot
Unrealized (gains) losses on interest rate s\
Realized (gains) losses on sale of investm
Allowance for loan losse
Restricted stock gran
Changes in operating ass
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest recei
Increase in other ass¢
Changes in operating liabilitie
Increase in accounts payal
Increase in accrued interest paye
(Decreases)/Increase in other liabilit

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

Cash Flows From Investing Activitie
Mortgage-backed securities portfolit
Purchase
Sales
Principal payment
Loans held for investment portfoli
Purchase
Sales
Principal payment
Securitized loans
Principal payment
Reverse repurchase agreem
Restricted cas

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash Flows From Financing Activitie
Proceeds from repurchase agreem
Payments on repurchase agreem
Proceeds from securitized d¢
Payments on securitized d¢
Proceeds from common stock offerir
Costs associated with common stock offeri
Dividends Paic
Net proceeds from direct purchases of common ¢

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informat
Interest paic

For the
period
November
For the Six 21
Months (date
Ended operations
June 30, commenced)
2008 through
Consolidated December
(unaudited) 31, 2007
($ 21,03) ($ 2,900
(933) (99)
5,90¢ 4,15¢
31,174 —
1,164 81
1,03t —
(5,526 (4,337)
(1,085) (562)
1,004 1,437
3,10 41t
807 292
15,61 (1,529
(1,228,57) (368,59)
248,01 —
103,11 1,78¢
(588,417 (162,46
90,73: —
21,94 —
12,65¢ —
265,00( (265,000
(28,15)) (1,350
(1,103,68) (795,62()
18,613,32 270,58
(17,974,82) =
515,90¢ —
(11,509 —
— 532,57
(21€) -
(10,756 —
— 11
1,131,93. 803,16¢
43,86: 6,02¢
6,02¢ —
$ 49,88¢ % 6,02¢
$ 30,94+ —




Taxes paic

Non cash investing activitie
Receivable for investments sc
Payable for investments purchas

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on availabteséle

Non cash financing activitie
Dividends declared, not yet pi

See notes to financial statements.
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Information with respect to 2008 is unaudited)

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Chimera Investment Corporation, or the Company, evganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Comgamymenced operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial jubffering. The Company has elected and intedsualify to be taxed as a real est
investment trust or REIT under the Internal ReveBode of 1986, as amended, commencing with the @ogip taxable year ending on
December 31, 2007. As such, the Company is reqtiredstribute substantially all of the income gexted from its operations to its
shareholders. As long as the Company qualifiesREI&, the Company will generally not be subjectt&. federal or state corporate taxes on
its income to the extent that the Company distabut least 90% of its taxable net income to d@sldiolders. Annaly Capital Management, |

or Annaly, purchased 3,621,581 shares of the Coglpanmmon shares in a private offering concurreitlh the Company’s initial public
offering. The Company is managed by Fixed Income@int Advisory Company, or FIDAC, an investmentisor registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and a whollyensubsidiary of Annaly.

A summary of the Company’s significant accountimjgies follows:
Basis of Presentation of Unaudited Consolidated Fancial Statements

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finantééments as of June 30, 2008 and for the six rsahn ended have been prepared in
conformity with the Form 10Q and Article 10, Rul@-Q1 of Regulation S-X for interim financial statents. Accordingly, they do not include
all of the information and footnotes required bg@mting principles generally accepted in the UhB¢ates of America (“GAAP”). The
consolidated interim financial statements are uitadgdhowever, in the opinion of the Compasmiyhanagement, all adjustments, consisting

of normal recurring accruals, necessary for affegsentation of the financial position, result®pérations, and cash flows have been included.
Comparative information for the six months endedeJ80, 2007 is not provided because the Compangatidommence operations until
November 21, 2007. The nature of the Com|'s business is such that the results of any intgmod are not necessarily indicative of results
for a full year. The Company securitized a poridiits loans and formed a subsidiary on April 2d02. The financial statements presented
subsequent to April 24, 2008, are on a consolidbsesis.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hanthandy market funds.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes cash held by countergaatiecollateral for repurchase agreements ancsiteate swaps.
Reverse Repurchase Agreements

The Company may invest its daily available caslabeds via reverse repurchase agreements to pradditonal yield on its assets. These
investments will typically be recorded as shortrténvestments, will mature daily, and are refetieeds receivables for reverse repurchase
agreements in the statement of financial conditReverse repurchase agreements are recorded ancbate collateralized by residential
mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS.

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company invests in RMBS representing interiestbligations backed by pools of mortgage loars @arries the securities at fair value
estimated using a pricing model. Management willew the fair values generated to determine thigeprare reflective of the current market.
Management performs a validation of the fair vadakulated by the pricing model by comparing isults to independent prices provided by
dealers in the securities and/or third party pgciervices. If dealers or independent pricing sesviare unable to provide a price for an ass:
if the price provided by them is deemed unrelidiyld=IDAC, then the asset will be valued at its faitue as determined in good faith by
FIDAC. In the current market, it may be difficult immpossible to obtain third party pricing on tieéstments the Company purchases. In
addition, validating third party pricing for the @pany’s investments may be more subjective as fpasicipants may be willing to provide
this service to the Company. Moreover, the curneatket is more illiquid than in recent history fmme of the investments the Company
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purchases. llliquid investments typically experiemgeeater price volatility as a ready market dagsemist. As volatility increases or liquidity
decreases, the Company may have greater diffifinkycing its investments which may negatively ircipgs earnings and the execution of its
investment strategy. Please see Note 5 for a disnusf fair value measurement.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SAd0. 115Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and BgS8iecurities requires th
Company to classify its investment securities #seeitrading investments, available-for-sale inresits or held-to-maturity investments. The
Company intends to hold its RMBS as available-fiesind as such may sell any of its RMBS as pét$ @iverall management of its portfolio.
All assets classified as available-for-sale ar@rgg at estimated fair value, with unrealized gaind losses included in other comprehensive
income.

Management evaluates investment securities for-aktam-temporary impairment at least on a quartealsis, and more frequently when
economic or market concerns warrant such evaluafionsideration is given to (1) the length of tiema the extent to which the fair value has
been lower than carrying value, (2) the financ@idition and near-term prospects of the issuerci@)it quality and cash flow performance of
the security, and (4) the intent and ability of @@mpany to retain its investment in the secuntyd period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair value. Unrealized &sen investment securities that are considereat thlan temporary, as measured by the
amount of decline in fair value attributable toatithan-temporary factors, are recognized in incamgtthe cost basis of the investment
securities is adjusted.

RMBS transactions are recorded on the trade da&&liz®Rd gains and losses from sales of RMBS aermé@ied based on the specific
identification method and recorded as a gain (loss3ale of investments in the statement of opmratiAccretion of discounts or amortization
of premiums on available-for-sale securities andtgage loans is computed using the effective isteyield method and is included as a
component of interest income in the statement efajons.

Loans Held for Investment and Securitized Loans Hel for Investment

The Company’s securitized and un-securitized residlemortgage loans are comprised of fixed-rate ariable-rate loans. The Company
purchases pools of residential mortgage loans tfirauselect group of originators. Mortgage loamsdmsignated as held for investment,
recorded on trade date, and are carried at thigicipal balance outstanding, plus any premiumsiscaiints which are amortized or accreted
over the estimated life of the loan, less allowarfoe loan losses. Loans are evaluated for possieldit losses. The Company has created an
unallocated provision for loan losses estimated psrcentage of the remaining principal on thedodfanagement’s estimate is based on
historical experience of similarly underwritten fopools. There were no losses specifically allatéddoans as of June 30, 2008. Residential
loan securitizations that are presented as sexeditoans and securitized debt are reflected icdhsolidated statements of financial condition
and are accounted for as a financing pursuant &5SHO0.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has established an allowance for lossek at a level that management believes is agelgased on an evaluation of known and
inherent risks related to the Company’s loan pticfd he estimate is based on a variety of facitockiding, but not limited to, current
economic conditions, industry loss experience, itaility trends, loan portfolio composition, dejuency trends, national and local econc
trends, national unemployment data, changes inihg@appreciation and whether specific geograpreasiwhere the Company has significant
loan concentrations are experiencing adverse ecienmnditions and events such as natural disatatsnay affect the local economy or
property values. Upon purchase of the pools ofdptitte Company obtained written representationsaardanties from the sellers that the
Company could be reimbursed for the value of tlaa lid the loan fails to meet the agreed upon oétiom standards. While the Company has
little history of its own to establish loan trendglinquency trends of the originators and theentrmarket conditions aid in determining the
allowance for loan losses. The Company also peddrdue diligence procedures on a sample of loaisribt its criteria during the purchase
process.

When it is probable that contractually due spedfiwounts are deemed uncollectible, the loan isidered impaired. Where impairment is
indicated, a valuation write-off is measured bagedn the excess of the recorded investment overghéair value of the collateral, reduced by
selling costs. Any deficiency between the carryangount of an asset and the net sales price of sepsad collateral is charged to the allow
for loan losses.
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Securitized Debt

The Company has issued securitized debt to finamution of its residential mortgage loan portiolThe securitized debt is collateralized by
residential adjustable or fixed rate mortgage Idhas have been placed in a trust and bear intarekprincipal payments to the debt holders.
The Companys securitized debt is accounted for as borrowimgsracorded as a liability on the consolidatedestesnt of financial condition .
June 30, 2008.

Fair Value Disclosure

SFAS No. 107Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrumentequires disclosure of the fair value of finahaistruments for which it

is practicable to estimate that value. The estithfd# value of investment securities and interatt swaps is equal to their carrying value
presented in the consolidated statements of fieaoondition. The estimated fair value of cash eash equivalents, accrued interest
receivable, reverse repurchase agreements, regarelgaeements with maturities shorter than one pagmbles for mortgageacked securitie
purchased, dividends payable, accounts payablea@erded interest payable, generally approximaissas of the dates presented due to the
short term nature of these financial instrumente fair value of repurchase agreements with lodgézd maturities is generally approximated
by cost as the loans reprice frequently to markests.

Interest Income

Interest income on available-for-sale securitied laans held for investment is recognized ovediteeof the investment using the effective
interest method as described by SFAS NoA&Tpunting for Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Assetiaith Originating or Acquiring Loans
and Initial Direct Costs of Leasedor securities of high credit quality and Emeigissues Task Force No. 99-Recoghnition of Interest
Income and Impairment on Purchased and Retaine@fiRgal Interests in Securitized Financial Ass, for all other securities. Income
recognition is suspended for loans when, in thaiopiof management, a full recovery of income aridgipal becomes doubtful. Income
recognition is resumed when the loan becomes atintlly current and performance is demonstratdzbtoesumed.

Derivative Financial Instruments/Hedging Activity

The Company economically hedges interest ratethisiugh the use of derivative financial instrumentsgrently limited to interest rate swaps.
The Company accounts for these interest rate sagfree-standing derivatives. Accordingly, they @agied at fair value with realized and
unrealized gains and losses recognized in earnings.

Income Taxes

The Company intends to qualify to be taxed as alR&hd therefore it generally will not be subjextbrporate federal or state income tax to
the extent that qualifying distributions are maalstockholders and the REIT requirements, includieigain asset, income, distribution and
stock ownership tests are met. If the Companydaibequalify as a REIT and did not qualify for gent statutory relief provisions, the Comp:
would be subject to federal, state and local inctames and may be precluded from qualifying as &TR& the subsequent four taxable years
following the year in which the REIT qualificatiomas lost.

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeSFAS No. 109Accounting for Income Taxesvhich requires the recognition of
deferred income taxes for differences between #sistnf assets and liabilities for financial stagetrand income tax purposes. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities represent the future taxseqoence for those differences, which will eithetdxable or deductible when the assets and
liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred saare also recognized for operating losses thaia#able to offset future taxable income.
Valuation allowances are established when necessaegduce deferred tax assets to the amount esghéztoe realized. In July 2006, the FA
issued FASB Interpretation No. 48¢counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxean interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“HI8T). FIN
48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in imemtaxes recognized in a companfihancial statements and prescribes a recogrii@sholc
and measurement attribute for the financial statgmeeognition and measurement of a tax positi&artaor expected to be taken in an income
tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on degeiion, classification, interest and penaltiegaunting in interim periods, disclosure and
transition. FIN 48 was effective for the Companymupnception and its effect was not material.

Net Income Per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shyagé/ltling net income for the period by the weighteverage shares of its common stock
outstanding for that period. Diluted net income gleaire takes into account the effect of dilutivrmments, such as stock options, but uses the
average share price for the period in determiniregnumber
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of incremental shares that are to be added to #ighted average number of shares outstanding. dhgp@ny had no potentially dilutive
securities outstanding during the periods presented

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiaaciordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 128€ounting for Stock-Based
Compensation which establishes accounting and disclosure remeénts using fair value based methods of accayiftinstock-based
compensation plans. Compensation expense relaggants of stock and stock options is recognizest tive vesting period of such grants
based on the estimated fair value on the grant date

Stock compensation awards granted to the emplafdeDAC are accounted for in accordance with EBE-18,Accounting For Equity
Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Emplof@e&cquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods and Sensgevhich requires the
Company to measure the fair value of the equitirumsent using the stock prices and other measureassnmptions as of the earlier of either
the date at which a performance commitment by thenterparty is reached or the date at which thetoparty’s performance is complete.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in eonfty with GAAP, requires management to make esté® and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisice of contingent assets and liabilities atdhte of the financial statements and the repc
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negquiriod. Actual results could differ from thostimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Stadel8oard, or FASB, issued SFAS No. 1b@ir Value Measurementor SFAS 157. SFA
157 defines fair value, establishes a frameworlafeasuring fair value and requires enhanced disidssabout fair value measurements. S
157 requires companies to disclose the fair vafubeir financial instruments according to a faéwe hierarchy (i.e., levels 1, 2, and 3, as
defined). Additionally, companies are required toyide enhanced disclosure regarding instrumentisenevel 3 category (which require
significant management judgment), including a redation of the beginning and ending balances smpdy for each major category of assets
and liabilities. SFAS 157 was adopted by the CompmanJanuary 1, 2008. SFAS 157 did not signifigaimipact the manner in which
management estimates fair value, but it requiretitiacial disclosures, which are included in Note 5.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. I8t Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Rioal Liabilities, or SFAS 159. SFAS
159 permits entities to choose to measure manydiahinstruments and certain other items at falug. Unrealized gains and losses on items
for which the fair value option has been electelll véi recognized in earnings at each subsequenttieg date. SFAS 159 became effective
the Company January 1, 2008. The Company did ect #ie fair value option for any existing eligifiileancial instruments.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positio. FAS 140-Rccounting for Transfers of Financial Assets angiRehase
Financing Transaction, or FSP FAS 140-3. FSP FAS 140-3 addresses whigimmactions where assets purchased from a fdarticu
counterparty and financed through a repurchasesagget with the same counterparty can be consigerddiccounted for as separate
transactions, or are required to be considere#étifi transactions and may be considered derivatimeler SFAS No. 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, ¢tA5 133. FSP FAS 140-3 requires purchases and gudsefinancing through repurchase
agreements be considered linked transactions ualleskthe following conditions apply: (1) the fi@l purchase and the use of repurchase
agreements to finance the purchase are not comaithctontingent upon each other; (2) the repurelamncing entered into between the
parties provides full recourse to the transferebthn repurchase price is fixed; (3) the finanassets is readily obtainable in the market; and
(4) the financial instrument and the repurchaseemgent are not coterminous. This FSP is effectivéhie Company on January 1, 2009. The
Company is currently evaluating FSP FAS 140-3 lmgtschot expect its application to have a signifidapact on its financial reporting.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1Bikclosures about Derivative Instruments and Heddhativities, or SFAS 161, an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 133. SFAS 161 ateto improve the transparency of financial rejpgrby providing additional
information about how derivative and hedging atitg affect an entity’s
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financial position, financial performance and céletvs. This statement changes the disclosure rements for derivative instruments and
hedging activities by requiring enhanced discloslreut (1) how and why an entity uses derivatigtriments, (2) how derivative instruments
and related hedged items are accounted for undes Statement 133 and its related interpretationd,(8) how derivative instruments and
related hedged items affect an entity’s financ@gipon, financial performance, and cash flows.nieet these objectives, SFAS 161 requires
gualitative disclosures about objectives and gjiatefor using derivatives, quantitative disclosuabout fair value amounts and of gains and
losses on derivative instruments, and disclosuvestecredit-risk-related contingent features iniive agreements. This disclosure
framework is intended to better convey the purpafsgerivative use in terms of the risks that ariteris intending to manage. SFAS 161 is
effective for the Company on January 1, 2009. Thmgany expects that adoption of SFAS 161 will iaseefootnote disclosure to comply
with the disclosure requirements for financial staénts issued after January 1, 2009.

2. Mortgage-Backed Securities

The following table represents the Company’s abéeéléor sale RMBS portfolio as of June 30, 2008 Bedember 31, 2007, at fair value.

December 31,
June 30, 2008 2007

(dollars in thousands)

Mortgage-Backed securities, at amortized ¢ $ 122156 $ 1,114,13
Gross unrealized ga — 10,67¢
Gross unrealized los (104,98) (522
Fair value $ 1,116,58 $ 1,124,29

The following table presents the gross unrealipsdés, and estimated fair value of the Company’dddge-Backed Securities by length of
time that such securities have been in a continuousalized loss position at June 30, 2008 and Dbee 31, 2007.

Unrealized Loss Position For:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Fair Unrealized Estimated Fair Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(dollars in thousands)
June 30, 200 $ 1,116,58 ($104,98) $— $— $ 1,116,58 ($ 104,98)
December 31, 200 $ 1,124,290 ($ 522) $— $— $ 1,124,29 (% 522)

The decline in value of these securities is sallelg to market conditions and not the quality ofdlsets. All of the mortgage-backed securities
are “AAA” rated or carry an implied “AAA” rating. fie investments are not considered other-than-teampoimpaired because the Company
currently has the ability and intent to hold thedstments to maturity or for a period of time stiéfnt for a forecasted market price recovery up
to or beyond the cost of the investments.

Actual maturities of mortgage-backed securitiesgaeerally shorter than stated contractual magsrithctual maturities of the Company’s
RMBS are affected by the contractual lives of thderlying mortgages, periodic payments of princgrad prepayments of principal.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s RMBS3ume 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 accorditigeipestimated weighted-average
life classifications:

June 30, 200¢
(dollars in thousands)
Weighted Average
Weighted Average Life Fair Value Amortized Cost Coupon

Less than one yei — — —
Greater than one year a $ 1,071,85: $ 1,171,74: 6.3(%

less than five yeal
Greater than five yea 44,73¢ 49,82t 5.72%
Total $ 1,116,58 $ 1,221,56 6.27%

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)
Weighted Average

Weighted Average Life Fair Value Amortized Cost Coupon
Less than one ye: $ 45,86¢ $ 46,10: 6.31%
Greater than one year a

less than five yeai 1,078,42: 1,068,03! 6.32%

Greater than five yea — — —

Total $ 1,124,29 $ 1,114,113 6.32%

The weighted-average lives of the mortgage-backedrgies in the tables above are based on datadeithrough dealer quotes, assuming
constant prepayment rates to the balloon or resetfdr each security. The prepayment model corsitlerent yield, forward yield, steepness
of the curve, current mortgage rates, mortgage m@ftéhe outstanding loan, loan age, margin andtiity.

During the six months ended June 30, 2008 andehiegended December 31, 2007 the Company didelicaisy RMBS.
3. Loans Held for Investment

The following table represents the Company’s regidemortgage loans classified as held for investtrat June 30, 2008 and December 31,
2007. At June 30, 2008 approximately 4.6% of thenBany’s investments are adjustable rate mortgamesland 3.0% are fixed rate mortgage
loans. All of the adjustable rate loans held fareistment are hybrid ARMs. Hybrid ARMs are mortgathed have interest rates that are fixed
for an initial period (typically three, five, seventen years) and thereafter reset at regulaniake subject to interest rate caps. The loans held
for investment are carried at their principal bakoutstanding less an allowance for loan losses:

June 30, December 31
2008 2007

(dollars in thousands)

Mortgage loans, at principal balar $ 150,62¢ $ 162,45:
Less: allowance for loan loss (54¢€) (81)
Mortgage loans held for investme $ 150,08: $ 162,37:

The following table summarizes the changes in tlssvance for loan losses for the mortgage loanfpbot during the six months ended June
30, 2008:

June 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands)

Balance, beginning of peric $ 81
Provision for loan losse 465
Charge-offs —
Balance, end of peric $54¢€

On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates thguady of its allowance for loan losses. As of J88e2008, the Company recorded an
allowance for loan losses of $546 thousand reptege86 basis points of the Compi{'s
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mortgage loan portfolio. As of December 31, 2006, Company recorded an allowance for loan loss&8bthousand representing 5 basis
points of the Company’s mortgage loan portfolio.J&he 30, 2008, there were no loans 60 days or pastedue and all loans were accruing
interest.

The geographic distribution of the Company’s lohakl for investment at June 30, 2008 was as follows

(dollars in thousands)

Unpaid Principal

State Number of Loans Balance
CA 50 $ 35,85¢
IL 23 14,947
NJ 18 11,64:
SC 8 6,96¢
NY 10 6,741
MA 7 5,50z
AZ 8 5,32(
MN 8 5,25(
WA 7 4,90:
FL 7 4,77
NH 7 4,65¢
NV 4 4,327
(6{0) 5 3,951
GA 6 3,91¢
VA 5 3,84:
NC 5 3,44(
MD 5 3,38¢
MO 5 3,38(
TX 5 2,93¢
PA 4 2,69t
CT 4 2,55(
uT 3 2,37¢

Other states, individually less than :

of aggregate current balan 12 8,981
Unamortized premium/discou (2,700
Allowance for loan losse (54¢€)
Total $ 150,08:

The Company did not sell any mortgage loans dutiegsix months ended June 30, 2008 or the periddceBecember 31, 2007.
4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The following table represents the Company’s séiced residential mortgage loans classified as faléhvestment at June 30, 2008. The
Company did not hold any securitized loans at Ddmam31, 2007. At June 30, 2008, approximately 1608¥he Company’s securitized loans
are adjustable rate mortgage loans and 13.7%>aé fate mortgage loans. All of the adjustable i@des held for investment are hybrid
ARMSs. Hybrid ARMs are mortgages that have interasts that are fixed for an initial period (typigahree, five, seven or ten years) and
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thereafter reset at regular intervals subject tier@st rate caps. The loans held for investmentamied at their principal balance outstanding
less an allowance for loan losses:

June 30, 200¢

(dollars in thousands)

Securitized mortgage loans, at principal bale $ 614,27¢
Less: allowance for loan loss (69¢€)
Securitized mortgage loans held for investn $ 613,58

The following table summarizes the changes in tlssvance for loan losses for the mortgage loanfpbotduring the six months ended June
30, 2008:

June 30, 2008

(dollars in

thousands)
Balance, beginning of peric $ —
Provision for loan losse 69¢
Charge-offs —
Balance, end of peric $ 69€

On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates thguadg of its allowance for loan losses. The Compaggrded an allowance for loan losses
of $698 thousand for the six months ended Jun@@1B, representing 12 basis points of the prindja#nce of the Company’s securitized
mortgage loan portfolio. At June 30, 2008, thereen® loans 60 days or more past due and all lvans accruing interest.

During the six months ended June 30, 2008, the @ompransferred $619.7 million of its residentiadmgage loans held for investment to the
PHHMC 2008-CIM1 Trust in a securitization transaatiln this transaction, the Company sold $5368aniof AAA-rated fixed and floating
rate bonds to third party investors and retaine@l 3#illion of AAA-rated mezzanine bonds and $3@ullion in subordinated bonds which
provide credit support to the certificates issuethtrd parties. The certificates issued by thsttare collateralized by loans held for investment
that have been transferred to the PHHMC 2008-CIMisT The Company incurred approximately $1.3 mnillin issuance costs that were
deducted from the proceeds of the transaction emteing amortized over the life of the bonds. Thassaction was accounted for as a
financing pursuant to SFAS 14A¢ccounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets and Extinguishments of Liabilities

5. Fair Value Measurement

SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framki@rmeasuring fair value, establishes a threellgaluation hierarchy for disclosure
of fair value measurement and enhances disclosgugrements for fair value measurements. The valudiierarchy is based upon the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an ags&ability as of the measurement date. The thegels are defined as follows:

Level I- inputs to the valuation methodology are quotedgwriginadjusted) for identical assets and liatslitreactive markets

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imdwquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs
that are observable for the asset or liabilityhesitdirectly or indirectly, for substantially thellfterm of the financial instrumer

Level 3—inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservabld significant to fair valu

Mortgage-Backed Securities and interest rate s\wegpsalued using a pricing model. The MBS pricingdel incorporates such factors
as coupons, prepayment speeds, spread to the fMyeasu
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and swap curves, convexity, duration, periodic ifieccaps, and credit enhancement. Interest raggswre modeled by incorporating such
factors as the Treasury curve, LIBOR rates, andebeive rate on the interest rate swaps. Manageraeews the fair values determined by
the pricing model and compares its results to depletes received on each investment to validatsomableness of the valuations indicated by
the pricing model. The dealer quotes will incorgereommon market pricing methods, including a spreaasurement to the Treasury curv
interest rate swap curve as well as underlyingatdtaristics of the particular security includingipon, periodic and life caps, rate reset period,
issuer, additional credit support and expecteddifthe security. The Company’s financial assetlabilities carried at fair value on a
recurring basis are valued at June 30, 2008 asAfsll

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousands)

Assets:
Mortgage-Backed Securitie $ — $ 1,116,558 % —
Liabilities:
Interest Rate Sway $ — % 10,06¢ % —

6. Repurchase Agreements
(A) Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company had outstanding $909.1 million and $2#tlllion of repurchase agreements with weighteerage borrowing rates of 4.85%
and 5.02% and weighted average remaining matunfi@8 and 22 days as of June 30, 2008 and DeceBih@007 respectively. At June 30,
2008, RMBS pledged as collateral under these répgrcagreements had an estimated fair value of49illion, carrying value of $911.7
million, including accrued interest, and cash fog$29.5 million. At December 31, 2007, RMBS pledds collateral had an estimated fair
value of $271.7 million. The interest rates of thespurchase agreements are generally indexee mngrmonth LIBOR rate and reprice
accordingly.

At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the repsecagreements collateralized by RMBS had theviollp remaining maturities:

June 30, 2008 December 31, 2007

(dollars in thousands)

Within 30 days $ 539,60: $ 270,58t
30 to 59 day: 344,97 —
60 to 89 day: — —
90 to 119 day 24,51« —

Greater than or equal to 120 d: — —

Total $ 909,08¢ $ 270,58«

At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the Comghianyot have an amount at risk greater than 10&gafty with any counterparty.
(B) Loans Held for Investment

The Company has entered into two master repurd@®ements pursuant to which it finances mortgaged. One agreement is a $500 mil
lending facility of which $200 million is on an usimmitted basis. This agreement terminates Janu&r20d09. The second agreement is a §
million committed lending facility. This agreemaatminates January 29, 2010. As of June 30, 208@&tember 31, 2007, the Company did
not have any amounts borrowed against these fasili©n July 29, 2008, the Company terminated lasttling facilities.
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Currently the sub-prime mortgage sector is expeimgnunprecedented losses and there is weaknéiss broader mortgage market that has
increased volatility in market valuation of investnts and the availability of credit which may adbedy affect one or more of the Company’s
lenders and could cause one or more of the Compaaryders to be unwilling or unable to provide ithwadditional financing. This could
potentially increase the Company’s financing cestd reduce liquidity. If one or more major markettjzipants fail, it could negatively impact
the marketability of all fixed income securitiegdahis could negatively impact the value of theusities in the Company’s portfolio, thus
reducing its net book value. Furthermore, if mafthe Company’s lenders are unwilling or unabl@tovide it with additional financing, the
Company could be forced to sell its investmentnaihopportune time when prices are depressed.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company'’s securitized debt is collatezatl by residential mortgage loans. For finana@glarting purposes, the Company’s
securitized debt is accounted for as a financingymant to SFAS 140, Accounting for Transfers aniSimg of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities. Thus, the residahthortgage loans held as collateral are recondele assets of the Company as securitized
loans and the securitized debt is recorded adbiityain the statement of financial condition.

At June 30, 2008, the securitized debt of the Campeas collateralized by residential mortgage lcamd has a principal balance of $504.4
million. The debt matures between the years 20232438. At June 30, 2008, the debt carried a wethhterage cost of financing equal to
5.96%. At December 31, 2007, the Company had nariseed debt.

8. Interest Rate Swaps

In connection with the Company’s interest rate rigknagement strategy, the Company economicallygsedgportion of its interest rate risk by
entering into derivative financial instrument caatis. As of June 30, 2008, such instruments arg@dsed of interest rate swaps, which in
effect modify the cash flows on repurchase agre¢sn@ime Company’s swaps are used to lock-in a fiaéel relative to a portion of its current
and anticipated future 30-day term repurchase aggats. The Company accounts for interest rate sasfieestanding derivatives with
changes in fair value recorded in earnings.

The table below represents the Company’s swapsanulisig:

Net Estimated Fair
Weighted Average Weighted Average Value/Carrying
Notional Amount Pay Rate Receive Rate Value

(dollars in thousands)

June 30, 200 $ 1,008,91. 4.1(% 2.4&% ($10,06%)
December 31, 200 $ 1,235,000 4.04% 4.92% ($ 4,15¢

9. Common Stock
During the six months ended June 30, 2008, the @ompeclared dividends to common shareholdersngt&l5.9 million or $0.42 per share.
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10. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptareto provide incentives to its independentates, employees of FIDAC and its
affiliates, to stimulate their efforts towards tBempany’s continued success, loegm growth and profitability and to attract, redvand retail
personnel and other service providers. The IncerRian authorizes the Compensation Committee didhed of directors to grant awards,
including incentive stock options, non-qualifiedak options, restricted shares and other typesaafitive awards. The Incentive Plan
authorizes the granting of options or other aw#odsin aggregate of 8.0% of the outstanding shafrés common stock, up to a ceiling of
40,000,000 shares.

As of June 30, 2008, the Company has granted cesirstock awards in the amount of 1,301,000 stiarE¥DAC’s employees and the
Company’s independent directors. Of these shaB60@ shares vested and 6,713 shares were forfgitemhcelled during the six months
ended June 30, 2008. The awards to the indepeddentors vested on the date of grant, and thedsuwarFIDAC’s employees vest quarterly
over a period of 10 years.

At June 30, 2008 there are approximately 1.2 nmilliovested shares of restricted stock issued tdogregs of FIDAC. For the six months
ended June 30, 2008, compensation expense lessabane administrative costs associated with thertimation of the fair value of the
restricted stock totaled $1.0 million.

11. Income Taxes

As a REIT, the Company is not subject to Federdrime tax on earnings distributed to its sharehslddost states recognize REIT status as
well. The Company has decided to distribute theonitgj of its income. During the six months endedel@0, 2008, the Company recorded no
income tax expense related to state and federdibtaikities on undistributed income for an effestitax rate of 0%.

12. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Companys primary components of market risk are credit @sll interest rate risk. The Company is subjectedit risk in connection wi
its investments in residential mortgage loans arditsensitive mortgageacked securities. When the Company assumes cisdditt attempt:
to minimize interest rate risk through asset selachedging and matching the income earned ongage assets with the cost of related
liabilities. The Company is subject to intereserask, primarily in connection with its investmerin fixed-rate and adjustable-rate mortgage
backed securities, residential mortgage loansrepdrchase agreements. When the Company assuresstnate risk, it minimizes credit risk
through asset selection. The Company’s stratetgyy psirchase loans underwritten to agreed-upon Bpetdns of selected originators in an
effort to mitigate credit risk. The Company hasabished a whole loan target market including prboerowers with FICO scores generally
greater than 650, Alt-A documentation, geographiemification, owner-occupied property, moderater size and moderate loan to value
ratio. These factors are considered to be impontaitators of credit risk.

13. Management Agreement and Related Party Transaicns

The Company has entered into a management agreeuriteitIDAC, which provides for an initial term @mgh December 31, 2010 with
automatic one-year extension options and subjectttizin termination rights. The Company pays FID&Quarterly management fee equal to
1.50% per annum of the gross Stockholders’ Eqaisydefined in the management agreement) of the @wynplanagement fees paid to
FIDAC for the six months ended June 30, 2008 wdr8 hillion. Management fees paid to FIDAC at Debem31, 2007 were $1.2 million.

The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC forcitsts incurred under the management agreemeaddition, the management agreement
permits FIDAC to require the Company to pay forpite rata portion of rent, telephone, utilitiesfiag furniture, equipment, machinery and
other office, internal and overhead expenses ofA&ncurred in the operation of the Company. Thegeenses are allocated between FIDAC
and the Company based on the ratio of the Compamgjzortion of gross assets compared to all remgigross assets managed by FIDAC as
calculated at each quarter end. FIDAC and the Cospall modify this allocation methodology, subjectthe Company’s board of directors’
approval if the allocation becomes inequitable (ifehe Company becomes very
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highly leveraged compared to FIDAC's other fundd ancounts). For the six months ended June 30, F0D&C has waived its right to
request reimbursement from the Company for thepereses. The Company was required to reimburse FlidA&ll costs FIDAC paid on
behalf of the Company incurred in connection wita formation, organization and initial public offeg of the Company, which amounted to
$697,947.

During the six months ended June 30, 2008, 73,686es of restricted stock issued by the CompafDAC’s employees vested, as discu:
in Note 10.

In March 2008, the Company entered into a RMBS metpase agreement and a receivables sales agreeitieAnnaly. These agreements
contain customary representations, warranties audrants. As of June 30, 2008, the Company waading $50.0 million under this
repurchase agreement. As of September 30, 2008 dimpany had approximately $620.0 million outstagdinder this agreement, which
constitutes approximately 56% of its total finarmggin

14. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoivedharious claims and legal actions arising in ¢dh@inary course of business.
Management is not aware of any reported or unregarontingencies at June 30, 2008

15. Subsequent Events

On July 25, 2008 the Company sponsored a $151lIBmdecuritization as a sale. In this transacttber, Company retained all of securities

issued by the securitization trust including apprately $142.4 million of AAA-rated fixed and flaag rate senior bonds and $8.8 million in
subordinated bonds. This transaction will be actedifor as a sale. On August 28, 2008, the Compaltyapproximately $74.9 million of the
AAA-rated fixed and floating rate bonds relatedhe July 25, 2008 securitization to third-partyeéstors, and realized a loss of $11.5 million.

On July 29, 2008 the Company terminated both ofXbmpany’s mortgage loan repurchase facilities.

On September 9, 2008, the Company’s board of directeclared a quarterly distribution of $6.2 roiilj or $0.16 per share of the Company’s
common stock. This dividend will be paid on OctoB#&r 2008 to stockholders of record on Septembg20@8.

On October 14, 2008, the Company announced thaigitire third quarter of 2008 it sold assets wittaerying value of $432.5 million in
AAA-rated non-Agency RMBS for a loss of approximgt®113 million, which includes a realized lossdfL.5 million related to the August
28, 2008 transaction described above, and terndr883.4 million in notional interest rate swapsddoss of approximately $10.5 million,
which together resulted in a net realized lossppraximately $123.5 million.

In October 2008, the Company amended its manageagee¢ment with FIDAC to reduce the base managefeeritom 1.75% per annum to
1.50% per annum of the Company’s stockholdeggliity and eliminate the incentive fees previoystyided for in the management agreem
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